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AIDS ISSUES
Cost awl Availability of AZT

TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 1987

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice at 9:55 a.m., in room
2322, Rayburn House Office Building, Hor... Henry A. Waxman
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting of the subcommittee will come to
order.

Last September the Department of Health and Human Se vices
and the Burroughs Wellcome Company made a dramatic joint an-
nouncement. There was an AIDS drug. The drug AZT had been in
clinical trials in humans for 7 months. The trials were double-
blinded and placebo-controlled. That is, by secret random selection
half of the patients received AZT and half received a placebo.

A few months later researchers began to report that some AIDS
patients were clearly getting better. Others were dying. The re-
searchers insisted that a scientific safety board break the secret
code'. I see if the drug was producing these results.

In September the safety board revealed that about 1 out of 8 pa-
tients in the control group had died compared to one out of 145 of
the patients receiving AZT. Given this information, both HHS and
Burroughs Wellcome decided that it would be unethical to continue
the study, that keeping some patients off the drug endangered
their lives.

While formal approval procedures began, all control group pa-
tients were given AZT. In addition, Burroughs Wellcome and HHS
began to supply AZT free of charge to any AIDS patient in Amer-
ica who had symptoms similar to those of she study. To date, over
4,500 patients have been given the drug.

In January the FDA's scientific advisory panel recommended
that the drug be approved for sale in the U.S., England and France
have already approved its sale. Last month Burroughs Wellcome
announced that the drug will wholesale for about $7,000 per pa-
tient per : ear. The retail price is expected to be between $8,000
and $10,000.

There are a number of major questions that must be answered in
today's hearing. Is this a fair price? Who will pay for the people
who are now being treated for free? Who will pay for the people

(1)
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who become ill after the drug is approved? Who is responsible for
people who cannot pay?

But the guiding principle in answering these questions has al-
ready been given by HHS and Burroughs Wellcome as part of their
original dramatic annoi.'ncement: Keeping AIDS patients off AZT
endangers their lives. It would be unethical to do so.

We cannot permit the health care system to keep this drug away
from people any more ethically than we could have permitted the
health research system to do so. Giving patients sugar pills because
they are part of a study can be justified as an effort to learn about
a disease and its cure. Giving patients nothing because they have
no insurance and no money can be rationalized only as a part of a
system that provides health miracles to the wealthy and health ne-
glect to the poor.

This subcommittee has wrestled with aspects of these problems
before, perhaps most visibly in the question of paying for organ
transplant? and the expensive drugs that are needed to make them
successful. Today we confront the problems in their most crystal-
lized form. If the manufacturer, the States and the Federal Govern-
ment work well, lives can be prolonged, perhaps for a long time,
perhaps until a cure for AIDS is found. If we do not, poor AIDS
patients will die. It's as simple as that.

Before calling on our witnesses, I want to recognize the distin-
guished ranking minority member of the subcommittee, Mr. Mad-
igan.

Mr. MADIGAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, this
morning's hearing brings into focus once again the problem of
meeting the high cost Jf providing health care with finite re-
sources. The question is, "Who is going to pay for it? And it's a re-
frain which we have heard repeatedly in the past and which we
will continue to hear in the future, not only with regard to this
therapy but with regard to many others.

I hope that the witnesses today will help us in developing a ra-
tional answer to that question, and will not automatically say that,
"It is not us who will be paying for it." The AZT therapy has been
demonstrated to prolong the lives of certain AIDS patients. The
question isor the first question is, should it be made available to
those patients at little or no cost? What if a superior drug is discov-
ered, should it also be made available? Should the provision of AZT
be continued if some superior drug is discovered? Those are just
some of the questions.

I'm interested in the future prospects for AIDS therapy and hope
that the witnesses will focus on their planning for the future, as
well as the immediate problem of financing AZT therapy. And I
would hope that all of the witnesses this morning will keep in
mind that this subcommittee will be hearing about numerous
health issues in coming weeks. I'm sure all the members of the sub-
committee will join me in requesting that the AZT issue be put in
perspective with those other issues, particularly the testimony
from various department officials.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Wyden.
Mr. WYDEN. Just very briefly, Mr. Chairman. I certainly com-

mend you for going forward with this hearing. There are really two
issues that I think are particularly important.
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One, I would like to see Congress,to bring some certainty and
some new integrity to the drug approval process. In some instances
drugs are approved too fast; in other instances drugs are approved
too slowly. I'm very interested in looking at the AZT pricing issue
in conjunction with an overall examination of the drug approval
process.

The other reason that I think your hearing is so important, Mr.
Chairman, is that there will be billions of dollars involved in the
development of new drugs against AIDS. The prospects are there
for abuses and problems steming from these drugs. I think it's very
important that we maintain vigorous oversight. This hearing is an
important first step in that process, and I look forward to your tes-
timony.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden. Mr. Whittaker.
Mr. WHITTAKER. Nothing, thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I commend you for

looking into this subject of how we can withstand the cost of pro-
viding hopefully some treatment and drugs for those people who
now have a non-curable disease. One of the tragedies of the public
health response to this upidemic in America is the non-traditional
respcnse which public health authorities have adopted.

Notwithstanding the epidemic in the country specifically, we do
not today call on States to report and notify public :iealth authori-
ties when a person with the AIDS virus is found in the course of
treatment by physicians. Reporting the existence of a communica-
ble disease is a normal, routine process that strangely in the treat-
ment of this disease is not now being followed. As to why, that re-
mains a good question.

I hope that this subcommittee will hold hearings on the failure
of the public health authorities in this Nation to adopt normal,
routine practices that can hopefully minimize the transmissability
of this fatal virus to other citizens in our community. One of the
tragedies of this whole thing is that we don't know the number of
people in this country today who may have a need for this drug or
other drugs that may come along because we have not been follow-
ing the routine, normal response of public health authorities when
a new communicable disease comes along. Namely, to report it to
public health authorities.

I would hope someday, Mr. Chairman, that you will find time on
your agenda to hold hearings on this issue and others that are de-
signed to develop a public health response whereby this Govern-
ment and Statr, governments around the country will treat this
issue as a public health issue and stop treating it as a civil rights
issue. Thank you very much.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Dannemeyer. We will be holding a
number of hearings on a number of the ramifications of the AIDS
epidemic throughout the year, but the one today is on this question
of the cost of AZT.

[The statement of Hon. Terry Bruce follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. TERRY BRUCE

Thank you Mr. Chairman for holding this hearing.
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The spread of the AIDS virus has truly become a national concernone that de-
mands the awareness of every American. Programs aimed at eliminating the threat
of AIDS demand the uncompromised support of every American. I strongly believe
that we must redouble our effort to devise both a preventive measure to protect the
uninfected population and move forward in providing hope for Americans who al-
ready have AIDS.

The development of the drug AZT holds out new hope for AIDS victims and their
families. Preliminary tests indicate that AZT will retard the ravages of AIDS and
permit many patients to resume productive lives.

Unfortunately, AZT is prohibitively expensivean estimated cost of up to $10,000
per year for each patient using the drug. For AIDS patients whose resources have
already been exhausted, AZT can realistically only offer hope in conjunction with
Federal assistance. Medicaid, the health care provider for low-income Americans,
may spend as much as $800 million this year on assistance to AIDS victims. If Med-
icaid were to provide its AIDS patients with AZT the bill could jump to $950 million
in 1988. With the welcome life prolonging effects of AZT we can expect increasing
Federal Government cost exposure through the Medicare program. The cost of pro-
viding AZT raises the question of how best can the Federal Government provide for
victims of AIDS.

Mr. Chairman, I commend you for holding this hearing and I look forward to the
witnesses' testimony.

Mr. WAXMAN. And for our first witness, we're pleased to recog-
nize Mr. T.E. Haigler, Jr., president and chief executive officer,
Burroughs Wellcome Company. We're delighted to have you with
us. We'll make your statement part of the record in full. We'd like
to ask you to present your testimony orally and to try to highlight
the main points, trying to keep as close to 5 minutes as possible.

STATEMENT OF T.E. HAIGLER, JR., PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXEC-
UTIVE OFFICER, BURROUGHS WELLCOME CO.; ACCOMPANIED
BY DAVID BARRY, VICE PRESIDENT, RESEARCH
Mr. HAIGLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to

appear before your committee. I am T.E. Haigler, Jr., president and
chief executive officer of Burroughs Wellcome Co., located in Re-
search Triangle Park, NC. With me today is Dr. David Barry, our
vice president for research.

As you know, it was Burroughs Wellcome research that first
identified AZT, now called RETROVIR, as being of potential value
in the fight against AIDS. And it was Burroughs Wellcome, along
with a number of outstanding government scientists and university
investigators who conducted the study and development of this
drug which has brought hope to AIDS sufferers everywhere.

We have submitted a formal statement and asked that it be
made part of the record. I will attempt to briefly rummarize that
statement and then answer your committee's questions.

Eight months ago Dr. Barry appeared at a Congressional hearing
on AIDS research before Congressman Weiss and yourself. I think
it is fair to say that tremendous progress has been made since
then. Today we have a drug that is in the review process and hope-
fully will be soon approved for use against the human immunodefi-
ciency virus.

We have gone from making the quantities necessary for small
scale clinical trials to a situation where more than one-third of all
living AIDS patients in tne United States are receiving RETROVIR
therapy. Normally, it would take about 5 years to devise and per-
fect the production methods required to go from synthesizing small
quantities of drugs to the tons currently being produced. Through
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an enormous effort, we have succeeded in increasing our supply
more than a thousandfold in the last 18 months. We have invested
millions of dollars in the research program that has brought this

il drug from the laboratory to more than 4,000 patients in a period of
less than 3 years.

We began this research at a time when AIDS was not considered
a significant public health problem by the general public. We did
this because we felt our experience with antivirals would enable us
to make a valuable contribution to the fight against this devastat-
ing disease, and we believed we had an obligation to do so.

This effort involved a significant of financial risk. The full use-
fulness of RETROVIR is unknown. Efficacy and speed of introduc-
tion of other therapies are unknown. Our financial returns are un-
certain. After we showed that the antiviral approach could indeed
by successful, others have taken an active interest in this therapeu-
tic area. And we believe that that is in the public good.

The costs involved in this project have been significant. Apart
from the millions of dollars that we have spent in research, Well-
come has committed more than $80 million in additional capital for
raw materials for production of RETROVIR. This is above and
beyond other tuaal costs associated with manufacturing and dis-
tributing RETROVIR to patients.

Mr. Chairman, as I am sure you and your committee know, de-
spite our best efforts, we will be faced with the difficult situation of
having a somewhat limited supply of RETROVIR initially following
FDA approval. However, let me assure you that we are devoting
the necessary time, technology, personnel, and financial resources
to continually increase supply. I can say that the supply situation
is constantly evolving and improving.

We expect to have adequate supplies of the drugs available for
most seriously ill patients immediately upon approval. And Mr.
Chairman, we expect our supply to be sufficient to meet the needs
of more than 30,000 patients in the United States by the end of the
year.

We have discussed an appropriate distribution system with the
FDA and other agencies in the Department of Health and Homan
Services and outside experts. This distribution system will be in
place at the time of FDA approval.

At this point, Mr. Chairman, I think we can safely say that drug
therapy offers the only hope for patients suffering from this deadly
disease. While education and ultimately vaccines may help to slow
the acquisition of the virus, drug therapy is the modality that will
have the most positive impact on the substantial population al-
ready infected. The hope of drug therapy is tc save lives, return pa-
tients to productive lives, and keep patients with minimal symp-
toms healthy.

We have shown that RETROVIR can prolong life in those pa-
tients who have one of the most severe forms of human immunode-
ficiency disease. We know that RETROVIR can reduce their risk of
opportunistic infections and improve their ability to live day to
day.

On the health care expenditure side, we believe RETROVIR will
reduce annual direct costs for the patient with advanced forms of
the disease. We believe the RETROVIR therapy also will limit the

1 0
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progression of patients from less serious to more serious forms of
the disease. Aside from the obvious benefits to the patient, this will
also reduce health care costs. As 'eve all know, the end stages of
HIV infection are when the largest consumption of health care re-
sources occur.

We estimate that the annual cost of RETROVIR to patients
could be in the range of $7-to $10,000. Let me assure you that we
have considered a number of factors in establishing our pric 3 for
RETROVIR. We have considered the high cost of developing and
producing this drug, and the very real needs of the patients for
whom it was developed.

I believe we have balanced our concern for patients with the de-
velopment and production costs involved and the risks we have as-
sumed. We have recognized our need to recover our cost, achieve a
financial return in an uncharted therapeutic area and in an un-
charted, uncertain future.

It is my hope, Mr. Chairman, that the proceeding has been of
value. Dr. Barry and I will be happy to answer any questions you
might have.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Haig ler follow:]

STATEMENT OF T.E. HAIGLER, JR

I am T E. Haig ler, Jr., president and chief executive officer of Burroughs Well-
come Co., a research-based pharmaceutical company located in Research Triangle
Park, North Carolina. With me is David Barry, M.D., our vice president of research.

I am pleased to have the opportunity today to provide information about Bur-
roughs Wellcome's efforts in the discovery and development of RETROVIR for the
treatment of certain patients suffering from diseases associated with the human im-
munodeficiency virus, namely Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) and
AIDS Related Complex (ARC). I would like to give you some background informa-
tion about Burroughs Wellcome and its prior work in the antiviral area. I will then
summarize our research and development efforts with respect to RETROVIR and
describe our supply situation and distribution plans for RETROVIR, including pric-
ing considerations.

BACKGROUND

Burroughs Wellcome is the American subsidiary of The Wellcome Foundation,
Ltd., a worldwide group cr pharmaceutical companies. The Wellcome enterprise was
founded in 1880 by two A.,ierican pharmacists, Silas Burroughs arid Sir Henry Well-
come. Throughout the years, it has been dedicated to the advancement of medical
knowledge and care. The Wellcome Foundation was established in 1924 to consoli-
date the international busaless of Wellcome

In 1936, Sir Henry's ill created the charitable Wellcome Trust as the Founda-
tion's sole shareholder aid directed that earnings would be used to further medical
and scientific research t improve the physical condition of mankind. Since its cre-
ation, The Trust has distributed more than $180 million dollars to worldwide medi-
cal research, independent of Wellcome research activities, making it the largest pri-
vate philanthropy in Great Britain.

In 1986, 25 percent of the Foundation shares were offered for public sale. The
other 75 percent remain with the Trust This public offering was intended to diversi-
fy the Trust's source of income and provide additional resources for its work. After
105 years, Wellcome became a publicly held company and now is traded on the
London Exchange.

Burroughs Wellcome Co., the United States subsidiary, was founded in 1906. It
employs more than 3,500 people in the United States and is dedicated to research,
development, manufacturing and marketing of human pharmaceutical and diagnos-
tic products. The company makes about 90 products including antibacterials, analge-
sics, and drugs to treat cardiovascular diseases, gout, malaria, cancer and organ
transplant rejection. Seven of our medicines have been used in the treatment of var-
ious manifestationE of AIDS and its associated opportunistic infections.



A part:esular area of interest and success at Wellcome has been the development
of antiviral agents. Over three decades, Wellcome scientists have developed the most
successful antiviral program in medical research This research grew out of pioneer-
ing studies in cancer chemotherapy and nucleic acid derivatives in the 1940s and
1950s. It p inted the way to the company's first antiviral drug, MARBORAN, which
was uses. ,.,,ring the 1960s for the prevention of smallpox and treatment of smallpox
vaccination complications.

Burroughs Wellcome began an intensive research effort to discover new antiviral
compounds in the 1960s and 1970s. The company developed VIROPTIC brand tri-
fluriume to treat herpes infections of the eye and later discovered ZOVIRAX brand
acyclovir, the first antiviral to selectively attack a virus while leaving nctmal cells
virtually untouched. Intravenous ZOVIRAX and ZOVIRAX Ointment were intro-
duced in 1982 for the treatment of initial genital herpes infections and herpes sim-
plex infections in patients with inadequate immune systems. ZOVIRAX Capsules
were introduced in 1985 and are used worldwide for the treatment and suppression
of a variety of herpes group infections including genital and facial herpes as well as
shingles. ZOVIRAX has helped millions of people in their efforts to deal with the
medical and psychological effects of infections caused by this group of viruses.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our research into AIDS is a natural extension of this antiviral program. This re-
search began at a time when AIDS was not cons.'clered a significant public health
prollem by the general public, and pharmaceutical manufacturers generally did not
consider the illness to he one involving significant financial rewards. We initiated
this research because we felt that, based on our antiviral experience, we could make
a valuable contribution to the fight against this devastating disease.

Our AIDS research program began in June 1984 with a study of chemical com-
pounds which we felt might be effective against the AIDS virus. In November 1984
we identified a compound, AZT, also known as azidothymidine or zidovudine, and
which we now call RETROVIR, which inhibited the replication of certain animal
viruses in the laboratory. Independent laboratory testing in late 1984 and early 1985
confirmed that zidovudine was effective in inhibiting the multiplication of the
human AIDS virus in the test tube.

Toxicologic and pharmacologic testing began in the spring of 1985, as did work on
scaling up synthesis of the drug. On June 14, 1985, we submitted an application to
the Food and Drug Administration to obtain an Investigational New Drug Exemp-
tion for the use of RETROVIR in humans. On June 21, 1985, the FDA indicated that
the data were sufficient to allow us to begin clinical studies in humans.

The first patient received RETROVIR on July 3, 1985 at the Clinical Center rf the
National Institutes of Health. This initial Phase I study ultimately involved J5 pa-
tients. It showed that adverse reactions were limited, consisting primarily of some
bone marrow suppression in some patients when taking high drug doses for pro
longed periods of time. The study also indicated that RETROVIR was well absorbed
after oral administration and entered the brain in reasonable amounts Some of the
patients showed some objective and subjective evidence of improvement, including
an increased sense of well-being, weight gain, and improvement in various measures
of their immune system.

These responses were sufficiently encouraging to allow us to begin a Phase II
double-blinded, placebo-controlled study of RETROVIR.

This study, which took place at 12 medical centers throughout :;he country, began
on February 18, 1986. It was financed solely by the Burroughs Wellcome Co. It
began five months before the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases
selected the AIDS Treatment and Evaluation Units (ATEUs). Most of the 12 centers
involved in the Burroughs Wellcome study were eventually selected as ATEUs. A
total of 282 AIDS and AIDS Related Complex (ARC) patients were enrolled in this
study during the period of February to June 1986. Because of the ehical concerns
raised by a placebo-controlled study in a uniformly fatal disease, arrangements were
made to convene a Data and Safety Monitoring Board, through the auspices of the
National Institute. of Allergy and Infectious Disease, to examine the data on pa-
tients in the study every two to three months. If either the placebo or the drug-
treated group did either so poorly or so well that it would be unethical to continue
the study as designed, this outside review board would inform us and the study
would be stopped.

In September 1986, an interim analysis presented to this board showed that there
was a significantly lower mortality rate in patients randomized to receive RETRO-
VIR compared to those randomized to receive placebo. The trial was halted. At the
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time the trial was stopped, there had been 16 deahts among the 137 patients receiv-
ing placebo and one death among the 145 patients receiving RETROVIR. The group
receiving RETROVIR also had a decreased number of opportunistic infections. This
was true of both AIDS and ARC patients. In addition, weight gein and improve-
ments in the immune system and the ability to perform daily activities noted in the
eErlier study were confirmed in this larger study. Bone marrow suppression contin-
ue--1 to be a significant side effect.

Jecause this stud- showed the benefits of RETROVIR therapy outweighed the
risks associated with treatment in certain groups of AIDS and ARC patients, place-
bo recipients in this study ware given the opportunity to receive RETROVIR ther-
apy. Eighty-four percent of the patients enrolled in this study are al.'ive today, more
than one year after he first patient was enrolled. In addition, the National Insti-
tutes of Health, the Food and Drug Administration and Burroughs Wellcome estab-
Fshed an investigational new drug (IND) program to make RETROVIR more widely
available to the group of patients for whom the benefits had been shown over-
whelmingly to outweigh th -isks, namely AIDS patients who had recovered from at
least one episode of pneumo.ystis carinii pneumonia.

Since September 1986, more than 4,500 patients, one-third of all living AIDS pa-
tients in the United States, 'have recei ed RETROVIR free of charge from Bur-
roughs Wellcome through this treatment IND program. There are 2,122 physicians
registered with the treatment IND program and 919 registered pharmacists. We an-
ticipate that the treatment IND program will ultimately distribute more than $10
million worth of drug.

While this program was being implemented, a U.S. New Drug Application (NDA)
was filed in sequential segments with the FDA to ensure that the data were under
review as rapidly as possible. The submission of the NDA began in October and was
completed on December 2, 1986. The FDA held an advisory committee meeting to
review the data on January 16 of this year. The committee voted 10 to 1 to recom-
mend approval of RETROVIR for the treatment of most AIDS patients and certain
seriously ill ARC patients. W- have supplied the FDA with additional information
they reqvested and ate in active discussion with them, including meetings later
today. We expect approval in the very near future Licenae applications have been
submitted to a number of regulatory authorities in other countries by the Wellcome
Foundatior Approvals for general sale already have been granted in the United
Kingdom i France.

In the meantime, we have continued ovr efforts to learn more about IIETROVIR
and the patients for whom it might be beneficial. Our clinical trial program has ex-
panded and we expect to begin studies with RETROVIR in 1,500-2,000 pat;Pots
around the world within the next six months. This program will include pediatric
patients, patients with Kaposi's sarcoma, neurological disease, ARC and asympto-
matic infection. Also underway are studies to test the effectiveness of RETROVIR in
combination with other drugs as well its its usefulness in patients undergoind bone
marrow transplantation or T-lymphocyte transfusions.

These efforts are just part of a multimillio., dollar investment in research which
brought this drug to its current status in b. period of less than three years. Current-
ly, about one-fifth of all research and development spending at Burroughs Wellcome
Co. involves RETROVIR. Clinical trials of drugs in AIDS and ARC patients are ex-
traordinarily expensive because of the difficulty in culturing the virus, the relative-
ly long-term nature of most human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) studies and the
extremely complicated nature of the illness which these patients present to the cli-
nician. We began this research at a time when the full impact of this disease was
not fully appreciated and the chance of success was highly unlikely. This effort in-
volved a significant amount of financial risk. Because the full usefulness of RETRO-
VIR and the efficacy and speed of introducti,n of competitive products are un-

own, our financial returns are uncertain. Ii /Never, the research we have done
s already contributed to a greater understanding of the disease. For examp.J, the

information collected from the placebo arm of our phase II trial alone is the most
rigorous study of the natural history and progression of AIDS and ARC The data
will provide an excellent foundation for the research efforts of our owo company
and many others who have only recently begun taking a greater interest in this
therapeutic area.

P_.ODUCTION AND SUPPLY

Parallel to our efforts to expand our clinical knowledge about RETROVIR have
been uur efforts to incrAase production of the drug so that it can be made more
widely available to appropriate patients. Compared to most other drugs, RETROVIR
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is a complex and very expensive drug to manufacture The overall process from
original raw material to delivering RETROVIR to the patient takes about seven
months.

The chemical production process can be divided into two sections. First, the work
done externally to make and supply thymidine, a key raw ingredient, and then the
work done by Burroughs Wellcome to go from raw material to final drug substance.

For our initial work on zidovudine, we purchased commerically available thymi-
dine, which had been obtained as a side product from the DNA in salmon and her-
ring sperm. We are informed that the annual worldwide usage, at this time, was
about 25 pounds. By the summer of 1985, the world's available supply of thymidine
had been exhausted. We, therefore, had to find companies with the appropriate
technology to manufacture larger quantities of both natural and synthetic thymi-
dine for us as fast as possible.

One company in particular, Pfizer Inc., has been very cooperative and allowed us
to continue our development with minimal delays. They have a multi-step process
which involves about 10 chemical reactions. Even with this technology, a great deal
of work was involved to increase the world's supply of thymidine several thousand-
fold in less than two years. The costs have been significant and were undertaken
with no assurance during most of that period that a commerically viable product
would result. Because of the complexity of the synthesis and the quantities involved,
several chemical plants are involved in production of thymidine.

Burroughs Wellcome uses six chemical reactions in a series of stages to convert
thymidine to RETROVIR. By employing the majority of our chemical development
resources over the past 18 months, we have doubled the efficiency of these stages.
Normally it would take about five years to devise and perfect the methods required
to increase the amount of drug synthesized from the fraction of an ounce produced
for iritial study to the tons needed for availability to thousands of patients. Through
improvements in technology, the cooperation of our suppliers and our willingness to
disrupt production plans, we have been successful in increasing our supply by a
factor of 10 every six months for the past year and a half.

The costs involved in this operation have been significant. The Wellcome group
has committed more than $80 million in additional capital and raw material specific
to RETROVIR. This is above and beyond other usual costs associated with manufac-
turing and distributing RETROVIR to patients.

Despite our bust efforts, however, we will be faced with the difficult situation of
having a somewhat limited supply of RETROVIR for a period of time in the near
future. We are devoting the necessary time, technology, personnel, and financial re-
sources to continually increase supply. The supply situation is constantly evolving
and improving. We believe that adequate supplies of RETROVIR will be available
for the most seriously ill patients immediately, and project that supplies for a mini-
mum of 30,000 patients and probably more will be available by the end of 1987.

However, because of the limited availability of RETROVIR initially follov,:ng
FDA approval, there appears to be a need for some type of controlled distribution
system. Burroughs Wellcome has discussed an appropriate system with the FDA
and other agencies in the Department of Health and Human Services. A panel of
experts, chaired by Dr. Sheldon Wolff aad organized through the auspices of the In-
fectious Disease Society of America, is serving as an outside consultant to help us
with this system. These groups and the FDA Advisory Committee understand our
supply situation and the proposed distribution system and hive indicated their sup-
port of our plans.

The company has three goals in distributing the available supply of RETROVIR.
We have a commitment to help ensure the continued availability of this medicine to
patients who already have begun RETROVIR therapy, as long as the drug is medi-
cally appropriate for them. We want to channel the available supply to the patients
with the greatest need and those patients who are most likely to benefit from RE-
TROVIR therapy, given our present state of knowledge about the drug. We need to
ensure an adequate supply to meet their contin,:ng needs In addition, we have to
set aside enough drug to continue a large clinical trial program in order to advance
our knowledge about RETROVIR therapy and further identify the patients for
whom it may be beneficial. A distribution system designed to meet these objectives
will be in place when the drug is approved.

The system will be similar to the process presently being followed in the treat-
ment IND program During the period of limited drug supply, criteria for patient
selection will be determined based upon the indications in our FDA-approved pack-
age insert and in consultation with our outside experts. Physicians will apply for
the drug on beha' of individual patients. Qualified patients with a physician's pre-
scription will be given an identification number and RETROVIR will be shipped di-
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rectly from Burroughs Wellcome to a pharmacy of the patient's choice. This system
will enable us to alert physicians as soon as additional drug supplies become avail-
able.

The price Burroughs Wellcome will charge wholesalers for RETROVIR is expect-
ed to be $188 per bottle of 100, 100 mg capsules. The monthly and yearly cost for
individual patients will vary depending on dosage regimens and length of time on
therapy, as well as distribution costs We estimate that the annual retail cost of RE-
TROVIR therapy for a patient could be in the range of $7,000 to $10,000. We are
informed that the price Wellcome companies will charge for RETROVIR will be con-
sistent throughout the world.

In arriving at the price for RETROVIR, we looked at the usual factors that influ-
ence pricing decisions. These include the costs of developing, producing and market-
ing the drug, the high costs of research, and the need to generate revenues to cover
these continuing costs. Other factors considered include the uncertain market for
the drug, the possible advent of new therapies, and profit margins customarily gen-
erated by significant new medicines. We also examined factors that might be consid-
ered to be unique with respect to RETROVIR. These hrluded the very high cost of
producing this drug ar-t the very real needs of the patients for whom this drug was
developed.

We considered all of these factors and attempted to arrive at a price that we con-
sidered reasonable. However, the cost to the patient will be relatively high for all
the reasons I have described.

This situation is particularly difficult when one realizes that the clinical improve-
ments achieved through RETROVIR therapy may make disabled patients produc-
tive citizens but at the same time disqualify them fromeligibility in health care
safety net programs. Also, a very substantial portion of the money they earn when
re-entering the workforce may have to be spent on the medicine that has enabled
them to return to work.

As part of our regular procedures, Burroughs Wellcome Co. maintains a limited
indigent care program for some of its life-saving therapies. These patient requests
are considered on a case-by-case basis. We hope to continue this with RETROVIR,
but the magnitude of the potential need and the impact of the illness are so enor-
mous that we know it is beyond our scope.

In our view, it is a national public health problem well beyond the resources of
one company, and must be dealt with by governments, employers and the health
insurance industry

CGST-EFFECTIVENESS

An important aspect of RETROVIR therapy is that it appears to substantially
lower the present costs of treating AIDS patients are limited, analysis of the avail-
able data fel RETROVIR indicates that RETROVIR therapy is extremely cost-effe-
cave. One study done in San Francisco estimates that the cost of treating AIDS pa-
tients for one year is approximately $43,500. Other estimates place the cost at a ..ub-
stantially higher figure, some as high as $150,000 per patient. Analysis of the data
presently available, using the lower San Francisco base line, indicates that treating
AIDS patients with RETROVIR could reduce direct medical costs during the first
year by about 25 percent. It is anticipated that the cost of treating . " patients
could be reduced by about 60 percent in the first year, primarily be if fewer
opportunistic infections and fewer hospitalizations. Projecting these s...ngs to a
population of 20,000 AIDS and ARC patients treated with RETROVIR indicates a
combined first year savings of $386 million.

There are also large indirect zosts associated with HIV-related conditions, includ-
ing AIDS. Some of these indirect costs are the loss of wages for sick persons, the loss
of future earnings for persons who are permanently incapacitated or die because of
illness, and the cost of infection control in the course of other health services, such
as dental care. The Centers for Disease Control estimate that the first 10,000 pa-
tients with AIDS lost approximately 8,387 years of work and $189 million in poten-
tial earnings due to disability. The economic loss from future earnings lost following
premature death are calculated to be $4.6 billion. (Ann M. Hardy, DPH, et al., Jour-
nal of the Ameri,-an Medial Association, January 10, 1986.)

In addition, it is possible that RETROVIR therapy may affect the progression of
patients from less serious to more serious forms of the disease, further reducing
health care costs. More important than the cost savings is the evidence that RE-
TROVIR can prolong life in certain patients as well as improve the quality of that
life. Data from our multi-center trial indicates that 68 percent of the AIDS patients
treated with RETROVIR were able to continue or resume productive lives. In addi-
tion, a recent study by scientists at the National Cancer Institute published in The
Lancet suggests that RETROVIR may reverse some of the dementia and other neu-
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rological disorders in some patients with HIV infections We have similar data from
our own multi-center study. While a great deal more research needs to be done in
this area, the oiservation that RETROVIR may modify the neurological impact of
this disease has significant implications for patients and their future outlook.

As a research-intensive phi maceutical company, Burroughs Wellcome Co has fo-
cused its efforts on what we do testdiscovering and bringing new drugs to market.
As we determined the price of the drug, however, we alerted those responsible for
public and private policy and Ecancing to the difficulties that some patients might
face in purchasing the drug.

We are concentrating on the se..ntific and technical challenges of discovering and
bringing to market the first efft.i..:ive therapy for AIDS. But we hope we have not
lost sight of the patients and their families. Their need has been an everpresent
reality to us, and their improvernrnt on RETROVIR therapy has provided us with
the encouragement to continue our efforts.

Our concern for patients has led us to make a number of other commitments as
well. Our interest in providing and acquiring information will not -nd waen the
drug is commercially available. We will continue _a support and participate in edu-
cational efforts in the United States and around the world to advance the state of
knowledge about AIDS therapy. We will broaden our discussions to include state
governments by assisting in the development aad and dissemination of a policy
guide for states on AIDS issues We will have a significant educational effort de-
signed for physicians and other health care providers to help assure they are well-
informed aiout RETROVIR therapy and it role in the management of human im-
munodeficiency virus diseases. Our medical department will be doing follow-up stud-
ies on patients who are already receiving RETROVIR ama initiating studies in many
other important patient sub-groups.

Burroughs Wellcome has succeeded in rapidly developing the first drug to prov'cle
hope to patients who formerly were faced with almost certain death. We have con-
ducted, and will conduct, clinical trials that add significantly to medical understand-
ing of AIDS and ARC as disease conditions. For now, drug therapy offers the only
hope for patients with this disease. While education and, ultimately, vaccines may
help to slow the acquisition of the virus, drug therapy is the modality that will have
the most positive impact on the substantial population already infected.

Mr Chairman, this concludes my remarks. I will be happy to answer any ques-
tions you may have and hope I can be of assistance to you and others as you deal
with this important topic.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Haig ler. Before we
begin questions, let me say that 1 think that Burroughs Wellcome
has done an outstanding job in getting this drug developed. I recog-
nize that you've taken risks, that iespite all your expenses this
drug could become outdated quickly. The country has entrusted the
essentiai function of making pharmaceuticals to the private sector
companies and you have made it work. You're to be commended
for it.

Mr. HAIGLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. You should have a "air return on your investment

and fair compensation for the risks that you are taking with this
product, and I understand the pharmaceutical manufacturers are
not charitable businesses. But I also believe that pharmaceutical
companies share with the public sector the responsibility of not
just getting the drug on the market, but also getting it to patients.
In this life and death situation, the responsibility is especially high.

I want to congratulate you on your development work and I look
forward to working with you in getting AZT to people who need it.
And let me proceed with my questioning in that spirit.

Mr. HAIGLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. The first issue I want to just discuss with you is

the price for the drug. It's quite a high price. I gather the estimate
is maybe $8,000 to $10,000 per patient per year. Now we're going to
have to decide if a patient can pay for a drug with a cost tag on it
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of that magnitude. If the patient can't, will insurance pay for it? If
insurance is not available, will government pay for it? And if no
one can afford it, what will happen? These are questions that pol-
icymakers must grapple with.

But I want to discuss with you how you've come to the price that
you now put on the drug. You want to recoup your investment. I
want to ask you some questions about the investment that you've
made in developing this drug.

As I look at the timetable, Burroughs Wellcome has done about a
year of screening for drugs and 7 months of clinical trials involving
only a few hundred people, as opposed to the thousands that are
usually required. You've also received orphan drug status for AZT
which should contribute as much as a 72 percent tax subsidy of
your clinical costs. And in addition to that, you get a 25 percent
tax credit for increased research and development.

After taxes, how much do you estimate that it cost to get AZT to
the point of manufacture?

Mr. HAIGLER. You have asked a lot of questions there, Mr. Chair-
man, and I think first, if I might, in arriving at our price for RE-
TROVIR, we looked at all of the usual factors that go intothat
influence drug-pricing decisions. These certainly include, as you
said, the cost of researchperhaps I can ask Dr. Barry in a minute
to address that, the particular question about the short timethe
cost of development of the drug, the cost of production of the drug,
which includes certainly material costs, which in those cases are a
fai-'j high cost, labor, overhead, yields that come about out of the
in wess itself, waste management, capital expenditure cost, cost of
distribution, medical information cost; all of these factors are usual
factors in arriving at a drug-pricing decision.

Certainly other factors that we considered included the risk re-
lated to, as I think you said, the uncertainties of the market, the
uncertainties about the full usefulness of RETROVIR, the possible
advent of new therapy.

We also, I think, carefully considered two fact ors that are specif-
ic to RETROVIR, and that is the high cost of producing this par-
ticular drug, and the needs of those patients for whom this drug
was developed.

Mr. WAXMAN. Let's go back to that first part, the cost of the de-
velopment, research and development of the drug itself. You did
have a quick timeframe for getting this drug to FDA, for which you
are to be commended. It's essential that we get this drug out there
as fast as possible.

On the other hand, the shorter period of time and the fewer
number of patients involved meant there was less cost to you. And,
of course, with some of the costs you incur, you get tax credits. It
was considered an orphan drug because the number of people af-
fected by the disease at the time you were seeking to get this drug
approved put it in the category of an orphan drug benefiting a rare
number of people or relatively small number of people who are af-
fected, even though potentially we have large numbers of people
that may have a need for this drug. You got a tax credit for that,
you got a tax credit, 25 percent tax credit for the R&D costs.

Do you have a figure that you could give us after you take the
tax credits as to how much it cost to do research and development
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to get the point of manufacture of the drug? We'll talk about the
manufacturing costs in a minute.

Mr. HAIGLER. Mr. Chairman, I think all of those are very good
questions, and in regards to the cost of research and development,
perhaps I could ask Dr. Barry, who is certainly much more inti-
mately familiar with that part of our process, to discuss this.

Mr. BARRY. Thank you.
1 The cost. particularly of the clinical trials, is not less than the

cost of mostthe development of most other drugs, for several rea-
sons:

First, patients with AIDS and AIDS-Related Complex, so-called
ARC, are not only extraordinarily ill, but have a multitude of infec-
tions which require a great deal of attention by the physician and
many diagnostic procedures.

Mr. WAXMAN. Why don't you start by telling me what the costs
were, and then we can compare them to other drugs.

Mr. BARRY. I really honestly don't have that cost figure, because
it's difficult to differentiate from our entire research and develop-
ment program, particularly in the antiviral area. But I did want to
emphasize that although the number of patients were relatively
small compared to the thousands of patients that are often exam-
ined in clinical trials, the expense in the relative term was not sig-
nificantly less from other studies; first, as I mentioned, because of
th3 extraordinarily difficult and complex medical care that must be
given to the patients; second, because of the costs of the drug itself;
and third, because these patients, as part of their clinical trial,
must be cultured on a regular basis. And the cost of culturing- -

Mr. WAXMAN. I want to stop you there, if you don't have a
figure, and I understand it involves a lot of other considerations
and other costs that you can't quite differentiate with this drug.
But what you want to do, and you are entitled to, is recoup your
investment. And you say that the pricing structure includes reve-
nues to cover your development costs. If just the 4,500 patients that
are now getting AZT continue, your income this year, when you
are approved, would be $45 million. By the end of this year, there
will probably be about 25,000 living AIDS patients in the United
States. If all of them take AZT, your income next year would be
about $250 million.

Most epidemiologists suggest that there are 10 times the number
of people with ARC who have AIDS, so if FDA approved AZT for
ARC, your income next year could be almost $3 billion. When you
have all these series of projections, at some point you are going to
recover your development costs, and we'd like to know after you do
soI expect there would be some decrease in the price of the
drugwhether that would be realistic.

Let me put this in the context of Barron's publication which pre-
dicted profits of $200-$300 million this year. Do you agree with
that estimate?

Mr. HAIGLER. I'm sorry; who?
Mr. WAXMAN. Barron's Magazine. Barron's has an article on the

profits Burroughs-Wellcome can expect on AZT. I haven't seen this
article, but I'm told that Barron's predicts profits of $200 to $300
million this year. Is that an estimate you would agree with?
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Mr. HAIGLER. I don't have any basisI don't know the basis of
the estimate that they arrived at. So I really can't comment on
that. But, no.

Mr. WAXMAN. You don't agree with that figure?
Mr. HAIGLER. No.
Mr. WAXMAN. One pharmaceutical company-
Mr. HAIGLER. I think, as I said earlier, if I may, Mr. Chairman,

there are still a lot of uncertainties about this particular drug.
Mr. WAXMAN. I understand that, but I'm trying now to figure

out the one component of recovering your investment, the develop-
ment of this drug, and it looks like you have the potential to recov-
er it many, manyfold. Now that shouldn't be the only basis for set-
ting a price, I understand that. One pharmaceutical newsletter sug-
gested that your mark-up of AZT is 100 percent, that half the price
is going to be profit. Do you agree with that statement?

Mr. HAIGLER. I'm sorry, I can't respond to that, Mr. Chairman. I
think, to go back to what I said earlier, the potentials of this drug
may be there, but what will actually happen when the drug is fi-
nally approved and it's on the market, what those sales will be, we
have no way of really knowing. We certainly don't know what's
going to happen in the next yea' or two as far as new therapies are
concerned. Whether this drug will continue to be the drug of choice
and really used, we don't know. So I don't think we can speculate
on what sales we will have or what profits we might see.

Mr. WAxmAN. You set the price of $8000 to $10,000 for the sale of
the drug this year to reflect your investment, the uncertainties,
and the profit potential, and you are not sure of the full profit po-
tential, although it could be enormous, but I assume you're looking
at the possibility it might not be as high as some people are conjec.
turing.

Now what price are you going to charge overseas for this?
Mr. HAIGLER. It's my understanding that the price overseas will

relate specifically to our price here. There are exchange rate com-
plications to get into that, but the base price will be, as I under-
stand it from our parent company, will be the same in dollars as
we are charging here.

Mr. WAXMAN. And have other cots tries agreed to this price?
Mr. HAIGLER. I do not know the answer to that, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Let me just move on to one other area that I want

to examine with you, and that's the very unusual situation we
have with this drug, because ethically you can't give a placebo any
more, since we have a drug that we know will prolong the life of
the patient. To try to establish whether another drug is going to be
effective to deal with AIDS, a control drug has to be AZT.

In other words, before your competitors can get on the market,
they have to be able to have access to AZT to use as the control
drug by which they will measure their new chemical entity.

In order for anyone to do research on new, better, and cheaper
AIDS drugs, they really need to have AZT to compare against.

I would like to know whether you will supply NIH with the AZT
they need for research on other drugs, and will you supply it to
your competitors?

Mr. HAIGLER. I'll ask Mr. Barry to respond to that.
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Mr. BARRY. Yes, Mr. Chairman, we will. I think it should be
pointed out, though, that your statement thst AZT has to be a com-
parative drug for all patients with AIDS or AIDS-Related Complex
may not necessarily be true. I think it would be true in studying
those forms of the illness where the patients are extremely ill, and
have a very poor prognosis. I think for milder forrs of disease
where we, as well as others, are still in the process of establishing
the effectiveness of the drug, one would not necessarily compare
with our drug.

Now in terms of working with the National Institutes of Allergy
and Infectious Diseases, and the AIDS Treatment and Evaluation
Units, we already have made a significant amount of drug avail-
able to them for studies and, in fact, four of the studies that are
going on through those units are studies of AZT.

We have already said that in working with comparative drugs,
that we would be working hand in hand with them, and we would
be helping develop the protocols and review the various compara-
tive therapies that would be done.

Mr. WAXMAN. I understand the drug that has been made avail-
able to NIH has been for the question of determining what the
dosage of the AZT should be. Have you provided AZT to NIH re-
searchers so that they can use shat as a basis to compare competi-
tor drugs?

Mr. BARRY. We have supplied it both to look at dosages, we have
supplied it for pediatric study, to determine the effectiveness of the
drug in pediatrics, and we are in the process of initiating a study in
neurologic disease through the NIAID.

In terms of comparison with competitor drugs, to my knowledge,
there is no competitor drug available now that has shown the effec-
tiveness of AZT in prior studies. I'm not clear what you're refer-
ring to there. A comparative study between AZT and something
else?

Mr. WAXMAN. Some other pharmaceutical.
Mr. BARRY. In terms of a straight comparison like that, we have

not- -
Mr. WAXMAN. Well, has NIH requested-
Mr. BARRY. Drug for comparative study against something else?

Not to my knowledge. I think the question has come up as to
whether AZT could be used 'n conjunction with some other com-
petitor's drugs, and we havewe are in the process of making that
drug available for combination studies with AZT alone, versus AZT
in combination with other compounds, including acyclovir, includ-
ing interferon, including a number of other potential therapies,
and those discussions are ongoing. And what we have indicated is
that if we see the data on other drugs that could be used in con-
junction with AZT and the data appear to be valid and there is
good reason to do the studies, we would go ahead and do them. But
right now, with a limited supply, we cannot give a free and open
supply to anyone who wishes to study our drug in conjunction with
theirs. We have to make sure that the drug is being used properly.

Mr. WAXMAN. So you are in the anomalous situation, with r
scarcity of this drug, that you're deciding the allocation of it. And,
for research purposes, you're in the position to decide to approve
an application for another artig where someone wishes to use AZT
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for comparison purposes, which would be the only basis they could
go through their drug approval process. It would have to be ap-
proved by you, but you have not been requested by either NIH or
any other drug company to make AZT available for that purpose.
Is that your testimony?

Mr. BARRY. No, we have been requested by a number of groups,
literally almost in the hundreds, to use our drug in combination to
use our drug in connection with their particular therapy. What we
have said is that we would make it available provided that the data
that they have were valid in terms of giving a reason to use them
together And we have been in very active discussions about this as
recently as 1 week ago-

Mr. WAXMAN. None has been agreed to yet?
Mr. BARRY. We agreed to one as recently as 1 week ago, in terms

of a study with AZT and interferon. Now, in terms of thatI might
add also, that's not the only way-

Mr. WAXMAN. I'm going to have to ask you to respond to my
question. You approved one last week. In terms of approving an-
other experiment like this, is it in NP-I's purview to make the de-
termination, or is it in your purview to make the determination
whether an experiment would be reasonable or not under the crite-
ria you have discussed as the basis for allowing the drug to be
used?

Mr. BARRY. It would be under both of our yurview. . We will con-
tinue to work, as we have in the past, to ensure that the clinical
studies are being performed properly and in agreement, much as
we have worked with NIAID for many years.

I will point out, however, that this is being done at a time when
we have an extremely limited drug supply. It is not the only way
the drug would be obtainable aftvr approval. And certainly there
would be very easy mechanisms, if someone wanted to compare our
drug in conjunction with theirs, or in contrast with theirs.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, even if the drug were approved- -
Mr. BARRY. After approval.
Mr. WAXMAN. Even if the drug were approved next week, there

still wouldn't be a sufficient supply, so the supply would be con-
trolled by Rome allocation system that you would determine?

Mr. BARRY. That is correct. There is a relatively limited supply,
but as Mr. Haigler pointed out, that supply is increasing, and the
precise supply is in an evolving situation, but I expect that it will
loosen up a great deal. And as Mr. Haigler also mentioned, by the
end of the year, we should have sufficient drug for over 30,000 da-
tients in the United States alone.

Mr. WAXMAN. And the first priority is for those who otherwise
would die?

Mr. BARRY. The first priority is for those patients who have been
shown to benefit by the drug. I will point out, however, that we
have set aside a very significant amount of drug for clinical trials.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you.
Mr. Madigan.
Mr. MADIGAN. If I can ask you, Mr. Haigler, I'd like to try to go

back for just a moment and put the AIDS problem in a bit of an
international perspective.

21
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I have recently been told that 9 percent of the total population
on the African Continent now tests positive to AIDS antibodies. Is
that consistent with information that you nave?

Mr. BARRY. I think that's an estimate based on sampling of popu-
lations that may or may not be representative. But there is certain-
ly a very large number of patients in Africa who are antibody-posi-
tive, but I don't believe anyone knows what that percentage is.

Mr. MADIGAN. And that the rate of this progressing through the
heterosexual population on the African Continent is now roughly
equal to the rate of progression in the homosexual population in
the United States; is that correct?

Mi . BARRY. From the best, and at times very rough, estimates
that we have, that is correct.

Mr. MADIGAN. When this first became a matter of public concern
in the United States in the 1981-1982 tinieframe, we would read
that approximately 10 percent of the people who tested positive to
the presence of the antibodies would subsequently acquire the dis-
ease. I am now told that that conversion rate is more in the range
of 90 percent. Is that also a correct estimate?

Mr. BARRY. It's certainly above 10 percent. I would really defer
to the epidemiologists, particularly from the Centers for Disease
Contra that have been looking at this to see how much above 10
percent that is, and over what period of time.

Mr. MADIGAN. But with the passage of time, what we are finding
is that the people who test positive to the presence of the anti-
bodies with the passage of time, and because of the incubation
period, a greater percentage than was onginally projected are actu-
ally acquiring frank AIDS; is that not fair?

Mr. BARRY. That appears to be the case.
Mr. MADIGAN. On page 4 of Mr. Haigler's testimony, it says,

"Some of the patients showed some objective and subjective evi-
dence of improvement, including an increased sense of well-being,
weight gain, and improvement in various measures of their
immune system."

I have heard of a particular case in Chicago where one of the pa-
tients has actually been able to go out and go back to work. Has
that happened in more than one instance?

Mr. BARRY. Yes, that's happened with a number of others.
Mr. MADIGAN. Is there any evidence yet as to whether or not

AZT affects the ability of a person to transmit or communicate the
AIDS disease?

Mr. BARRY. No, there are no data to support that. What we have
found in clinical studies is that evidence of viral multiplication
within the body diminishes greatly when the patient is on the
drug, as manifested by what's called the P-24 core antigen circulat-
ing the body. However, the amount of virus in the body, which is
often in a so-called latent or non-replicating state is not decreased,
because the drug is effective only against multiplying viruses. So if
one removes blood cells from patients who are on therapy, one can
still recover virus from them.

Mr. MADIGAN. With regard tc our own blood supply in the
United States, I'm told that in going back now and testing this
blood supply, some contamination is found in blood going all the
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way beck to blood donated in 1977. Does that concur with what you
understand to be the case?

Mr. BARRY. Again, I'm not an expert in this area, but my under-
standing that the beginning of detection of virus in the American
population in a very small number of patients did date from
around that period.

Mr. MADIGAN. So it's possible for people to be AIDS patients
today who are not homosexual, not intravenous drug users, but are
merely people who at some point in time in the last 10 years were
transfused; is that correct?

Mr. BARRY. That is correct.
Mr. MADIGAN. There is an ethical question, it seems to me, in de-

termining priorities for the distribution of this drug. Since one
group of potential recipients has a greater potential for the trans-
mission of the disease than other groups, has there been any dis-
cussion of that ethical question within your company or between
your company and health officials in the United States?

Mr. BARRY. I'm sorry, I'm not sure what you mean by some pa-
tents having a higher potential for transmitting the virus.

Mr. MADIGAN. If a homosexual patient gains weight, has an in-
creased sense of well-being, improvement in various measures of
the immune system, and as you have testified, is able to go out and
go back to work, doesn't that person have a greater capacity for
transmitting the disease than someone who has the disease as a
result of having received a blood transfusion?

Mr. BARRY. Not to my knowledge, because the amount of virus
that patients have varies tremendously. It does not appear to be
necessarily related to how they acquired itcertainly not be blood
transfusion. There is some evidence diet patients who are hemo-
philiacs may have less virus than other patient populations. But
there is no question that many asymptomatic patients have a very
large amount of virus.

I m not quite sure of your question.
Mr. MADIGAN. If one person has acquired the disease as a result

of a blood transfusion and another as a consequence of sexual
habits, is one more likely to refrain from sexual acti "ity than the
other?

Mr. BARRY. I'm really not an expert in that area, and I just don't
know.

Mr. MADIGAN. I'm not queoi 'ng whether or not you're an
expert. I'm questioning whether 6 lot there has been any discus-
sion of this within your company ur between your company and
U.S. health officials.

Mr. BARRY. The only discussion we've had has been with academ-
ic experts looking at the ability to culture virus from hemophiliacs
versus non-hemophiliacs. But in terms of the question you've
asked, it hasn't even been in that context, no.

Mr. MADIGAN. Two finel questions. Is the present cost of this
therapy comparable to the present cost for other types of therapies,
such as the use of immunosuppressive drugs for organ transplants?
Cyclosporin, for example.

Mr. BARRY. It's roughly comparable, but I don't have a precise
number.

2
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Mr. MADIGAN. And finally, can you tell me how many other com-
panies here and internationally are engaged presently in research
and development activities on a drug similar to AZT? Do you have
any information on that?

Mr. BARRY. I don't have the precise number. I believe the Phar-
maceutical Manufacturers Association is gathering data along
those lines. Certainly, there are a very large number of companies
who are working both on the chemotherapy of acquired immunode-
ficiency syndrome, as well as the diagnosis and prevention of that
disease. It would be in the 20 to 50 to higher range, depending on
how broad one wants to be in defining what research is in that
area.

Mr. MADIGAN. And that would not include organizations like the
Pasteur Institute in Paris, for example? These would only be pro-
prietary companies that you're giving us a count on?

Mr. BARRY. Obviously the Pasteur Institute is working on it, but
a very substantial of private pharmaceutical companies are also
working in this area.

Mr. MADIGAN. I have no other questions.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Madigan. Mr. Wyden, it's your

time, but I'd like to ask you if you'd yield to ask one question.
Mr. WYDEN. I'd be happy to yield to the chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. The ability to transmit the disease is not related

to the source of infection. A likelihood to transmit or resume
sexual activity obviously depends on the individual, the counseling
that individual might have had, and the education about transmis-
sion. Isn't that a correct statement?

Mr. BARRY Yes.
Mr. WYDEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I might start back on

the point the chairman made with respect to pricing. I think your
comments established that there was a lot of uncertainty about
how much it would cost the company to develop the drug and how
much you might make on it. The profit picture in your mind was
uncertain.

My question to you then Ls, did the company set the price ran-
domly? How did the company set the price?

Mr. HAIGLER. Mr. Wyden, if I may, in arriving at the price, as I
said, we looked at all of those factors of cost we knew at the time,
what is was developing into in term of the research and develop-
ment and production cost, what it seemed it was going to cost us to
distribute the drug, taking into account the substantial financial
investment that we had made.

And the price was not randomly set. It was set very carefully
taking into account all of those factors. The fact that we need to
generate revenues to support continuing research on this and other
drugs. And at the same time taking into account the needs of the
patients.

Mr. WYDEN. Did Burroughs think about--
Mr. HAIGLER. We just didn't pick a number out of the air.
Mr. WYDEN. Did Burroughs think of the number of Americans

who are capable of paying for the drugs, when it set the price. I
haven't heard you mention that? In setting the cost of AZT did the
company think about all the people who can't pay. Did they factor
that into the pricing structure?
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Mr. HAIGLER. Certainly the cost of the drug wasthe price of the
drug itself, as I said, was determined considering a lot of factors. I
think it's important to remember that drug therapy is just one ele-
ment in the cost of treating AIDS. And as we said and stated, RE-
TROVIR therapy does appear to substantially lover the present
cost of treating AIDS patients.

So we think that the drug will be cost effective, although that
data is limited at the preser.c time.

Mr. WYDEN. If you considered the predicament of all the people
who can't pay, could you give us an estimate of the number of
people who can afford your drug?

Mr. HAIGLER. I have no data on that at all, Mr. Wyden.
Mr. WYDEN. Men you must not have considered all those other

people. You had to have made some rough calculations, otherwise
you'd be pricing yourself out of the market all together.

Mr. HAIGLER. \Ye didn't make any calculations as to how many
patients could or couldn't afford the drug. The matter of payment
for drug therapy is, we believe, not just a concern for us alone; a
concern for health authorities, too.

Mr. WYDEN. We certainly agree with that. But I think the proc-
ess you've described is pretty close to a process of setting the price
at random. I've asked you whether you considered all these people
who couldn't pay, and the limitations of the government programs.
I then asked specifically if you could give us an estimate of how
many people would be able to afford the drug, and you said, no.

Mr. HAIGLER. I don't thinkI know that we don't have the
answer to that question, sir. And I don't know that anyone has the
answer to that question, how many people will not be able to afford
the drug.

Mr. WYDEN. Did you assume that AIDS patients are going to
come up with the money? Or did you assume that the government
was going to come up with the money?

Mr. HAIGLER. I guess we assumed that the drug, if it was an ef-
fective drug, that the drug would be paid for in some manner by
the patient himself out of his own pocket, or by third-party payers,
whether insurance companies or by employers with insurance pro-
grams, or by the public health authorities if in fact the patient
himself could not pay for it. We really didn't get into a lot of calcu-
lations along those lines.

Mr. WYDEN. How much if the bill did you think the Governme.l.t
might pay? It just seems to me, you are all basically doing this in
the dark. I asked you a question with regard to some of the gut
issues; how many people you think will be able to afford it? What
are we going to do about the people who can't? It just seem to be
very murky ground, and 1 don't get any indication that the compa-
ny has made any calculations at all.

Mr. HAIGLER. We certainly made calculations, as I said, about
what costs we've had in it, our need to recover those costs, and
tried to take into account the fact that it is an expensive drug. In
terms of trying to determine exactly how many patients could
afford to pay for this drug out of their own pockets, we really
didn't get into that at all.

Mr. WYDEN. I know overseas things are very different. Some
have national systems and can tell a company, such as Burroughs
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Wellcome, exactly what they are going to pay. I gather that the
United States price doesn't take that into account.

Mr. HAIGLER. I can't speak to wilt u will happen overseas, Mr.
Wyden.

Mr. WYDEN. I didn't ask about overseas. We know what is hap-
pening overseas. The United States pricing structure doesn't take
what is gong on overseas into account, does it?

Mr. HAIGLER. I really don't understand your question.
Mr. WYDEN. Let me say it again. Overseas with the nationalized

systems, the government tells the company exactiy what they are
going to pay. So you have a process for making these calculations.
The American pricing structure doesn't take that into account,
does it?

Mr. HAIGLER. The American pricing structure is a free pricing
structure, yes.

Mr. WAxmAN. Will the gentleman yield?
Mr. WYDEN. Be happy to yield to the chairma 1.
Mr. WAXMAN. The American pricing structt re is based on mo-

nopoly that we give to a manufacturer of a dru, as an inducement
to make the investments for research and deveopment to produce
new drugs. But we, nevertheless, give a patent v hich is a monopo-
ly, and therefore, when you decide what would Je an appropriate
price you're basing your decision with the knowledge that you have
monopoly control over that drug.

Mr. WYDEN. I just have one other question and we'll move off
this pricing issue. If AZT could prevent infection from turning into
full-blown AIDS, obviously a large amount of treatment costs could
be saved. Does Burroughs Wellcome have any trials underway on
early intervention with AZT?

Mr. HAIGLER. That is a question I think Mr. Barry can answer.
Mr. BARRY. We obviously have some trials continuing to go on

with AIDS-related complex, ARC, and we will be initiating a study
in asymptotnatically infected patients in the relatively near future,
within a few months.

Mr. WYDEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Who's responsible

for the name AZT? Is that your company?
Mr. BARRY. That's correct. Its name right now is, its trade name

is RETROVIR, and its U.S. approved name is Idovudin.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Have you applied for a patent?
Mr. BARRY. Yes, we have.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. When?
Mr. BARRY. I can't say exactly. I think it was about a year and-a-

half ago.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And your company has the capacity to

produce drugs that will treat about 30,000 people a year, right?
Mr. BARRY. At present. But as Mr. Haigler emphasized, that cir-

cumstance is rapidly evolving and may be improving above that.
We just can't say right now.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. What claims do you make for this drug? Will
it cure a person with AIDS to make them healthy?

Mr. BARRY. No, it will not cure a patient with AIDS, if by cure
we mean elimination of all vestiges of the virus from their body
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forever. What it does do is it decreases their mortality rate. That
is, decreases the chance they have o. dying, at least over the now
nine or more-

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Wait a minute. It won't cure it. They're going
to die, aren't they?

Mr. BARRY. Some will. Whether all of them will die or not is dif-
ficult to say because the clinical studies have been goi. g onthe
first patient received the drug in July of i985. The clinical studies
have only been going for 18 months.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. You're not claimit.47 it will cure AIDS.
Mr. BARRY. That's correct.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. What you're saying is it will prolong
Mr. BARRY. It improves the quality of life of patients with AIDS

and certain patients with AIDS-related complex, those who mani-
festations of severe immunr dysfunction. And it decreases their
chance of dying, at least over the observation period, which has
now been extended from 6 to greater than 9 months. And we have
some patients who have been on the drug for over 18 months and
are doing well. Now whether they will continue to do well, or
whether all patients can tolerate the drug that well and have an
improvement in their quality of life for what period of time, we
don't know. And we have to continue to observe these p^tients.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. How long have we been administering this
drug to patient in this country?

Mr. BARRY. Since the beginning of July of 1985.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How many patients have received it?
Mr. BARRY. Over 5,000 patients have received the drug, but not

beginning in July. Many of those patients are patients who have
been on the treatment IND which beganinvestigation of new
drug exemptionwhich began in October of 1986. But we have
over 200 patients who have gone well over 9 months now on the
drug. And we have a smaller number who have gone over a year.

Mr. DANN ZMEYER. How often is the drug taken?
Mr. BARRY. The drug is taken every 4 hours.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Through what form? Is it orally?
Mr. BARRY. It's in capsules. Two capsules every 4 hours around

the clock.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And the cost per patient per year is $8,000 to

$10,000?
Mr. BARRY. That's correct.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I was interested when you were asked about

how you projected your costs in the free enterprise that exists in
this country, you definitely dodged any revelation of the internal
machinations of the pricing projection, which I think frankly, you
have the right to do. I think that's proprietary information and you
can charge in our system just what the market will bear.

We may in our society be at a very profound public policy posi-
tion given the epidemic we are facing, that from a public policy
standpoint we m..y have to look at the way you are costing this
drug which will be available to the public. Because it your patent is
granted, you've got a patent on the drug that will alleviate human
suffering, which the taxpayers of this country for humanitarian
reasons have said publicly will be available to any person on the
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perceived need of the provider independent of the ability of the re-
cipient to pay as a public policy. We all know we've said that.

So we're talking about $10,000 per patient per year. And the Sur-
geon General has said wall have 270,000 people with AIDS in the
next 5 years. And I think that's low. That's 54,000 a year times
$10,000 would be a half a billion dollars just in drug costs to take
care of these people. Not to cure them, but to hopefully make a
better life for them.

And the nature of our system, the competitors out there are at
liberty to develop a competitive drug which will render your drug,
frankly, less desirable in the marketplace. We all know that. Hope-
fully, they'll come up with one that will bring a little discipline to
your price. That's our system.

And maybe some scientist can develop a drug that, as I say, will
treat this disease more effectively at a price that is more attractive
to those in this country who obviously are going to have to pay for
it, namely the taxpayer.

How long had you been working on this drug before it began its
clinical trials in July of 1985?

Mr. BARRY. Approximately just under 1 year, about 9 months.
Mr. DANNEYEYER. What do you know about what our competi-

tors are doing: Any knowledge about that. Do the trade journals
talk about it?

Mr. BARRY. Well, there are certain compounds that are in Phase
I or Phase II studies, and we are aware that they are in studies.
We, ourselves, are continuing to look for new and better and less
toxic therapies for AIDS, as are a number of other companies.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. To your knowledge, have there been any other
applications for patents from producers of drugs that are designed
to treat persons with AIDS?

Mr. BARRY. Oh, yes, a very substantial number.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How many?
Mr. BARRY. I don't know the number, but a very substantial

number.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How many are currently being clinically pre-

scribed by medical personnel for relieving symptoms of ARC or
AIDS today that you have knowledge of, besides AZT?

Mr. BARRY. Well, there are none that have been shown effective
in that area. There are clinical trials of at least three or four dif-
ferent chemical entities and probably a variety of immune thera-
pies, four or five of those. But none are being prescribed in the
usual therapeutic sense for the treatment of these diseases.

A large number of drugs are being used to treat the complica-
tions of AIDS, such as pneumocystis carinii pneumonia, CMB reti-
nitis, a wide variety of other infections that these patients have.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Has your company considered the possibility
of licensing the production of this drug by other companies, so that
the total produced will come closer to fitting the need of society
than the capacity of your company to produce?

Mr. HAIGLER. If I may, Mr. Dannemeyer, I might speak to that
point.

We have not considered licensing. We don't think that in the
case of RETROVIR that compulsory licensing would accomplish
anything.
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As regards the supply situation
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Wait just a minute, sir. I don't understand

that.
I'm not familiar, of course, with the production of a drug, but

other drug companies, I suspect, are, and if your capacity only per-
mits you to produce enough to service 30,000 patients a year, and
we're going to have more patiente than that in the United States
and probably worldwide, doesn't it appear prudent, from a .public
policy standpoint, to be thinking about making other productive ca-
pacities of drug companies in America able to produce this drug as
well.

Mr. HAIGLER. The supply situation, as we said, is improving rap-
idly. We expect it to substantially resolve itself in the near future.

As far as the ability of anyone else to get to a very high level of
production capacity for this particular drug before we have re-
solved the situation ourselves, I don't know that, but I would doubt
it. I just don't think that compulsory licensing in this particular
case would improve the supply situation.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. What's the problem in terms of producing
more? Is it a lack of supply or a lack of capacity to assimilate

Mr. HAIGLER. It's a matter of having had to, in the matter of just
a couple years time, go from a point of practically no material at
all being produced anywhere, except in grams for laboratory pur-
poses, to where we are today, producing tons and tons of the mate-
rial and having to gear up our production facilities and production
capacity to be able to produce these tons of material in those quan-
tities. Usually that takes a pretty good while.

Mr. WYDEN. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I sense from what you're sayinggo ahead.
Mr. WYDEN. Well, the gentleman has touched on an important

area. I'm just very curious as to what will happen when the next
drug comes along. What will the policy be for handling that?

Mr. HAIGLER. You mean a drug from us? Or a drug from some-
one else?

Mr. WYDEN. You, or someone else.
Mr. HAIGLER. Whose policy?
Mr. WYDEN. Well, I think it's really the Government's policy.

This is such a vague area that you just wonder how the next one is
going to be handled.

Mr. HAIGLER. Well, I can't speak to the next one. I can just say
that we do believe that the supply situation is evolving very rapid-
ly, and very shortly we're going to bewe'll have that resolved.

Mr. WYDEN. I thank the gentleman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Dannemeyer. The gentleman's

time has expired.
Mr. Sikorski.
Mr. &Komi. Just a couple of questionc. Earlier you said that

the pricing mechanism was a reflection of a host of thingsreturn
on investment, production cost, R&D.

Then as I understand it, analysis of R&D was fuzzy. You couldn't
identify the R&D cost. And then Mr. Wyden was told that you used
R&D costs as the basis for price again.

How can you use them if you don't know them, if they can't be
rationally segregated out?
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Mr. BARRY. Well, I wanted to emphasize that the research costs
are great, but the precise costs would be considered proprietary in-
formation. But I was making the point that the cost of clinical
trials, which I believe that the chairman was referring to, was not
significantly less than the clinical trials for most any other drug,
because of the extreme expense in studying these patients.

We accelerated clinical trials, and we had a limited number, but
it didn't lower our costs significantly. It merely compressed them
into a shorter timeframe.

Mr. Suwasxi. Let me understand this. You know the R&D costs.
They're defined. They're just not available to us in this kind of
forum because of your proprietary concerns.

Mr. BARRY. That's correct.
Mr. SIKORSKI. What would you say to the cynics who would say

that your pricing is a reflection of an exclusive market, an analysis
of the short-term nature of that market, and "get while the getting
is good?"

Mr. BARRY. I think I'd say they were wrong. The costs that we
have are a reflection of all the multitude of factors that Mr.
Haig ler listed, not only the cost of research and development, the
cost of raw material, the expense of scaling up, capital investment,
and in particular the uncertainty of the futurethat is, how long
will this drug be considered to be the drug of choice or even prefer-
able for any of the patients infected?

Mr. Sixonxi. Have you focusedthis drug is not without some
severe, serious side effects; is that correct?

Mr. BARRY. That is correct. A number of the patients who receive
the drug, particularly those who have very poor bone marrow func-

i tions before they receive it, have a depression in that marrow func-
tion, which is manifesti-i by a significant anemia and at times
what's called a b-ranulocytopeniathat is, a lowered number of
white cells.

Mr. &comm. There are some toxic effects other than bone
marrow suppression, are n't there?

Mr. BARRY. Those are he primary toxic effects. There have been
some reports of patients who have had headache and nausea and so
on. nose tend to be much milder and much more difficult to dif-
ferentiate from the baseline symptoms that many of these patients
have.

Mr. SIKORSKI. Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Sikorski.
To put this thing in perspective, I do want to go back to where I

started, and that's that you have done an outstanding job in pro-
ducing this drug. It has been desperately needed. You've taken the
risk. You've made the investments, and now you have a drug that
means life or death for a certain period of time for many, many
AIDS patients.

But in setting your price for that drug, you have the ability to
set it under a framework where you recognize you have a monopo-
ly over that drug. So you could figure to recoup your research and
development investment and all your other investments, and to get
a profit on top of thatyou're entitled to it.

The question is: What is an adequate profit when you've got a
drug that, if you set it at a price that's going to be too high, some
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people are going to have to, by the nature of economics, go without
this lifesaving drug?

And I gather from the answer to questions from Mr. Wyden,
while you had many considerations that you took note of in setting
your price, one was not the ability of the patient to pay. Your ex-
pectation was that those people who wanted to buy this drug will
come up with the money, and if government couldn't abide by the
idea of people going without the drug because it meant death to
those people who couldn't afford it, that the Government would
step in.

Well, that offers a real dilemma to us. In the hospital sector, we
have DRGs where we have said to the hospital, "This is what we
think is reasonable for you to get paid," and we established the
amoilat.

In other areas where we have monopoly control over a service or
a product, ' nment has stepped in as well and established what
would be t _ .sonable return on the investment.

We can't second-guess your evaluation of a reasonable return on
your investment, since you're not telling us what your investment
was. But then even if you did tell us what your investment might
be, you have the other factors which you appropriately raise: What
is the future marketability of this drug, other competitors, et
cetera.

I don't want to be critical of you, because you're operating within
the system that you didn't create, and you're benefitting from it,
and you've done well for society in producing this drug. But it
highlights the dilemma for us.

Mr. Dannemeyer said that the drug would be paid for. I guess
with our next series of witnesses, we're going to try to determine
whether that's the case, whether the drug will be paid for, because
otherwise the reality will be that those who can't pay for it will go
without.

Mr. WYDEN. Mr. Chairman, could I just ask one other question
on the pricing matter?

Mr. WAXMAN. Sure.
Mr. WYDEN. You know, again, I think the chairman has stated

my concerns very well. But let me try another approach with re-
spect to this pricing issue.

Why didn't you set the price at $100,000 per patient?
Mr. HAIGLER. Well, I think thatyou know. How can I answer

that question? I think that would have been completely out of the
realm of anything reasonable at all. We had to set the price at a
reasonable level, and I would like to say also, in rebuttal to your
statement about the needs of patients, we have taken into account,
we think, the very real needs of the patients for whom this drug
was developed. We've had a great concern about this.

Our people at Burroughs Wellcome Co. pride themselves on pro-
ducing drugs that will help alleviating illness and provide a better
life to those people who have medical problems. And I think one of
the prides that we have here is being able to produce this drug
thEt's going to help a lot of people.

So I do think the needs of these patients were very carefully con-
sidered. In terms of trying to, in our own system within our own
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company, decide on how many patients could or couldn't afford the
drug, we had no way of determining that.

We are trying to set the price based on what we -hink is a rea-
sonable price for this drug that is shown to be effectiv for this par-
ticular disease.

Mr. WYDEN. The chairman needs to move on.
I must tell you, I'm still unclear about how you arrived at

$10,000, rather than $30,000 or $25,000. I appreciate your feeling
that $100,000 is unfair. But I must tell you that I think the pricing
zystem is close to a random system.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden.
Gentlemen, we appreciate your testimony, and I think you sum-

marized your position well in your last statement. I appreciate it.
Mr. HAIGLER. Thank you, Mr. Waxman.
M-. WAxmAN. For our next witnesses, we wish to call forward

Dr. Hobert Windom, Assistant Secretary for Health, Department of
Health and Human Services, and Dr. William Roper, Administra-
tor of the Health Care Financing Administration, Department of
Health and Human Services.

Let me at this time ask unanimous consent that all members be
permitted to insert an opening statement at the appropriate point
in the record.

Without objection that will be the order.
Dr. Windom and Dr. Roper, we want to welcome you to our sub-

committee hearing this morning. Your prepared statements v ill be
made part of the record in full, and we'd like to ask you if you each
would summarize in around 5 minutes.

STATEMENTS OF ROBERT E. WINDOM, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR HEALTH, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; AND WILLIAM L. ROPER, AD-
MINISTRATOR, HEALTH CARE FINANCING ADMINISTRATION.

Mr. WINDOM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the
committee.

Dr. Roper and one that is very much I are here to discuss AZT,
azidothymidine, which is an experimental drug which has proven
to be of value in the treatment of certain patients with AIDS, ac-
quired immune deficiency syndrome.

With me today are Mr. Lowell Harvison, Deputy Assistant Secre-
tary for Health; Dr. Maureen Myers, Chief of the Treatment
Branch of the AIDS Program at the National Institute of Allergy
and Infectious Diseases; Dr. Bruce Chabnor, who is Director of the
Division of Cancer Treatment at the National Cancer Institute; and
Dr. Gary Noble, who is the AIDS Coordinator for the Public Health
Service.

With your permission, then, I would like to have my entire state-
ment submitted for the record, and I will give you a summary.

To date, 31,982 AIDS cases have been reported in this country
with some 18,462 deaths. We estimate that 1 million to 1.5 million
more Americans are infected by the AIDS virus.
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Remarkable progress has been made in research on AIDS. Still,
as we've heard before, we have no effective cure, and general avail-
ability of an effective AIDS vaccine is some years in the future.

I would like to highlight the elements of the PHS Drug Develop-
ment Program. We have developed a special process to supplement
the normal, private-sector drug development system. It is a collabo-
rative program of the NIAID and the NCI established in 1986 to
identify potentially effective and therapeutic agents and move
them carefully and systematically through a process which will
make them available to the public both quickly and responsibly.

Two committees have been established by the Public Health
Service to guide the drug selection process at the National Insti-
tutes of Health. After candidate drugs are identified, they must be
produced in large quantities and distributed to investigators for
preclinical and eventually for clinical testing.

Scale-up production and animal studies of toxicology, pharmacol-
ogy, and bioavailability are performed on candidatz: drugs, under
contract, for AIDS prior to initiating clinical studies in man. Once
animal studies have identified a dose with potentially acceptable
toxicity, then initial small clinical studies can begin in patients.

Once a drug is approved for use in patients, it may be evaluated
in the NIAID-funded Aids Treatment Evaluation Units, ATEU's,
for Phase I and II clinical trials of candidate therapeutic agents at
medical centers throughout the Nation.

An AIDS Clinical Trial Coordinating Center was created to
permit centralized data analysis for these geographically dispersed
units and to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements. Data
from controlled clinical trials conducted in these units are evaluat-
ed by an independent Data and Safety Monitoring Board. This
oversight allows the early termination of a trial due either to effi-
cacy or unanticipated toxicity. The attached chart outlines key
events that have led up to where we are today with AZT, to your
left. It also is with the presentation.

The first phase of human testing for AZT was conducted from
July to December 1985 at the NCI and Duke University. Because
results of these very limited trials were promising, Burroughs Well-
come began a Phase II controlled clinical trial in February of 1986.

This study was designed to test the drug's safety and effectiveness
in persons with AIDS who had an episode of pneumocystis carinii
pneumonia, known as PCP, and in selected persons with advanced
ARC.

On September 10, 1986, the Data and Safety Monitoring Board
reviewed preliminary data from this study. These data showed a
significant difference in survival between patients who had re-
ceived AZT versus those who had received placebo. The data also
showed that the group receiving AZT had a decreased number of
significant AIDS-related medical complications, including opportun-
istic infection, compared to the placebo group.

One week later, the Board conducted a more in-depth review of
the data and recommended that the placebo arm of the Phase II
trial be terminated.

During this time, I convened meetings of our senior Public
Health Service officials in order to independently assess develop-
ments or the latest AZT data and their implications for wider dis-
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tribution of the drug. The NII1 and FDA officials met with the offi-
cials of Burroughs Wellcome to develop a proposal for a coordinat-
ed approach to distribute AZT.

On September 19 of 1986 I held a joint press conference with
Burroughs Wellcome to announce that all patients who were cur-
rently in the phase 2 trial would receive AZT. In addition, AZT
would be made available to certain AIDS patients under a compa-
ny-sponsored IND. Not only had FDA moved with great speed to
grant AZT treatment IND status, the agency also waived the usual
local institutional review board requirement as part of an overall
effort to move without delay.

An 800 number hotline was established at NIH for AZT informa-
tion and distribution. A center managed by NIAID was established
for the registration of patients and their pharmacists and physi-
cians for AZT treatment, for the receipt and evaluation of applica-
tions for use of the drug, and for the monitoring of laboratory data
generated from patients receiving the drug. All this happened in
less than 2 weeks.

On February 16, 1987 Burroughs Wellcome Co. assumed from
NIAID full responsibility for coordinating the AZT treatment IND.
From September to February, under that treatment IND 4,228 pa-
tients and 2,112 physicians were registered, 919 pharmacists were
registered, and 35,200 hotline calls had been answered.

NIH scientists have continued to study AZT in AIDS patients.
Clinical trials are now in progress to test the drug's safety and po-
tential efficacy in AIDS patients with Kaposi's sarcoma, pediatric
AIDS patients and AIDS patients with dementia and other related
neurological disorders. It is worth stressing the AZT again is only a
first step.

AZT has significant toxicity in some patients, particularly in
those with anemia and depressed white blood cells. Patients with
advanced disease seem to be at greatest risk for these side effects.
Therefore, we are continuing our antiretroviral drug development
program, and in the future we can expect a number of new thera-
peutic strategies to emerge.

Now I want to highlight the steps the PHS has taken to make
AZT available to AIDS patients. In September of 1986 the FDA es-
tablished what we call a IAA classification system for potentially
useful drugs for AIDS. Assigning them the highest priority assures
expedited review.

In December of 1986 Burroughs Wellcome Co. submitted to FDA
a new drug application for AZT. On January 16 of this year the
application was reviewed by an FDA advisory committee. The com-
mittee recommended approval of AZT for AIDS patients with cer-
tain opportunistic infections and for certain patients with advanced
ARC. The committee further recommended extensive post-approval
patient monitoring and reporting by the drug's manufacturer and
approved of the company's intent to develop a system for controlled
distribution of the drug.

As we move ahead with final approval decisions for AZT, all of
these appropriate scientific issues must be waived and analyzed ex-
peditiously. We are all aware of the important ramifications of the
approval action. It's direct effects on the health of patients, its
major implications for the testing and evaluation of other drugs for
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the treatment of AIDS, and perhaps more indirectly the precedents
that they may set for the development, evaluation and approval of
other drugs for the treatment of AIDS.

This is a very devastating disease, and I pledge to you that the
Public Health Service remains committed to our efforts to alleviate
the suffering and death it causes.

This completes my statement, Mr. Chairman. And I'll be glad to
answer questions after Dr. Roper has submitted his.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Windom follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF ROBERT E. WINDOM, M.D.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, Dr. Roper and I are here to
discuss AZT (azidothymidine), an experimental drug which has proven to be of value
in the treatment of certain patients with acquired immune deficiency syndrome
(AIDS).

To date, 31,982 AIDS cases have been reported in this country, with some 18,462
deaths. We estimate that 1 million to 1.5 million more Americans are infected by
the AIDS virus and can spread it to others, even though they may currently show
no signs of illness. Present data indicate that approximately 20 to 30 percent of
these persons can be expected to develop AIDS itself within the next 5 years

Remarkable progress has hem made in research on AIDS, including identification
of the AIDS virus; ensuring the protection of the blood supply and clotting factors
used by hemophiliacs; subsequent identification of AZT, an agent which has been
shown to prolong the life of a select group of AIDS patients; initiation of clinical
trials; and development of public health guidelines. Still, we have no effective cure,
and general availability of an effective AIDS vaccine is some years in the future.

DRUG DEVELOPMENT

Before proceeding with a discussion of AZT, I would like to review the elements of
the PHS drug development program. Because of the importance that the PHS places
on AIDS, we have developed a special process to supplement the normal private
sector drug developmnt system. It is a collaborative program of the National Insti-
tute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases ( NIAID) and the National Cancer Institute
(NCI) establishe - in 1986 to identify potentially effective therapeutic agents and
move them carefully and systematically through a process which will make them
available to the public both quickly and responsibly.

Two committees have been established by the PHS to guide the drug select on
process at the NIH. The NCI has the lead responsibility for the Preclinical Drug
Decision Network Committee. This committee is responsible for developing effective
agents against the AIDS vii Is; evaluating the antiretroviral activity of candidate
agents from screening programs, drug development programs and other sources;
and, bring candidate agents through appropriate preclinical evaluation and develop-
ment.

The NIAID has the lead responsibility for the AIDS Clinical Drug Development,
Committee. The objectives of this committee are to review and evaluate candidate
agents or therapies to control HIV infections, opportunistic infections and malignan-
cies and to reconstitute the immune system. Candidate agents approved by this com-
mittee are recommended to the NIAID for clinical evaluation in the AIDS Treat-
ment Evaluation Units (ATEU's).

After candidate drvas are identified, they must be produced in large quantities
and distributed to investigators for preclinical and eventually for clinical testing.
This has been done through augmentation of existing NCI contracts that currently
F oduce and formulate anti-cancer drugs.

Scale-up, toxicology, pharmacology, and bioavailability studies on candidate drugs
are performed under contract in animals to test drugs for AIDS prior to initiating
clinical studies in man. These preclinical studies are expensive and logistically com-
plex operations.

Once animal studies have identified a dose with potentially acceptable toxicity
then initial small c' .cal studies can begin in patients.

AIDS TREATMENT EVALUATION UNITS

Once a drug is approved for use in patients, it may be evaluated it, NIAID-funded
ATEU's et medical facilities around the country. These units perform multi -cen-
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tered Phase I and Phase II clinical trials of candidate therapeutic agents thrcughout
the United States. Phase I trials are intended to carefully assess the safety of the
drug and to determine any phaymacologic effects that can be monitored. The
number of patients entered into these pilot trials is necessarily limited until the ini-
tial assessment of toxicity is determined. As data are accumulated, studies are
gradually expanded in scope and size to obtain safety and efficacy data. Phase II
consists of controlled clinical trials designed to demonstrate the effectiveness and
relative safety of a drug. Normally, these are performed on closely monitored pa-
tients of a limited numberseldom will the number go beyond 100 to 200 patients.

An AIDS Clinical Trial Coordinating Center was created to permit centralized
data analysis for these geographically dispersed units and assure compliance with
regulatory requirements.

Data from controlled clinical trials conducted in the units, are evaluated by an
independent Data and Safety Monitoring Board (DSMB). This Board composed of
scientists, statisticians and ethicists, periodically review data from ongoing trials.
This oversight allows the early termination of a trial due to either unanticipated
efficacy or toxicity.

CHRONOLOGY OF TESTING AZT

At this time, let me take a few moments to review key events that have led us to
where we are today with AZT (see attachment). In 1964, a 3'-azidothymidine was
synthesized at the Detroit Institute for Cancer Research (now the Michigan Cancer
Foundation) under the support of an NCI grant to discover new anti-cancer agents.
The drug did not show appreciable activity as an antitumor agent and was subse-
quently shelved.

In 1974, it was noted that AZT was active against the Friend erythroleukemia
virus (a retrovirus) in a cell culture system. This observation was not pursued, be-
cause retroviruses were not known to exist in humans. For the next decade, Bur-
roughs Wellcome manufactured AZT for non-human applications.

In February 1985, the NIC, under the direction of Dr. Samuel Broder, tested AZT
and found that it was a potent inhibitor of HTLV-III in vitro. Burroughs Wellcome
then entered into a commitment with the NCI to pursue the clinical development of
AZT, and the company assumed the responsibility of doing the necessary animal
toxicology. The NCI assisted by providing starting stocks of raw materials (thymi-
dine) for manufacturing the drug.

The in vitro data demonstrated the activity of AZT against multiple strains of
human HTLV-III, and defined a range of in vitro dosing.

In June, 1985, an Investigational New Drug Application (IND) was issued to the
NCI to begin Phase I testing in patients, and on July 3, 1985, the first AIDS patient
received AZT in the NIH Clinical Center. Additional patients were enrolled at both
Duke University and the Nci shortly thereafter

The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) also has provided assistance to the
drug's developers through the Agency's Orphan Product Development Program.
This promotes promising new drugs and biologics for relatively rare diseases includ-
ing AIDS, by providing their manufacturers with the opportunity to receive tax in-
centives, grants, and exclusive seven-year marketing protection AZT was awarded
Orphan Drug status by FDA in July 1985.

RESULTS IN CLINICAL TRIALS OF AZT

The first phase of human testing for AZT, involving only 33 patients with AIDS
and AIDS-related Complex (ARC), was conducted from July to December 1985 at the
NCI and Duke University. The studies showed that the drug was well absorbed after
oral administration. It was also determined that AZT does cross the blood brain bar-
rier. This is important because involvement of the central nervous system is
common in patients with HIV infection. The patients enrolled in the Phase I studies
continue to be followed for evidence of toxicity, and for evidence of the effect of the
agent on the eventual outcome of the disease. The longest period of patient observa-
tion has now reached 18 months.

Because results of these very limited trials were promising, Burroughs Wellcome
began a Phase II controlled clinical trial in February 1986. This study was designed
to test the drug's safety and effectiveness in persons with AIDS who had an episode
of Pneumocystis carinii pneumonia (PCP) and in selected persons with advanced
ARC. Close to 300 patients were involved in the company sponsored multicenter
trial, which was a randomized comparison of AZT and placebo. Prior to starting this
study, the company asked the NIH to establish a DSMB to perform periodic analysis
of safety and efficacy.
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On September 10, 1986, the DSMB reviewed preliminary data from the study.
These data showed a significant difference in survival between patients who had re-
ceived AZT versus those who had received placebo. The data slso showed that the
group receiving AZT had 1 decreased number of significant AIDS-related medical
complications, including opportunistic infections, compared to the placebo group.
This was true of both patients with AIDS and certain advanced ARC patients. In
addition, weight gain and improvements in daily activities, as well as improvements
in immune function noted during the Phase I studies were confirmed. One week
later, the DSMB conducted a more in-depth review of the data and recommended
that the placebo arm of the Phase II trial be terminated.

During this time, I convened meetings of senior PHS officials in order to inde-
pendently assess developments on the latest AZT data and its implications for wider
distribution of the drug. NIH and FDA officials met with officials from Burroughs
Wellcome to develop a proposal for a coordinated approach to distribute AZT under
a Treatment IND.

On September 18, led by Dr. Anthony Fauci, Director of NIAID, with the assist-
ance of Dr. Daniel Hoth of the NCI, and officials from PHS and Burroughs Well-
come met to discuss issues of availability, distribution, and cost of AZT. In a very
short time, we had devised an efficient and equitable system for the distribution of
AZT.

On September 19, I held a joint press conference with Burroughs Nellcome to an-
nounce that all patients in the Phase II trial would receive AZT. Further AZT
would be made available to certain AIDS patients under a company sponsored,
Treatment IND.

Not only had FDA moved with great speed to grant AZT Treatment IND status,
the Agency also waived the usual local Institutional Review Board (IRB) require-
ment as part of an overall effort to move without delay and because an adequate
alternative mechanism existed for protecting those receiving AZT under this Treat-
ment IND. The Burroughs Wellcome Company and NIH immediately collaborated
in setting up an AZT Treatment IND Coordinating Center which was responsible for
the distnbution mechanism for making AZT available to eligible persons under the
treatment IND. An 800-number "hotline" was established by NIH for AZT informa-
tion and distribution. A government contract was used to establish a center man-
aged by NIAID for the registration of patients and their pharmacists and physicians
for AZT treatment, for the receipt and evaluation of applications for use of the
drug, and for the monitoring of laboratory data generated from patients receiving
AZT. All this happened in less than two weeks.

On February 16, 1987, the Burroughs Wellcome Company assumed from NIAID
full responsibility for coordinating the AZT Treatment IND. From September to
February under the Treatment IND: 4,228 patients and 2,112 physicians were regis-
tered; 919 pharmacists were registered; and, 35,200 hotline phone calls were an-
swered.

RESEARCH

NIH scientists have continued to study AZT in AIDS patients. Clinical trials are
now in progress to test the drug's safety and potential efficacy in:

AIDS patients with Kaposi s sarcoma;
pediatric AIDS patients; and,
AIDS patients with dementia and other related neurological disorders.

A great deal of effort is directed at finding new do.:e regimens or new combina-
tions of anti-retroviral drugs (as well as combinations of retroviral drugs plus im-
munomodulators). The purpose of this effort is to develop regimens that reduce the
toxicity of the drug without impairing its ability to benefit patients.

It is worth stressing that is only a first step. AZT has significant toxicity in
some patients, particularly in those with anemia and depressed white blood cells
Patients with advancad disease seem to be at greatest risk for these side effects.

We are continuing our anti-retroviral drug development program, and in the
future, we can expect a number of new therapeutic strategies to emerge.

STEPS TOWARD MARKETING APPROVAL

Finally, let me bring you up-to-date on the steps PHS has taken to make AZT
available to AIDS patier.tc. In September 1986, the FDA established a 1 AA classifi-
cation system for potentially useful drugs for AIDS. This 1 AA classification assures
the drug of an expedited review by assigning it the highest priority in FDA's drug
reviewing divisions. In December 1986, the Burroughs Wellcome company submitted
to FDA a New Dr 1g Application (NDA) for AZT, and on January 16 of this year, the
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application was reviewed by an FDA Advisory Committee. Based on the data from
the controlled clinical trial which showed that 19 of 137 patients on placebo had
died compared to only one of 145 natients on AZT, the Committee recommended ap-
proval of AZT for AIDS patients with certain opportunistic infections and for cer-
tain patients with advanced ARC.

The Committee further recommended extensive postapproval patient monitoring
and reporting by the drug's manufacturer in order to resolve important questions
about the efficacy of prolonged use and possible adverse effects associated with
AZT's long-term use. The Committee also approved of the company's intent to devel-
op a system for cuitrolled distribution of the drug.

The FDA is reviewing and analyzing the data collected on patients who were en-
rolled in the open-label continuation of the study in addition to the data from the
placebo-controlled trial. They must decide on the basis or all this information which
patients have been demonstrated to benefit from AZT despite its toxicity, and in
which groups of patients further studies are needed to determine the risk-benefit
ratio.

While AZT appears, in the short-term, to be beneficial, the studies have shown
that it, like many active antiviral drugs, has significant side effects. it causes
anemia severe enough to require transfusions and depresses the white blood cell
count in many individuals. This is a reminder that it is necessary to assess the risks
of such a drug very carefully, as well as its potential benefits.

As we move ahead with final approval decisions for AZT, all of these appropriate
scientific issues must be weighed and analyzed expeditiously. We are all aware of
the important ramifications of the approval action: its direct effects on the health of
patients, its major implications for the testing and evaluation of other drugs for the
treatment of AIDS, and perhaps more indirectly the precedents that may be set for
the development, evaluation, and approval of other drugs for the treatment of AIDS.
This is a devastating disease and I pledge to you that the Public Health Service re-
mains committed in our efforts to alleviate the suffering and death it causes.

The issues involved in development of AZTunder conditions of tremendous
public pressurehave been extremely complex and have presented enormous chal-
lenges to regulators and scientists, both outside and within government. During this
time, our utmost concern has been the relief of AIDS patients but we have had to
balance compassion for those who suffer from this dread disease with the very im-
portant public health issues of drug safety and effectiveness.

This completes my statement, Mr. Chairman. I will be glad to answer questions
that you or your au? committee members may have after Dr. Roper completes his
statement.

AZT MILESTONES

1964First developed in NCI extramural program and evaluated as a potential
anti-cancer drugfound not effective.

1974First shown to have activity against a mouse leukemia virus.
Late 1984 Burroughs Wellcome and NCI begin collaborative laboratory evalua-

tion against H7'LV-III/LAV.
Feburary 1981Above collaboration identifies that the drug inhibits HTLV-III in

vitro.
Mid-1985First small safety trials begin in humans at NIH Clinical Center.
iarly 1986NCI publishes data on first 19 AIDS patients; begin broader placebo-

controlled trial of safety and efficacy.
September 18, 1986Data and Safety Monitoring Board recommends termination

of study based on safety and efficacy data.
September 30, 1986FDA approves Treatment Investigational New Drug applica-

tion.
January 16, 1987Advisory committee to FDA recommends approval as a pre-

scription drug for certain subsets of AIDS patients

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Windom. Dr. Roper.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM L. ROPER

Mr. ROPER. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the com-
mittee. I'm pleased to be here today to talk about Medicare and
Medicaid as they relate to AZT. We estimate that about 40 percent
of current AIDS patients are being served by the Medicaid pro-
gram, and about 1 percent of AIDS patients by Medicare. The Fed-
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eral and State governments through the Medicaid program will
spend more than $400 million on AIDS patients this year. Primari-
ly because of the disability waiting period, spending under the
Medicare program is currently estimated to be under $50 million a
year.

Most AIDS patients who qualify for Medicaid do so by meeting
the disability requirement under the supplemental security income,
or SSI program. Social Security Administration has made it possi-
ble for persons with AIDS to qualify for SSI almost immediately
under the presumptive disability provisions.

Also AIDS patients frequently can become eligible for Medicaid
benefits as medically needy individuals through the spenddown
process. Thirty-five States provide this option.

Medicare is available to disabled persons under 65 who have re-
ceived Social Security disability benefits fo:- 24 months. Since cash
benefits for disability income eligibles do not begin until almost 6
months after the onset of the disability, a disabled person with
AIDS would not be eligible for Medicare for almost 30 months. This
waiting period certainly limits the coverage of AIDS patients under
Medicare.

Under Medicaid the full range of regularly provided Medicaid
services in a State are available to the AIDS patient. States have
substantial flexibility to choose to cover a number of additional
benefits which could assist the typical AIDS patient, such as nos-
pice care and personal care. In addition, States may also imple-
ment innovative health care delivery alternatives through the
home and community based waiver services program.

As you know, a provision of OBRA-86 set up a special waiver pro-
gram for AIDS waivers, and we have approved earlier this year
such a waiver for the State of New Jersey.

Prescription drugs are an optional benefit under State Medicaid
programs. Every State but two has elected to offer drugs to the cat-
egorically needy. Thirty-five States provide a drug benefit for the
medically needy category as well. HCFA will reimburse the States
for any drugs, including experimental drugs which are provided ac-
cording to Federal guidelines, except those that have been deter-
mined by the FDA to be less than effective.

Under the Medicare program, the only circumstances under
which we will pay for drugs are when they are provided on an in-
patient basis or incident to a physician's services. In other words,
Medicare does not pay for ort-patie..., self-administered drugs in-
cluding AZT.

In order to provide advance notice of the availability of AZT to
our State Medicaid agencies we issued a program memorandum to
alert the States that FDA approval of the drug AZT is likely in the
near future. This information allows the States to begin immediate-
ly to revise their State formularies to include AZT if they choose to
do so. We have promised to inform the States of any significant
change in the status of AZT.

You've heard testimony that the estimate by Burroughs Well-
come is that the cost of AZT will be $8,000 to $10,000 per year per
patient. Determining the cost of AZT to the Medicaid program is
extremely difficult and involves a number of assumption that could
change. For one thing, we don't know at this time whether the
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drug will be prescribed for all AIDS patients, or even all AIDS and
ARC patients. We don't know if AZT can be produced in significant
quantities to meet anticipated demand.

Given the limited information available, HCFA believes that the
costs to the Medicaid program of AZT itself, not counting the cost
of treating side effects as well as potential savings from reducing
the number and severity of acute spells of illness could range up to
$50 million this year if the drug is approved by April 1. Costs for
1988 under similar assumptions could reach $150 million. These
costs would be shared approximately equally by the States and the
Feder_l Government.

As the agency responsible for financing the Medicare and Medic-
aid programs, we've worked closely with Assistant Secretary
Windom, the Surgeon General, the Public Health Service to make
sure we are maximally coordinating our efforts in responding to
the AIDS crisis. HCFA is committed as an agency to ensuring that
appropriate care and services are delivered to AIDS patients. In
partnership with the States, the Department and HCFA will con-
tinue to address and respond to the treatment of patients with this
very serious disease.

I'd be pleased to respond to your questions.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Roper follows:)

PREPARED STATEMENT OF WILLIAM L. ROPER, M.D.

Mr. Chairman, I am Dr. William L. Roper, Administrator of the Health Care Fi-
nancing Administration. I am pleased to be here today to discuss Medicaid and Med-
icare payment for he AIDS-treatment drug AZT. Mr. Chairman, as you know, AIDS
is one of the priority items on the Secretary's agenda. I want to assure you that
Doctor Bowen and I have discussed at length the seriousness of this tragic disease
and the hope of soon finding an appropriate treatment and cure.

BACKGROUND

I would like first of all to provide a brief overview of how AIDS patients qualify
under the Medicaid and Medicare programs. Based on information gathered from
hospitals treating Medicaid patients and data on AIDS-related disability awares, we
estimate that about 40 percent of AIDS patients are served by the Medicaid pro-
gram and about 1 percent are receiving care under the Medicare program. it has
been estimated that the Federal and State governments, through the Medicaid pro-
gram, will spend from $400 to $800 million on AIDS patients this year. Primarily
because of the disability waiting period, spending under the Medicare program is
currently estimated to be under $50 million annually. It should be noted that these
estimates do not include the impact of the drug AZT, about which I will say more
later.

MEDICAID

Most AIDS patients qualify for Medicaid by meeting the disability requirement
under the Supplemental Security Income (SSI) program. In the early 3tages of
AIDS, most patients have resources, incomes, or health insurance coverage. As the
disease progresses, most patients become unable to work and, as a result, lose
income and resources. At this point, they often turn to SSI to seek qualification
based on disability which, in most cases, would make them eligible for Medicaid.
Those who might not qualify are in the 14 States which, when the SSI program was
enacted, were allowed to use the more restrictive qualifying criteria from their pre-
vious Aged, Blind, ad Disabled programs. Congress provided this option based upon
the fear the States would face an overwhelming Medicaid caseload because of their
eligibility unuer SSI.

In February 1985, SSA made it easier for persons with AIDS to qualify for SSI
under the presumptive disability provision. This allows the applicant to qualify for
benefits almost immediately by reducing the waiting time between applying for and
receiving benefits.
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Even if persons with AIDS do not qualify initially for cash assistance benefits
under SSI, they frequently can become eligible for Medicaid benefits as medically
needy individuals through the "Spenddown" process. People ve-l- incomes and re-
sources above the Medicaid limits who have incurred substantial medical expenses
can have those expenses subtracted from their income level, thus bringing them
below the Medicaid limits. Currently, 32 States have a medically needy program
covering the aged, blind, and disabled; an additional fi e States have this program
for pregnant women and children.

In addition to SSI and medically needy coverage, another avenue of assistance for
the AIDS patients is qualification for Medicaid coverage through eligibility for the
Aid to Families with Dependent Children program. The individual may be a child
with AIDS whose mother had contracted the disease through drug abuse, as well as
the mother herself if she qualifies for AFDC. In states which have an AFDC-Unem-
ployed Parent program, the AIDS patient could be, for example, the unemployed
parent provided that that household met the program's qualifying criteria

MEDICARE

Medicare is available to disabled persons under 65 who have received Social Secu-
rity disability benefits under Title II of the Social Security Act for 24 consecutive
months. The disability criteria under Titles II and XVI are the same. However,
unlike SSI, cash benefits for all Title II eligibles do not begin until six months after
the onset of the disability. After the "24-month waiting period" (Actually in most
cases almost 30 months), a disabled person with AIDS would be eligible for both
part A (Hospital Insurance) and part B (Supplemental Medical Insurance) of Medi-
care. Because of the relatively rapid and fatal course of AIDS, only a very small
percentage of individuals with AIDS can receive benefits under the Medicare pro-
gram.

SERVICES AVAILABLE UNDER dEDICAID

The scope of covered benefits under Medicaid varies considerably from State to
State. All States, however, must cover certair mandatory services for almost all SSI
and AFDC recipients. AIDS patients are Medicaid-eligible receive services
through hospitals, outpatient departments, physicians' offices, rural health clinics,
laboratory and radiology settings, and skilled nursing facilities and home health
agencies for those who are 21 years of age and older.

States may choose to cover certain additional benefits which could assist the typi-
cal AIDS patient. Some examples include clinic services, prescribed drugs, interme-
diate care facilities services, miscellaneous diagnostic services, and skilled nursing
facility care and home health care services for individuals under 21 years of age.
Other ancillary services such as personal care, private duty nursing, and rehabilita-
tion services are also optional benefits.

States are also permitted to cover hospice services under their Medicaid pro-
grams. The Medicaid hospice benefit stresses home care, which provides an alterna-
tive to institutional settings and allows AIDS patients another choice for receipt of
their care. New York has already designated one hospital as an AIDS center and
expects to approve eight more. These hospitals will be required to provide a continu-
um of care, including hospice, nursing hornr., .f.r.a inpatient care. New York has sub-
mitted a State Plan Amendment to 1-1Cr'A to cover t1-ie hospice benefit under its
Medicaid program. We are now in the process of evalue g the additional informa-
tion that New York hes supplied.

States also have the ability to implement innovative health care delivery alterna-
tives through the home- and community-based waiver services program. This pro-
gram gives State Medicaid programs the opportunity to pay for a wide range of care
delivered at home and in the community for those who might otherwise be institu-
tionalized. The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 (P.L. 99-509) allows
States to target their home- and community-Wined services waiver to AIDS and ARC
(AIDS-related complex) patients.

On January 81 of this year, we approved the first AIDS-targeted waiver to the
State of New Jersey Medicaid agency so that it might provide home treatment for
patients with AIDS and ARC. New Jersey can now provide services under this
home- and community-based waiver program such as personal care, medical day
care, narcotic and drug abuse treatment, private duty nursing care, and intensive
foster care for pediatric patients. The three-year waiver was eff.2r tive March 1 and
can be renewed. New Jersey has the fifth largess populaion of pe.sons with AIDS
and expects to treat 578 Medicaid-eligible AIDS patients in the 1 irst year of the
waiver, at a cost of about $11 million or $18,996 per patient. The State projects t -t
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it will serve 990 patients at a cost of $20 million or $20,554 per individual in the
second year, and, in the third year, 1650 patients at a cost of $36.6 million or
$22,238 per individual. Based upon New Jersey's projections, -,e average rate of
growth for total costkwould be 82.4 percent.

New Mexico has also requested a home- and community-based services waiver for
AIDS patients. In order to assist the State in bringing its request into conformance
with statutory and regulatory requirements, we formally requested additional infor-
mation regarding the proposal. Our Dallas Regional Office worked closely with the
State in an effort to develop the information necssary for the waiver to be approved.
We have just received the additional information, which we are in the process of
evaluating.

Clearly, States have the flexibility to provide a wide range of additional services.
The States with the highest number of AIDS cases, California and New York, which
have recorded approximately 53 percent of all reported AIDS cases in the United
States, provide numerous additional optional servicse, respectively, to their Medic-
aid populations.

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS

Prescription drugs are also an optional benefit under State Medicaid programs.
Every State, except for Alaska and Wyoming, has elected to offer drugs to the cate-
gorically needy. Thirty-five State programs provide a drug benefit for the medically
needy category as well. States may limit the number of drugs covered and the
amount and scope of the benefit, for example, by restricting drug coverage to so
many drug prescriptions per month. Eighteen States require copayments on pre-
scriptions. A State determines, with the advice of medical consultants, which experi-
mental drugs, if any, it chooses to cover under its Medicaid program. HCFA will
match States' payments for any drugs, including experimental drugs, which are iPro-
vided according to Federal guidelines, except those that have been determined by
the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to be less-than-effective.

The Medicare program will pay for drugs when provided on an inpatient basis or
incident to a physician's service. Drugs generally are not covered under Medicare
when provided on an outpatient self- administered basis. In addition, Medicare does
not cover experimental drugs, which are those not approved by the FDA for market-
ing.

AZT (AZIDOTHYMIDINE/RETROVIR)

The drug AZT hp^ demonstrated some success in prolonging survival among cer-
tain AIDS patients. Burroughs Wellcome, the manufacturer of AZT, now provides
the drug free to the more than 4,000 patients participating in the Investigational
New Drug clincial trials. The drug is now awaiting final approval by the Food and
Drug Administration in order that it may be marketed as a prescription drug by the
Burroughs Wellcome Company.

In order to provide advance notice of the availability of AZT to our Stag Medic-
aid agencies, we issues a program memorandum to alert them that FDA approval of
the drug AZT is likely in the near future. This information allows States to begin
immediately to revise their State formularies to incl "de AZT if they choose to do so.
We have promised to inform the States of any significant change in the status of
AZT.

The Burroughs Wellcome Company has indicated that the drug will be $188 per
one humdred 100 mg. tablets. This would mean that the resulting cost to the patient
would be, depending on the individual patient's regimen and actual dosage, between
$7,000 and $10,000 annually.

Determining the cost of AZT to the Medicaid program is extremely difficult and
involves a number of assumptions that could change. For one thing, we do not know
at this time of the drug will be prescribed for all AIDS patients, or limited to the
population on which it has been tested in the Phase II Study, i.e., those with at least
one occurrence of Pneumocybtis Carinii Pmmonis or some other groups of pa-
tients. At this point, we do not know if AZT can 'le produced in sufficient quantities
to meet anticipated demand. Among other unknowns is the cost of treatment for the
side effects of AZT and the cost implications of its potential for reducing the inci-
dence of acute spells of illness.

Given the limited information available, HCFA believes that the costs to the Med-
icaid program of AZT itself ignoring the cost of treating side effects as well as no-
tential savings from reducing the number and severity of acute spells of illness
could range up to $50 million in 1987 if the drug is approved by April 1 and de-
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mands for it can be met. Costs for 1988 under similar assumptions could reach $150
million.

These costs would be shared approximately equally by the States and the Federal
Government.

SUMMARY

As the agency responsible for financing the Medicare and Medicaid programs, we
have worked closely with the Assistant Secretary for Health, the Surgeon General,
and the Public Health Service to ensure maximum coordination of our efforts in re-
sponding to the AIDS crisis. In addition, we have a HCFA AIDS coordinator, and a
HCFA representative serves on the Assistant Secretary for Health's PHS Executive
Task Force on AIDS.

HCFA is committed as an agency to ensuring that appropriate care and services
are delivered to AIDS patients. In r artnership with the States, the Department and
HCFA will continue to address and respond to the treatment of patients with this
serious disc. le.

I will be glad to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Roper. Dr. Windom,
there are approximately 4,500 people who are now receiving AZT
for free. These are the people that are part of the clinical test. Now
when AZT becomes licensed by FDA the drug is not going to be
made available free. They're going to charge $8,000 to $10,000. Who
will pay for these people? We've already had them on the drug. If
they don't continue with the drug, they'll die. Who will pay for
them?

Mr. WINDOM. Mr. Chairman, there are a number of those pa-
tients who are continuing on those trials. Also because there's post-
marketing surveillance necessary to follow up, so a number of
those will be receiving the drug, as they are now, at no expense to
them.

Mr. WAXMAN. Who will pay for it?
Mr. WINDOM. The drug company is providing that under certain

circumstances for those who are continuing in certain trials that
will be ongoing. Otherwise for the open market, that will be based
upon the individual, third party or Medicaid or whatever. There
will be a number of sources.

Mr. WAXMAN. How many of the 4,500 would then be in the cate-
gory for which the company would continue to pay?

Mr. WINDOM. I don't have that figure, Mr. Chairman. I don't
know the exact number.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you know the range? Are we talking about
three out of the 4,000? Are we talking about 50 out of the 4500?
We'd like that figure and we'll get it for the record.

Mr. WINDOM. We'll provide that for the record, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. But the other point is, whatever number of those

people in that group that have gone through this clinical trial,
don't we have a responsibility for them since they've been part of
this trial to establish the efficacy of this drug, not to just suddenly
push them aside on their own? If they can't afford it, they're just
going to be out of luck?

Mr. WINDOM. I'm not aware that anybody is going to be taken off
the drug because they cannot pay. That would have to be evaluated
on individual circumstance.

Mr. WAXMAN. You would say it would be unethical not to have
that drug available to all those 4,500 people that have already been
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part of the trial and that already are getting the drug. So if they
don't get it there are serious consequences.

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Now as you've outlined the NIH has contributed a

great deal toward the development of AZT. The Public Health
Service has set up the AZT program, and the FDA has acted in
near record time to get this drug out to market. So we've had a lot
of government assistance in moving this drug along.

Do you believe that the Burroughs Wellcome price of $8,000 to
$10,000 per person per year is a fair price?

Mr. WINDOM. Mr. Chairman, I can only comment that I do not
know the exact way by which they have come about their pricing
mechanism and would have to defer to their best judgment, and
feel that they're doing this to meet their requirements. Again, I
don't know the intricacies of that.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do ycu intend to get the records from them to
look at their investment cost, to second guess their evaluation as to
whether this is a reasonable price?

Mr. WINDOM. I do not intend to. I don't think that is in the pur-
view of our position, our work.

Mr. WAXMAN. How many other drugs besides AZT are in clinical
trials now?

Mr. WIND M. There are approximately 10 or 11 other trials that
are going on with other drugs.

Mr. WAXMAN. We'd like a list of those for the record, if you could
provide that to us. We'd like to know how many are in clinical
trials, how many drugs have been proposes for trials to the NIH
dr, selection committee, and get the coral:de ce update on that.

We've heard Dr. Roper talk about the financial costs of AIDS
care. Are there any clinical trials underway for early intervention
drugs that may stop the virus before it becomes a full AIDS case?

Mr. WINDOM. No, this is the first drug that actually we have
available to be used. So we have no drug available at this point as
far as showing to effect upon the early stages of AIDS.

Mr. WAXMAN. Does NIH plan to initiate such research?
Mr. WINDOM. There are a number of these drug trials that are

presently in effect, new drugs that mry be appropriate for the
early stages. We'll have to wait to see wt at their trial results are.

Mr. WAXMAN. Now let's talk about who' going to pay for the
drug. If a patient can afford it, the patient v 'II pay. If the patient
has insurance that will pay for it, the insurance company will pay.
Dr. Roper, you indicated that Medicare, while it covers the disabled
generally aces not cover AIDS patients because there's a 2-year
waiting period and they generally die before that 2 years eligibility
is met.

So Medicaid becomes the goverament health care insurance
system that will pay for care for these patients That's after they
become eligible on a spenddown basis--

Mr. ROPER. After they become eligible foi SSI or spenddown
under medically needy programs, yes.

Mr. WAXMAN. So they become impoverished and then when
they're eligible on that basis Medicaid will come in.

Mr. ROPER. Yes.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Now in the Medicaid program many States set a
dollar limit on prescription drugs?

Mr. ROPER. Yes, they're able to do that.
Mr. WAXMAN. Florida has one of the highest incidences of AIDS

in the country. Florida limits Medicaid reimbursement for drugs to
$22 per month. AZT will probably cost between $600 and $800 a
month more than that. What will a person with AIDS do under the
Florida Medicaid program?

Mr. ROPER. They would not be eligible unless the State of Florida
changed that limit. I would expect a numter of States to make
those kind of changes. AZT is a unique drug. AIDS is a unique ill-
ness.

Mr. WAXMAN. Why would you think the States would want to
change their limits? I mean, after all, if the drug company works
on the assumption that in pricing the drug somebody is going to
pay for it, why wouldn't the States work on the assumption that if
they put the limits on it that the Federal Government will be stuck
with it because somebody else, i.e., the Federal Government, will
pay for it? Why would the States want to incur this additional
cost?

Mr. ROPER. Because they have a responsibility to their citizens.
Mr. WAXMAN. And what will be the Federal Govern= it's re-

sponse?
Mr. ROPER. We operate the Medicaid program in concert with

the States.
Mr. WAXMAIi. Right now under the terms of the Medicaid pro-

gram may a State refuse to reimburse for a specific drug, even if
it's life-sustaining?

Mr. ROPER. Yes. States are free to determine the formulary or
the list of drugs that are covered under their Medicaid program.
Some States have an open formulary, meaning they cover any drug
that's FDA approved. Others have more limited lists. That cane
about because of a desire to save money, to conserve costs in the
program.

Mr. WAXMAN. What would an AIDS patient do in a State that
doesn't pay for prescription drugs or one that refuses to pay for
AZT?

Mr. ROPER. They would not be eligible for AZT payment under
the Medicaid program in their State.

Mr. WAXMAN. They would go without.
Mr. ROPER Or find some other means of payment.
Mr. WAXM N. Now under the Medicaid program, 19 States in-

cluding New York and California have a State formulary or list of
drugs that will be paid for. You say that you've notified States of
the possible approval of AZT. How many States have moved to add
AZT to their reimbursement list?

Mr. ROPER. Twenty-six States have open formularies. And what
that means is immediately on FDA approval the drug will be cov-
ered under those States. Another 10 States have told us that they
will cover AZT almost immediately. The others we have not yet
heard back from.

Mr. WAXMAN. We'd like to get a list from you of the States.
Mr. ROPER. Surely.
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Mr. WAXMAN. How long does it take to add a drug to the State
formulary?

Mr. ROPER. Again, it varies widely. Some States do so immediate-
ly. Others have a process of committee meeting to review the drug
and make a determination for the State Medicaid program.

Mr. WAXMAN. Some States amend their formulary once or twice
a year, don't they?

Mr. ROPER. That's correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. Some may refuse to pay at all.
Mr. ROPER. That's correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. Some may move to add AZT on an expedited basis.
Mr. ROPER. Yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. So it's now up to the States.
Mr. ROPER. Yes.
Mr. WAxmAN. What will an AIDS patient do if a State does not

add AZT to its formulary?
Mr. ROPER. He will not be eligible for it under the Medicaid pro-

gram.
Mr. WAXMAN. Certainly we're talking about a catastrophic

health problem. What help would the administration's proposal for
catastrophic health insurance be in paying for the $10,000 a year
for AZT?

Mr. Rt.:PER. The provision to provide better financing in the Med-
icare program would not affect AZT and AIDS patients. Another
part of the Secretary's proposal tl. A the President has recommend-
ed to the Congress is, assistance to the States to State actions like
this one under the Medicaid program to provide better coverage.

Mr. WAXMAN. We have a proposal before us from the administra-
tion called catastrophic health insurance and it covers

Mr. ROPER. That's specifically the Medicare part.
Mr. WAXMAN. So it wouldn't cover AZT?
Mr. ROPER. No.
Mr. WAXMAN. Even though it would a medical catastrophe. Nei-

ther the Medicare program nor the Administration's plan has an
out-patient prescription drug coverage. The administration's plan
affects only Medicare beneficiaries and very few AIDS patients live
long enough to qualify for Medicare. So what's being called cata-
strophic health insurance before the Congress will not take care of
this particular kind of medical catastrophe.

In earlier testimony before this subcommittee HCFA said that it
anticipates that 23 percent of AIDS costs will be born by Medicaid.
Today you say that 40 percent of AIDS patients will be served by
Medicaid. Could you explain the difference?

Mr. ROPER. The figure is 40 percent in outpatients and 23 per-
cent ih the costs, because of the spend down process of becoming
Medicaid eligible.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Haig ler suggested that AZT actually lowered
treatment costs for AIDS patients since it may prevent frequent re-
currences of disease, and then lower hospitalization rates. Do you
agree?

Mr. ROPER. That is a logical presumption, but I don't know the
evidence I haven't reviewed the figures.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, it's going tohealthier people are not going
to need to be in the hospital. Wouldn't that give you the conclusion
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that it would save money, that you'd otherwise have had to pay the
hospitalization?

Mr. ROPER. Indeed, yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. If it can be shown that the drug will lower costs,

would you support a mandatory Medicaid benefit requiring all
States to supply AZT?

Mr. ROPER. No, because the Medicaid program is operated in con-
cert with States, Federal and State partnership, and the States for
a variety of reasons, ought to be given substantial latitude to oper-
ate the program. We trust the judgments of the states.

Mr. WAxmAre Under Federal law, we require that the Medicaid
prPgr-i^: provide health care services for certain population groups
that are in the bottom economically, and we require that they pro-
vide certain services. We leave some things as optional and leave it
to State discretion, but some things we mandate.

If we saw that States decided they didn't want to cover AZT for
these patients, and I think we all agree ethically that we must pro-
vide this, we must as a society make sure these people don't go
without the drug, and die because of the fact they can't afford it.
Isn't there a Federal responsibility? We talked about the State re-
sponsibility to take care of their citizens. Isn't there a Federal re-
sponsibility to take care of our citizens?

Mr. ROPER. And the Federal Government is discharging that re-
sponsibility in the Medicaid program.

Mr. WAXMAN. By shifting the burden to Uri States?
Mr. ROPER. Not at all. Because by operating the program in con-

cert with the States, it's a Federal-State partnership.
Mr. WAXMAN. Yea, but we are letting the States decide rather

than decide at the Federal level.
Mr. ROPER. That's been the nature for 21 years.
Mr. WAXMAN. That's not the nature of every service. That's the

nature of some services, and we're talking about one that is unlike
others we've had, not completely unlike, but unlike others we've
had because of the high cost, and clear inability for people who are
on Medicaid to be able to come up with $10,000 a year.

There's no reference to it in your statement, but I don't need to
remind you that the fiscal year 1988 budget that the administra-
tion submitted to Congress calls for a cap on the Federal Medicaid
spending, which would then ask the States to pick up at least $1.3
billion next year, according to the Congressional Budget Office. If
AIDS related Medicaid spending will be $400-800 million this year
as you've testified, how do you expect the States to cope with the
even greater financial consequences of the epidemic next year
under that proposed cap?

Mr. ROPER. The other part of the cap is a proposed enhancement,
substantial enhancement, of the States' ability to manage their
Medicaid programs more efficiently and given the ability to do
that, we think they could pay for more services, deliver more serv-
ices, even with a cap.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, we've had reductions in Federal dollars to
the States in the past, and the way they've handled it is by reduc-
ing services and reducing eligibility. One would expect if that's how
they meet the fewer Federal dollars, under the Medicaid program
in the past, they're not going to be talking about expanding Medic-
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aid formularies to pay for AZT, which is going to be so very, very
expensive.

Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Windom, you're a licensed physician in the State of Florida,

right?
Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How long did you practice there?
Mr. WINDOM. years.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And did you have a general practice?
Mr. WINDOM. General internal medicine, yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Are you familiar with the law of the State of

Florida that calls for the reportability of certain communicable dis-
eases?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How many diseases made are repor We by

the law of the State of Florida, that a physician encounter, rough-
ly?

Mr. WINDOM. I don't have that list in front of me, but it is quite
large, probably 15 or more. I just don't know exactly.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. And among those that are reportable, some
are curable and some are non-curable, right?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Give me an example of some that are curable

that are reportable. For example, syphilis and gonorrhea. Are they
reportable in the State of Florida?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Those are curable communicable venereal dis-

eases, aren't they?
Mr. WINDOM. Yes, but we see some cases now that are resistant,

but potentially they are curable.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Do you support the policy, the public health

policy, of making curable communicable venereal diseases report-
able?

Mr. WINDOM. That is a provision within the State health pro-
gram, which they do, and are allowed to do, and they mak' their
decisions, and I go along with that.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. You support them?
Mr. WINDOM. The State decision is to make that.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. That's been standard public health response

to deal with communicable disease throughout this country for at
least during the years you've practiced medicine. Isn't that eight?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. You believe that to be sound public health

policy?
Mr. WINDOM. That determination is sound, yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Then let's take a person with a virus for

AIDS. Mr. KoopDr. Koop, the Surgeon General of the United
States, in his report to the Nation last October, in that report said,
we must presume that every person with the virus is capable of
transmitting that virus to another human on a transfer of bodily
fluids. Isn't that right?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
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MT. DANNEMEYER. Therefore any person with the virus has by
definition, a communicable disease, right?

Mr. WINDOM. Potentially communicable.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Do we have a cure for the virus today?
Mr. WINDOM. No, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. So we have in the words of Dr. Koop, I think

at one point in his report, it's estimated we have 1-2 million Ameri-
cans with the virus in their blood, right?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. The current estimate is those that have the

virus that will go on to get the disease is about 50 percent, right?
Mr. WINDOM. 25-50 percent is the figure used.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. All right. One of the things that prompts me

on this line of question is the rule of paradox in the public health
response to deal with this epidemic in America.

You say as a public health official and a private practicing physi-
cian, that you support the concept of reportability for curable com-
municable venereal diseases, such as syphilis and gonorrhea. Will
you please tell this panel and the people of this country, how the
public health authorities of this Nation can justify the public posi-
tion you now pursue, of attempting to defend that we will not call
to be reported those with a non-curable communicable venereal dis-
ease? I'll say it again. How in the world do we justify a system
which mandates the reportability of a curable communicable vene-
real disease, and attempt to defend making not reportable, a non-
curable communicable venereal disease? Could you please explain
that to me?

Mr. WINDOM. Sir, the question is raised by many States, and
many States have taken action right now or concerning action to
take, as to how to handle that particular ptoblem. I think we will
find- -

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Wait a minute. Dr. Koop in his report to the
Nation, at one point in that report, expressly defended the non-re-
portability of those with the virus to -2ublic health authorities.

Mr. WINDOM. The disease AIDS is reported.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I understand that, sir. But the virus is not?
Mr. WINDOM. That's right. In some States.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Dr. Koop in his rep vt specifically attempted

to defend the non-reportability of those with the virus. Why does
he do that? Why do you dc that?

Mr. WINDOM. Well, we are informing our States, and let them
make these decisions based upon the evaluation of this condition,
in those people who are antibody positive. Some States do report it.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Now you, under Dr. Bowen, you are the head
of the Public Health Service in America, aren't you?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. They do what you tell them because the buck

stops with you, right?
Mr. WINDOM. Yes, to an extent. Then it goes on up to Dr. Bowen

also. But we just held a conferencewe just held a conference
Mr. DANNEMEYER. You made up your mind to make a public

policy position that those with the virus should be reportable.
You'd recommend that to the people of the country and the States,
and they'd probably do it, wouldn't they?

4 0
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Mr. WINDOM. Well, first the results of the meeting we just spon-
sored and held 2 weeks ago was dealing with this subject of testing
and reporting, and that information will be brought to me on April
1. And we will look at that in great depth, then come forth with
the recommendations or decisions based upon that best input from
people representing the whole Nation, over 900 people at this im-
portant program. So it's through this mechanism that we do make
decisions, based upon input from many sources.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Do you believe sitting here this morning that
as a public policy response those with the virus should be report-
able?

Mr. WINDOM. I do not feel it should be mandated at this point,
sir.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. You don't think it should be mandated?
Mr. WINDOM. At this point, I feel that- -
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I'll ask the question again. If by law we re-

quire a person with a curable communicable disease to be reported
to public health authorities, how in the world do we justify a public
health response which does not exact the same requirements for a
non-curable communicable venereal disease? How do you explain
that?

Mr. WINDOM. Well bek-ause there are so many ramifications
about this disease that's different from others that we've ever come
across, that we have to look at for all these- -

Mr. DANNEMEYER. You bei, it's different. It's non-curable.
Mr. WINDOM. Right.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How else is it different?
Mr. WINDOM. Well, in the fact that once it goes through its full-

blown stage, it's fatal. And it's rapidly progressively fatal.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. But Doctor, I'll state it this way. If public

policy requires we report a curable communicable venereal disease,
doesn't it seem logical that we would exact the same requirement
for a disease which is not curable?

Mr. WINDOM. Well, that's- -
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Human logic would seem to dictate that
Mr. WINDOM. There is also some evidence, and a feeling that if

we did that, there would be a number of instances where that
person would never even seek the opportunity to get tested, be-
cause it has many ether ramifications.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Now the State of Florida, I mean the States of
Colorado, and Idaho and Minnesota in this country reject that ar-
gument, don't they? They require that those with the virus be re-
portable, don't they?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir. Yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Wouldn't you say that every person with the

virus today and in next 5 years is going to manifest some impair-
ment of their immune system?

Mr. WINDOM. Well we don't know that, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well the French study published about 8

months ago indicated that about 50-70 percent of those with the
virus would get AIDS and die, ar,d the balance would all manifest
some impairment of their immune system. My point is, you say
that some people would not participate if we had mandatory test-
ing.
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What I am suggesting is, every person with the virus is going to
be in contact with the health care system of this Nation, because
they frankly have no place else to go, and at that point they have
no place to hide, and when they come into the health care system,
isn't it appropriate that we adopt and respond with the normal
routine public health response for every communicable disease that
has come down the pike in the lab testlast half century, and
make it reportable?

Mr. WINDOM. What you're saying is being considerea in many,
many places today.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. How long is --
Mr. WAXMAN.Gentlemen, the time has expired.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Wait a minute, Mr. Chairman. You started at

10:24 and quit at 10:36. I started at 10:36 and I think I should be
able to go to 10:48, and take 12 minutes just like the Chairman did.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well I'm sorry, I'm sorry, I don't think you've cal-
culated correctly, and I think we've given you the same amount of
time, but we'll give you an opportunity in the second round. Mr.
Wyden has been waiting patiently, and you have another opportu-
nity.

Mr. WYDEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just have a couple of
questions.

Dr. Roper, in 1987 the cost of AZT in the Medicaid program
could reach $50 million, according to your indications. is that Fed-
eral money, or combined State and Federal?

Mr. ROPER. Combined. It's 25-25 roughly.
Mr. WYDEN. In producing that number, Doctor, how many States

do you assume are going to cover AZT this year?
Mr. 110PER. We assume that 26 States will immediately cover.

They are the ones with so-called open formularies.
Mr. WYDEN. I think all of us on the subcommittee would appreci-

ate for the record, the data and assumptions used by HFCA to esti-
mate the Medicaid related costs of AIDS and AZT?

Mr. ROPER. I'd be glad to provide that, yes.
Mr. WYDEN. For the sake of the record.
Mr. ROPER. Yes.
Mr. WYDEN. Dr. Roper, my second question is, what is the range

of poverty that AIDS patients have to reach before becoming eligi-
ble for Medicaid?

Mr. ROPER. It's substantial poverty. It varies across the states.
States have different levels.

Mr. WYDEN. Well, I know that the Chairman spoke of the Florida
situation at a very low level. But I think there are several States
that are even well below that. I think one State, it may be Ala-
bama, but I'm not sure, you have to have $88 a month for a family
of 2 in order to be eligible.

Mr. ROPER. I don't know the Alabama figures off the top of my
head, but substantial poverty in many States is required.

Mr. WYDEN. Should patients have to move from the States with a
very low level? From Florida, and if it's Alabama, as I say I don't
know, to California to get An? Is that what the administration is
advocating?

Mr. ROPER. No. We are advocating the States to effectively
manage their Medicaid program.
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Mr. WYDEN. But what if you're very low income, yet you still
don't qualify, in your State. I heard that, I guess it's an old notion,
vote with your feet, but clearly people who are in pain and are dis-
abled coubin't ibly do that. It would certainly put an extra
burden on the States. What do you do if you're very low income, in
a State you're not eligible.

Mr. ROPER. Well the question you poseit strikes to the heart of
a Federally-State operated program, a partnership program. We
depend on the voters and the elected officials of ti e several States
to do the right thing by their citizens.

Mr. WYDEN. Well, I think we're all interested in the States doing
as much as possible. I'm just concerned that people are going to fall
through the cracks as a result of this situation. There may not be
any drug services in their State, and they may not be able to move.

The question for both of you that I d like to ask, deals with
whose responsibility is this? Where are the lines between the Fed-
eral Government and the States? I think your positions area little
bit different.

I understood Dr. Windom to say that it's unethical to withhold
AZT from AIDS patients. That was Dr. Windom's statement to
Chairman Waxman. But Dr. Roper has said that's it's not a Feder-
z-1 ethical responsibility. My question is, whose responsibility is it?

Mr. ROPER. I think we as a society have a responsibility to pay
for health care services to those who can't afford to pay for them
themselves. That includes not only AIDS patients, but patients of
whatever malady. And society has that duty. The Federal Govern-
ment, State Government, local Governments, the private sector,
the manufacturers of the drug. It's a responsibility that we all
share. The Federal Government is discharging that responsibility
primarily through the Medicaid program, as I've said.

Mr. WYDEN. I don't think that's much solace to people in great
pain, and agony to say that society in the abstract has a responsi-
bility to do it. We haveto make decisions to try to help alleviate
that pain, and make sure they're in the most cost effective manner.
I personally think the Federal Government has a more significant
role to play in this then all of you do, but that will be a subject for
other debates.

Dr. Windom, would you want to comment?
Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir, Mr. Congressman. This is a early disease

process, it's a very devastating one that has aroused the concern of
millions of people in this Nation, and we know of many communi-
ties where this disease has manifested itself more than others.
There's a great deal of community effort, individuals helping the
patient through many ways, to show compassion, and concern, and
to make their care more available with all the help of many disci-
plines. So I think it is evident that there is a great deal of human-
istic approach to this disease on all levels.

Mr. WYDEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden. The thought t'i at strikes

me that when you say society has the obligation to pay for it is
that that could be an excuse for no one in society taking the re-
sponsibility. It could be an excuse for the Federal Government not
to do it, for the States not to do it, for the drug companies to
assume that somebody will pay whatever their price will be, and
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we could easily see large numbers of patients going without this
drug which we would all consider an unethical, unacceptable situa-
tion. So we're going to have to, it seems to me, monitor this situa-
tion very carefully.

Dr. Windom, there are a lot of questions I could ask you about
the AIDS problem, and about reporting and testing routine, man-
datory, whatever. We are going to hold hearings on these issues at
a later date. This is not an issue we're unconcerned about, but I'm
going to refrain from getting into those issues at this time, because
we have this hearing on this question. But any member can pursue
anything they want when they're askedwhen they're given the
time to pursue questions.

I just don't want you to think that our refraining from going into
these questions means that we agree with Mr. Dannemeyer on his
point of view, or that we are uninterested in this situation.

Mr. Dannemeyer, do you wish a second round?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Yes; I do.
Mr. WAXMAN. The gentleman is recognized for 5 minutes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Windom, I

don't think you were working as head of the Public Health Service
of the Federal Government in March of 1985, but I suspect one of
the staff persons sitting behind you there can help you with respect
to this issue, because it relates to the integrity of the blood supply
of this country.

In March of 1985, the Public Health Service of the United States
Government took some action in order to protect the integrity of
the blood supply and in about March of that year, action was taken
with respect to the group that contributed 17 percent of the AIDS'
cases, intravenous drug users. That action provided that the group
contributing 17 percent of the AIDS cases cannot donate blood;
isn't that right?

Mr. WINDOM. An intravenous drug user cannot?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. In the Spring of 1985, statistically speaking,

17 percent of the AIDS' cases came from a group called intrave-
nous drug users, and so from the standpoint of protecting the blood
supply of the country, a decision was made that that group that
contributed 17 percent of the AIDS' cases, cannot donate blood;
isn't that right?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. At the same time, the Public Health Service

for the United States Government made a decision with respect to
the group that contributed 73 perceut of the AIDS' cases, male ho-
mosexuals, relating to the integrity of the blood supply. Specifical-
ly, the Public Health Service said, and here they differed, if you
subjectively consider yourself to be a monogonous male homosex-
ual, there is no restriction on your donating blood at all, but if you
subjecti vely considered yourself to be a polygamous male homosex-
ual, the Public Health Service said you should not donate blood;
isn't that right?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And then in September of 1986. you changed

your policy whereby you said, irrespective of whether you classify
yourself as a monogonous or polygamous male homosexual, you
should not donate blood; isn't that correct?
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Mr. WINDOM. Yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Now, the question I have is this; if it is sound

public policy to protect the integrity of the blood supply of this
country, that the group that contributes 17 percent of the AIDS'
cases, intravenous drug users, is told, you cannot donate blood, how
do you justify adopting less than an identical stricture with respect
to the group that contributes 73 percent of the AIDS' cases, male
homosexuals, but to that group, to my knowledge, you have to this
date just said, should not donate blood as opposed to cannot donate
blood.

How do you justify that?
Mr. WINDOM. Well, because we feel with the testing procedure,

that we can test the blood today, too, for those who do give blood
beyond which they should not give it, they still offer giving blood.
We cannot prove whether they fit that category or not.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, that's interesting. The testing procedure
would pertain to whether you are an intravenous drug user or you
are a male homosexual; wouldn't it?

Mr. WINDOM. It could; yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. So if the blood test is a constant, there must

be some other reason why the Public Health Service has not been
able to bring itself and say to the group that contributes 73 percent
of the AIDS cases, you cannot donate blood. Can you give me a ra-
tionale as to whatwhy you do that?

Mr. WINDOM. Well, the history, of course, of the IV drug use, had
a greater instance of possibility of the spread or the contamination
and consequently, looking at the other issue more with the homo-
sexual population and to evaluate just where we stand at that
point.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Now, let's be candid about it. The ELISA test
has a false negative in between 4 and 10 percent of the cases;
doesn't it?

Mr. WINDOM. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. In other words, if a test is negative on a pro-

posed blood sample, there is a 4 to 10 percent chance that that
blood can contain the virus for AIDS; right?

Mr. WINDOM. That's too high; about 1 percent now.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, it depends on what statistician you rely

upon, but I've seen figures on false negatives between 4 and 10 per-
cent. What figures have you seen?

Mr. WINDOM. I think it is 1 to 2 percent.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Let's take yours, 1 to 2 percent. Don't you be-

lieve it is sound public policy considering we are attempting to pro-
tect the integrity of our blood supply, for the Public Health Service
to say to the group that contributes 73 percent of the AIDS' cases,
male homosexuals, you cannot donate blood to the blood supply of
this country, just as you have said to the group that contributes 17
percent of the AIDS' cases, intravenous drug users?

Wouldn't that make sound public policy?
Mr. WINDOM. It's st--nething we would have to look at in more

depth, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, how long is it going to take you to look

at that? Let me give you an example of how this is relevant. Last
year, Dr. Windom, the public health in Colorado reported the in-
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stance where a donor to the blood supply, and I think it was in
May o: 1986, showed up negative on the ELISA test and that
donor's blood was admitted to the blood supply. That blood ended
up being donated from the blood supply to a recipient and the re-
cipient got AIDS. Then that donor came back in August to donate
again. That donor tested positive under the ELISA test.

The rationale as to why it was missed at the beginning in May
was because it takes about 6 weeks to 10 weeks for the latency
period to develop in the human system where antibodies are detect-
ed by the antigen.

My point, Dr. Windom, is this; when will the Public Health Serv-
ice of this country recognize that the current policy on protecting
the blood supply of this Nation is defective? Your policy has result-
ed in that citizet. in the State of Colorado getting AIDS, because
your policy relating to the people donating blood is defective.

My questim_ 3 when are you going to straighten it out and say
as a matter of public policy that the groups that contribute 17 per-
cent of the AIDS' cases, intravenous drug users, are going to be
treated on the same b. As as the group that contributes 73 percent
of the AIDS' cases, male homosexuals. Those groups should be told,
that they cannot donate blood. When will you do that?

Mr. WINDOM. Well, as I mentioned, the first of April we will
have a report of that meeting which discusst. ' this very intensively,
2 weeks ago, on the question of blood testing and nr...1dating and to
look at that in more detail to see what we should because it is a
question that is broad based and requires a great deal of input.

Mr. WAXMAN. The gentleman's time has expired.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. In my judgment, you ate treating this as a

civil rights issue. You and the other members of the Public Health
Service, in my judgment, are derelict in your responsibility and if
you can't straighten up the public policy health response to this
epidemic in America, I think with all due respect, sir, you shoula
be replaced by people who will have that courage to do so.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAxmArt. The gentleman's time has expired. What Mr. Dan-

nemeyer has expressed here is nothing new. He has expressed it in
other settings and other forums and in complaints to the President
himself, as I understand it, there were letters complaining about
his own administration.

But just on this blood question, which isn't the subject for debate
today but it has been raised, if you have someone coming in to
donate blood and they are an intravenous drug user, that can be
determined by a medical person at the site where the blood is to be
donated. If someone is a homosexual, you are relying on that per-
son's judgment. You have to prove whether that individual is cor-
rect or not in the statement that he or she makes, that it is not the
case.

The Public Health Service has relied on the fact that you can
screen out the blood rather than try to go out and find out whether
these individuals are other than what they say they are.

You say, someone comes in to donate blood, you are lir. to
donate blood if you are a hcmosexual. Isn't that correct?
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Mr. WINDOM. We request that if individuals have had sexual re-
lations with another male since 1977, are a category of people who
should not donate blood.

Mr. WAXMAN. You tell them don't donate blood. Now, if you are
going to require them at the site to go out and investigate further,
you are going to have to investigate everybody who comes in. Now,
the reason, as I understand it, that you have this particular proc-
ess, is because you have the ability to then examine the blood.

You tell people not to donate blood and then you screen the
blood to see if the virus is in the donated blood and you remove
any blood from whatever source. After all, you can have blood with
the virus in it from someone who is not a homosexual, who never
was aware they were carrying that virus.

I wanted to raise those points, as well, to counter the charges
that have been made, that you have not been acting in an responsi-
ble way.

That concludes our business before the subcommittee. We stand
adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12:00 p.m., the hearing was adjourned, tc recon-
vene at the .all of the Chair.]

[The following letter was submitted for the record:]

AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT ON THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE ACQUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME
(AIDS) DRUG AZIuOTHYMIDINE (AZT)

The American Pharmaceutical Association (APhA) commends the Burroughs-
Wellcome Co for its decision to distrubute the new AIDS drug, azidothymidine
(AZT), through the traditional drug distribution system that ensures the active par-
ticipation of pharmacists. Although the AIDS patient will be required to designate a
particular pharmacy where he or she will have prescription orders for AZT dis-
pensed, the patient througl-. this system will be assured access to comprehensive
pharmaceutical services through the pharmacy of his o:- her choice.

In the case of AZT, it is particularly appropriate that the traditional physiciai.
pharmacist-patient relationship has been preserved. AZT is a highly toxic drug for
which therapy must be individualized for each patient. Further, strict adherence to
the prescribed dosage is essential to achieve maximum effect. Consequently, pa-
tients on AZT therapy require special counseling, and their therapy must be closely
monitored. Pharmacists are especially suited to provide these essential services. Be-
sides special services related directly to their drug therapy, patients on AZT, be-
cause of the nature of their disease, often require other community health services,
such as hospices and mental health counseling, and pharmacists can refer patients
to such se, .ces available in their communities.

Pharmacists can also assist patients in dealing with the relatively high cost of
AZT therapy. Pharmacists have historically worked with their patients to achieve
maximum drug therapy effect at the lowest possible cost, as well as to help identify
sources of financial assistance that might be available in the community to help
with patients' drug Lherapy costs. In the case of AZT, pharmacists through their
monitoring function can work with patients and physicians to achieve a dnonga 10,01
that will be effective yet most economical.

In addition to helping tailor therapy to achieve cost savings, pharmacists' tradi-
tional methods of determining their fees will also help keep patient costs low. Al-
though pharmacists will be assuming significant financial risks and inventory carry-
ing costs related to stocking AZT, the fees which pharmacists will receive, besides
recovering their actual costs for the drug product, will relate primarily to their pro-
vision of the counseling, monitoring and other pharmaceutical services that they
will be providing to the patient. Therefore, it si clear then that patient cost esti-
mates cannot and should not be based upon percentage markups on the wholesale
price of the drug charged by the manufacturer. Although the actual professional fee
received by pharmacists will vary from pharmacist to pharmacist, all pharmacists
obviously are entitled to receive a rea- Me professional fee for the services they
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provide in supplying the drug. However, if compared with a percentage of wholesale
cost, that fee likely will be quite small.

As experience is gained on the distribution of AZT, APhA has offered to further
work with Burroughs-Wellcome to make any adjustments in the distribution system
that would asst re that it works even better to help the AIDS patient.
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AIDS ISSUES
AIDS and Minorities

MONDAY, APRIL 27, 1987.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT,
Houston, TX.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., in Moot
Court Room of the Law School at Texas Southern University,
Houston, Texas, Hon. Henry A. Waxman (chairman) presiding.

Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting will come to order.
We will speak as loudly as we can. We want to welcome you to

this subcommittee meeting hearing of the Health and Environment
Subcommitten of the Energy and Commerce Committee of the
House of Representatives. This subcommittee has held over a dozen
hearings on the epidemic of Acquired Immune Deficiency Syn-
drome or AIDS. Most have been on the stubborn refusal of the
Reagan administration to fired the warnings of its own best health
and medical experts. Some have been on models of clinical care for
AIDS patients. Some have been on the need to develop new thera-
pies for the disease.

Today's hearing will deal with all of these issues at once. But
today's hearing is also to bring to public attention a side of the epi-
demic that has been largely unaddressed: The disproportionate
dangers that AIDS poses for minorities in America.

I have argued on many occasions that had AIDS first appeared
among members of the Chamber of Commerce, the Federal re-
sponse to the disease would have been much more urgent and
much more comprehensive. Since the disease was first recognized
among gay men, however, the Reagan admini.*!ation dealt with it
as business as usual.

This neglect of gay men who were ill is now matched by the ad-
ministration's unwillingness to recognize the particular problems
of AIDS among minority groups, both gay and straight. While
Black Americans represent about 12 percent of the populefion of
the Nation, they represent 25 percent of the confirmed cases of
AIDS. While Hispanic Americans represent 7 percent of the popu-
lation they make up 14 percents of the cases of AIDS.

These numbers are complex. They involve drug abuse and sexual
activity. They are tied to a variety of problems in minority access
to health care, education and employment.

But clearly above and beyond these complexities, these statistics
point out that there is a special need for the public health agencies
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of Federal, State, and local governments to provide AIDS education
and clinical care services that reach Black and Hispanic Ameri-
cans. Educational programs for white gay men may never reach
Hispanic gay men. Counseling programs for white pregnant women
may be inaccessible to Black pregnant women.

Th e Reagan Revolution in government services has hit minority
groups particularly hard. The AIDS epidemic will make these years
of neglect even more devastating and will be fatal for many Black
and Hispanic people.

I hope that with today's hearings, we will remove some of the
blinders that surround observers of AIDS and finally conclude that
AIDS is a crisis for all Americans Hispanic, Black and white, het-
erosexual and homosexual, young and old. Once that occurs, we
will be able to address the disease as a disease and not as a curse.
We will be able to care for all sick people regardless of their race
or their income. And I hope we will be able to bring together a
Nation that is becoming frightened and torn over the epidemic.

I want to thank Congressman Mickey Leland, who has invited us
to come to this meeting, today, and to hold this hearing. Congress-
man Leland is a very active member of the Subcommittee on
Health, has been involved in our hearings and activities in the
AIDS area, as well as in many other health issues. And, through
his leadership, we are trying to deal with these very pressing prob-
lems at a time when we are having a lot of trouble from the failure
of the cooperation of many of the administration to recognize the
realities.

We hope this hearing will aid both of us in fighting for more
Federal efforts to combat the AIDS epidemic and to make sure that
those Federal efforts are targeted and clear and coherent from a
public health point of view.

And I want to recognize at this time, Congressman Leiand.
Mr. LELAND. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Let me thank

you for your very quick and ready response to the invitation to
come and hold this hearing here in my city, in my district, at my
alma mater.

A few years ago, the Gay Political Caucus iilvited me to a "town
hall" meeting and introduced me to the very severe and critical
problem that afflicts Houston. This problem, of course, of AIDS

I was involved through the committee's work and activities with
the issue of AIDS, but had never realized to what extent or the
magnitude of the problem that existed in my own city. I guess, to
some extent, I was as guilty as some of our so-called city leadership
with my ignorance about the prominence of this very serious, this
very serious affliction of our city and our country.

I am most pleased, however, that indeed there are those of you,
Mr. Chairman, in the Congress, who would trice the kind of fervent
leadership to not only address the problem of how it is that we
cure AIDS, but also how it is that we prevent AIDS.

It is becoming more and more apparent, now, that the homosex-
ual community is not the only community that has been afflicted
with this disease. The gay community, the gay and lesbian commu-
nities are communities that indeed we have to guard in terms of
their human rights and their human ailments, if you will, and we
cannot push them aside. But, at the same time, ana I do not want
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to demee.n the interest of doing just that, but at the same time, I
would like to expand this sphere of discussion in order that we can
address the very critical problem of AIDS that is growing amongst
heterosexuals and, particularly, amongst minorities, too. I think
maybe with working in coalition together with those all who are
afflicted, we can finally realize some true solutions to the problem.

Since AIDS was first targeted as a specific disease in 1981, it has
received a tremendous amount of public attention. Unfortunately,
the general public continues to think of AIDS as a disease of homo-
sexual white mak3. As a result, one aspect of the epidemic has
been largely overlooked. AIDS eases occur nearly three times more
frequently among Black and Hispanic men than among white men,
as was alluded to by our chairman. And the incidence among Black
and Hispanic women and children compared to whites is even
higher. Moreover, recent studies indicate that AIDS will continue
to spread at much higher rates among Blacks and Hispanics than
among whites. If we are serious about developing a game plan with
which to win this war against AIDS, these sobering statistics must
be taken into consideration.

In order for our actions to be effective, we must aggressively
pursue answers to such difficult questions as: Why does AIDS occur
more frequently amongst minorities than whites. And why is this
disease increasing in the hEterosexual community?

We already have many hints as to answers to some of these ques-
tions. For instance, in the white community, AIDS has spread pri-
marily through male homosexual contact and women having con-
tact with bisexual men. Among Blacks and Hispanics, however,
AIDS is spread primarily as the result of intravenous drug abuse
and heterosexual contact. This pattern is partly due to the dispro-
portionately large number of Black and Hispanic IV drug users in
areas most affected by the AIDS epidemic.

As a matter of fact, 62 percent of minorities acquiring AIDS
through heterosexual contact have reported sexual contact with an
IV drug user. Since most of the women with AIDS are Black and
Hispanic, it is not surprising that most children with AIDS are also
Black and Hispanic, estimated to be about 80 percent of the victims
afflicted with AIDS.

AIDS affects our entire society. Therefore, we must all work to-
gether to address this problem. Black and Hispanic organizations
have a unique opportunity and obligation to become educated
about AIDS and how to stop its further spread in our communities.

Of course, the development of an effective vaccine and treatment
must remain a high priority. But until a vaccine and treatment are
discovered, prevention programs are our only remedy.

Mr. Chairman, today's hearing is an integral and critical aspect
of any prevention remedy: Education. In conclusion, Mr. Chairman,
I am pleased that these panel members will help educate all of us
about the impact of AIDS beyond the homosexual community, in
general. And I would like to again reiterate that that does not
demean the importance for us to pursue how it is that we can pre
tect our homosexual community against this very dire disease.

Mr. Chairman, let me at this time, if I may, thank the President
of the Texas Southern University for not only his participation,
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which is to ensue, and I see that he is here, for allowing us to hold
this hearing here.

We would like to thank Gene Harrington, who we know facilitat-
ed the opportunity for us to participate in this setting at the Moot
Court of the Thurgood Marshall Law School. Let me also thank the
Chicano law students as well as the Black Law students who facili-
tated the welcoming banners that we see and the refreshments
that we were able to get before the hearing and for all of those who
have participated here in the City of Houston to help put this in-
credible hearing and this landmark hearing, I might add. Mr.
Chairman, on here in the City of Houston, at Texas Southern Uni-
versity.

[The opening statements of Hon. Mickey Leland and Hon. Jack
Fields follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. MICKEY LELAND

Mr. Chairman, I want to take this opportunity to thank you for holding this hear-
ing here in our City of Houston and for your focus on the problem of AIDS both in
and beyond the homosexual community.

Since AIDS was first targeted as a specific disease in 1981, it has received a tre-
mendous amount of public attention. Unfortunately, far too many members of the
general public continue to think of AIDS as a disease of homosexual males. And
many people continue to thing of AIDS as a disease which predominately affects the
white community. As a result, one as A of the epidemic has been largely over-
looked: AIDS ceies occur nearly three times more frequently among Black and His-
panic men than among white men. And the incidence among Black and Hispanic
women and children compared to whites is even higher. Moreover, recent studies
indicate that AIDS will continue to spread at muzli higher rates among Blacks and
Hispanics than among whites. And since most of the women with AIDS are Black
and Hispanic, it is not surprising that most children with AIDS are also Black and
Hispanic. If we are serious about developing a game-plan to win the war against
AIDS, these sobering statistics must be taken into consideration.

In order for our actions to be effective, we muss aggressively pursue answers to
such difficult questions as: Why does AIDS occur more frequently among minorities
than whites? And why is this disease increasing in the heterosexual community?

We already have many hints as to the answers to some of these questions. For
instance, in the white community, AIDS has spread primarily through male homo-
sexual contact and women having contact with bisexual men. Among Blacks and
Hispanics, however, AIDS is spread primarily as the result of intravenous drug
abuse and heterosexual contact. This pattern is partly due t3 the disproportionately
large number of Black and Hispanic I.V drug abusers in areas most affected by the
AIDS epidemic. As a matter of fact, 62 percent of minorities acquiring AIDS
through heterosexual contact have reported sexual contact with an I V. drug abuser.

AIDS affects our entire society; therefore, we must all work together to address
this problem. Black and Hispanic organizations have a unique opportunity and obli-
gation to become educated about AIDS and how to stop its further spread in our
communities.

Of course, the development of an effective vaccine and treatment must remain a
high priority; but until a vaccine and treatment are discovered, prevention pro-
grams are our only remedy. In my view, an effective prevention program must in-
clude certain features that have not :,'et received much public or media attention.
These include: (1) targeted outreach risk reduction programs for minority popula-
tions; (2) programs that are sensitive to cultural and language needs; (3) improved
access to, and utilization of, health services to minority populations; (4) coordinated
Federal, State, and loc. 1 prevention activities; and (5) technical assistance for com-
munity groups.

Mr. Chairman, today's hearing is an integral and critical aspect of any prevention
remedyeducation.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I am pleased that these panel members will help
educate all of us about the impaa of AIDS beyond the homosexual community, in
general, and in minority communities in particular. I look forward to hearing their
testimony on hips liest to address this devastating epidemic
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, I want to commend you and my col-
league from Houston, Congressman Mickey Leland, for conducting this hearing
today here in Houston. Acquired Immune Deficien4 Syndrome, or AIDS, as it is
commonly known, is the most pressing public health problem with which this coun-
try is faced today. It certainly merits considerable attention by our society.

This deadly disease also merits considerable attention in Houston and Harris
County. Latest figures show that Harris County has logged 1,027 cases of AIDS. This
is the fourth highest tally in the country.

The State of texas also has the fourth highest State total. There have been 2,138
confirmed cases of AIDS in Texas; almost half of that total has been in the Houston
area. In Texas, there have been 1,325 deaths.

If there are no significant breakthroughs in the treatment and prevention of
AIDS, by 1991, 240,000 people in Texas will have been exposed co AIDS; 16,200 of
those will be confirmed cases; and of those 16,200, about 11,000 will have died from
AIDS.

Texas Commissioner of Health Robert Bernstein has predicted 60,000 cases of
AIDS in Texas by 1997. Certainly it was an understatement when U.S. Surgeon
General C. Everett Kopp told a Joint Session of the Texas Legislature that "You've
got a big problem in Texas." This is one situation that I sincerely wish weren't
"Texas-sized."

Nationally, there have been 33,997 confirmed cases of AIDS; of those cases, 19,658
people have died. Almost a year ago the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services projected that there would be about 196,000 confirmed cases of AIDS by the
beginning of 1991, with another 74,000 diagnosed during 1991. Health and Human
Services also predicted that 125,000 people will have died from AIDS by the begin-
ning of 1991, with 54,000 more deaths during the year.

These are monumental figures. Perhaps the immensity of the problem can best be
appreciated by comparing it with the tragedy that occurred when poliowas epidem-
ic 40 years ago.

Between 1943 and 1956, 400,000 people were infected with polio. Since AIDS was
introduced into the United States, probably in 1976, experts estimate that at least
1.5 million people have been infected with, or are carriers of, the virus.

Of the 400,000 people who were infected with polio, 22,000 died during the period
1943-1956. As I mentioned earlier, nearly 20,000 have already died from AIDS. With
AIDS, I am afraid, the worst is yet to come.

I am sure everyone has heard all of these staggering numbers before. But I, and
others, recount them to impress upon all of us that this communicable disease is the
severest public health problem any of us have faced, or are likely to face, in our
lifetime. While more people may die from cancer, heart disease and stroke this year
and next, they are not contagious diseases. The specter of contagion is what sets
AIDS in a class by itself.

With that caveat firmly in mind, we must all concert our efforts to rid our society
of this deadly disease. When I say we, I mean the local, State and Federal levels of
government, as well as the private sector. We all have a responsibility to contribute
to the provision of adequate resources to effectively deal with AIDS.

We also must be courageous enough to take the appropriate public health meas-
ures which will curtail needless suffering and death. This may require some tough
decision-making; but, it will be necessary.

Mr. Chairman and Congressman Leland, I hope we can work together on meas-
ures which adequately and appropriately address the public health disaster of Ac-
quired Immune Deficiency Syndrome.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WAXMAN. I would like to call forward Dr. Robert Terry,
president of Texas Southern University to make a presentation to
the subcommittee. As Dr. Terry approaches, I want to let him
know how much we do appreciate the fact that we are holding this
meeting here today and we appreciate your hospitality in allowing
us to meet in the Moot Court.

It is a long time since I was in a Moot Courtroom, not since I was
at UCLA Law School, and I was not up on this side of the - ).)m
when I was last in a Moot Court setting. But this feels much better
up here than down there.
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And Dr. Terry, now you have your turn to be down there.
Mr. LELAND. Mr. Chairman, before the president speaks, I see

that the Dean of the Law School is also here, Dean Douglas; and
we want to thank him, too, for this program.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT J. TERRY, PRESIDENT, TEXAS
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY

Mr. TERRY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and good morning.
I am Robert J. Terry, president of Texas Southern University. I

am a biomedical scientist. I am honored to welcome the US House
of Representatives Subcommittee on Health and the Environment
to our campus. I believe it is especially fitting that these hearings
focusing on AIDS and its impact upon minorities are being held in
the Thurgood Marshall School of Law.

While AIDS is a major medical and social problem, effecting
American society in general, it is especially devastating to minority
communities, women and children. The following statistics are pro-
vided by the Centers for Disease Control in the United States. In
the United States, Black people make up a disproportionate
number of persons with AIDS. Thirty-eight percent of all of those
with AIDS in the United States are minorities. And 87 percent of
women with AIDS are women of color. Ninety-one percent of all
children with AIDS are non-white. And 60 percent of those with
AIDS in Newark, New Jersey are heterosexual Black people. In
Washington, DC, 50 percent of those who have AIDS are non-white
heterosexuals. And in New York City, nearly one-half of the AIDS
cases are heterosexual and 80 percent of these are Black or Hispan-
ic.

Most heterost -ually infected persons with AIDS in the United
States have been Black or Hispanic women. Heterosexual women
who are not drug abusers have the highest rate of increase than
any group. As a special purpose institution of higher education,
Texas Southern University is an appropriate site for these hear-
ings. The Thurgood Marshall School of Law is one of the leading
non-medical institutions in the country that is devoting its atten-
tion to AIDS and its impact upon people of color.

The Houston Mayor's Task Force on AIDS, the AIDS Foundation
in Houston, the Texas Human Rights Foundation and the Associa-
tion of American Law School's Section Dealing with AIDS have all
had the bc.nefit of our law faculty input. Our Law Library has one
of the most complete collection of AIDS' discrimination materials
and we have the most complete AIDS' clipping service in the city.

In addition, our law faculty was instrumental in conjunction
with the Clark Reed Foundation in setting up the AIDS Legal Hot-
line which provides legal assistance to persons being illegally dis-
criminated because of AIDS and AIDS-related complex, or HIV se-
rially positive status.

In September, the Law School will host a national conference on
AIDS, Minorities and the Law, which will convene legal experts
from throughout the country to discuss the major legal issues AIDS
presents.

I believe the reception you have received this morning from the
administration, from the faculty and student body is testimony to
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the cedication of our institution in insu ring that the special prob-
lems that AIDS poses to people of collr are adequately addressed.

I again welcome you and wish the hearings a success. Thank you
very much.

Mr. WAxmAN. Than} 7ou very much, Dr. Terry.
I want to thank you very much, again , for having us here. Our

subcommittee has been the most active in dealing with the AIDS
crisis in the Congress. We have held a number of hearirgs. And
this is the second hearing outside of Washington. The first was in
Los Angeles in 1981 when we did not even know the word, "AIDS."
We had first received reports of a disease called Kaposi's Sarcoma,
which is a rare form of cancer. And, suddenly, it was occurring
among gay men in the United States in very small numbers.

Well, now, after all of these years, we have discovered AIDS. We
have seen over 30,000 Americans come down with AIDS. We have
seen the statistics of the number of people that will get this disease
in the coming years, which is v( ry, very frightening, indeed. And,
as we look at the statistics for Houston, they are among the most
frightening.

As of April 13, Texas had the fourth highest number of cases in
the country, behind New York, California and Florida. Total cases
were 2,142. Also, as of April 13, Houston had the fourth highest
number of cases among cities in the United States. And we realize
that the problems here are going to be the kind of problems that
other cities, unfortunately, will go thriv..gh in the years ahead. So,
we want to learn what we can from the experience here in Texas
with all those people who have AIDS and with special emphasis on
special groups, minority groups, particularly, that are afflicted and
how, how they ought to be handled in ways that will be more sensi-
tive to tae differences in the population.

I thank you very much for greeting us and for hosting us.
To give us a background about the AIDS disease, I would like to

call forward to testify as a panel: Dr. J. Michael Lane, Director,
Center for Prevention Services, Centers for Disease Control, Atlan-
ta, GA; Dr. Mathilde Krim, Associate Research Scientist, St.
Luke's-Roosevelt Hospital Center and Columbia University, and
Foundir.g Chair of the American Foundation for AIDS Research;
and Dr. James Haughton, Director, City of Houston Department of
Health and Human Services. If the three of you would please r.sme
forward in these seats where there are microphones.

We are pleased to welcome the three of you to this hearing,
today. We have prepared statements that you presented to us and
those prepared statemE Its will be made part of the record, in full:
but what we would like to ask you and all other witnesses today is
to try to summarize your testimony in no more than 5 minutes. We
will have to try to ask everyone's cooperation. As difficult as it is
sometimes to say all that you want to say in 5 minutes, but for us
to have the full opportunity for questions and answers and to hear
all of the witnesses and to keep with all the schedules that we are
trying to juggle today.

So, we are going to use a timer which will ring at the end of 5
minutes to let you know that the time has expired and we would
like to ask at that point that the witnesses give us a summary sen-
tence and conclude.
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Why do we not start with Dr. Lane, if we might.

STATEMENTS OF J. MICHAEL LANE, DIRECTOR, CENTER FOR
PREVENTION SERVICES, CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL,
PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES; MATHILDE KRIM, ASSOCIATE RESEARCH
SCIENTIST, ST. LUKE'S-ROOSEVELT HOSPITAL CENTER AND
COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY, AND FOUNDING CHAIRWOMAN, AMER-
ICAN FOUNDATION FOR AIDS RESEARCH; AND JAMES G.
HAUGHTON, DIRECTOR, CITY OF HOUSTON DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Mr. LANE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Dr. J. Michael Lane,
Director of the Center for Prevention Services at CDC. And I am
pleased to represent CDC at this hearing.

AIDS., as you know, is the Nation's No. 1 public health problem,
with nearly 35,000 cases and nearly 20,000 deaths having been re-
ported since 1981. The largest number of cases have been concen-
trated in certain areas such as New York, San Francisco, Los An-
geles, here in Houston, and Miami. But AIDS has been represented
in every State in the Union. In 1985, AIDS became No. 11 leading
cause of potential years of life lost before the age of 65 and provi-
sional data indicate that in 1986, it moved up to the eighth spot.

Blacks and Hispanics are being disproportionately affected by
this epidemic. Of the more than 34,000 cases of AIDS reported to
CDC as of April 20, 24 percent were Black and 14 percent Hispan-
ics, whereas these groups represent only 12 and 6 percent, 1 :spec-
tively, of the U.S. population.

Even more racial differences are seen for certain groups of AIDS
patients. Fez. examples, Blacks and Hispanics account for 72 per-
cent of all heterosexual adults with AIDS and 79 percent of all
children with AIDS. Approximately two-thirds of Black and His-
panic AIDS patients are residents of New York State, New Jersey
and Florida.

The great majority of adults with AIDS can be placed in one or
more transmission categories: homosexual and bisexual men, intra-
venous drug abusers, hemophilia patients, transfusion recipients
and the heterosexual partners of persons in these groups. Blacks
and are over-represented in all of these categories except for hemo-
philiacs. Particularly effected are Black and Hispanics IV drug
abusers, their sexual partners and children.

There are no studies that suggests that Blacks or Hispanics are
physiologically more susceptible than whites to infection with the
AIDS virus or to the development of AIDS once infected. As with
other public health problems, there are undoubtedly many socio-
economic and other factors that influence the incidence of AIDS.
For example, increased rates of AIDS in Blacks and Hispanics
probably reflect behaviors that place them at increased risk for
AIDS virus infection. Some of the differences in the national rates
of AIDS between minorities and whites may also be a reflection of
the racial and ethnic distribution of high AIDS incidence areas.

I would like now to touch on some of the things that we are
doing or will be doing at CDC to address this important problem.
Our major efforts to pre vent and control AIDS in minority popula-

65
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tions are found in the health education/risk reduction aspects of
the prevent projects that we have been funding in all States, terri-
tories and selected metropolitan areas. In these 55 programs al-
ready underway, 15 have activities aimed at their Hispanic popula-
tions and 21 have targeted the infor. ation and education services
to the Black communities.

We recently published new guidelines governing the criteria for
a continuation of these projects. We established a requirement that

applicants State and local health departments must recognize in
their applications the problem of AIDS minorities and describe
education and outreach plans designed to reach persons at risk in
minority communities. Of the 58 cooperative agreements recently
received for AIDS prevention support, the overwhelming majority
indicated plans to provide a minority health component in their
AIDS health education/tisk reduction efforta.

The Public Health Services, through its AIDS Executive Task
Force, coordinates the AIDS prevention and control efforts of the
operating agencies, including CDC. The Director of the Office of
Minority Health is a member of that task force. I mig' add that
there is also a person at CDC whose sole responsibility is _elated to
the problem of AIDS and minorities.

The CDC has funded and will continue to support innovative
AIDS risk reduction projects with Narcotic and Drug Research, In-
corporated of New York City and Beth Israel Medical Center in the
same locality. These projects are targeted to minorities and will
test prevention techniques among drug abusers.

The CDC also supports a three-part AIDS Community-based
Demonstration Project in the New York City area which is focus-
ing on AIDS prevention among street addicts, condom usage among
women in areas with high prevalence of both AIDS and drug
abuse, and prevention of infection among couples when one partner
is on methadone maintenance. This project focuses on changing be-
haviors that are found to a greater degree in minority populations.
Projects in ('hicago and in Long Beach, California, also have com-
ponents w'...,h focus on minorities.

The CDC will soon announce the availability of funds for one to
three pilot demonstration projects to prevent the perinatal trans-
mission of AIDS virus infection. Nearly 90 percent of children who
have acquired AIDS through perinatal transmission are Black or
Hispanic. Therefore, these projects will focus on individuals from
minority communities and particularly on people who use IV drugs
or who are the spouses or sexual partners of drug abusers.

Additionally, backstopping all of these efforts, is the AIDS Infor-
mation/Education Plan to prevent and control AIDS in the United
States. Mr. Chairman, I know you know of this plan and I am
simpl; going to allude to it for the record.

We realize that the problem of AIDS in minority communities
will require some additional targeted efforts. This summer, on
behalf of the Public Health Service, CDC will hold a national con-
ference to solicit the advice and assistance of experts from minority
organizations across the Nation to address the problem of AIDS in
minority populations. This conference is tentatively scheduled for
August 1987 to take maximum advantage of the information that
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can be shared and we hope this conference will help us in develop-
ing policy for the future. Thank you, sir.

[Testimony resumes on p. 77.]
[The statement of Mr. Lane and attachment follow:]
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J. MICHAEL LANE, M.D., M.P.H.

DIRECTOR

CENTER FOR PREVENTION SERVICES

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE

..S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AA' HUMAN SERVICES

Mr. ChairNen, I am J. Michael Lane, Director of the Center for Prevention

Services, Centers for Di Control (CDC). I am pleased to represent CDC in

addressing the issue of AIDS in minorities.

AIDS is the Nation's number one public health problem with 34,513 cases and

19,938 death. having been reported since 1981. To date, the largest number of

cases have been concentrated in certain aaaaa such ae New York City, San

Francisco, Loa Angeles, Houston, and Miami. But AIDS is aleo a national

problem, with cases having been reported in every State of the Union. In

1985, AIDS became the eleverh leading cause of potential years of life lost

before the age of 65, an:: provisional data indicate that in 1986 it moved up

to the eighth spot.

Although there does not appear, based on data currently available, to be a

physiological beris for a higher incidence of AIDS in minorities, there is no

doubt that blacks and Hispanics are being disproportionately affected by this

epidemic. Of the 34,513 AIDS patients reported t'- the CDC as of April 20,

1987, 24% were black and 14% were Hispanic, whereas these groups represent

only 12% and 62, respectively, of the U.S. population. An additional 12 of

cases occurred in other minority groups and in individuals of unknown race.

The overall cumulative incidences for AIDS in black and Hispanic adults - that

is, the number of cases per million population in these racial/ethnic groups -

are three times that for white non-Hispanic persons.

Even more marked racial differences are seen for certain groups of tiDS

patients. For example, blacks and Hispanics account for 72% of all

r 6



64

-2-

heterosexual adults with AIDS, and 792 of all children with AIDS.

Approximately 2/3 of black and Hispanic AIDS patients are residents of New

York State, New Jersey, and Flor'da as compared with only 1/3 of white

patients.

As you know, the great majority of adults with AIDS can be placed in one or

more transmission categories: homosexual and bisexual men, intravenous (IV)

drug abusers, hemop"lia patients, transfusion r-cipients, and the

heterosexual partners of persons in these groups. Blacks and Uispanics are

overrepreeentel in all of these c - gorier, except for the category of

hemophilia patients. Particularly affected are black and Hispanic IV drug

abusers, their sexual partners, and their children. It is also of note that

in male AIDS patients who have had sexual contact with other men, black and

Hispanic men are more likely to be bisexual than white men, most of whom are

ex:lusively homosexual. These ..asexual men can infect their female sexual

partners with the AIDS vi' ts and, in turn, these woaen can infect their

newborti children.

The data I have presented thus far deal only with reported AIDS cases.

However, similar results are seen when we examine data on the prevalence Jf

infection with the AIDS virus in certain population groups. Again, blacks and

Hispanics are disproportionately affected. For example, the U.S. Department

of Defense has tested over 700,000 milita,y recruit applicants for evidence of

AIDS virus infection. Rates of infection in black and Hispanic applicants

have been S and 3 times the rate in white applicants, respectively. Even more

striking are racial differences in infection rates seen for volunteer Mood
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donors. In a study CDC has conducted with American Red Cross Chapters in Los

Angeles, Atlanta, and Maryland, infection rates in black and Hispanic donors

were 15 and 5 times the rate in white donors, respectively. Alt..ough neither

military recruit applicants nor volunteer blood donors represent the general

population, these data support our belief that AIDS virus infection is more

common in blacks and Hispanics than whites.

As I mentioned earlier, there are no studies that suggest blacks or Hispanics

are physiologically wore susceptible than whites to infection with the AIDS

virus or to the development of AIDS once infected. As with other public

health problems, there are undoubtedly many socioeconomic and other factors

that influence the incidence of AIDS. For example, increased rates of AIDS in

blacks and Hispanics probably reflect behaviors that place them 4t increased

risk for AIDS virus infection. Blacks and Hispanics may have higher rates of

11/ drug abuse than other persons. In a survey of heroin abuse treatment

facilities conducted by the National Institute of Drug Abuse (NIDA) in 1981,

63% of clients were black or Hispanic. In proportion to their numbers in the

population, blacks and Hispanics were 9 and 8 times more likely, respectively,

to be clients than whites. Some of the difference in the national rates of

AIDS between minorities and whites may also be a reflection of the racial and

ethnic distribution in high AIDS incidence areas.

Even within AIDS risk groups, blacks and Hispanics may be at increased risk.

In three separate studies of AIDS virus infection in IV drug abusers,

infection rates were approximately three times higher in blacks and Hispanics

than in whites. Although the reasons for the difference are unclear, one

possible explanation could be that persons tend to share needles with members

of their own racial/ethnic ,roles. Socioeconomic factors also contribute to
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needle- sharing These factors would lead to the non-uniform spread of the

AIDS virus a.iong :V drug abusers.

I would like now to share with you some of the things we are doing or will ba

doing at CDC to address this important problem. Our major efforts to prevent

and control AIDS in minority populations are found in the heulth education/

risk reduction aspects of the prevention projects that we have been funding in

55 States, territories, and selected metropolitan areas. In these programs

already underway, 15 have activities aimed at their Hispanic populations and

21 have targeted information and education services to black zommunities.

Host of these activities to date have focused on fully identifying the AIDS

problem in each locality, including an assessment of the extent of

needle-sharing locally. Data suggest that needle-sharing practices vary

remarkably around the country, and may be a reasonable predictor of the

potential for infection among IV drug users. Survey results will guide each

community's AIDS education strategy.

We recently published new guidelines governing the criteria for continuation

of these projects. We established a requirement that applicants--State and

local health departments --must recognize in their applications the problem of

AIDE in minorities and describe education and outreach plans designed to reach

persons a risk in minority communities. Of the 58 cooperative agreements

recently receiied for AIDS prevention support, the overwhelming majority

indicated plans to provide a minority health component jr their AIDS health



67

-S-

education /risk reduction activities. Those wilt, did not will be receiving

assistance from CDC in developing a minority component. Some specific

examples of the approaches being used might be of interest. Baltimore and

Nev Jersey are using ex-addicts to reach minority street addicts.

Additionally they will hire a full-time health educator to focus on minorities

.and will enter into a contract with the Haitian Council to provide health

education/risk reduction messages to this important minority group. Ohio

included black community leaders in planning and delivery of health

education/risk reduction messages. Michigan included a complete ser of

measurable objectives targeted to their minority populations. Georgia has

entered into a contract with the Morehouse School of Medicine to provide

educational seminars for the minority community. Philadelphia will contract

with BEBAINI (Blacks Educating Blacks About Sexual Health Issues) ro target

testing to the black community and to provide training for black community

educators. Los Angeles County has funded two Hispanic organizations to

provide family-oriented AIDE education and raise AIDS awareness among Hispanic

youth.

AIDS Prevention Programs must work closely with the organized segments of the

minority communities and develop plans which have the minorities themselves

delivering most of the information and messages regarding AIDS risk reduction

through appropriate messages concsrniag abstinence and safer sex, through swag

abuse counseling, and through serologic testing for the presence of HIV

infection. CDC is communicating this message to the States. This aspect of

the program will more fully mature during FY 1987 as the dimensions of the

problem become known, and relationships with minority community organizations

become stronger.



68

-6-

The Public Health Service, through its AIDS Executive Task Force, coordinates

the prevention and control efforts of the operating agencies. The Director of

the Office of Minority Heal is a member of that Task Force. Effective AIDS

education is critical, but it must complement efforts to stop drug abuse

altogether. To ensure that close communications are maintained between the

CDC and NIDA to coordinate their AIDS control efforts, our agencies have

entered into a formal agreement. NIDA has taken major responsibility for

activities to control the spread of HIV by focusing on increasing recruitment

of IV drug abusers into treatment and educating IV drug abusers regarding AIDS

risk reduction. The CDC focus is on ensuring that its grantees provide an

appropriate array of educational and public health outreach services for

minorities. Both agencies are pursuing practical h to get risk

reduction messages across to individuals in the minority communities.

CDC has identified an individual within its newly established Office of the

Deputy Director for AIDS to serve as liaison with NIDA, and NIDA has a

comparable position. I might add that there is also a person at CDC whose

sole resoonsibility is related to the problem of AIDS in minorities.

Additionally, CUC staff rer 'risible for training personnel in the States about

HIV antibody test counseling have r tained communications with the NIDA

Community Research Branch which is coordinating similar training for

counselors who work in drug abuie treatment facilities.

CDC has funded and will continue to support Innovative AIDS Risk Reduction

projects with Narcotic and Drug Research, Inc., of New York City and Beth

Israel Medical Center in the same locality. These projects are targeted to

minorities and will test prevention techniques among drug abusers.
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CDC also supports a three-part AIDS Community-based Demonstration Project in

the New York City area which is focusing on AIDS prevention among street

addicts, condom usage among women in areas with high prevalence of both AIDS

and drug abuse, and prevention of infection among couples when one partner is

on methadone maintenance. This project focuses on changing behaviors that are

found to a greater degree in minority populations. Projects in Chicago and

Long Beach also have components which focus on minorities.

CDC will soon announce the availability of funds for 1 to 3 pilot

demonstration projects to prevent the perinatal transmission of AIDS virus

infection. As I pointed out earlier, nearly SO% of children who have required

AIDS through perinatal transmission are black or Hispanic. Therefore, these

projects will feKus on individuals from minority communities, and particularly

on people who use IV drugs or who are the spouses or sexual partners of such

persons. These pilot projectc will probahly occur in areas with a high

morbidity of AIDS in children. The intention is to develop data to better

understand the problem and a methodology for preventing perinatal AIDS which

can be used to refine and improve programs across the country.

This year CDC is initiating an AIDS school health program. The program is a

mix of technical and financial assistance to existing education agencies and

organizations. designed to help school and college-aged youth .eeive

information about A ")S and how to prevent infection with the virus. CDC will

be funding cooperative agreements with about 10 State education agencies and

12 local education agencies in States and cities that have reported high

number§ of cases of AIDS. These projects also require special attention in

meeting minority health education needs.

A
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We will also provide funds to three local education agencies and one State

agency to establish training and demonstration centers for assisting other

State and local education agencies in the establishment of effective and

appropriate AIDS educational strategies. Among other things, these centers

will address how to implement effective AIDS education with consideration of

cultural differences.

To reinforce the State and local efforts, two cooperative agreements will be

established with national minority organizations to help increase the

accessibility and effectiveness of AIDS education. We hope that these

organizations will be able to influence the minority community and especially

those organizations that serve the interest and educational needs of Black and

disparate youth.

Additionally, backstopping all of these efforts is the AIDS

Information/Education Plan to Prevent and Control AIDS in the U.S. A copy of

this Plan will be provided for the record. Included in the Plan is the

national public information campaign that is being developed, which will have

minority aspects, and the national Clearinghouse system which is under

development. This latter activity is an effort to establish a network of

existing AIDS Clearinghouses, and to provide a mechanism for effectively

channeling information to the public through State and local organizations.

One aspect of the project will be the identification of culturally sensitive

materials that can be used for reaching minority populations
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However, we realize that the problem of AIDS in minority populations will

require some special targeted efforts. This summer on behalf of the Public

Health Service, CDC will host a national conference to solicit the advice and

assistance of experts from minority organizations across the Nation to address

the problem of AIDS in minority populations. This conference is tentatively

scheduled for August 1987 to take maximum advantage of the information which

will be shared at the Third International Conference on AIDS during June in

Washington, D.C. The conference on AIDS among minority populations is being

designed to raise the awareness of Federal, State and local health education

and drug abuse agencies that serve the needs and interests of minority

populations about (1) the extent of AIDS and HIV '.nfection, and (2) the

prevalence of and factors influencing behaviors that increase the risk of AYDS

and HIV infection among minority populations. It will include discussions of

actions that should be taken by Federal, State and local health education and

drug abuse agencies, as well as organizations that serve minority populations

to help reduce the spread of HIV infection among those populations. Through

nisi meeting, we hope that leaders in the minority community will become more

f programs and resources that are currently available, that groundwork

can be laid for more effective involvement of minority organizations in State

and local AIDS prevention efforts, and lastly that we will gain new insights

into how to assist minority individuals who are at risk of becoming infected.

I will Ix happy to answer any questions you may have.
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C. A3E6 CASE5 /If RAU

RAW OP
RESICM2

CF IMSUZICE M

Year Prdirai
OR 20, 1966

DATE Cr PE2'7C1' TO

Year Ending
RR 20, 1987

CDC

4PRII. 20. 1987 - Pia 2

CUPLIATNE TOrAL SUEZ AK 1981
Adult/Adaleseet Children 1btal

rater Permit amber Peruse Weber Peroant Maher Percent Maher Percent

No Ibrk 2945 ( 29.3) 3776 ( 25.6) 10164 ( 29.9) 176 ( 36.8) 10342 ( 30.M
California 2342 ( T.3) nos ( 22.4) 7833 ( 23.0) 28 ( 5.8) 7861 ( 22.8)
Florida 664 ( 6.6) 1063 ( 7.2) 2277 ( 6.7) 60 ( 12.4) 2337 ( 6.11)

MIN 606 ( 6.0) 1034 ( 7.0) 2133 ( 6.3) 12 2.5) 2142 ( 6.2)
...sr Jezwry 598 ( 5.9) 877 ( 5.9) 1997 ( 5.9) 66 ( 13.6) 200 ( 6.0)
Mimi' 257 ( 2.6) 410 ( 2.8) 856 ( 2.5) 10 ( 2.1) 866 ( 2.5)
Pernsylvaii a 226 ( 2.2) 323 ( 2.2) 744 ( 2.2) 9 ( 1.9) 753 ( 2.2)
Geniis 213 ( 2.1) 365 ( 2.5) 705 ( 2.1) 11 ( 2.3) 716 ( 2.1)
Messechusetts 224 ( 2.2) 314 ( 2.3) 696 ( 2.0) 12 ( 2.5) 7011 ( 2.1)
District of COlusbia 216 ( 2.1) 273 ( 1.8) 626 ( 1.8) 3 ( 1.7) 634 ( 1.8)
Ilarylan1 156 ( 1.6) 248 ( 1.7) 518 ( 1.5) 8 ( 1.7) 526 ( 1.5)
Washington 11, ( 1.2) 218 ( 1.4) 425 ( 1.2) 1 ( 0.2) 426 ( 1.2)
Imagism 120 ( 1.2) 199 ( 1.3) 411 ( 1.2) 6 ( 1.2) 417 ( 1.2)
Onsisctiait 110 l 1.1) 186 ( 1.3) 388 ( 1.1) 14 ( 2.9) 402 ( 1.7)
Virginia 146 ( 1.5) 169 ( 1.1) 392 ( 1.2) 6 1 1.2) 338 ( 1.2)
tbloracb 83 ( 0.9) 196 ( 1.3) 358 ( 1.1) 2 ( 0.4) 360 ( 1.0)
Chin 57 ( 0.6) 228 ( 1.5) 349 ( 1.0) 2 ( 0.4) 351 ( 1.0)
Reim Rico 102 ( 1.0) 107 ( 0.7) :AO ( 0.9) 18 ( 3.7) 328 ( 1.0)
Michigan 84 ( 0.11) 142 ( 1.0) 290 ( 0.9) 3 ( 0.6) 293 ( 0.11)
Missouri 59 ( 0.6) 120 ( 0.8) 220 ( 0.6) 1 ( 0.2) 221 ( 0.6)
Nit Ii Onolini 75 ( 0.7) 96 ( 0.6) 208 ( 0.6) 2 ( 01.) 210 1 0.53
minnamota n ( 0.7) 94 ( 0.5) 166 ( 0.5) 286 ( 0.5)
rim= 61 ( 0.6) 79 ( 0.5) 18D ( 0.5) 1 ( 0.2) 181 ( 0.5)
.1,cillis 46 ( 0.5) 74 ( 0.5) 152 ( 0.4) 2 ( 0.4) 1% ( 0.4)

43 ( 0.4) 81 ( 0.5) 1% ( 0.5) 154 ( OA)
touch Catalina 49 ( 0.5) 59 ( OA) 124 ( 0.4) 5 ( 1.0) 13 ( 0.4)
listaii 25 ( 0.2) 69 ( 0.5) 125 ( 0.4) 1 ( 0.2) 1.26 ( 0.4)
Wisconsin 16 ( 0.2) 70 ( 0.5) 111 ( 0.3) 111 ( 0.3)
Alston. 28 ( 0.3) 61 ( 0.4) 103 ( 0.3) 5 ( 1.0) 108 ( 0.3)
(Mato= 33 ( 0.3) 56 ( 0.4) 104 ( 0.31 1 ( 0.2) 105 ( 0.3)
14.71110M1011 32 ( 0.3) 63 ( 0.4) 102 ( 0.3) 1 ( 0.2) 103 ( 0.3)
Nevada 21 ( 0.2) 49 ( 0.3) 84 ( 0.2) 64 ( 0.2)
Kentucky 20 ( 0.2) 38 ( 0.3) 79 ( 0.2) 79 ( 0.2)
rode Wad 13 ( 0.1) 43 ( 0.3) 69 ( 0.2) 69 ( 0.2)
Yaws 16 ( 0.2) 43 ( 0.3) 67 ( 0.2) 1 ( 0.2) 68 ( 0.2)
Utah 23 ( 0.2) 24 ( 0.2) 56 ( 0.2) 3 ( 0.6) 59 ( 0.2)
No Modco 17 ( 0.2) 31 ( 0.2) 55 ( 0.2) 55 ( 0.2)
Mums, 18 ( 0.2) 31 ( 0.2) 53 ( 0.2) 53 ( 0.2)
Dslaeare 14 ( 0.1) 22 ( 0.1) 48 ( 0.1) 48 ( 0.1)
Mississippi 11 ( 0.1) 31 ( 0.2) 47 ( 0.1) 47 ( 0.1)
Moine 16 ( 0.2) 21 ( 0.1) 41 ( 0.1) 1 ( 0.2) 42 ( 0.1)
Iola 17 ( 0.2) 17 ( 0.1) 40 ( 0.1) 1 ( 0.2) 41 ( 0.1)
*breaks 10 ( 0.1) 14 ( 0.1) 27 ( 0.1) 27 ( 0.1)
liN Relphize 8 ( 0.1) 14 ( 0.1) 25 ( 0.1) 2 ( 0.4) 27 ( 0.1)
Alaska 11 ( 0.1) 9 ( 0.1) 25 ( 0.1) 25 ( 0.1)
West Virginia 7 ( 0.1) 9 ( 0.1) 21 ( 0.1) 2 ( 0.4) 23 ( 0.1)
Vemnt 4 ( 0.0) 7 ( 0.0) 13 ( 0.0) 13 ( 0.0)
Maw 4 ( 0.0) 5 ( 0.0) 8 ( 0.0) 1 ( 0.2) 9 ( 0.0)
!Weans 2 ( 0.0) 6 ( 0.0) 8 ( 0.0) a ( 0.0)

,in Islosis 1 ( 0.0) 3 ( 0.0) 7 ( 0.0) 7 ( 0.0)
Winans 2 ( 0.0) 4 ( 0.0) 7 ( 0.0) / ( 0.0)
Ibrth biota 3 ( 0.0) 2 ( 0.0) 5 ( 0.0) 5 ( 0.0)
South Delota 2 ( 0.0) 2 ( 0.0) 4 ( 0.0) 4 ( 0.0)
QM 1 ( 0.0) 1 ( 0.0) 1 ( 0.0)
Trust Temtoty 1 ( 0.0) 1 ( 0.0)
70ML TM T15:71:1 14774 7T. -13.176 %029 Tiffircif -Ti47. 7tli "Ian 7TF7T
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MOIL 20. 1967 - PAGE 4

r. AIX OM If Mr Thcaat (738111tnein unarsozazgagerol

amber Itercert
We COM 1121921710 10 NM A =DE RIX FACTOR
1010snaus1hisousl Ma now (64.-
Datorsonue (11) Pug awe 50195 (14.
lisophilia/Omplation Wonky 174 (0.5)
Hatemenual ftontsts2 1246 (3.7)
Usasfusise, llood/Ctignunts 675 (2.0)
Uoktezwirad3 KM (3.2)
StONEIL Siir -NZ
ADZ CA= IVO= 10 IL= KUM Kit TAMS
ilsomang-Ili lidelliood Traalusion
itamsug-Si lialeniebtosousi fbatatt
ibamenn3-Ili lblenktacessial fbatactilkod Transfusion
Itemeang-Di lidenbcphilis
lbsoasaug-gi litleflisephiliaillood Traisfinion
lbsoasaal-iti 16141V Dry' Item
ibeosesal-Si 161018 Ong buss/Mood Transfusion
insumosel-lii lige/19 Dew ituastikbaossud (Data=
ibaosessl-Di ISO/1Y Dag /Dues/Datessassl Oxitors/Bkod Transfusion
lboastus1-111i Nola/1Y Dag Ibuternmphilia
ikameassi-Ii ISOM Dng allaralkophilialliood Transfusion
IV Drug Ibusonlood Temisfusion
IV Dreg Abuselleasoemas1 Onto=
IV Ong Abusafttauseand 0....t/Dkod Vansfusion
IV Dm' ametlamPhalo
IV Drug AkesillsaphilWilkod Transfusion
lkw0Fhiliai11ood 191111101Sia.
Ibrophiliaillitesomnual Onntatt
lisophiliaMetozosanal Ontatt/Blood Transfusion
iletecoseaal Ontatt/liood IIsnsfusion

403 (1.2)
185 (0.5)

6 (0.0)
4 (0.0)
4 (0.0)

249 (7.2)
86 (0.3)
62 (0.2)

(0.0)
2 (0.0)
3 (0.0)

in (0.5)
367 (1.1)

17 (0.0)
1 (0 0)
4 (0.0)

114 (0.4)
1 (0.0)
1 (0.0)

63 (0.2)

IRIL 34029 (100.0)

1 These data are pwvisiond. Ibt all riak fattors.sy has been detemined or reputed for all cases.
2 Includees tenons via lees bed hstentsessel contact with a porton with ADE or at risk for AIDS aid

pawns with.t other idmegifial risks via were born in custrias in which hrtesosessd transmission is
believed o ply a go* tole alttough mast mos tf traunission hr a wt pet been fully *dins&

3 Includes pstiata Co wt risk inkovotion is irossoleto (do to dusk refusal to be intetviired or loss to
folks-up), patiants still under imestigetion, as retorted only to him had betenstanl contact with a
prostitute, aid int...aired patients for whsa as specific rink was identified.
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Mr. Ny iki.mAist. Thank you very much, Dr. Lane.
Dr. Krim.

STATEMENT OF MATHILDE KRIM

Ms. KRIM. Mr. Chairman, Congressman Leland.
What is frightening about AIDS is the deadly nature of the dis

ease of the disease, the fact that it is transmissible, that it i.
spreading now, including in the heterosexual community, in fact
where it spreads now at a faster rate than among the previously
identified high-risk groups, and that there is no end in sight to the
epidemic.

To me, in addition, what is frightening is the quality of informa-
tion the public has about this situ...ion, which is appalling. And
this applies to every type of public.

AIDS, the public should understand, is a result of a slow, pro-
gressive and relentless deterioration of the natural immune de-
fense system caused by a viral infection. The virus that causes
AIDS is called the Human Immune Deficiency Virus, or HIV. The
HIV does not kill directly. What kills is a variety of other infec-
tions and cancers to which HIV infected persons progressively lose
their resistance and that medicine cannot treat effectively.

The HIV infection is for life, once acquired. The human body
does not develop resistance to HIV. The HIV is treacherous be-
cause it does not cause symptoms immediately. There is a very
long incubation period, one that can last many years between infec-
tion and the occurrence of clinical symptoms.

Since HIV is mainly transmitted sexually in the natural course
of things, it is transmitted usually between people who appear
healthy and are usually unsuspecting of having been at risk or
having become infected. People who transmit HIV can be gay or
straight, can be young or old, and can be of any race.

In New York, we are suffering a grievous epidemic of HIV infec-
tion and AIDS. In Houston, that is already the fourth city in the
Nation in this epidemic, as was pointed out earlier, can expect to
experience what New York City is experiencing now, unless it acts
locally, rapidly and energetically.

The HIV was introduced probably in New York among the gay
community in the early or midseventies. Because it did not cause
disease and nobody was aware of this virus, or AIDS to come sever-
al years later, nothing was done about the spry -iding infection, of
course. And by 1981, when the first cases of AIDS occurred, we had
already 30 to 50 percent of individuals in the gay community who
were infected.

In 1983, we knew that AIDS was not a gay disease and we did
not act on this information. In 1984, we knew the existence of the
causative virus, and we still did not act effectively by warning the
people at risk. We forgot that the so-called high-risk groups includ-
ed also bisexuals and drug abusers. And these transmitted the in-
fection into the larger heterosexual population.

Now, in 1987, 40 percent of all cases of AIDS in New York occur
among heterosexuals. Ten percent of the cases occur among
women. AIDS is the greatest killer of all women between the ages

(-1 --)
( 'A 4
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of 25 and 29 years of age i, New York. And we have hundreds of
sick children.

Dr. Joseph, our Cominissioner of --ealth, expect the birth of over
800 babies with HIV infection in 1987 alone, end he has stated that
we have half a million people infected with HIV virus.

The screening of military recruits done by the Army has re-
vealed that in the general population in Manhattan, between the
ages of 17 and 25, 1 in 100 is infected. And, if minority group
people are selected out among Army recruits, the rate of infection
is 1 in 50.

Minorities, as we heard already, are much over-represented
among all groups affected by HIV infection or AIDS. r3arly 50 per-
cent of all cases of AIDS in New York occur among minorities. Sev-
enty-five percent of all women with AIDS are minority group
women. And 90 percent of all children with AIDS are minority
group children.

And what is the fate of HIV-infected people? We used to believe
that only 10 or 20 or 30 percent of them would develop disease. We
now know over the last few months, we have learned that after 6
years, over 50 percent of HIV-infected people develop serious clini-
cal symptoms. And because the rates at which infected people
become sick each year has remained stable has not decreased yet it
is quite possible that after 10 or 15 years, 100 perrent of all people
will become sick.

There is a silver lining in the AIDS clouds. And this is that there
is no casual transmission and that research will certainly be able
to do something and bring control of the epidemic with treatment
or a vaccine within 5 to 10 years. There is a rime going on between
research an virus spread at 's time, and we are at a very impor-
tant crossroads.

We have a collective the collective means we have are economic
resources and solid information on how the AIDS virus spreads. In-
dividually, we have the capacity to understand this information if
it is made available, and we have the capability to exercise self-con-
trol ON er our own sexual behavior.

The job of educating and changing people's ways an be done, as
we have learned, from the self-help organLations in the gay com-
munity that have demonstrated that it can be done. There are no
countless people in insticutions that stand ready to undertake the
enormous educational and counseling job that must be done. They
must be given the resources to do it. We do have a chance in this
country to slow and perhaps even halt the spread of AIDS through
education, first, - d through the fruits of researli later. Our chil-
dren will justly hold us accountable and will not forgive us if we dc-,
not do the job. Thank you.

Mr. WAXMA.:. Thank you very much, Dr. Krim.
Dr. Haughton.

STATEMENT OF JAME'S G. ifAUGHTON

Mr. HAITGHTON. Thank you for the opportunity to add: ess you
tock. I think you will find that my perspective on the problem is
slightly different than my colleagues.

11 -
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The AIDS is a serious problem. It is not the only health problem
in Houston: and, therefore, as director of Public Health of this city,
it has been my responsibility to help keep some perspective on the
problem.

The 1,135 cases in the Houston AIDS registry include all report-
ed cases diagnosed from January 1 of 1980 through April 6 of this
year among residents of the Houston Standard Metropolitan Statis-
tical Area. That area includes all of Harris County, Montgomery
County, ;"ort Bend, Brazoria, Liberty and Waller Counties. Al-
though cases have been reported from each of these counties,
Harris County residents account for 95 percent of the total, and
Houston residents account for 85 percent of the total of the SMSA
cases.

Comparisons of the current national statistics on AIDS with
those for Houston reveal some interesting differences. And I have
provided you with a chart there that shows a Ise differences.
Transmission categories, in both cases, in both case series are as-
signed according to a nationally standardized system in which,
when there is a casc with multiple characteristics, the case is only
counted in one of the transmission categories.

Now, nationally, the largest transmission category is "Homosex-
ual and Bisexual Males," which represents 64.2 percent of cases
throughout the United States, but 83 percent in Houston. National-
ly, the "Intravenous Drug User" category is second largest trans-
mission category accounting for 17 percent. In Houston, it is 1.7
percent. Houston's second largest transmission category is "Homo-
sexual and Bisexual Male and IV Drug User," which is a recently
instituted category by CDC and is intended to reflect more accurate
the risk status of cases who were previously classified only a:. ho-
mosexual or bisexual male. That group represents 10 percent of all
Houston cases and 71/2 percent nationwide.

The picture that emerges from these comparisons is one in which
IV drug use plays a much larger role in the transmission of AIDS
nationwide than it does in Houston. Upon examination of regional
statistics, however, it becomes apparent that IV dL ug use as a soli-
tary factor is geographically specific. Approximately 75 percent of
all U.S. AIDS cases attributed to IV drug use come from the States
of New York and New Jersey. If New York and New Jersey cases
are excluded, the percentage of all other U.S. AIDS cases attributa-
b:.i to IV drug use drops from 17 percent to 4.1 perceni- Therefore,
4.1 percent seems to be a more accurate description of the contribu-
tion of IV drug use to AIDS in areas of the country other than
New York and New Jersey. Even after this adjustment, the Hous-
ton value of 1.7 percent ; still substantially less than this amended
National average.

A notable characteristic of the Houston registry is the absence c:
confirmed cases attributable to hemophilia where there are 313
cases in the national registry and none in the City of Houston.

Houston cases also differ from the U.S. cases with respect to sev-
eral demographic c' acteristics. The Houston cases tend to be
younger, and to consist of a larger percentage of w' 'tes an' sales
that the National cases. Both have a high percentage of cases con-centrated in the ' -49 age range: but in Houston 79 percent are
under 40, while nationally, it is 69 percent that are under 40. In

r,
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the U.S. registry, 60 percent of cases are white, 25 percent are
Black, and 14 percent are Hispanics and 1 percent are categorized
as "Other" or "Unknown." This leads to the conclusion that Blacks
and Hispanics are over-re. resented among AIDS rases in the
United States.

Li the Houston registry, by comparison, 79 percent of cases are
white, 11 percent are Black, 10 percent are Hispanics and less than
1 p3rcent are characterized as "Other," while in the general popu-
lation of Houston, 50 percent of the population is white, 27 percent
are Black and 20 percent are Hispanics. Minorities are therefore
under-represented among AIDS cases in Houston. In Houston, 98
percent of the cases are males, compared to 93 percent nationally.

Although the CDC no longer requests the investigation of trans-
fusion-associated cases, we still have guidelines from the Texas De-
partment of Health. And we still identify those cases. Since the
Houston AIDS surveillance began, 29 transmission-associated cases
have been investigated by our Bureau of Epidemiology. All of those
cases had their beginning prior to the use of the HIV antibody test.

There are only eight pediatric cases confirmed in the City of
Houston, four of which are white, three are Black and one is His-
panic. This is in contrast to the U. S. pediatric cases where the ma-
jority of the pediatric cases, more than 50 p- rcent are Black. Five
of our pediatric cases acquired their infection from the parents who
were at risk of AIDS.

There are other areas of controversy within the subject of AIDS,
but I have covered them quite thoroughly in the paper I have pre-
sented to you and will not take the time to repeat them now.
Thank you.

[Testimony resumes on p. 120.]
[The statement of Mr. Naughton follows:]
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STATE:ENT OF JA1'ES G. HAUGHTMI

AIDS IN HOUSTON, April 1987

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrrme (AIDS) was recoonized as

disease entity in Los Angeles and New York City i the summer of 1981.

Recognition of the disease, as well as the oisease itself, is now

widespread. In the United Sts1..c, additional cases first appeared in other

large metropolitan areas, but now every state has rP-earted AIDS cases to the

Centers for Disease Control (CDC).

Although Houston was not among the first group of cities to recognize a

cluster of cases in 1981, Houston currently has the fourth largest number of

confirmed cases. Given the current number of cases reported (April 6, 1987)

by New York City (9,382), San Francisco (3,309), and Los Angeles (2,917),

Houston is a distant fourth in this ranking with 1,136 cases. This, however,

is still an onerous distinction.

The 1,135 cases in the Houston AIDS registry include all reported cases

diagnosed from January 1, 1980 through April 6, 1987 among residents of the

Houston Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA). The Houston SMSA is

comprised of the city of Houston, the remaining areas of Harris County and

Montgomery, k_rt Bend, Brazoria, Liberty, and Wallet counties. Alt'-ugh cases

have been reported from each county in the SMSA, Harris County residents

account for 95t of the total. Houston residents, account for 85% of all the

SMSA cases.

Comparisons of th, current national statistics on AIDS (April 6, 1987)

with those for Houston reveal some interesting differences. Transmissim

categcries in hot,' case series are assigned according to a nationally

standardized system, which lists risk factors hierar Cases having
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multiple characteristics are counted only in the transmission category with

greater importance as indicated by its position in the hierarchy. (See Table

1.) Nationally, the largest tansmissiou category is "Homosexual /Bisexual

Male", which represents 64.2% of other U.S. cases and 83.1% of Houston

cases. Nationally, the "Intravemous (IV) Drug User" category is the second

largest transmission category accounting for 17.0% of cases. However, only

1.7% of all Houston cases fall into this category, making it the third largest

category in dous,on. Houston's second largest transmission category is

"Homodexual/Biseinal Male and IV Drug User'. The CDC only recently instituted

this category. It is intended to reflect more accurately the ri, status of

cases who were previously classified in the homosexual/bisexual transmission

group, but who also use IV drugs. They represent 10.0% of all Houston cases

and 7.5% of cases elsewhere.

The picture that emerges from these comparisons is one in which IV drug

use plays a much larger role in the transmission of Al i nationwide than it

does in Houston. Upon examination of regional statistics, however, it becomes

apparent that IV drug use as a solita, actor is geographically specific.

Approximately 75% of all U.S. A' cases attributed to IV drug uoe come from

the states of New York and New Jersey. If New York and New Jersey cases are

excluded, the percentage of all other U.S AIDS cases attributable to IV drug

use drops from 17.0% to 4.1%. Therefore, 4.1% seems to be a more accurate

description of the contribution of IV drug use to AIDS in areas of the country

other than NEW York or New Jersey. Even after tnis adjustment the Houston

value of 1.7% is still substantially less than this amended national average.

A limited number of local cases have been classified in the transmission

categories "Heterosexual Cases", "Transfusion Recipent", and "Parent at Risk

for AIDS". Each of these risk groups constitute a smaller percentage of the

2
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Houston cases than they do nationally. A notable characteristic of the

Houston registry is the absence of confirmed cases attributable to hemophilia

while there are 313 cases (1%) in the national registry. Although the Bureau

of Epidemiology has received several reports of suspect cases among

hemophiliacs, none of these have met the CDC case definition.

The percentage of cases without an apparent risk factor is often seized

upon by thole who 10 to argue that we do not know all the means of

transmission. Houston's experience is similar to the national with 3.2% among

other U.S. cases and 2.5% (29 cases, aiong Houston cases. Of the 29 Houston

cases, twelve have been interviewed and found to have no established risk

factors, nine died before interview, three refused a detailed interview, one

was lost to follow-up, and four are currently under investigation. Of the 12

cases interviewed, three cases indicated contact with prostitutes as their

only probable risk factor.

Houston AIDS cases also differ from other U.S. caser with respect to

sevsral demographic characteristics. The Houston cases tend to be younger,

and to consist of a larger percentage of Whites and males than the national

cases. Both have a high percentage of cases concentrated in the 30-49 age

range, but in HoustEn 79% are under 40, while nationally only 69% are under

40. In the U.S. registry, 60% of cases are White, 25% Black, 14% Hispanic,

and 1% Other/Unknown. This leads to the conclusion that Blacks and Hispanics

are over-represented among AIDS cases in the U.S. In the Houston registry by

comparison, 79% of cases are White, 1'% are Bla,k, 10% are Hispanic and less

than 1% are categorized as Others while in the general population of Houston

50% are White, 27% are Black and 20% are Hispani . Minorities are therefore

under-represents1 among AIDS cases in Houston. (r Houston, 98% of tne cases

are males, compared to 93% nationally.

3
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The distribution of the major disease groups among Houston cases and

national cases differs only slightly. Pneumocystis carinii pneumonia (PCP) is

the disease most frequently associated with AIDS in both. It affects 61% of

Houston cases and 65% of U.S. cases. Kaposi's sarcoma occurs in 28% of the

Houston cases and 21% of the national cases.

Althoug. the CDC no longer requests the investigation of transfusion-

associated (TA) AIDS cases, the Texas Department of Health has guidelines for

Identifying the donors at risk for AIDS in such cases. Since the Houston AIDS

surveillance began, 29 TA cases have been investigated by the Bureau of

Epidemiology. Of the 15 TA cases among residents of the Houston SMSA, eight

have been da_ectly linked to a HIV ictabody positive donor, a donor whc is now

an AIDS or ARC patient, and/or a donor an A risk group for AIDS. All of the

TA cases received their blood products prior to the implementation of

stringent screening procedures for AIDS antibody which have been in effect at

all U.S. blood banks sirce late Spiing, 1:85.

The Houston area has 28 confirmed AIDS cases among females. Twenty-three

cases are among adults and five are among children. The average age of adult

female cases is 37 years. The largest transmission category for adult females

in Houston is heterosexual ontaet, with 9 cases r2ported. This is not the

case 4ationally where most are attributed to IV drug use. In Houston, five

adult female cases are attributes to IV drug use. All five are Black. There

are five adult female cases inked to blood transfusions. Four are White

females and one is an Hispanic female; all received blood products prior to

current screening for HIV antibodies now done by all blood centers. The

remaining four adult cases are classified as "Unknoen Risk Factor.. One

finale case reported a history involving 15 sexual partners in her lifetime.

Another estimated over 300 partners in her lifetime. In all four cases, no

4
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male sexual partner was known to the female case as being at risk for AIDS.

As of April 6, 1987, there are only eight pediatric cases confirmed with

onset of symptoms in Houston. Four (50%) are White, tnree (38%) are Black

and one (13%) is Hispanic. This is in contrast to the U.S. pediatric cases,

where the majority of the pediatric cases (56%) are Black. There are three

males and five females. Five of the pediatric cases acquired their infections

from their parents who were at risk for Al The remaining three cases

acquired their infection from transfusions before the spring of 1985.

Houston's low number of pediatric cases may be related to the low numbe. of

cases attributed to drug use, especially among women.

Accuracy o: the Data in the AIDS Registry

Despite the fact that 1,135 confirmed cases of AIDS with a 65% mortality

rate clearly indicates a serious public health problem in Houston, there is a

constant concern as to whether or not the AIDS registry accurately describes

the disease in this community; describes it in terms of the number of persons

affected, as well as the population groups at greatest risk. To understand

the aCcuracy of the descriptiie data available from tLe Houston AIDS registry

and its utility for policy making and planning, it is necessary t, understand

ho`, reporting o2 all communicable diseases and of AIDS, in particular,

actually works.

The degree to which any disease is ieported `o health authorities depends

on a multitude of factors. Perhaps the most important is whether or not the

disease is required to be reported by state health regulations. Without such

a requirement, physicians and hospitals will be very reluctant to provide

detailed information without tie patient's consent for fear of violating

3
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patient confidentiality. If there is a large, obvious outbreak where detailed

patient information is needed to minimize the spread of disease, the broad

powers of the local or state health authority car be invoked to overcome this

reluctancy. This also provides legal protection for physicians who do release

germane patient information to health authorities during a short term

emergency.

Once a di is added to the list of reportable diseases, there are

several practical considerations that will determine the degree to which cases

will actually be reported. A key factor that encourages reporting is a

genuine feeling among those required to report that reporting each and every

case will help local health officials limit subsequent spread of :he

disease. Other considerations that encourage reporting include requiring only

an extremely limited number of data items, so the time and effort required to

:sport a case is minimal; and not requiring information about sexual practices

and drug use. Reporting is also less difficult if the rick factors associated

with acquiring the disease are not associate3 with any social stigmas.

Although AIDS is a reportable disease in Texas it is easy to understand

why some might conclude that AIDS is a poorly reported disease. Pirst, few

physicians believe that reporting any or all of their cases will help stop the

Spread of AIDS, because there is neither a vaccine for unexposed persons nor a

preventive treatment for contacts already exposed to a case. Second, the

information required to mesh a diagnosis of AIDS with the CDC definition can

be rather detailed. Finally, personal information regarding sexual preference

and drug use is required to complete each case report, and the most commonly

reported risk behaviors are associate with significant social stigmas.

Despite all this, AIDS is probably the most thoroughly reported

communicable disease in Houston and in the U.S. The most important, but

6
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unfortunate, factor for thorou,h reporting is the very predictable course of

the disease that eventually results in each case being hospitalized, at 1,ast

once. Therefore, if a physician does not report cases among their clinic

patients who are in the early stages of the disease, the case will be reported

when that patient is admitted to the hospital. This delays the reporting of

some cases, but they will eventually be reported.

Our doc mentation regarding the completeness of hospital reporting of

confirmed AIDS cases in Houston is formidable. On a monthly basis, all death

certificates tiled with the Bureau of Vital Statistics are reviewed for deaths

due to 18 different causes which may be related to AIDS. This process has

identified an occasional case which had not previously been reported, but more

importantly, has identified hospitals which had not been reporting cases. In

an equivalent vein, the Bureau of Epidemiology also reviews the reporting

performance of some 50 acutecare hospitals in the Houston area for five of

the most commonly reported communicable diseases. Hospitals with

significantly lower reporting rates of selected reportable diseases re1.0*Ive

to comparably sized hospitals are identified as having a potential reporting

problem. The infection control officers of these hospitals, and those of

hospitals having discrepancies between case reports and death certificates,

are contacted. They are informed of their responsibility to report

prescribed by state regulations, and of the need for accurate information

about AIDS cases in order to monitor trends of transmission of ths disease and

to plan for care facilities of projected cases. In thy one situation where

this approach did not correct reporting problems, hospital officials were

advistd that steps could and would be initiated to have their Medicare

certification revoked by the state for not being in compliance with all

applicable state and local regulations. The problem was quickly rectified.

7
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Additional documentation of nearly complete hospital-based reporting

comes from two record validation studies. Two hospitals have undergone

validation studies, one in 1985 and one in 1986, to assess surveillance. A

third study at another hospital is currently in progress. In 1985, a

validation study was done at one of the county hospitals. This hospital is a

467 bed general hospital who -h is part of the Harris County Hospital

District. The hospital district provides indigent care. Printouts of 1984

patient discharge diagnoses suggestive of AIDS were reviewed. Eighty-five

cases had codes suggestive of LIDS. Fourteen of these patients were found in

our registry, Ten cases were reported by the hospital and four by other

sources. The remaining cases were pared down to 28 patients for whom chart

reviews were conducted to determine if any of these patients should be

reported as AIDS cases. After reviewing these charts, One patient was

identified and classified as a suspect/presumptive AIDS patient. This patient

is an IV drug user with empirically treated (not confirmed) Candida

esophagitis. Nonetheless, this was the only case who should have been

reported by the hospital and was not.

A validation study was also conducted at a 700 bed hospital with a long

history of underreporting communicable di . This history of

underreporting was carefully documented for AIDS and several other reportable

diseases over a 3 month period. The hospital administratic, was then

presented with this documentation and was persuaded to assist with a record

validation Study. This validation study covered all reportable diseases since

January 1986.

Pathology report, and medical record codes back to March 1983 were

reviewed for illness associated with AIDS. Prior to this study, 7 of this

hospital's cases had been identified from other sources, but were still

8
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incomplete for reporting purposes. These 7 were identified and completed due

to the validation study. Ten new cases were reported after communication was

ree.tablished with this hospital. Up to a year had elapsed from date of

diagnosis to report for some of these cases. From the validation study

itself, 6 cases were discovered that had never been reported. Therefore, at

this time, a total of 23 AIDS cases have been completed and reported due to

these negotiations with this hospital. For more than a year, this hospital

has been an excellent reporting hospital.

In the process of this second record validation study, an often discussed

reporting phenomenon, the duplication of cases in informal case counts, was

documented. With the hospital in question, several physicians estimated that

possibly 200 AIDS patients had been admitted since 1983 and few, if any, had

been reported. In the final analysis, approximately 5u patients had been

admitted, but, only six unreported cases were discovered by the validation

study. The other cases had all been reported by other physicians and

hospitals. Apparently, AIDS patients typically seek numerous clinical

opinions This -esults in a nigh level of reporting even if a limited number

of care providers do not regularly report. This multiple opinion phenomenon

is also the basic cause of highly exaggerated informal case counts. Each

physician counts his or her cases without knowing which patients may have been

seen by several other physicians. These other physicians also count these

cases in their informal tallies.

Still, with all these indications of good or improved reporting

compliance, without contiriing encouragement and periodic feedback to those

who report, compliance would deteriorate. To maintain regular contact a

monthly AIDS Information Update was initiated and sent to all hospital

reporting officers and physicians who have reported AIDS cases. The first

9
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Issue was mailed January 1985 to approximately 50 persons. Currently, nearly

200 updates are mailed each month. The updates contain detailed statistical

summaries of the Houston case registry, and ao original narrative pointing out

trends in the data or new developments in the CD:" case definition. (See

Attachment A.)

The preceding, however, applies only to the reporting of confirmed

cases. Persons with symptoms consistent with AIDS, but who do not meet the

CDC definition are not routinely reported even though they could be included

under the state requirements for reporting. Persons who are HIV antibody

positive but lacking significant symptoms, are not to be reported according to

current policies of the Texas Department of Health.

This situation, which is typical of AIDS reporting in the U.S. in all but

a few isolated locations, requires resource planners to make projections based

on some multiple of the number of confirmed AIDS cases. Given the diligent

efforts of the Bureau of Epidemiology in achieving a high level of reporting

compliance, numerical projections based on the Houston AIDS case registry will

not be compromised by the quality of the registry effort.

Rate of Increase

One of the more controversial aspects of AIDS involves the projections to

estimate the number of future cases. Varying projections have been made. The

Surgeon General's report contains an estimate of 270,000 cases of AIDS by the

end of 1991 with 179,000 deaths. Other projections, if adhered to would soon

project more U.S. cases than the country has population. One point of certain

agreement is that the number of cases will co&inue to increase for the

foreseeable future.

10
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Although the official estimates published by the CDC are among the most

realistic, they are probably overestimates. Quoting from the CDC paper

published in the September-October 1986 issue of Public Health Reports, the

author's concede that their models are "empirical in the sense that they

reflect observed trends in the distribution of reported cases and assume these

trends will continue unchanged over time." Although mathematical models can't

sense change in the at risk population, public heath officials and elected

officials have to recognize changes as they begin to occur.

There are already strong indications that these projections are

inaccurate. For example, CDC prjected 34,090 to be diagnosed by the end of

1986. After allowing three full months (January through March, 1987) for

receipt of delayed reports, 32,081 cases had actually been diagnosed through

April 6, 1987. Only the case counts for 1986 were estimated in this

projection; the remaining cases in this total were actual case counts.

Therefore, when attention is focused on the actual projection of 15,800 to be

diagnosed in 1986, it is found that the actual number reported for that year

by April 6, 1987 is 12,732 or 20% less than expected. It is even below CDC's

lower bound for 14,800 estimated cases. Given such an error in the first

interval, with rive add tional intervals estimated, the 1991 estimate of

270,000 case needs to be revised downward.

There are two reasons why the model overestimated the cases. First is

that the cases of AIDS being sewn right now are primarily the result of

activity which transpired two, four, or six years ago among homosexual males

and IV drug users engaging with great frequency in practices that are very

effective in transmitting the AIDS virus from one person to another. In

short, these are persons who have lived in the "fast lane" of their respective

lifestyles. Other homosexual males may not have been exposed to the virus
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because they limited their numbe: of contacts, were very selective, or were

extremely lucky. The second reason is that behavior did change as the

seriouw*.as of the situation began to be realized in 1984 and 1985. Mary

homoscxzal males became much more cautious. rutainly the warnings of AIDS

spreading heterosexually have also had a dramatic chilling effect on the level

of sexual activity among sexually active singles. These two factors may

ultimately result in a significantly lower number of cases than the 270,000

projected for 1991.

In Houston, tne trends of the disease over the past three years have been

tracked. The first case was diagnosed retrospectively in the second half of

1980. Since the first half of 1982, the number of cases diagnosed has

increased for each six-month interval to reach a high of 247 diagnosed in the

first half of 1986. The totals for late 1986 and early 1987 are not yet

complete, but both will probably exceed 2J0 cases each. (See Figure 1.)

Although the number of cases diagnosed during each half-year period will

continue to increase for the foreseeable future, a slowing in the rate of

increase of newly diagnosed cases has been noted. (See Table 2.) In 1983,

the number of new cases diagnosed represented a 3271 increase from 1982. For

1984, the percentage of increase was 1261. For 1985, it was 86%. For 1986 it

was 45%.

With any luck, this trend, in terms of rate of increase, will continue

and changes in personal behaviors which began occurring several years ago will

speed this trend.

12
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AIDS Antibody Screening

In Houston, HIV antibody testing is provided to the public in three

settings. The Montrose Clinic Alternate Test Site provides free and anonymous

testing. The Institute for Immunological Disorders offers testing for a fee

of $30.00 to $40.00. Private physicians in conjunction with reference

laboratories als- provide testing at varying costs. Houti:e testing is also

performed at all blood collection centers and donor banks, but these are not

considered public screening sites.

The Montrose Clinic Alternate Test Site was established to provide a

testing facility where persons concerned about possible exposure to the AIDS

virus could be tested away from the blood bank setting. The ,linic provides

pre- and post-test counseling for all clients. No names are taken and no

personal identifiers are kept. Each client is given a rsn.oe: and must return

a week later, in person, fo: test results and counseling. Since December 1986

a more detailed, but still anonymous, questionnaire has been implemented to

assess risks and the demographics of those tested. For the purpose of

testing, the risk categories are: h,mosexual!bisexual males, intravenous (IV)

drug users, homosexuaVbisexuel males who also use IV drugs, heterosexual

partners of the above categories, and others (low risk).

Antibodies (HIV) have been detected in 30% of the high-risk persons and

3% of the low-risk persons tested at the Montrose Clinic. This rate is based

on 3,999 high-risk people and 1,081 low-risk people tested since mid-1985. In

recent months, the clinic has noticed a large increas- in the number of

heterosexuals interested in knowing their antibody status. Some are past or

current sexual partners of people at risk for AIDS, including heterosexual

contacts of female prostitut,s. Others do not report aw.y known risks and

represent ..exually active heterosexuals who are worried about exposure to the
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virus. Results and a description of those seeking the test since December

1986 are presented in Table 3. This table does not represent the overall

sercpoeitivity reported above, only a selected two month period of testing.

The BIV antibody prevalence at blood collection centers in Houston

represents another, yet quite different segment of the population. Since June

1985, all local blood banks have tested every unit of donated blood for the

HIV antibody. Previous to this testing, voluntary deferral programs were

implemented to strongly discourage high-risk individuals from donating

blood. This deferral program includes a questionnaire in addition to a

confidential way of designating whether the donation should be used for

transfusion or for research. Both the voluntary deferral system and the donor

designation ace still utilized in conjunction with HIV antibody testing.

Prom June 1985 to December 1986, one large local blood collection center

had tested 296,023 units of blood. Of the 294,987 units designated by the

donors to be used for transfusion, 151 or 0.05% were HIV antibody positive.

These units were destroyed and not used for transfusion. The low prevalence

of 0.05% represents either rare false-positive reactions, even with Western

Blot confirmation, oc exposure among people who believe themselves not to be

at risk for AIDS. Mee Table 4.) The prevalence is higher (0.8%) among those

who designated their donation to be used for research. The higher prevalence

among this group is probably due to a limited number of persons who suspected

that they may be at risk for AIDS, but because of circumstances (i.e. group

donations) felt uncomfortable in declining to donate.

Data from these two highly selected groups of people indicates that the

prevalence of HIV exposure in Houston varies greatly with the group tested.

The true prevalence among the entire Houston population is probably

underestimated from blood center data and overestimated by Montrose Clini
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data. However, data on the actual number exposed in the general population is

unknown. Estimates by the CDC are that 1 to 2 million people may be infected

in the United States.

Education

In the fight against AIDS, the most powerful weapon is education. Care

must be taken, however, to be extremely efficient and deliberate in these

educational efforts. Given the magnitude of the challenge to educate,

billions of dollars could easily be wasted by trying to deliver the critical

information through ineffective means that produce little or no impact. There

is an unfortunate trend for every involved gr..lup to have their o.'n AIDS

information pamphlet carrying their own logo. The growth of this "vanity

press" activity should not be funded by taxpayers' dollars. Instead, the

minimum requirements for printed material could be met by a limited number of

brochures or booklets that are closely reviewed by scientific, educational,

and advertising panels, then endorsed by a limited number of highly respected

national organizations, such as the U.S. Public Health Service or the National

Red Cross.

A critical issue is to balance the information in the educat renal

messages. Some are of the opinion that they should "scare the hell out of the

public". Unfortunately, many simply ignore gee that are perceived to be

overly dramatic or shocking. An example from the past is when teenagers were

shown the bloody details of motor vehicle accidents in order to scare them

into becoming safe drivers. It didn't produce the desired effect, as

documented by post-scre.ning surveys.

With AIDS, there is a risk of not only numbing the intended target

audience, but also provoking completely unproductive reactions. A situation
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recently occurred in Houston where, for very different reasons, gay community

advocates and very conservative political advocates both began sounding an

alarm that AIDS was going to "spread like wildfire* through the heterosexual

population. One group' solution was to have government spend more money on

AIDS programs. The other group' solution was to lock up all persons in high-

risk groups.

The first tangible proposal by this second group was to reinstitute

health cards for all foodhandler in Houston. Given the cost of such testing,

the number of foodhandlera, and the proposed schedule of testing, the cost to

consumers was estimated to have been $33 million per year in Houston alone.

Therefore, the Health Department's first major educational challenge was to

accurately and convincingly assure elected officials and the public that AIDS

is not spread by casual contact.

The following presentation of the key epidemiologic data was used to

convince a vast majority of Houstonians that AIDS is not spread by casual

contact. First, the major risk groups in the national case series are

described and how sexual behaviors, IV drug use, and transfusions were indeed

the most probable risk factors for 96.8% of all 33,720 reported cases.

Second, attention was focused on t..e miscellaneous risk category of cases

whose risk factors were designated as "Other/Unknown at this time'.

As of April 6, 1987 a total of 1,053 no identified risk (NIR) cases were

in this category. Since 1981, 1,621 cases have been initially reported with

no identified risk factor. Of these, 568 were reclassified to an official

risk group when further information was obtained. The remaining cases (1053)

were listed as NIR. Within that group, 236 cases could not be interviewed.

They either refused the interview, or died, or became lost to follow-up before

an interview could be conducted. Of the remaining 817 cases, 595 were still
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under study and awaiting an interview. This left 222 cases that have been

interviewed. Approximately 102 of these reported multiple sexually

transmitted disease (STD) and/or sexual contact with prostitutes. Wile tad

does not put them into an official high-risk group, it does indicate a history

of multiple sexual partners. The remaining 120 canes reported no behaviors to

account for their having AIDS. This could be because they do not know the

history of all their sexual partners for the last 5 to 7 years; any cf whom

could have been infectious. These NIA cases represent only 0.4% (120/83,245

adult cased of tne total adult case series. This data has proved to be very

effective in convincing the public that AIDS is not spread by casual contact.

Variations of this presentation hay:. bee: presented to a subcommittee of

Houston City Council, dozens of groups of health professionals, administrators

and nurses of the majority of schools in the city's largest school district,

employee groups of numerous local companies, and dozens of church groups. A

weekend feature highlighting this data was pthlished in one of the laily

newspapers along with regular updates on AIDS in both major local

newspapers. Apparently, the message that AIDS cannot be spread by casual

contact has taken hold in Houston, since issues similar to the health card

initiative have not resurfaced in more than two years.

The other part of health education is going to be much more difficult.

Phis challenge is to educate all segments of the population who are sexually

active on how to avoid or minimize the risk of acquiring AIDS. Sending a

safe-sex brochure to every Houstonian over the age of 18 will not be

effective. Instead, efforts should be placed in public service announcements

on television ane radio, hacked up by information hotlines and a carefully

selected inventory of brochures. To reach teenagers who are becoming sexually

active, health education prcgra.ls in school need to incorporate segments on

how to avoid exposure to the AIDS virus. Programs are being implemented by

local school districts and the largest district is involving epidemiologists

from the Health Department in the development of these programs. These

efforts through mass media and in the schools present the bert chances of

limiting the spread of this disease in Houston.
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Services for People with AIDS and ARC in Houston

The City of Houston by law cannot provide medical care to anyone. The responsibility

of medical care has been mandated by state charter to the Harris County Hospital

District. Thus, all indigent care for Harris County residents is provided by Ben Taub

General Hospital and Jefferson Davis Hospital. These two hospitals currently provide

in-patient care for AIDS and ARC patients who are without funds. Other patients with

AIDS who have insurance are cared for at many of Houston's private hospitals. Out-

patient care, social services, and information and referral is provided by many

agencies 'a Houston.

AID for AIDS
direct financial assistance

AIDS FOUNDATION OF HOUSTON
information hotline/referral
social services
educational programs
(speaker's bureau)
guidelines for school district

AIDS FOUNDATION WITH MONTROSE
COUNSELING CENTER - SPECIAL
PROJECT

risk reduction
disease prevention
volunteer training

AIDS LEGAL HOTLINE
legal information ane referral

AMERICAN RED CROSS
educational material

AMERICAN SOCIAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION
AIDS brochures

GULF STATES HEMOPHILIA FOUNDATION
information and referral

GULF COAST REGIONAL BLOOD CENTER
information and referral

HARRIS COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
information and referral
disease reporting
guidelines for HIV infections

in school/workplace/pregnancy

HARRIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
medical care for the indigent

'OPUS COUNTY SOCIAL SERVICES
counseling and referral
interia financial assistance

for disabled with AIDS/ARC

HOUSTON AIDS COALITION
interagency networking

and grants

HOUSTON CRISIS HOTLINE
information and rP'erral

for teens witn drug concerns



BERING DENTAL CLINIC

basic dental health services
for indigent AIDS patients

CANCER INFORMATION SERVICE
information and referral

THE CAILDREN'S HOME
hospice for children (AIDS/ARC)

CITY Of HOUSTON DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

information and referral
disease reporting
educational programs and

materials

guidelines for HIV infection
in school/workplace/pregnancy

CLERGY CONSULTATION ON AIDS
spiritual needs
in-home hospice care
provider relief
support groups for patients
berem ! relief

FAMILY SERVICE CENTER
individual and group counseling
homemaking services

GAY AND LESBIAN SWITCHBOARD OF HOUSTON
information and referral
telephone counseling

9.4

INSTITUTE FOR IMMUNOLOGICAL
DISORDERS

research and treatment protocols

MAYOR'S TASK FORCE ON AIDS
issues and interagency networking

MONTROSE CLINIC

medical information/referral
AIDS antibody test (anonymous)

PACE Program (testi:-3 of immune status)
educatiol

MONTROSE COUNSELING CENTER
individual and group counseling
referral

OMEGA HOUSE
AIDS hospice

UNITED WAY

information and referral

VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION
hoie care for AIDS patients

counseling and support services

1 r,
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Table 1

Comparison of Transmission. Categories
Houston SMSA vs. Other U.S. Cases
January 1980 through April 6, 1987

Houston Cases Other U.S. Cases

Risk Factor Number Percent lercent

Homosexual/Bisexual Male 943 83.1% 64.2%

I.V. Drug User 19 1.7% 17.0%

Romo/BiseAual Male and 113 10.0% 7.5%

IV Drug User
Hemophiliac J 0.0% 1.0%

Heterosexual Cases 11 1..0% 3.9%

Transfusion Recipient 15 1.3% 2.1%

Parent at Risk for AIDS 5 0.4% 1.1%

Other/Unknown at this time 29 2.5% 3.2%
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Table 7

R.ported Cases of AIDS and Percent Increase
by Year of Diagnosis

Houston SMSA, January 1980 to 1986

Year of Diagnosis number of Cases Percent Increase

1980 1

1981 7 600%

1982 18 157%

1983 77 327%

1984 174 126%

1985 323 86%

1986 469 45%
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Table 3

Montrose Clinic HIV Testing
December 1, 1986 to March 31, 1987

Number of HIV Test results
HIV Tests Male Female

Risk Category Male Female Pos Neq Pos Ney

Homosexual/Bisexual Males 920 -- 290 630 --
Intravenous (IV) Drug Us:s 112 87 4 108 5 82
Homosexual/Bisexual Males 143 -- 76 67 --

Who are also IV Drug Users
Heterosexual Partners of the 147 180 3 144 1 179

Above Groups
Others (low risk) 279 212 17 262 4 208

:metal 1601 479 390 1211 10 469
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Table 4

Blood Bank HIV Testing
June 1985 to December 1986

!Other of Units Donated HIV Positive

Transfusion 294,987 151 (0.05%)Research 1,036 8 (0.8%)

Total 296,0k 159
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FIGURE 1

AIDS Cases in the Houston SMSA
January 1, 1980 to April 6, 1987
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ATTACHMENT A

AIDS INFORMATION UPDATE: I °RIL 1987

This month's report shows the addition of 57 cases of confirmed AIDS in the

Houston area over last month. Among the additions, there are two new cases due to

transfusions and '..wo new pediatric cases due to parents being at risk for AIDS.

Two New Cases of Transfusion-Associated AIDS

Both cases occurred in Houston area women who received blood components in late
1982 and early 1983. This was prior to the impleetntation of stringent screening
procedures for AIDS which have bcen in effect at all U.S. blood banks since the
spring of 1985. One white female was over 60 years of age and received alx units
of red blood cells in early 1983. Four years later, she developed an

opportunistic infection diagnostic of AIDS and expired. She was HIV antibody
positive. One of the six donors reported a history of homosexual activity. The

second patient is an Hispanic female in her twenties and has no other risks for
AIDS except receiving two units of red blood cells in late 1982.: Three and one
half years after these transfusions, she was diagnosed with AIDS and was HIV
antibody positive. To date, a specific donor at risk for AIDS has not been
identified.

Transfusion-associated cases are those in which no risk factors for AIDS are
identified other than receiving blood products via transfusion. When then cases
are reported, the Bureau of Epidemiology investigates transfUsion-associated AIDS
cases to identify any donors at risk for AIDS. In order to rule out a transfusion
as the source of infection, all donors must be found to be HIV antibody

negative. If any of the donors cannot be located or tested, then a case 13 still
considered transfusion-associated in the absence of other risks for AIDS.

Two New Cases of Pediatric AIDS

One of the new pediatric cases i3 a white male child under the age of three whose
mother now has AIDS. The child showed signs of illness within the first four
month:. of life, was confirmed with AIDS one year later, and expired. The mother

was diagnosed with Pneumocystis carinii pneumonia late last year and is HIV
antibody positive. She has been interviewed and reports no risks for AIDS other
than heterosexual contact. Although tnere 13 no direct evidence, it i3 probable
that she was exposed through heterosexual contact.

The second new pediatric Case involves an Hispanic female child under the age of
Live whose parents are both at risk for AIDS. The child did not show signs of
illness until the fourth year of life and was diagnosed with an opportunistic
infection of AIDS. She i3 still living. The father of the child reported a
history of IV drug use but was HIV antibody negative at latest testing. All the

siblings in the family are dIV antibody negative. The mother, however, was

transfused one month before delivery (in 1982) wit: two Units of red blood cells
and i3 HIV antibody positive The "Look-Back" Program undertaken by blood

collection centers has identified one of her donors as HIV antibody positive.

Monthly Summary from Houston AIDS Registry

The data as of April 6, 1987 is attached.

Houston Deparment of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Epidemiology

(713) 222-4271
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AIDS SURVEILLANCE REPORT
HOUSTON DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

BUREAU OF EPIDEMIOLOGY
April 6, 1987

I CONFIRMED I SUSPECT

CASES CASES

LOCATION1 cumm eAriv CUMULATIVE3 TOTAL

Houston 960 360 1320

Harris Co. (Non-Houston) 123 49 172

TOTAL 1083 449 1492

Montgomery Come- 7 2 9

Fort Bend County 19 9 28

Bramoria County 18 5 23

Liberty County 6 I 7

Waller County 2 0 2

SIM CASE LOAD 1135 426 1561

SOURCE OF REPORT CASES PERCENT OF TOTAL

Hospital 860 76

Physician 166 14

State Health Dept 42 4

Vital Statistics 35 3

National (CDC) 19 2

Other agencies 13 1

Total 1135 100%

1Loe determined by residency at onset of illness suggestive of AIDS

2Coni rived cases meet the Centers for Disease Control
(CDC) definition for an AIDS case.

3Suspeet cases are patierts with conditions suggestive of AIDS but do not meet the CDC

definition, or people with the preliminary signs and symptoms of AIDS.

1 1 1
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COMPARISON OF TRANSMISSION CATEGORIES
Houston A vs. Other U.S. Cases
Jam 1980 thr 6, 1987

Houston Ca' F s (_)t h,

RI. a s
PitcCeilf Percent

Ho TIOilindll 4040 943 83.1% 64.2%

I.V. Drug User 19 t7% 17.0%

Hornosexusinftestaal Ms,* Aci
I.V. Drug User 0,f3.7`0 7.5%

Hemophiliac 0.0% 1.0%

Heterose C**** =
Y 1.0% 31%

Transfusion Recipient = 1.3% 2.1%

'Parent at Risk for ADS 5 0.4% 1.1%

Other/Unknown at this time 29 2.5% 3.2%



REPORTED CASES OF AIDS AND. PERCENT
INCREASE BY YEAR OF DIAGNOSIVIL

Houston SMSA, January\1980 to 1986

YEAR Of CIAOPIOUli

19,80

1981

WINER OF CASES PERCENT INCREASE

1982 157%

1883 327%

i984 1.74 126%

198S 32:; 86%

1986 469



AIDS Cases in, the Houston SMSA .

January 1, 1980 to April 6, 1987
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TRANSMISSION CATEGORIES OF U.S. ADULT CASES
as of April 6, 1987

Homosexual/Sim:410i mi-0

Drug User

Hotnosexual/Bisexuo
LV. Drug User

Hemophiliac

Heterosexual COSOfs*

Transfusion, Recipient

Other/Unknown at this time

umber Percent

21,814 (65.8%)

(16.7%)

644

i.voJo

Includes 633 persons born In countries where
heterosexual transmission is predominant.

(7.7%)

(0.9%)

(3.8%)

(1.9%)

(3.2%)
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Haughton. Your full
presentation, written presentation, will be part of the record. I
notice that it is lengthy with a number of tables and we will have
an opportunity to examine that. I am sure that will be very helpful
to us.

Dr. Lane, you have indicated there is a disproportionate number
of AIDS cases among Black and Hispanic Americans. What ac-
counts for that?

Mr. LANE. Sir, I think, as Dr. Haughton has mentioned, first of
all, it is geographic specific and mirrors rather considerably the
prevalence of intravenous drug abuse, particularly in Black and
Hispanic groups is some of our large east coast communities.

But I also think that in other communities, AIDS is still some-
thing of a ticking bomb. And we feel, after discussing with our col-
leagues in several State health departments, that there is a, an
under-education activity or situation about AIDS and its transmis-
sion all over the country, in whites as well as Blacks, but particu-
larly in Black and Hispanic minorities.

Mr. WAXM AN. So, if we are looking at a time bomb that is going
to explode on many, many people and especially the minority popu-
lations, what educational campaigns has the Public Health Service
begun that is directed towards minority groups to try to stop the
spread of this disease?

Mr. LANE. We look at education as being education focused to
the general population, education focused towards risk groups, par-
ticularly gay and bisexual and IV drug abusers and then also one-
on-one counseling. And we are trying to assist with both money
and technical assistance our colleagues in State and local health
departments in all of those activities. And the predominant func-
tion up to now has been, however, the one-on-one counseling. And
that has perhaps not been more targeted toward minority commu-
nities than anyone else. Anyone who comes in gets those services.

We have asked the State health departments, who are our main
grantees in this year's cycle of grants, to target minorities and
show us their plans and show us what specific efforts they are
going to do toward the Black and Hispanic communities.

Mr. WAXMAN. We have an epidemic in this country of AIDS. We
have known for several years there is no vaccine and there is none,
at least, for at least another decade, if you are very optimistic. So,
the only way to stop the spread of the disease is through education.
How much money are you sending to the States for an educational
effort during this last couple of months?

Mr. LANE. Yes. Sir, I will have to provide the details for the
record because our money is fragmented in direct grants for health
education and prevention, grants to school districts or school State
school efforts. And then we are trying to undertake a national cam-
paign not directed to the States of general information to the
public. And I would like to give you those dollar figures broken
down.

Mr. WAXMAN. We would like to receive that. Let me ask Dr.
Krim: You have been following the AIDS epidemic from the very
beginning. And you know that education is our only way to stop
the spread of this disease. How would you describe the Federal ef-

12 5
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forts in educating the public? Has it been successful? Is it on
target? Are we doing what we should be doing?

Ms. KRIM. It has been late getting off the ground and I know
from talking to CDC representatives, such as Dr. Lane, that the ap-
proach is the thinking of these public health officials is correct. Es-.
sentially, you know, I think they are planning to do the right
thing. We have not yet at the receiving end seen the effects of the
program.

Mr. WAXMAN. This is 1987. We have had this disease since 1981.
Certainly, within a year after 1981, we knew that there was some-
thing happening. It was sexually transmitted. We didn't have a
cure and we did not have a way to stop the spread through a vac-
cine. Have we not known for a good number of years

Ms. KRIM. That is right. This was the point I was making that
we have known very early that this was not a gay disease: that
anyone was susceptible. And we knew how the infection was trans-
mitted. We have been, as a Nation I do not point a finger to any-
body in particular we have had a reaction of denial to this situa-
tion. We have not been particularly compassionate or interested in
the first sufferers of AIDS. And we have wasted tilne. There is no
question.

Mr. WAXMAN. Let me ask you this. We have wasted time. We
need an educational effort. What kind of educational campaign
should the Federal Government begin to reach minority groups
specifically?

Ms. KRIM. You knew, minorities have more of the problems of
everybody else across the board, not just AIDS. I do not think I
think the message is the same for everybody. What minorities
needs is more of everything they need. Not just the AIDS message.

Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Haughton, what do you think we rif xl to do?
What how much irnney is coming at the local level for an educa-
tional effort to stop the spread of this disease?

Mr. HAUGHTON. Well, currently, we have about $100,000 from
CDC for risk-reduction education. And we have used it to establish
a program at the r tontrose Clinic as well as to enrich our own edu-
cational activities the Department. We have a network of
seven neighborhood health centers. And we have health educators
E.Z all of their.. We also have medical directors, chief nurses, and
ether staff at those health centers. We have trained all of that staff
to add AIDS to their educational agenda.

In addition, we have been available to all groups in the city who
need to hear about the problem. We have established a speaker's
bureau. We have now made presentations to a large number of em-
ployee groups. Employers are beginning to call us and ask us to
come make presentation to their employees.

Church groups have caned us and asked us to make presenta-
tions to their congregations. I have personally conducted radio and
TV shows in which the listeners can call in and get information.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you gear any of this specifically to minority
groups or do you feel that a message for the whole population is
the appropriate one?

Mr. HAucwroN. Well, we have done both. We have in our at-
tempts to educate, made ourselves available to all of the population
of Houston. When I make presentations on the radio, I seek the
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rock stations because that is where our young people listen. I am
very concerned about the young people in our community who are
about to begin sexual activity and who may be tempted to indulge
in IV drug use. And I find that I can reach that population much
better on the rock stations than on a news station.

Last night, for example, NBC had a national network for infor-
mation and we established a call-in bank here, a phone bank so
people could call in. I had four epidemiologists sitting at those
phones from 6 to 9 last night. We got 9 calls. That is because the
NBC station here is a news station. The people who are interested
in this problem listen to rock stations and those are the stations we
should be using. Those are the stations we use.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. LELAND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Dr. Haughton, I am glad that we seem to be rather competitive

at least in terms of the lesser number of minorities afflicted with
this re disease in the city of Houston. I hope indeed that we
hav .de the point that this hearing, while it focuses on the prob-
lems of heterosexuals afflicted with the disease, as well as minori-
ties, that we do not lose in the scope of things tha problems afflict-
ing the homosexual community.

In the city of Houston, I have been in politics and have been an
elected official now for 15 years. And we go back a couple of years
ago, we remember the infamous gay referendum and the problems
that ensued subsequent to that and the prejudice that we had real-
ized in the city of Houston against the homosexual population of
our city. What I am concerned about is that when we hold hearings
and expand on the interest of these hearings to other communities
because of the facts, which show that more and more minorities
are being afflicted as well as the heterosexual community now has
come into play, we then realize that, in the city of Houston, this is
not just a homosexual disease afflicting our city but also that it is
expanded, that while other States and other cities, and let's refine
that to other cities, have higher percentages of minorities and he-
terosexuals afflicted with the disease that this city's homosexual
population is more afflicted. Are we focusing, are we honing in on
those specific problems, that specific problem?

Mr. HAUGHTON. Yes. In fact, I think we are focusing it to the
extent that it is causing us some other problems. It is true that 94
percent of the cases in Houston are still gay and bisexual males.
That has not changed since 1981 when the first cases of AIDS were
reported in Houston, or at least were diagnosed in Houston. That
has remained consistent over the 6 years. However, we are also
aware of the possibility of that changing. And, so, in our education-
al activities, we have shifted gears from talking about risk groups
to talking about high-risk behavior. Because everybody is vulnera-
ble if they pursue certain high -rick behaviors. Now, the reason I
say it is causing us a problem to identify and publicize this distri-
bution is that just 3 weeks ago, our legislature voted down two very
modest requests from our State health commissioner. He requested
$1 2 million for services for the entire Stake of Texas with regard to
AIDS and $675,000 for education for the entire State. Our legisla-
ture voted both of those requests down. I think they still believe
that it is a gay disease. And I think that the data that we publish

12 t.,
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every month tends to reinforce that. The fact is that that is the
way the picture looks.

Mr. LELAND. Is our city as ignorant as our State legislature?
Mr. HAUGHTON. No. Fortunately, our city is not. No. We have

been allowed to, even though there are very few city funds that
have been earmarked for AIDS, we have been allowed to use our
resources to the maximum extent to put out the message about
AIDS.

As a matter of fact, we have had a lot of help from the gay com-
munity, itself. The AIDS Foundation has done a terrific job of edu-
cation in the gay community. And we use a surrogate set of statis-
tics to show that.

Our department has been screening for sexually transmitted dis-
eases in gay bars and gay bathhouses in this city for some 10 years.
And we do that because contact tracing has never been very effec-
tive in the gay community. The names and addresses and tele-
phone numbers we get never check out. And. so, what we do is, we
in fact ask people where they had their contacts. And then we send
teams of epidemiologists out into those communities to test for
syphilis.

Up until 2Y2 years ago, we were finding 6 cases of syphilis for
every hundred persons that we tested primary syphilis. In 21/2
years, that has dropped to less than one per thousand. So, we be-
lieve that the gay community has done a good job of educating its
own members.

Mr. LELAND. Now, Dr. Haughton, you have shown some invalu-
ableyou have given us some invaluable statistics about our mi-
nority community and its affliction with the AIDS disease. Afro,
you obviously show some real concern about -hP proliferation of
the problem within the heterosexual and minority communities.

Are we doing enough in the city? You said that the city of Hous-
ton Lias given some limited funds to this problem. Should the city
of Houston allocate more funding for this problem not only to help
with the problem in the homosexual community, but also in the
heterosexual and, particularly, in the minority communities?

Mr. HAUGHTON. Welt, I have about $100,000 of city funds ear-
marked for AIDS. But, as I said, we've been allowed the freedom to
apply our resources as necessary to dealing with the problem to the
limits that we can apply. You must remember that in the State of
Texas, when there is a hospital district in a county, no other unit
of government within that county can spend funds for medical
care. And, so, as a health department and a city government, we
are limited to preventive aspects of AIDS: education and testing

. and so on.
The question is: How much is enough? Our department took a 9.5

percent cut in our overall budget last year. I may have to take an-
other cut going into 1988. So, to say that the city should spend
more on AIDS, I would have to ask: Where will they take it from?

I would not like to see a repeat in Houston of what has happened
at the Federal level. Most of the funds that the Federal Govern-
ment has spent so far on AIDS education and risk reduction and so
have been taken from other programs.

Mr. LELAND. Unfortunately, not from the Defense Department.

1 r'.1 ( i'....,
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Mr. HAUGHTON. At the beginning that was true. It was taken
from other programs.

I didn't hear what you said, Congressman.
Mr. LELAND. I just said, unfortunately, those funds that were

taken from other places were not taken from the Defense Depart-
ment. Of course we have a problem with crime here in the city of
Houston. I certainly would not want to see us take those moneys
from the Police Department. But I think that maybe because of the
severity of the problem and I do not want to engage in any kind of
controversial colloquy with you, Dr. Haughton, but I think that be-
cause of the rising problem in this country and the rising problem
in this city, that we need to prioritize, if in fact we can, the prob-
lem of AIDS and more moneys being expended.

Mr. HAUGHTON. Now, let me make one point. I do not know if
you have this set of slides in front of you.

Mr. LELAND. Yes, we do.
Mr. HAUGHTON. If you will look at the second page, you will see

we have been tracking the rate of increase of AIDS cases in Hous-
ton. And if you will look at that chart, you will see that over the
last 3 years, while the number of case$ have been increasing, the
rate of increase has changed and is trending downwards. We hope
that that is a good sign.

Mr. LELAND. Very good.
Mr. HAUGHTON. You will notice that between 1983 and 1984, we

had 126 percent increase in the number of new cases. Between 1984
and 1985, that dropped to 86 percent. And between 1985 and 1986,
it dropped to 45 percent.

Mr. LELAND. But is that not misleading?
Mr. HAUGHTON. So, even though the numbers are increasing,

they are increasing at a slower rate than they were 3 years ago.
Mr. LELAND. But is that not misleading to say they are increas-

ing at a slower rate. If you take 50 percent of 10 as opposed to 25
percent of 500, the raw numbers are incredibly large in terms of
the numbers of people increasing to be effective.

Mr. HAUGHTON. As I said, the numbers are increasing, but at a
slower rate than they were before. Remember, about 2 years ago,
they were predicting that the numbers would double every 6
months. That has not been true in Houston.

Mr. LELAND. Dr. Krim, does that give you much sense of relief?
Ms. KRIM. No. It does not give me much pleasure to hear that

because the double of 1 is 2, but the double of 400 is 800, you know.
So, less than double 400 is still more than 2.

Also, there i.i another thing that worries me is that in all this
discussion, we always talk about cases of AIDS. As I explained,
AIDS occurs years after infection occurs. And, biologically, the im-
portant event is acquisition of infection and we do not know where
that is.

Mr. HAUGHTON. Well, one of the problems I have with the projec-
tions that are made is and I quote this from an article published by
Dr. Jim Kern of CDC in November, I believe it is, of 1986, in
"Public Health Reports." Their empirical model assumes that ev-
erything will continue as is and that any educational efforts we
make will make no difference. That is not the case. And, so, while
the number is growing, we must keep up some perspective.
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If we believe in health education and if we are going to spend a
lot of money in health education, then we must take into account
what we believe that education will do in making these projections.

You know, these projections have a double-edged, a two-edged
sword. For example, just recently, in this city, because of our con-
cern about spreading in the heterosexual community, we began to
emphasize education in that area. The result was that for people at
risk, they were demanding more funds for education against AIDS.
For those people who believe it is the punishment of God, they
were saying, "Let's lock up all the homosexuals." So, we have to be
careful about our education and the outcome of what we say.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, it doesn't look like your State legislature has
learned the lesson of this epidemic.

Mr. HAUGHTON. I think they are in our second group.
Mr. WAXMAN. Well, the fact of the matter is, from what I hear

you testifying, if you are spending $100,000 and that is it in the
city of Houston, that is not an incredible expenditure for education.

Mr. HAUGHTON. That is correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. And if your State legislature refuses to spend

more money, then it seems to me they fall into that group that you
have described where, unfortunately, the population will have to
learn the hard way, after this disease spreads into larger numbers
of people, before they take action.

But we talk about funds for this effort. What about funds for
treating the patients with AIDS? Are your public hospitals not
overwhelmed with the cost of treating these patients?

Mr. HAUGHTON. No. That has not been a major problem in Hous-
ton. The hospital district is the agency responsible for health care
for the needy. And, of course, that is where people fall after they
have exhausted their other resources. That agency has a tax base
of 100 mils. I think in last year's budget, they allotted about 22
mils. So, they have some freedom. Now, I must say, in their behalf,
that they have been very sensitive to this problem. They have re-
sponded when M. D. Anderson, our cancer institute, decided not to
treat AIDS cases anymore, they created an in-patient unit and an
out-patient unit at Jeff Davis Hospital.

More recently, when the Institute for Immunological Disorders
decided that they could no longer provide indigent care to AIDS pa-
tients, the hospital district doubled the size of their AIDS in-pa-
tient unit, and are now about to create a 20-bed hospice for those
patients who do not need acute hospital care. They are very respon-
sive.

Mr. WAXMAN. Maybe you are not the one to ask this question,
but do you know the statistics of how many patients have health
insurance to pay their bills, how many are on Medicaid, and how
many have no source of payment?

Mr. HAUGHTON. No, I do not. But I do know that most of the pa-
tients with AIDS in Houston have started out their problem at a
time when they did have resources. The problem is on the far end:
After they have had several hospitalizations, have been ill for a
long time, have exhausted their insurance benefits, are no longer
employed. Then is when the problem begins.

Mr. WAXMAN. Far end is a year? Six months?

1 t, 0
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Mr. HAUGHTON. Most of our death rate is quite high in Houston,
higher than the national average. About 65 percent. And most of
our cases have been dead within 2 years.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very mach.
We are pleased that Congressman Fields has joined us. Congress-

man Fields, of course, is from the Houston area and a member of
the Energy and Commerce Committee, as well as the Subcommit-
tee on Health. Mr. Fields.

Mr. FIELDS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to apologize to you
and my colleague, Congressman Leland. There is a press tour today
of the Hardy Toll Road which is a major transportation link in
northern Harris County, and I had to attend that this morning.
And, also, I am going to have to be leaving in just a second to go
introduce Secretary Don Hodel who is here for the Offshore Tech-
nology Conference and the World Petroleum Congress.

I would like to have my prepared statement entered for the
record, if I could. I also want to say that AIDS is public health
enemy No. 1. I have usually been considered conservative on fiscal
matters. However, I think more money needs to be expended in
AIDS-related research. I do not think that anyone should be consid-
ered conservative nor do I think anybody should be considered a
liberal on this issue. I do not think people ought to be considered
Republican. I do not think they ought to be considered Democrat. I
think this is a problem that our Nation faces and I think we must
come to grips with this problem as a Nation and dedicate ourselves
to its resolution.

So, with those opening remarks, again, I apologize for coming in
on the tail end, but I did have one or two questions, if I could.

Mr. WAXMAN. Sure. First of all without objection, your statement
will be put in the record at the opening of the hearing. And I want
to say personally that I welcome those remarks because we are
facing a terrible national tragedy with this epidemic and it is an
epidemic that knows no political boundaries or ideological views of
the people affected. It is one that we all have to get together on,
whatever our ides logical views, to try to combat. And I thank you
for those comments.

Mr. WAXMAN. Please go ahead with questions.
Mr. FIELDS. Dr. Haughton, just a couple of questions. And I,

again, apologize for missing your testimony, but going back to edu-
cation. It has been my experience just in talking with people in a
general way, there is so much misinformation and misunderstand-
ing about AIDS. What are you doing in regard to education? And I
know you ware talking just a moment ago about some of the money
that is being expended. But is there any coordination with volun-
teer groups going out into communities and talking about, you
know, this particular problem?

Mr. HAUGHTON. Yes. We have created a speaker's bureau jointly
with the AIDS Foundation. And epidemiologists, physicians,
nurses, health educators from that speaker's bureau are available
to speak t^ any group that requests our assistance and we also so-
licit groups that we want to talk to. One of the most important
things that has happened in Houston resulted from Dr. Koop's, the
Surgeon General's statement with regard to the education of chil-
dren about this problem. The Houston Independent School District
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got in touch with us as soon as Dr. Koop made that presentation
and asked us to assist them in developing a program to reach their
children.

Since then, we have trained all 200 of their principals. We have
helped them, together with Texas Children's Hospital and the In-
stitute for Immunological Disorders to create a 1-hour training film
for their teachers. And we are now in the process of conducting
seminars for groups of 20 to 30 of their teachers and school nurses.
And they have begun three pilot projects in three middle schools in
the city of HoustonHouston Independent School District to imple-
ment that program of teaching young people about family life,
about the problems of AIDS and how to protect themselves.

Mr. FIELDS. Besides school groups, do you feel that there has
been a response. Is there solicitation of you for your speakers to
come out and provide better information for the communities?

Mr. HAUGHTON. Yes. We have had a large number of requests
from, more recently, employee groups. Employers are asking us to
come make presentations to a group of their employees. We spoke
to the Marriott Hotel chain employees, to several banks, to the
flood control district. So, we get a lot of such calls. A lot of congre-
gations are calling us to speak to their church-related groups, both
their young people groups as well as their full congregation.

So, the word is getting around. People, even though there is still
some degree of denial, because of our numbers, it appears still that
AIDS is a gay and bisexual disease in Houston. Ninety-four percent
of our cases are still in that category. But I believe that the word is
beginning to filter down to the rest of our community that we can
no longer talk about high-risk groups. We must now begin to focus
on certain types of behavior. Because, in pursuing those behaviors,
anybody is vulnerable. And I think that word is getting around and
we are beginning to get a spark of interest from others.

I mentioned before you came that NBC had this national pro-
gram last night. We set up a phone bank here and had four epide-
miologists available to answer calls. And, in 3 hours, we got only
nine calls. I think that was because that program was on the
wrong station.

Mr. FIELDS. Let me just ask one other question. I appreciate the
Chairman's indulgence. You represent the city of Houston and you
are talking about information and it seems that you are being
fairly aggressive on this issue. What about areas within Harris
C Junty that are outside the jurisdictional boundaries of the city of
Houston, the smaller cities? In my congressional district, cities like
Baytown, Jacinto City, Galena Park and also in the unincorporat-
ed, you know who is working in those particular areas? And is
there coordination with you and other people?

Mr. HAUGETON. No. We have found very little interest in the
problem from the other five counties in our Standard Metropolitan
Statistical Area. And, as you may be aware, Congressman, those
counties include Montgomery, Ft. Bend, Brazona, Liberty and
Waller. They have very small numbers of cases. In the 3% years
that I have been in Houston, I had one call from Montgomery
County, about 1 year ago, asking me to send a speaker out. I had a
call from the health director in that county asking me to send a
speaker to speak to a community group that he had pulled tcgeth-
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er. That is the only contact that I have had from outside the city of
Houston.

Mr. FIELDS. Sir just in closing, you know, we as a Nation found a
preventative cure for polio. We had a national resolve to put a
person on the moon. And it seems that we need that same type of
resolve in this particular situation.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much. We certainly do need a
higher resolve to deal with all the ramifications of this AIDS epi-
demic. I want to thank the three of you for your presentation to us.
We appreciate it very much. We look forward to discussing the
issues further with you. Thank you.

I understand that we are going to have a microphone for the wit-
nesses. It is being set up right now. So, we will wait a second before
we call the next panel.

[Pause.]
I think we are ready now to start, again. For our next panel, I

would like to ask the following people to come forward: Reverend
William Lawson from the Wheeler Avenue Baptist Church; Mr.
Jose Perez, Gay and Lesbian Hispanics Unidas, here in Houston;
Ms. Sue Lovell, Board of Directors, AIDS Foundation, and Mr.
Chris Kihnel, President of People with AIDS Coalition. If you
would please come forward and take seats in this area with the
microphones.

We want to welcome you to our hearing this morning. We are
pleased that you are here. Your prepared statements will be part of
the record in full. We would like to ask you, if you would, to sum-
marize in no more than 5 minutes, and when the bell goes off, we
would like you to conclude your statement at that point.

We would like to start with Reverend Lawson. As I understand,
the way thethe onethere is only one microphone. And, so, after
you have concluded, just pass it along and we will hear from the
other witnesses. I understand some of the audience are having
trouble with hearing the witnesses. So, if you will pass the mike, it
will be helpful.

Reverend Lawson, pleased to welcome you.

STATEMENTS OF REVEREND WILLIAM LAWSON, WHEELER
AVENUE BAPTIST CHURCH; JOSE PEREZ, GAY AND LESBIAN
HISPANICS UNIDAS; SUE LOVELL, BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AIDS
FOUNDATION; AND CHRIS KIHNEL, PRESIDENT, PEOPLE WITH
AIDS COALITION

Mr. LAWSON. Mr. Chairman, and to Congressmen Leland and
Fields, I will probably be able to give you back part of this 5 min-
utes.

Mr. WAXMAN. Speak up. There we go.
Mr. LAWSON. I am probably the only one of the experts who is

totally inexpert. I am a pastor and do not have access to all of the
statistics and all of the data that some of my honorable colleagues
have.

Can you still not hear me? You law folks tell me that you have
to eat mikes.

I think that it goes without saying that all of us are concerned
about wh: 1- is quite clearly an epidemic. I do not think that any-
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body has any question that that it is of somewhat disastrous pro-
portions.

I, as a pastor, am doubly concerned. First, because as a Black
man, my background is in Africa, from which much of the AIDS
problem seems to have come, And, as a pastor, we are very much
concerned about our mission in the field which is in Haiti, which is
also a center of much of the AIDS problem right now.

Our conzern about AIDS as it has an effect on minorities, Blacks
and Hispanics, particularly, is one that says that there is, right
now, still not enough concern being expressed and we are very
grateful to this subcommittee for having this hearing and for
giving an opportunity for the several perspectives that are being
presented here.

But it seems to me that what we first have to realize is that we
are still looking at AIDS far too negatively. We are thinking of it
as something that does involve a certain kind of bad risk communi-
ty. And, whether we limit it to gays and drug users or whether we
think of some other high-risk groups, we have to realize that it is
also now infecting people who are neither gays nor drug users. It is
now even infecting babies. And it seems to me that anything that
has over 1,000 cases in Houston is certainly in the nature of some
kind of an epidemic.

And it bothers me that I hear the city of Houston and the State
of Texas saying that it is something that we can simply throw
$100,000 at. That is probably about the cost of one bus to run our
streets. That does not do a whole lot for this kind of disease. And
my concern is that many of the people who need the kind of educa-
tion are not now getting it.

I listened to Dr. Haughton, just a few moments ago, saying that
the city of Houston Public Health Department is doing a great deal
in the area of AIDS education; but, as I deal with people in the
ghetto, my feeling is that probably most of them would not go to
the Public Health Department. And, so, it does not surprise me
that there would be only nine phone calls that came in. When, on
the otl er hand, they see something like the AIDS Foundation,
which is a private group, that then rings a bell. And, so, they prob-
ably wows be making contact with them.

I think that there needs to be, quite clearly, a real priority
placed on some kind of education. And there needs to be, likewise,
some priority on treatment. It is not true that Blacks and Hispan-
ics and other groups within the poverty community can take care
of all of the needs involved in either learning about or treating
AIDS. And my hope is that there can be some kind of collusion be-
tween government and the private sector that can work this out.

I would certainly agree with Congressman Leland that if we need
to trim from any place, we probably need to trim from the Penta-
gon enough money to deal with something that is killing our
people at this high rate.

Some of the words that I have heard is that, while we may have
about 14,000 AIDS cases, we have go something like a million
people who have been actually infected with that disease, but are
not considered confirmed AIDS cases. I do not know whether those
figures are right or wrong, but I know that even if they are not
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accurate, they are bad figures and something needs to be done
about

I am glad to see the Government nova at least beginning to follow
up on this. Congressman Leland knows very well, as one who is
concerned about both health and hunger, that quite frequently
those concerns begin with people like entertainers. And then, final-
ly, the people who are supposed to be our elected leaders follow
suit. So, I am glad to see the Government at least expressing some
interest in this.

I am wondering if it is not possible to get the public schooland
public school systems all have some kind of Federal fundsto rec-
ognize that this ought to be some kind of budget priority for them,
serious budget priority for them. I am wondering whether or not
we ought not to be able to convince the media, which has to be reg
ulated by the Federal agency, that some of their public service
time probably needs to be given to something else besides church
programs. And I am glad about church programs, but I think that
at least some of that public service time needs to be mandated for
some way of getting to people who otherwise would not call up
about AIDS.

My hope is that there can be an aggressive program involving
Federal money, State money, local money and private money. And
I think that at this point, the governments also have Kim:: kind,
some kind of leverage on those companies that have Federal con-
tracts.

I think that there are ways, at least of getting people involved.
And my hope is that there can be the kind of involvement that can
say, "We think that AIDS is a serious problem. It is a w rious prob-
lem enough so that we can spend some concern and some dollars
on it."

I wish that I could say something that would be a lot more schol-
arly about it, but I think that you have a lot of scholarship. Mine is
just the concern of a Black man and a pastor.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Let me suggest to the audience that it would be, I think, prefera-

ble not to applaud. I think it takes away from some of the demean-
or of the hearing and, then, if you applaud when you like a state-
ment. Then, there is an inclination to boo when you do not. And
then it gets to be more of a cii cus than a congressional hearing.
But I, if I thought we ought to :-?plaud at a hearing, I certainly
would appluud that statement. It was an excellent one. Thank you
very much, Reverend Lawson.

I would like to now call on Mr. Perez.

STATEMENT OF JOSE PEREZ

Mr. PEREZ. Yes. I am from t' e Gay and Lesbian Hispanics
Unidas.

Mr. WAXMAN. Could you speak up?
Mr. PEREZ. sure. I am from the Gay and Lesbian Hispanics

Unidas. Ane we began our AIDS education, Latina Community
Prevention and Awareness Program, last year, with the AIDS
Foundation of Houston. And one of the things that we found was
that nobody knows anything about AIDS in this Latino community.
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We did a resource guide that we took into the community. We
had it published in one of the major publications, "Y Por Nation."
And what we got was a series of phone calls that was really dis-
turbing. One was from a non-English speaking mother of three who
was worried about her husband's drugIV drug abuse. All we
could do was refer her to the Montrose Clinic. And then she said
she could not talk to anyone at the Foundation. But she finally
found someone to talk to. She was scared for herself and for her
children. I mean she just had no idea of what was involved with
this.

A ..iono-lingual, Spanish-speaking homosexual male feared that a
health problem he was having had to do with AIDS. And he was
not sure and he could not find anywhere to go to find out if it was
or not.

A mono-lingual mother worried about her husband's extra-mari-
tal affairs, which she suspected included men. This woman was ex-
tremely upset. She was frightened and worried that her condition
might be having an adverse effect on her children. And, again, no
counseling. No anything for this group of people.

A non-English speaking Chicano, unmarried and childless, living
with a middle-aged Black male, both of whom are IV drug users, is
also worried about AIDS. She is worried because she does not quite
understand the problem and she suspects that something is wrong
with her own body. We informed her abc the hours of the Mon-
trose Clinic and referred her there.

This is just a sample of the calls that we have received in the
wake of the publication of the resource guide. These Latinos have
called us because we are the only available Hispanic-based organi-
zation doing anything about AIDS prevention and awareness inthis city.

The resource guide and the workshop were completely funded by
GLHU event held during New Year's Eve, which just raised a little
over $400. What these projects did uncover was the ignorance and
lack of material about AIDS which has gone into the Latino com-
munity here. It is an injustice to keep the Latino community in the
dark about this disease.

It is as if we do not exist. This is a sophisticated form of racism.
Not giving minorities the chance and the efforts of AIDS preven-
tion is an insidious form of racism which is the most difficult to
confront.

Latinos need a mass media campaign about AIDS prevention and
awareness. The media campaign must be in Spanish to insure that
it reaches every facet of the Latino community, especially the par-
ents of Latinos, who, according to most demographic studies, are
most comfortable with Spanish language material.

The need for minority based agencies to do the actual work of
minority AIDS education is crucial. The existing AIDS service pro-
viders are structured to meet the needs of the white, gay males.
Latino PWA's, on the other hand, are made up of a more diverse
group of people, including women and children. All AIDS services
for minorities must be upscaled because of the shorter life span of
minority PWA's, which, nationally, is 6 weeks for Latino PWA's, as
opposed to 2 years for everyone else.
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Counseling services are non-existent and essential to the psycho-
logical well-being of minorities. Counseling is needed to help mi-
norities in dealing with the stigma surround,' ig the common forms
of infection and the idea of death, which is so much a part of tnis
disease.

That is basically it. Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much for your testimony.
Ms. Sue Lovell.

STATEMENT OF SUE LOVELL

Ms. LOVELL. Chairman Waxman, Congressman Leland, Fields, I
welcome yon toback to Houston. It is nice to have you here.

My name is Sue Lovell. I am a board member of the Texas
Human Rights Foundation, a member of the Commissioner's State
Health Task Force on AIDS, and a member of the AIDS Founda-
tion, Houston, for the past 5 years.

As I said, I am glad to see you here today because, quite truthful-
ly, we need your help. The AIDS Foundation is the primary main-
stream AIDS service provider in the city of Houston, the fourth
most impacted city in the United States with AIDS cases.

I would like, at this time, just briefly to recognize two other serv-
ice providers in the audience: Eleanor Munger, who started Omega
House, which is a hospice where oeople can go and die with digni-
ty. And Sister Patricia, who isstarted the Children's Home,
which is a home where children that have no where to go, with
AIDS can live. They .hare the same common goals and frustrations
that we do at the AIDS Foundation.

I gave a lot of thought, today, to what I wanted to say to you. I
would like to be able to say that the AIDS Foundation is doing an
excellent job; but I cannot. We are doing the best job we can with
the resources available.

Since the AIDS Foundation was started in 1981, our two main
purposes were to provide social services for people with AIDS and
education. Our social services program currently serves 400 clients.
Our program includes a buddy system, transportation assistance,
rent subsidies, a hospital helper team, Stone Soup, our food bank,
and Macadory House, a home for indigent PWA's, which is now at
full capacityexcuse me. Which is at full capacity and recently
had to turn away two people that needed assistance in housing.

We currently have 72 new client that are waiting intake to
become clients of the Foundation. We. nave one paid staff member
that oversees this whole program.

Our education program consists of a hot line, a speaker's bureau,
which we are the ones that receives the calls to go to Baytown and
Waller and League City, and ell the other outlying areas. We have
done workshops. We have seven different brochures. We were the
first foundation in the United States to start a safe sex risk reduc-
tion program. In the past year, we have hired a minority educator,
with funding made available from grants througb the U.S. Confer-
ence of Mayors and the Chicago Resource Center.

I could go into greater detail about our education efforts and
would like to do so because everybody likes to boast about your ac-
complishments. But I would be missing a very important ,nint.
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We cannot do the massive education that has to be done in this
city because of lack of money. The most important message that we
need to convey to people is: AIDS is prevenible. But the type of
partnership that is required to prevent the spread of AIDS is not
happening in Houston nor in Texas. That is between the private
sector rnd the Government.

Two days after Surgeon General Coop addressed a joint session of
the Texas Legislature, the House Appropriations Committee voted
to allocate not one cent to AIDS education, nor to the State Health
Department's request for their AIDS program.

The city of Houston has spent only $21,000 on education between
October of 1984 and the present on education. The county which
provides hospital care and social services will be over-burdened if
the predictions come true of 9,000 cases in Harris County by 19c..;1.

I listened to Dr. Haughton this morning, and, in my heart, I
would really like to believe what he is saying. But, in my head, I
know it is not true. We, in Houston, cannot think that we will
avoid the cases into the heterosexual population, the minority com-
munities, the women, and the cases in children that other cities
have experienced.

It would be a miracle if that happened, but; unfortunately, mir-
acles do not happen in Houston, TX.

We, at the Foundation, have understood and have been con-
cerned about the effect of AIDS on minority women and children.
We know that it will take a targeted, educational program to reach
Blacks, Hispanics, Asians, women; and, in truth, every person in
Houston. But, again, this takes funding.

What we need ' your help. Today, not one Federal dollar has
come to Houston for education or patient care. That same effort
that is given to securing funding for NASA or the same planning
that goes into bringing a superconductor to Texas is needed on the
AIDS crisis in Texas.

We will provide the expertise, the knowledge, the energy, the
work, the volunteers, of which, we have 500 at our Foundation, in
help preventing this disease and caring for people with AIDS, if
you will provide us in Texas with the money that we sorely need.

You, the Federal Government, are our only help at this point.
The funding is not going to be made available from the State, city
or county. We will continue to raise money from the private sector;
but we realize these dollars are limited, especially given the state
of economy in Houston.

Without your assistance, women, children, minorities will unfor-
tunately experience the same pain and suffering and loss that we
have felt in the gay community I can tell you from a very personal
standpoint: I do not want that to happen. Thank you.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. Kihnel.

STATEMENT OF CHRIS KIHNEL
Mr. KIHNEL. Distinguished Congressmen Leland, Fields, Chair-

man Waxman, thank you for having me. If I had known the con-
text of Dr. Haughton's testimony today, as a Texan, I would have
worn my booth.
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My name is Chris Kihnel and I am a 30 year-old native Houston-
ian and Texan, and I am a person with AIDS. I am president of the
People with AIDS Coalition of Houston, operating under the aus-
pice of the National Association of People with AIDS in Washing-
ton, DC.

I was diagnosed with pneumocystis pneumonia on August 1,
1986. After three bouts of PCP, which nearly killed me, I recovered
under the care of Dr. Gary Brewden and the staff of the Institute
for Immunological Disorders. I was fortunate in having converted
my group health insurance policy to a personal policy 3 months
prior to my diagnosis after a job layoff. My policy covers every-
thing but out-patient prescription drugs, including AZT, which has
sustained my life up until now.

I o.ust find the means to pay for this drug after 2 more weeks'
grace period, since the open drug study has ended and AZT has
been approved by the FDA, and there is no local, count, State, or
Federal funding yet for indigents on AZT.

My only source of income is $627 per month Social Security Dis-
ability, out of which approximately $200 goes to my insurance cov-
erage. Due to my qualifications and my concerns as a person with
AIDS, I would like to address the concerns of AIDS in our Black
and Hispanic communities.

According to national statistics, minorities take up 41 percent of
the 33,000 confirmed cases of AIDS since 1981. Blacks and Hispan-
ics are over-represented in AIDS cases. Blacks account for 12 per-
cent of the U. S. population and 25 percent of AIDS cases. Hispan-
ics make up 10 percent of the U. S. population and account for 14
percent of the total AIDS cases. Three out of every five children
with AIDS are Black.

Based on future predictions, the minority community will contin-
ue to pay a heavy toll due to AIDS. Minorities in Houston in
Harris County are imminently affected by AIDS and will continue
to be affected in increasing numbers in the future.

Of particular concern is Black and Hispanic youth in Houston,
among many of whom sexual experimentation, IV drug use, the
use and abuse of tattoo needles, chemical inhalants and others. As
the numbers increase, so will these and many other problems.

Great attentionlocal and nationalhas been directed on Hous-
ton in Harris County and its proposed solution to the management
of the current AIDS problem as it effects indigents.

Considering the number of Blacks and Hispanics who depend
upon public hospital and medical care, the facts regarding minority
groups require an even heightened awareness by Harris County.
Currently, poor people with AIDS are provided treatment through
the Harris County Hospital District at Jeff Davis Hospital and its
16-bed AIDS facility.

There are current problems at JD's AIDS ward, including pa-
tients having been turned away because they have been told JD is
at capacity, inadequate social worker staff, inadequate equipment,
insufficient bilingual staff to service the AIDS area. Discharges are
not coordinated between social work, medical and pharmacy. Often,
family members have had to wait excessive hours due to this
breakdown.



135

The status of continued County funding for AZT and other such
life-sustaining drugs is yet undetermined.

Houston has a worldwide reputation as a medical center. The
public health care system in this part of the country is more like
Harris County's than systems in New York and California. The in-
quiring eyes of the media are focused on how we in Harris County
in Texas will mobilize to respond to these urgent needs.

I know Mr. Waxman is concerned for my needs as he is for his
own constituents in California. I met him in California. I hope Mr.
Leland and Mr. Fields will follow his example and go back to
Washington with the same compassion and dedication as my
friend, Hcnry Waxman. Thank you.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, thank you very much for those generous
words. And you can be assured by the fact that Mr. Leland and Mr.
Fields are here that they, and that I am here as wellwe want to
learn what we can from the experiences here in Houston and give
this information to our colleagues as we try to figure out the appro-
priate Federal response.

Let me ask you this question. You have insurance. You are Nork-
ing with other people who have AIDS. Are they as fortunate as you
are to have insurance?

Mr. KIHNEL. No, sir. I would say over half the people I know, or
possibly as high as 75 percent of them, are indigents and do not
have in3urance.

Mr. WAXMAN. Now, if they do not have insurance, how do they
get their health care for AIDS?

Mr. KItINEL. Well, currently, through the Harris County Hospital
District at J. D. HospitalJeff Davis Hospital.

Mr. WAXMAN. And is thatdoes that provide the whole r..mge of
services that are needed for these patients?

Mr. KIHNEL. Although the staff out there has done an exception-
al job with what they have to deal with, the quality of care is
pretty good. I have some friends that go out there. I do not person-
ally. I have some friends that go out there. And the quality of care
is good at this time. But, of course, by the end of 1991, they will not
be equipped to deal with the statisticsthe number of cases.

Mr. WAXMAN. Now, you have insurance, but you indicated your
insurance will not pay for high-riceu prescription drugs. Will they
pay for any prescription drugs?

Mr. KIHNEL. They will only pay for in-^atient prescriptions.
Mr. WAXMAN. In-patient.
Mr. KIHNEL. And, since I am health:, and my life is being sus-

tained by AZT, AZT and all my other out-patient prescription
drugs arc not covered under my insurance

Mr. WAXMAN. Now, let us say you were on Medicaid, which is
the health care delivery system for the people who have impover-
ished themselves-

Mr. KIHNEL. Yes, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Would, would tic MedicaV program ia Texas pay

for AZT?
Mr KIHNEL. No, sir, I do no believe so a t thi time.
Mr. WAXMAN. So, we are talking about a drug that means that

people can survive-
Mr. KIHNEL. Yes, sir.
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Mr. WAXMAN. with this disease. And often survive outside of
the hos_pital setting. And without this drug, people will die.

Mr. KIHNEL. That is correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. And, in Texas, under the Medicaid program, they

are not paying for this drug. What happens to those people who do
not have the drug paid for by the Medicaid program?

Mr. KIHNEL. They will die.
Mr. WAXMAN. They will die; no choice about it.
Mr. KIHNEL. Yes, sir. And, even though I have insurance and do

not qualify for Medicaid because mysupposedly, my Social Securi-
ty income is so high at $627 a month, since my insurance does not
cover it, I am considered indigent in that case, too.

Mr. WAXMAN. Ms. Lovell, your Foundation is dealing with people
who come in for services. I assume that most of the services that
the Foundation and the AIDS Clinic supply are to gay men. Is that
correct?

Mr. KIHNEL. I would say a majority, but not all.
Mr. WAXMAN. You also provide services to heterosexuals?
Mr. KIHNEL. Oh, yes, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Are people afraid to be seen going into what they

might consider a gay clinic or a gay facility?
Mr. KIHNEL. I believe that is true. We get a lot of calls on the hot

line, in fact. Probably over 50 percent of our hot line calls are from
people, heterosexual people, that want information, but are afraid
to go anywhere and get that information, so call on the hot line.

Mr. WE XMAN. If someone wanted to be tested to see if they had
the virus in their blood, in Houston, TX, where would they go?

Mr. KIHNEL. They would go to the Montrose Clinic. The other
the program at the Montrose Clinic is voluntary, anonymous test-
ing with pre- and post-test counseling. They have an excellent pro-
gram. You may go to the Institute and be tested, of which there is
a charge. But you are given the opportunity to pick either anony-
mous or confidential, of which "confidential" means a name is
taken. We have a hard time in referring people out there other
than saying, "Take it anonymously," because we all know the type
of discrimination that takes place when your name is attached to
an HIV antibody positive test: You can lose your insurance; you
can lose your job. So, we inform people, if they want to take the
test, to please take it anonymously.

Mr. WAXMAN. And do you know if there is a waiting period of
time for people to get the test if they wanted to take it?

Mr. I IHNEL. I do not know at the Clinic if there is a waiting
time, truthfully. I have not heard that there is. I know that there
was an increase in the request for testing.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Perez, you think that we need a targeted cam-
paign of AIDS education to reach the Hispanic community?

Mr. PEREZ. Yes. All Hispanics. Maybe one to even reach the gay
Latino. And, you know, the Hispanic Community. Because there is
none at the moment. People are scared out there. They are fright-
ened, you know. They do notthey get a lot of misinformation. The
Latino publications which exists here in Houston are over-wrought
with misinformation about AIDS. And they continue this, you
know, problem.

141
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Mr. WAXMAN. Well, is it that they get misinformation and they
do not think it could effect them because they think it is only a gay
disease? Or are they getting misinformation about how it is trans-
mitted?

Mr. PEREZ. I think what it is, is that the publications in most of
the Hispanic communities is not taking it serious at the moment.
There is not enough energy being put into it and that is one reason
I am here. I am not a professional educator. I am not a counselor. I
am just an activist and a concerned citizen. And we have had to
take these initiatives to educate the gay Latino and Hispanic com-
munity, in general, because of that. We do not have the profession-
als out there to do that. What we have had has been limited.

Mr. WAXMAN. All right. I thank the three of you and Reverend
Lawson for his testimony. It is clear that what is going on in Hous-
ton is not all that unique, except this city, Los Angeles, San Fran-
cisco, New York, Miami, are cities that are on the cutting edge of
this epidemic. And the rest of the country will learn from your ex-
periences and, hopefully, not from your mistakes. But, if need be,
they will have to learn from mistakes.

And one mistake is that if we do not educate people, inform
them, about what is happening with the spread of this disease, the
nurr'')ers of cases are going to multiply. And, with those people who
have AIDS, we have to make sure that they get the treatment nec-
essary.

As a humane society, w:. h the values that we hold, it is incon-
ceivable to me that we would allow people to go without the one
drug that could keep them alive. And, if we do that, then we are
giving a lie to the values that we have claimed as a society, that we
are not going to say to someone simply because they cannot afford
health care that they are going to be condemned to death.

I appreciate what you have had to tell us today. I am going to
turn over the question to Congressman Leland, and the gavel. Un-
fortunately, I have to leave to catch a plane: but Mr. Leland is
going to chair the rest of the hearing, and we will share the tran-
script of comments with our colleagues in Washington and be
mindful of what is going on here in Houston as we try to figure out
what is the appropriate Federal response. Thank you very much.

Mr. Leland.
Mr. LELAND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. If I may, having as-

sumed the position as Chair, now, dispense with the policy that has
been established earlier, just temporarily. I would like for you to
give your thanks to Henry Waxman, our Chairman. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

I am particularly concerned about the information that was
given by Dr. Haughton. I hope he is still here. But I am concerned
aboat the political implications here. While I recognize Dr.
Haughton as having spoken, not necessarily from his personal
point of view, but from his representation of the cityI am con-
cerned that, indeed, that if the city is taking an attitude that they
are not prioritizing this in the highest way, not only the current
situation with the AIDS epidemic in Houston, but the spreading of
AIDS to all of our community will continue to increase in severity.
I would like to just ask you to respond, if you will, more in full,
about the implications here: The fact that the, if Ms. Lovell's state-
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ment is correct, Houston has only spent $21,000 in this matter, and
reducing, I guess, to some extent, their commitment by $100,000 if
in fact that is the case, where they have received $100,000 from
outside sources.

What is your opinion about this in each of your cases, particular-
ly, the gentleman who has AIDS now?

Mr. K1HNEL. Well, Mr. Leland, I think that due to the lack of the
city, county and State in funding education that there is a great
deal of ignorance and fear. And I believe most of the heterosexual
community does not understand AIDS. They do not feel thet it can
effect them because of the lack of money that is being spent.

And I feel that the city of Houston has completely turned its
back on its community as far as addressing AIDS and educating its
community.

Mr. LELAND. Can you speak more specifically about the city of
Houston and why you feel that it has not responded to the extent
that it should?

Mr. KIHNEL. I think Sue could probably be more specific. All I
know is that they have not spent anything on educating the com-
munity. And that has led to ignorawe and fear.

Mr. LELAND. But it seems to me, though, that, if it is a matter of
fear, thatand I guess it is more because of the ignorancethat, if
it was 1 matter of fear, then indeed a lot of money would be spent.

Mr. KIHNEL. You would think so. You would think it would be
one of the main issues on the city council's agenda; but, instead,
they have ignored it.

Mr. LELAND. Ms. Lovell, would you like to respond?
Ms. LOVELL. Yes. I mean certainly the city has not paid the type

of attention to this problem, nor is it a priority. That was verbal-
ized today. Given the state of the economy in Texas and the finan-
cial problems that we are facing, you need to prioritize. There is
money available through the Federal Government in which this
city could go and secure to do the type of educational programs
that need to be done.

Given the statistics in Houston, right now, of 95-96 percent of
the cases still involve gay men, I believe that the general popula-
tion is beginning to understand that this is not just a disease that
affects gay men, but a disease which will infect them.

But I do not think they have quite gotten it, yet, and, especially,
when they listen to statistics. What needs to take place is the lead-
ership from this city needs to point out to the general population
that, indeed, it is a problem for them. And that they need to be
educated and, through education, they can prevent the spread of
this disease.

Given those statistics that we have, we are in a unique position
here in Texas to really show that education, indeed, can stop the
spread of the disease. With the statistics of 95-96 percent, if we had
a well-organized, well-funded educational program to the minority
communitywomen, the general population, teenagerswe might
be a model in showing that education does cut down the numbers.
It is effective.

We have a particular difficulty with the Black community. It is
perceived as a white person's disease. Unfortunately, we have lead-
ers like Reverend Lawson that are standing up and speaking out.
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But one person cannot do it alone. It will take a community effort
from the Black community. It will take targeted, specialized pro-
grams into those communities, not just a general informational
brochure.

The Hispanic community faces particular problems simply be-
cause of a language barrier, different cultural problems. And, quite
truthfully, the influence of the churchthat will make it particu-
larly difficult in educating and getting them to understand that
this can effect them, but they can prevent it from happening.

Women need to take it seriously. Especially, we have seen the
numbers effecting women of child-bearing age. I take that, you
know, quite seriously. And so should everyone.

Sc, quite frankly, the leadership in this city needs to stand up
and say, "This is a problem. And we are going to do somet*
about it. And so are you. And we are going to show you how to pre-
vent yourselves from getting that disease."

If that happened, we might withstand those stat tics that Dr.
Haughton would like to have.

Mr. LELAND. I understand. Let me, before you pass the micro-
phone, let me ask you: Were you involved in the testimony at allbefore the State legislature in an effort to try to get legislation
passed where more funds would be or funds would be allocated by
the State of Texas targeting this problem for resolution?

Ms. LOVELL. Yes, sir. I was involved with that.
Mr. LELAND. What was the prevailing attitude that you confront-

ed with the State legislature in this matter?
Ms. LOVELL. I think the prevailing attitude was the getting

caught up on the statistics, again, of 95-96 percent gay men and IV
drug users. And it seemed to be a real lack of concern simply be-
cause IV drug use is illegal. And, in the State of Texas, we do have
a sodomy law. So, it was like, "We cannot justify giving this
amount of money in hard times to two groups of people which are
really considered criminals."

I do not think that they understood that this disease isn't just
limited to that group and we are very concerned about this ticking
time bomb.

Mr. LELAND. If I may, and it might be conjecture on r part, but
having served in the body of the State legislature fore years, it
seems to me that by nowand I have been out of that body for
now 9 yearsthat it would have evolved to contemporary times in
1987 when, in fact, our legislators should realize that even if those
who are affected by this terrible, terrible disease are, as far as they
perceive, undesirable, that in fact they should know that an epi-
demic of this kind is pervasive and. thus, affects the universal pop-
ulation of our cityour State, rather.

I just findI find it very difficult to understand their non-re-
sponse to this very serious problem.

Ms. LOVELL. So do we.
Mr. KIHNEL. So do we.
Ms. LOVELL. Yes. This is kind of where a trickle down theory

comes into effect and is very effective. Obviously, there is homopho-
bia in the Texas House. Because of that there is no money allocat-
ed, which means that because of homophobia, peopleminorities,
women, childrenalso suffer. So, it trickles down from homophobia
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and then because of homophobia, it really cuts off the care and
help that other groups of people need. And that is really unfortu-
nate. But they are not past that, yet, unfortunately.

Mr. LELAND. Mr. Perez.
Mr. PEREZ. Well, I would just like to comment on Dr. Haughton's

remarks about having done some considerable work into the city of
Houston regarding AIDS. All the past 2 weeks we have looked for
materials on AIDS, pamphlets and other documents in Spanish,
and it is almost non-existent. I think the only pamphlets I have
seen are the Foundationthe AIDS Foundation's, here in Houston,
that have published their, I think three of the Spanish language
pamphlets. The city of Houston has not provided anything. I have
not seen anything anywhere in any of the multi-service, purpose-
service centers or any of the other city facilities. There just has not
been any real effort from the city. And I do not believe there will
be unless they are really nudged into it.

Mr. LELAND. Well, let me just thank all three of you for your
participation and for the record, Reverend Lawson, for his partici-
pation, also. You have been invaluable to the Congress of the
United States. And let me assure you that your testimony will be
very highly regarded. And, for the purpose of the record, too, I
would like to insert into the record, without objection, an article
that is dated March 1987, that was written by Miss Allison Cook, I
think her name is, in "Texas Monthly Magazine" dated March
1987. I think it corroborates to some extent what has been said
here with this panel.

[The material referred to follows:]
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Mr. LELAND. I want to thank you Very much.
Ms. LovEnn. Thank you.
Mr. LELAND The Chair would now like to ask that Dr. Peter

Mansell from the Institute for Immunological Disorders and Dr.
Robert Awe, from Jefferson Davis Hospital, please come forward
for your testimony.

Let me welcome both of you. Let me also apologize for the neces-
sity for the Chairman to have left by this time, He assured me ',hat
he was as interested in your testimony as those who had appeared
before you and, indeed, will look at your testimony, as a matter of
record, when this record is completed. And for the purpose, 4.=, of
your testimony, the entirety of the testii.'ony of the Subcommittee
on Health and Environment of the Energy and Commerce Commit-
tee will also be made available. Your testimony will have been
available to the membership therein and to those who are con-
cerned about this very dire, dire problem.

Dr. Mansell, you may proceed.

STATEMENTS OF PETER MANSELL, INSTITUTE FOR IMMUNOLO-
GICAL DISORDERS; AND ROBERT J. AWE, CHIEF, PULMONARY
MEDICINE, JEFFERSON DAVIS HOSPITAL

Mr. MANSELL. Congressman Leland, it is a pleasure to--
Mr. LELAND. You might want to hold it very close, Dr. Mansell.
Mr. MANSELL. There is a switch. If all else fails, follow the direc-

tions. I speak about as softly as you do. It is a pleasure to meet ycu.
again.

I must admit that I sometimes wonder if I live in the same city
as Dr. Haughton.

But without going into that in any greater detail, I must say that
I find some of his wishes highly desirable, but some of the facts on
which he appears to base them are rather questionable.

I do disagree with him intensely about his implication that M. D.
Anderson, which is the State cancer center, abandoned AIDS pa-
tients. This, in fact, is not the case at all. And the Institute, in
which I have the honor to work, is a marriage between American
Medical International, a private hospital owned company, and the
University of Texas and M. D. Anderson Hospital and Tumor Insti-
tute, which still employs me, I am glad to say.

I think that I would like by way of testimony to give a very brief
outline of the history of the AIDS epidemic as I see it in Texas. We
saw our first case at M. D. Anderson of a person with AIDS in No-
vember of 1981. And 2 months later opened a clinic at M. D. An-
derson. And, in the course of the last 5 years, we have seen 1,400
referred people with AIDS or with AIDS-related diseases.

In September 1986, the clinical activity, I was moved to a new
location, the Institute for Immunological Disorders And we are
currently seeing almost 400 new cases of people refers ed at that In-
stitute and our current modus operandi philosophy of looking after
people, as I think is becoming more common, is to put the great
emphasis on out-patient care. We currently see ever 1,000 out-pa-
tient visits a month and never have more than approximately 15
or, at most, 20 in-patients.

1 A
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And this, I think, is important because of cost considerations on
the one hand and also because of the dignity and the quality of
care that can be given at home as opposed to in the hospital.

Very recently, to my great regret and that of my colleagues, too,
AMI, that owns the physical facility, was forced to insist that we
see no new unfunded patients. And the reason for that, I think, is
important to point out that AMI has spent $2.5 million on unfund-
ed, indigent care between the beginning of September 1986 and
March 1987, without any help from Federal, State, county or city
sources.

Now, I mayand, indeed, I do regret this necessity enormously
and hope that it will only be temporary. But I think it points out
the dire problem that we have in this country and in Texas.

In January of 1982, my colleague, Dr. Guy Newell and I rang the
Texas Department of Healtir in Austin to tell them that we
thought, given what little we knew about AIDS at that stage, that
Texas was likely to have a serious problem in the future. And, now,
Texas is the fourth State and Houston the fourth city with num-
bers of people with AIDS. And is still, so far as I am aware, apart
from Dr. Bernstein's panel, which is a bright spot in an otherwise
very murky situation, there really is no planning and no funding.
And, indeed, there may actually be negative planning and negative
funding, if that is something that one can think about.

What I think bothers me even more than that is that given what
we know about the incubation period of this disease and the laten-
cy period, all those individualsmaybe 10,000 in Houston or in
Texas who will be sick in 1991, are already infected by the virus.
And we have so far nc capability of caring or ameliorating the ef-
fects of that infection.

The necessity for education as a means for prevention is enor-
mous. We have an educational activity at the Institute of which I
am very proud. I was a founding hoard member of the AIDS foun-
dation and was, at least in part, instrumental in helping some of
the early and I think excellent educational programs that that or-
ganization began and continues.

Clearly, we need to educate people. Clearly, the heterosexual
population and the teenage school population is of tremendous
need of intelligent, factual, well-delivered, effective education. And,
frankly, I do not see that happening, other than as a result of the
city auspices, county auspices or State auspices.

Finally, a word about the proble n that indigent patients have. In
our clinic, when people came to the clinic at diagnosis, before we
had to stop seeing unfunded patients, approximately 12 percent
had no funding. The problem really is that as the disease pro-
gresses, as employment is lost, as insurance is lost, that percentage
rises to well over 50 percent. And, unless something can be done to
provide humane, effective, economic care for these people, I person-
ally agree with the Hasting's Center report in October of last year
which proposes that AIDS may be the one thing that drives this
country's health care system into socialized medicinea thing
which I personally would applaud, but is regarded as heresy by a
lot of my colleagues.

The program at the Institute for Immunological Disorders con-
sists mainly in clinical research. We are attempting, as best we
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can, with an aid of a contract from the National Institute for Aller-
gy and Infectious Diseases, to look for drugs other than, but
common with, AZT, and other agents which I will not go into de-
tails, to try to prevent and to treat this disease.

We have an educational and a basic research arm. We have a
prevention activity. We may, I hope, be one of the first, if not the
first places to mount a trial of a vaccine against this virus. We
have a screening clinic and we also have a hot line. And I hope
very much that these activities can continue to help the people of
Texas and surrounding States. Thank you.

Mr. LELAND. Dr. Awe.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT AWE

Mr. AWE. Thank you.
Human infection in the indigent minority and majority popula-

tion of Houston, if current projections are correct, will soon raise
the cost of care to these patients to a prohibitive level in this
county.

At present, 20 to 30 percent of the medicine beds at Jefferson
Davis Hospital are occupied by AIDS patients. About 30 to 40 per-
cent of our AIDS patients are minorities. I have 'le strong impres-
sion that my Black and Hispanic patients are not as well-informed
as are the whites about AIDS prevention and the resources avail-
able once they are d!agnosed. More innovative education is needed
to reach these groups.

Due to current Texas law, only a small minority of indigent pa-
tients can depend on State assistance to pay medical expenses. The
public hospitals in counties lucky enough to have them must
budget for this loss. Relief from the Texas legislature is a fantasy.

One and only one possibility exists that can currently stem this
inevitable tide. And that is AZT. About 40 percent of AIDS pa-
tients at Jeff Davis, who are on AZT, are minorities. The cost of
this drug is very high. And the taxpayers of the county currently
are the only ones who are paying for it.

However, only three or four of the patients seen at Jeff Davis
last year were born in this county, and only a handful of AIDS pa-
tients seen and paid for through the county facilities are from
Texas. The medical staff at Jeff Davis is happy to take care of
these patients. And we admire their struggle to fight against the
impossible odds of this disease. But this fight is costly, both emo-
tionally and financially.

I do not think that the city and county officials of the dozen or so
of the major cities devastated by this epidemic should be asked to
bear the cost, alone. The sons and daughters of small town Amer-
ica came to the big cities because they wanted a brighter life, less
encumbered by small town prejudice. They came by the thousands
and they have died by the thousands.

In their exuberti.ice of freedom, they were struck down by a
virus that no one knew existed. One to 2 million people in this
country, we assume or think, are infected with this virus. How
many of these will develop disease is uncertain; but it may be as
high as 50 percent.
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We have to stop it from spreading further. AIDS is a very simple
div:ase not to get. But it is a very expensive disease to treat. AIDS
is a national trauma and requires national mobilization and coop-
eration. Rapid Medicare funding of newly diagnosed patients is des-
perately needed. Better drugs than AZT are in sight. But, for now,
assistance must be given to those who cannot afford to pay for it.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Awe follows:]

STATEMENT OF ROBERT J. AWE

The problem of HIV infection among the minorities and medically indigent of
Houston and Harris County, Texas. has not yet reached such proportions that it has
overwhelmed the County Hospital District but if the current predictions of its in-
crease are correct, it soon will.

At present, t' - pulmonary medicine floor at Jefferson Davis Hospital has 54 beds.
Eight of the beds are in the AIDS Unit, but it is always full and usually four to
eight more beds are utilized by AIDS patients. This is despite a short average length
of stay for it patients and increased out-patient treatment for their opportunistic
infections.

If this population of patients increases as projected, (estimated 10,000 cases in
Harris County by 1991) the number of beds will have to increase considerably. Con-
tingency plans are in lace but will be extremely expensive.

In 1986, 146 AIDS patients were admitted to our hospital; 30 were black, 25 were
Hispanic, and 91 were white. Clearly, AIDS is affecting the minority population as
well as the white risk groups and an increased effort to reach the black and Hispan-
ic populations with effective education is needed.

The average cost per patient day is $540 at Je'rerson Davis Hospital. Only two of
the 146 people admitted in 1986 were "paying pe -ents" . rough Medicaid. Most of
our patients have worked before they got sick. Thus they . ,alify for Social Security
Disability and, in Texas if their Social Security Disability :.neck is greater than $340
per month, the Medicaid is stopped which means they have no medical coverage.
They will not qualify for Medicare until they have been disabled for 2 years and
most will not live for that long.

One, and only one, possibility exists at present that may stem the inevitable tide
of HIV infected patients progressing into AIDS. And this is Retrovir (AZT). Current-
ly, 35 patients at Jefferson Davis are on this drug and the results are truly remark-
able. Only three patients on AZT for greater than 6 weeks have had to be readmit-
ted, and all were for short stays (less than 5 days). Of the 35 patients, 9 are black, 6
are Hispanic, and 20 are white.

The Harris County Hospital District has budgeted $500,000 to pay for AZT for
next year because we projected about 50 patients would be on it by then. However,
with the recent release of Retrovir (the new trade-name for AZT) to a larger popula-
tion, it is probable that well over 100 patients with AIDS will be placed on this drug
in the next 6 months, at a cost of ever $1 million. Although it caa be justified that it
is cost-sffective to spend $10,000 per year per patient to keep them relatively
healthy and out of hospitals, it will still place an overwhelming burden on the tax-
payers of this county.

I am afraid that many lower income patients who are now working but have inad-
equate insurance coverage will become medically indigent because of the high cost
of AZT. They will come into the public hospital system to obtain this life-sustaining
drug. I do not feel the local government of the major cities (New York, San Francis-
co, Los Angeles, Houston, etc.) should have the burden of this epidemic alone.

AIDS is a national problem. It requires national coordination and mobilization. I
strongly urge that AIDS patients be eligible for Medicare soon after the diagnosis is
made, and that the cost of AZT be covered, at least partly, under this program.

Mr. LELAND. Does the Institute accept patients whose only source
of payment is Medicaid?

Mr. MANSELL. Yes.
Mr. LELAND. Where do you refer patients without insurance?
Mr. MANSELL. Well, apparently, there is only one place in this

area that I am aware of. And that is Dr. Awe's clinic at Jefferson
Davis. I think that pi;ople who have the ability to travel can go
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down to the John Sealy Hospital in Galveston, but that is a consid-
erable way. And the facilities are limited there, as well.

Mr. LELAND. What percent of the Institute's beds are occupied on
most days?

Mr. MANSELL. Well, we have the capability, currently, of looking
at about 80-75 to 80 in-patients. We have never had more than
about 20. And that is partly due to our philosophy, which is, as I
pointed out, is to try to keep people out of the hospital in order to
look after them, I think, better and more humanely and reduce
costs.

Mr. LELAND. Does your Institute receive Federal or State assist-
ance in providing care or in preforming research?

Mr. MANSELL. We have a contract from the National Institute of
Allergy and Infectious Diseases which pays some salaries and some
supplies for basic research and clinical research, but nothing relat-
ed to patient care. We have managed to get funds, in some cases,
from private pharmaceutical companies to cover some patient-re-
lated costs. But they barely or seldom cover anythir7 other than
sort of bare minimum costs.

Mr. LELAND. Let me ask Dr. Awe.
Dr. Awe, roughly, what proportion of your AIDS patients have

insurance?
Mr. AWE. None of them. By definition, to come to the county hos-

pital, they cannot have insurance.
Mr. LELAND. Are they Medicaid beneficiaries?
Mr. AWE. Well, see, that is the problem with Texas law. They

as soon as they are diagnosed as AIDS, they get on Medicaid. But,
most of the AIDS patients have worked and have had jobs and
have paid into Social Security. Within 5 months of being disabled,
they then get their disability through the Federal Government and
Medicaid is cut off. When they get their Social Security Dimoility,
th:s does not cover hospital care, so, that only a very small n amber
of so-called "patients"our patients at Jeff Davispay. Even
through Medicaid, it has been run out by then.

Mr. LELAND. In that light, they are related to the gentleman who
spoke earlier who was or is an AIDS victim?

Mr. AWE. That is correct.
Mr. LELAND. Who pays for the care of people with no insurance

or Medicaid?
Mr. AWE. The taxpayers of Harris County.
Mr. LELAND. To what extent lE that allowed over a period of

time?
Mr. AWE. I am sorry, I do not understand the question.
Mr. LELAND. Well, the question is: How long, how many of

theseare all patients allowed to come in to the Harris County
Hospital?

Mr. AWE. No, sir. They are not. There are very strict require-
ments to get indigent care in this county. Number 1, obviously, you
have to be indigent. Number 2, you have to have been a resident of
Harris County for at least 3 weeks. And you have to prove that.

And, so, what we have is problems with patients coming from
surrounding counties with AIDS, who we cannot take care of
unless they are, you know, literally at death's door, because they
are not residents of Harris ronnty.
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And it is my understanding that John Sealy in Galveston will
not take patients from most counties in Texas. They only take
them from three or four of the surrounding counties of Galveston.
So, it is a tremendous problem for patients coming from outside of
Harris County to get care anywhere, particularly, if they are indi-
gent.

Mr. LELAND. Will John Sealy take patients from Harris County?
Mr. AWE. No, sir. They will not.
Mr. LELAND. They will not. Then that goes right to the heart of

the concern of my colle.,gue, Mr. Fields, who was concerned about
those outside of Harris County.

Mr. AWE. Absolutely.
Mr. LELAND. When-
Mr. AWE. I am sorry.
Mr. LELAND. No. I just wanted to find out where they gQ, then, if

they cannot get help here in Harris County or in Galveston
County?

Mr. AWE. Right nor , I do not think there is any place they can
go. I really do not. I think this is why it is so important that the
Federal Government realize that this is a National problem. And
the only solution that I know of is to get these folks on Medicare,
which is Federally funded, as early as they can. Right ---, they
can get on Medicare if they have been disabled for 2 years. But, as
yo'i well know, most patients with AIDS do not survive 2 yea.-s. So,
very rarely, do they live long enough to even get on it.

Mr. LELAND. SO, then, there are people out there who are literal-
ly at the brink of death ar.d .,onie who have died because they do
not have access to the kind of care that is provided through the
countythrough the Harris County Hospital District?

Mr. AWE. I am convinced that that is true, ye-
Mr. LELAND. Whatmaybe I should askwell, before I ask this

question of both of you, let me ask: Roughly, what percent of your
hospital'syou said 20 to 30 percent; is that right? The Farris
County Hospital District?

Mr. AWE. And that is just medicine beds, obviously. Jeff Davis is
really, mainly, an OB hospital. It is the largest obstetric hospital in
the whole country. But the seventh floor of Jeff Davis is a medi-
cineof course, it is part of the Baylor program: Baylor teaching
hospital. And there is about 55 medicine beds. And about 20 per-
cent of them all are usupily occupied by AIDS patients.

Mr. LELAND. And what percent of them are minorities?
Mr. AWE. It runs around 30-40 percent are minorities. When I

made rounds Saturday, there were 10 AIDS patients in the house.
Eight were Black, one was Hispanic and one was white. But, again,
that was an unusual weekend. But it usually runs more like 40
percent.

Mr. LELAND. About 40 percent.
Mr. AWE. Right.
Mr. LELAND. Let me ask you something. I hear the resounding

cry for politicians who are in positions of authority to do something
about this in the State, Federal and local governments. Let me just
ask you: What is your admonition to us, those of us who have some
ability to hopefully do something about this program?

I
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Mr. AWE. WE II, it just seems to me, as I said in my opening com-
ment, that the citiesthe big cities like Houston and Sa- Francis-
co and New York and Los Angeles are having to pay exorbitant
amounts of money to take care of these folks. And as Iwe just are
not going to have the money in Harris County. If it is true that we
are going to have 10,000 people by 1991, we are going to have to
open up huge numbers of new beds and hire new staff to take care
of these folks. And it looks now like those predictions are going to
be accurate. And we are going to have to go, I guess, to the county
taxpayers and ask them for more property taxes.

But I do not think it is fair that Houston and the residents of
Harris County have to pay all of this cost. I think this is a Nation-
al, Federal problem.

Mr. LELAND. Now, Dr. Awe, you are talking aboutyou are talk-
ing about patient care, now. And, on top of that, we are talking
about preventive measures like education.

Mr. AWE. That is true.
Mr. LELAND. We are talking about even a more massive amount

of money.
Mr. AWE. That is true. It is very expensive, but it is something

that has to be done. These people are dying and probatly most of
the ones that are infected are going to eventually get the disease.
And, once they get the disease, they are very hard to take care of
and it :s very costly.

Mr. LELAND. I am concerned that the State legislature has done
what it has done. Do you think that this problem is priority enough
to the extent that we ought to expect and hope that the Governor
of the State of Texas will call a special sessionit seems that since
this session of the legislature is so far spenttargeting or at least
prioritizing this issue as one that should be regarded as substantial
enough for the Governor to pay that kind of attention?

Mr. AWE. Well, I do not know if I could recommend they have a
special session. All I can say is: We went to them and asked them
just to help us pay for AZT, which we estimate Harris County,
alone, is going to cost $1 million in the next year, out of our local
hospital budget just to support AZT for our indigent patients,
which we, of course, intend to do. But, when we went there, they
just said it is Houston's problem. It is not problem as far as Texas
is concerned, not considering the fact that when Houston was the
boom town, people came from all over the country to this city. And,
now, many of ,.hem have AIDS.

Mr. LELAND. Well, the last I looked, I did not realize that Hous-
ton had seceded from Texas.

Mr. AWE. That is what they said. They said, "It is Houston's
problem. I will not fund this."

Mr. LELAND. Well, let me ask you so' ething, Dr. Awe. Have you
appealed to the Harris County delegation to the State legislature,
which at one pointat one time in history, was reputed to be the
most powerful delegation in the State legislature.

Mr. AWE. We have written letters asking Mrs. Moore, who is the
Administrator at Jeff Davis, went up there personally and testified,
asking for help. And they, just, to say the least, were unsympathet-
ic with our problems.
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Mr. LELAND. Well, may I suggest something to you. And I guess
this is outside the purview of my responsibilities as a legislator in
Washington, but I think it is my responsibility as an aspiring hu-
manitarian, and that is that you might call on the Harris County
delegation to the State legislature to do all that they can to rectify
this horrible situation that has been imposed by the State legisla-
ture by its inaction.

Mr. AWE. Yes, sir. We will certainly try that.
Mr. LELAND. Dr. Mansell, do you have any other comments you

would like to make?
Mr. MANSELL. Well, I think from the Federal point cf view, set-

ting aside more local considerations, one thing that is terribly im-
portant is that the decision of the high court last year somehow be
set aside: that employers can fire employees whom they think pose
a health threat to the rest of the work force. This has adversely
affected people with AIDS to a tremendous extent.

Because, of course, what happens following that is these poor in-
dividuals lose their health insurance and even the provisions of the
Cober Act are totally inadequate, since they usually cannot afford
to pay their own health insurance.

I absolutely agree with everything that Dr. Awe said. I think
that until the legislature and, perhaps most importantly of all, the

ple of Texas realize that this is a problem that affects every-
y, regardless of race, color, creed, sexual preference, or any-

thing else, we are really not going to get very far.
I had the gooci fortune to attend a breakfast at the Governor's

House at which Surgeon General Koop was a guest. And I over-
heard a conversation from one of the Harris County legislators
with him complaining about the fact that if money were given to
solve theas he put it, "AIDS problem," then money would have
to be taken away from crippled children and our cancer p-tients.
And how would one not be able to make the kind of choice that he
was suggesting?

And I think that it is this attitude--more than anything else
which caused the disallowment or non-voting or negative legisla-
ture on the part of Austin on funds to help people with AIDS.

Mr. LELAND. It looks like we have to begin our education pro-
gram with our politicians.

Mr. MANSELL. Are you going to open this to other people on the
floor? Is that a question I can ask off the record or not?

Mr. LELAND. Well, no. You are very welcome t' ask any question
of the Chair thai you so desire. We have very serious time con-
straints. The recorder and the Chairman's assistant both have ti
get back to Washington, and, as an official hearing, we muc
adhere to the parameters that were set out prior to the heorinu
time.

Let me suggest to you that what I can do, as an adjunct to this
hearing and I will plan to do that because I understand that there
are many concerns here that we have not, in Houston, adequately
covered this topic, that this Member of Congress, and hopefully
with the concerns that Congressman Fields has represented here,
today, we will further pursue this matter by having possibly a
county-wide hearing, or even with the concerns that Representa-
tive Fields has with those who are outside the county, to whatever

II
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practical extent that we can, we will hold an informal hearing on
this matter or hearings en this matter in order that we can get the
full participation of those who would want to participate.

This is not just a "Show and Tell" one-time affair, as far as I am
concerned. This is something that we are going to have to concern
ourselves with over a long period of time. And this one Member of
Congress, anyway, is committed to further pursuing this matter.

It has been over a year, now, that we have asked the Chair to
come and participate in a hearing like this because of budget con-
straints. I might add that we were hit as hardthose of us who are
Chairs of committees and subcommittee Chairs were hit as hard
with the Gramm-Rudman perpetration, if you will, as anybody.
And, because of that, we were unable to travel to do many of the
field hearings that we wanted to do last year.

Things have loosened up to some extent and to that extent we
want to pursue this matter further. We want to do some onsite
visits, as well as holding further testimony and doing open forums
so that we can get a greater participation. We apologize to those of
you, by the way, in the audience who would want to participate at
this hearing. But, hopefully, you will bear with us and understand
that we are committed and that this is invaluable. This has been
an invaluable hearing and hopefully it will illuminate the problem
in the city cf Houston to the extent that we will get some response
for the powers that be.

With that, let me just thank the two witnesses who have ap-
peared here. Let me thank all of you. Again thank Texas Southern
University for hosting this, and more particularly, Gene Harring-
ton, who has been most gracious in facilitating this opportunity for
us, today.

Let me just say that some of the problems that we have incurred,
tcoalso illuminate another problem. And that is that Texas
Southern still remains, to some great extent, the bastard college of
Cie college system of this State. And some of those problems that
we have incurred today have been because of the lack of resources
provided Texas Southern University.

And, as an alumnus of this very distinguished institution, let me
say that I hope that in the future we will have this proportionate-
lyespecially regarding the past transgressions on the part of the
C71.211X legibiLitarewe will have proportionately the adequate funds
to run this institution as a first-level institution in our State. The
first level institution that indeed it is, at least in terms of the facul-
ty and administration and the student body that matriculates here.

I thank all of you. The Congress will continue to monitor the sit-
uation and th3 Chairman, of course, is an outstanding leader in
this area of concern and I associate myself to the extent that I am
as committed to doing as much as I can as the Chairman is.

Let me also issue one more admonition. Since I am a Member of
the United States Congress who has a parochial interest in the city
of Houston in that I represent at least 525,000 citizens of the city of
Houston, and that is that, while we do concern ourselves wi'h the
spreading problem of AIDS amongst the heterosexual and minority
communities, that indeed we should notjust because that prob-
lem is spreading to other communities, we should not ignore the
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very serious humanitarian problem of ignoring the problems of the
homosexual community of our city, or State and our country.

I think that we should have heeded the call a long time ago, re-
gardless of the sexual preference of anybody who has been affectee
or afflicted by this incredible disease.

We represent a country that is based on the moral authority in
the world That we hopefully assume. We recognize that there are
many faults with our system. And we hope to correct them. But I
think that first and foremost, when any segment of our human so-
ciety is at risk, this country should indeed pursue trying to resolve
those problems as quickly as possible and as effectively as possible.

So, with that, let me just thank all of you for your participation
and hope that America will indeed become America for all of its
people.

Thank you very much.
[Whereupon, at 11:55 a.m., the hearing was adjourned, to recon-

vene at the call of the Chair ]
[The following statement was submitted for the record:]

STATEMENT OF AIDS FOUNDATION HOUSTON BY MICHAEL B. WILSON, PRESIDENT
EMERITUS

Having AIDS anywhere is a physical, emotional, financial, and personal tragedy
Living with AIDS in Houston is pv "ctuated by an apparent lack of concern, compas-
sion, and response from those pub, and private agencies we expected to come for-
ward with help.

Since 1982, we have knocked on every door at City Hall; we have been told repeat-
edly that such a health issue is sot the responsibility of the city government. We
have beaten the trail from health departments to health-related funding agencies;
we have been told that AIDS was not a problem in Housto We have prepared edu-
cational materials on AIDS prevention to be informed such efforts were lewd and
disgusting. We have developed and offered training programs, brochures, and policy
manuals for businesses, school districts, and public health agencies only to have
them tabled by frightened administrators. II the vacuum, we developed our own
social service, assistance, counseling, and educational programs to fill in the gaps.
All were funded by the efforts of community volunteers.

Other than Federal social security and a few minimal county and State programs
for the near-indigent, the prospects for a person with AIDS in Houston are bleak.
I've heard it said, "If you're gonna get AIDS in Houston, you'd better be rich or
well-insured."

For the Houston AIDS victim who has had insurane canceled, lost his job, or for
whatever reason become indigent, there is precious little hope for medical care and
treatment other than the strained resources of the county hospital district and the
State cancer hospital.

And the list of special problem of living with AIDS in Houston goes on and on
from dealing with workplace harassment to backlashes from our conservative com-
munity, from the lack of intermediate nursing care facilities to difficulty getting
around our sprawling metropolis, from getting legal help to finding affordable coun-
seling, and from buying groceries and cooking meals to finding a place to live when
you're out of money. Where are the public funds to solve these problems, to support
social services, to provide education, and to help the person with AIDS live and the
with dignity? Where do you turn in a city that ignores you? Where do you hide in a
community that shuns you?
Investigational Drug Protocols

The policies, pr 'cedures, and bureaucratic sluggishness of the Food and Drug Ad-
ministration (FDA) and National Institutes of Health (NIH) have delayed important
human trials of investigational drugs to treat AIDS. At the same time, such regula-
tions have kept experimental treatments away from patients who desperately need
them. S ,ch problems, at a time when the deadly epidemic continues to expand, is
leaving researchers dismay& and patients distraught.

Perhaps the most significant issue involves the insistence on prospective, parallel,
placebo-controlled chase III clinical trials for drugs shown effective and srfe in

r
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phase I and II trials. While such conservative forms of scientific study serve to pro-
tect patients from untoward side effects, drug interactions, and other unknown
sources of harm and also serve to validate the scientific merit of such trials, this
epidemic demands a more rapid and innovatis a response from the involved Federal
agencies. Further restrictions, requirements, and exclusions denying patients drugs
are based upon narrow and conflicting clinical definitions, concomitant therapies,
and combinations with other investigational drugs in patients commonly needing
cancer chemotherapy and/or antibiotic treatment for infectious diseases.

In the face of a fast-growing, infectious, life-threatening epidemic predicted to af-
flict twc, million Americans by 1991, it occurs to many of us that we must have the
courage to move from traditional activities which have served us well in the past to
a position that is dictated by the present and required by the future. There are sci-
entifically-acceptable methods of testing these investigational drugs which are more
humane. AIDS demands such innovations.

And finally, there are overwhelming practical concerns to consider. One is simply
adequate funding of these drug trials as quickly as possible in hopes of finding
useful treatments before the epidemic expands to horrifying proportions, overbur-
dening our health care and social service systems Another very real practical con-
cern is that potential participants in drug research protocols, facing impending suf-
fering and death, and aware of restrictions, exclusions, and placebo controls, are
seeking alternative ways of improving their health and survival. This exodus from
research centers leaves drug trials stifled, and in the long run, we may all suffer the
consequences.

.;. * " (_,



IAIDS ISSUES
AIDS Research and Education

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 1987

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met at 2:10 p.m., pursuant to notice, in room
2123, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Henry A. Waxman
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting of the subcommittee will come to
order.

When this subcommittee first began its hearings on AIDS in
1982, the questions of research funding were controversial. Dollars-
and-cents analysis were required for each proposal. Panels of scien-
tific witnesses were needed to challenge the adequacy of budgets.

Thankfully, those times are behind us. AIDS research funding is
supported broadly. No one needs to be convinced of the need for
such activity.

Likewise, w' en it was first proposed, AIDS educationaimed at
specific groups and the public at large, this was all extremely divi-
sive at that time. Assuming that AIDS would only strike homosex-
ual men and drug abusers, public education was said to be too hot
to handle. When the Surgeon General proposed to tell school chil-
dren about AIDS, he was deserted by many of his political friends.
When a debate on a Sunday news show turned to condoms, it was
the first time that word had been used on the air.

To some extent, those times are also behind us. Most people are
convinced of the need for AIDS education, and most are prepared
to be candid. No one believes that the same messages are needed
for third graders as are used for drug addicts, but almost everyone
agrees that targeted information is necessary.

Today's hearings are to start the second generation of this work.
Having demonstrated that AIDS research is necessary, we must
now make the government support work quickly and well. Having
understood that everyone should be educated about AIDS, we must
now make the lessons widespread, clear, and effective.

No doubt there will continue to be controversies about bureau-
cratic structures, about budgets, and about who should educate
whom about what.

But we are making progress in the politics of AIDS, and I hope
that over the next few months, we will make dramatically more.

(155)
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Before calling on our witnesses, I want to recognize members of
the subcommittee for opening statements, and first I want to call
on the ranking minority member of the subcommittee, Mr. Mad-
igan.

Mr. MADIGAN Ir. Chairman, I think I have just unplugged
somebody's microphone down here, and I apologize for that to who-
ever the owner of the microphone is.

Mr. Chairman, the vast bulk of Federal dollars earmarked for
the AIDS crisis has been used to fund research. A significantly
smaller amount has been dedicated for education and information
programs. Almost none has been dedicated to public health regula-
tion of the crisis.

While I recognize that the focus of today's hearings is research
and education, I would be remiss if I did not point out the recent
actions taken in my State of Illinois to deal with the AIDS crisis.

Governor Thompson of Illinois was pre y.nted with 17 bills relat-
ing to the AIDS crisis whi;h had passed both houses of the State
legislature. He signed into law 10 of those 17 bills. The legislation
he signed will allow public health officials to trace AIDS victims'
sexual partners. It will require AIDS testing for couples wishing to
marry. It will allow public health officials to quarantine AIDS vic-
tims when there is clear and convincing evidence that the public
welfare is significantly endangered, ald it will allow judges to
order that certain persons convicted of sex offenSes or narcotics-re-
lated crimes be tested for AIDS. And it will require schools
to teach youngsters in grades 6 through 12 about sexual abstinence
in order to avoid the AIDS complications.

I think that these actions are clearly more effectively handled at
the State level than at thi, Federal level. I certainly do not urge
that Federal lawmakers take the identical course that Illinois law-
makers have taken, but I do think that the Federal Government
has an obligation to assure that States have adequate funds to ad-
dress the AIDS crisis on a number of fronts.

Education and information efforts will be most effective if they
are tailored to and by local areas. Testing programs will be most
effective if they reflect the attitudes of local residents.

I hope that we keep this in mind as we decide how much to au-
thorize for the AIDS crisis, and how authorized pi °grams are to be
designed. We must be sensitive, Mr. Chairman, to local needs,
whether we are talking about research, treatment, education or
public health regulation.

I hope that the witnesses will address the role of the Federal
Government in assisting States during their presentations this
afternoon.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Madigan.
Mr. Wyden.
Mr. WYDEN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, education is an absolute prerequisite for stopping

AIDS, and I want to commend you for holding this hearing.
The only point that I wanted to make at this time, Mr. Chair-

man, is that this spring, for fiscal year 1987, Congress appropriated
$30 million for an AIDS education mailing to all American house-
holds. As of now, that mailing has not taken place. It is my under-
standing that the Public Health Service put together such a mail-

BUJ
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ing; however, the plug was pulled on this education mailing at the
White House. The subcommittee staff has been informed that a
mailing will not take place during this fiscal year which is the
period fcr which the appropriation was voted on by the Congress. I
would hope, Mr. Chairman, that the subcommittee -7ould look into
this matter and find out what has befallen this $30 million appro-
priation. It is my understanding that the subcommittee staff has
learned that it is not an education program that will occur, and I
hope that we would inquire further into what has happened that
money.

I thank the Chair.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden. We will join you in that

inquiry, and I think it is appropriate that we find out why that
money has not been spent as Congress determined it should have
been spent.

Mr. Dannvneyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When Surgeon General Koop made his report to the Nation last

October, as to what the Federal Government should be doing, one
of the things that he mentioned in his report was the necessity of
education. I think it is important that we pursue that. But there
was a serious omission in Surgeon General Koop's report to the
Nation last October, because he failed to r^:dgnize the inseparabil-
ity of human sexuality and morality and ethics. That omission was
corrected by a joint statement issued by Secretary of Education
Bennett, joined in by Dr. Koop in January, and I think so long as
the American government or any State or county government or
school district in America seeks to educate the public of America
on how not to get AIDS, so long as we recognize the inseparability
of education or human sexuality with morality and ethics, we will
be on the right course. But if we are curious as to how much educa-
tion expenditures by the Federal Government have resulted in a
decline of pregnancies among females in our society 15 to 19, we
have only to look at the statistics that were gathered from what we
spent in the decade of the 1970's, where we spent roughlywe in-
creased expenditures from $80 million to $300 million, roughly a
factor of four, and for that Federal expenditure of dollars we real-
ized an increase of pregnancies of roughly 50 percent, and a dou-
bling of abortions, and only a small decline of live births.

What this data tells me is this: When we seek to reduce human
sexuality on the basis of Federal dollars spent on education, we
lave the assurance that we are going to produce one thing;

namely, more human sexuality.
I am not sure that is the course we should be taking, but in light

of the seriousness ,f the epidemic, maybe the result of expenditure
of Federal dollars in education to reduce AIDS would be appropri-
ate. We will listen to the witnesses, and hopeful' we will make the
correctiudgment.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Sikorski.
Mr. Sixorzsm. Let me just thank you and the witnesses for doing

their part in this fight.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Whittaker.
Mr. Walgren.
Mr. Bliley.

88 - 6
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Mr. Buz y. No opening statement, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dingell.
Mr. DINGELL. I commend you for the hearings, and I wish you

success in your undertakings.
Mr. WAXMAN. And Mr. Coats.
Well, we are pleased to call cur our first witness, Ms. Ann E.

McFarren, Executive Director of AIDS Action Council, and Presi-
dent of the AIDS Action Foundation.

Ms. McFarren, we are pleased to have you with us. We want to
welcome you to the subcommittee hearing. I would like to ask you
to proceed with your direct testimony. If you'll pull the microphone
close to you, there is a button on the base, and push it forward.

STATEMENT OF ANN E. McFARREN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, AIDS
ACTION COUNCIL, AND PRESIDENT, AIDS ACTION FOUNDATION

Ms. MCFARREN. Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the
committee, thank you very much for having me speak with you
today.

I am Ann McFarren, Executive Director of t AIDS Action
Council, and President of the AIDS Action Foundation.

We represent 300 service providers around the United States
that are providing social services and support services and educa-
tion programs in the communities where they work.

During the time I have with you today, I would like to discuss
the national education program that I believe is important in ad-
dressing this disease.

Public health officials have repeatedly indicated that we must
control this epidemic by education. As a matter of fact, it is the
cornerstone of our prevention efforts. We have no vaccine, we have
no treatment or cure. We must rely on education efforts.

Reducing hysteria is another reason for a massive education
campaign. The Ray family, who lives in Arcadia, FL, has not had a
peaceful time, even though Arcadia means peace. Their fire was a
trage . I believe it was a tragedy because of lack of good educa-
tion programs.

Obviously many people in Arcadia were afraid of the HIV virus.
They did not understand the infection; they did not understand its
transmission; and they were fearful for their children.

I believe all of you have enough facts to know that those fears
are groundless and we need more education for our general public
to help them understand that. Because of the fear and the lack of
information, we had a very tragic situation and, in my view, it was
needless.

It is imperative that we have a rational program starting now,
and the council supports the -ecommendation of the National
Academy of Sciences that there should be $1 billion spent on edu-
cation by 1991.

I believe the appropriate goals are: helping our citizens under-
stand the disease, its management and its transmission; assuring
that people who are ill receive the appropriate care, compassionate
response from their neighbors, from their friends, and from health
care workers; and help people identify sources so that they can find
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out more about AIDS, if they would like to, or feel they need to
know.

We recommend a broad program, and most of the information in
that is submitted in my written testimony.

I feel that the programs that other countries have developed
could help us and be a guide as we develop the programs that
should be done in this country.

While we have debated the appropriateness of education and
what should be in the messages, England, France, Australia, Uru-
guay, Brazil, Switzerland and other countries have in fact imple-
mented programs.

I have submitted to you information on the numbers of cases of
AIDS in the countries that I just mentioned. I won't mention them
all now, but Switzerland has 266 cases; Canada has 1,000; France
has almost 2,000; and the United States has 41,700 and some cases.

Surely those figures should help us move forward in this effort.
The television clips and the movie clips that I am going to show

you now are those that are developed and usea in other countries.
They may not all be appropriate here, but I think the thing that is
important about them is that each one of these countries has as-
sumed the responsibility of educating all of their citizens.

I thought you would like to see them as samples of things that
are available.

The last tape that will be shown, which is the Swiss tape, is not a
television spot; it is rather a spot that is shown in movie houses.
We do have additional copies of the tapes if you would like them.

If we could have the lights down and show the tapes now, please.
[Media footage played.]
Ms. MCFARREN. Mr. Chairman, we do have additional informa-

tion on education programs from these countries and others, but I
felt that was just a sample that you might like.

Our Nation's commitment to informing and educating our citi-
zens is paramount if we are to stop this epidemic. Each day wewait to implement education programs like those I have described
and others, additional people are being infected with the virus. In
1992 they v,ill start to become the tragic staListics of this disease.

People are dying one by one every day. Our inaction means that
right now we are signing the death certificates for people who will
die in the next decade. We must not allow this to continue.

Thank you.
[Ms. McFarren's prepared statement follows:]

STATEMENT OF ANN E. MCFARREN

Good afternoon Mr Chairman and distinguished members of the subcommittee.
Thank you for the privilege to appear before this subcommittee.

I am Ann McFarren, Executive Director of the AIDS Action Council and Presi-
dent of the AIDS Action Foundation. The Council was established 3 years ago by the
AIDS service providers. Today the Council represents over 300 of Ogese groups
which provide direct social services, support services and community education in
cities throughout the United States

Recently the Council established the AIDS Action Foundation as its educational
arm. The Foundation is responsible for legislative research, training and education-al programs for public activities.

During my time with you today, I will be discussing efforts to info. m this Nation's
public about AIDS
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Public health officials have repeatedly stated that to control the epidemic we
must educate the American public about AIDS and its transmission. We have no
cure for AIDS. We have no effective long-term treatment. Vaccines will not be avail-
able until at least the mid 1990's; if ever. Thus, education is the cornerstone of our
National AIDS prevention effort. Reducing hysteria adds another compelling k
for massive public education programs.

The Ray Family lives in Arcadia, FLArcadia means peacefulyet their lives
have been far from peaceful. The tragedy of the Ray Family fire, is directly attribut-
able to the total lack of appropriate education and leadership in the area of AIDS
education. It is obvious that some Arcadians were frightened of the disease, clearly
they did not understand HIV infection and transmission, and they believed that
their children were at risk. Fear which resulted from a lack of information was our
enemy and ended in needless tragedy.

Political, religious, health and business leaders must join together to assure that
all of us have the knowledge and understanding of this disease, so tragedies such as
the Ray fire will never occur again.

Another example of an inappropriate response to AIDS is the Montgomery Ala-
bama Police listing of "suspected AIDS people" to protect rescue workers and police.
Lists and tests won't protect service people from infection; education, and training
will.

The facts and problems before us make it imperative to launch a raassive national
education program now. The Council supports the National Academy of Sciences'
recommendation to provide $1 billion of Federal funds for education by 1991.

The goal:
1. Helping our citizens understand the disease, it's management and transmission.
2. Assuring that people who are ill receive appropriate and compassionate re-

sponse from their neighbors, friends and health care workers; and
3. Identify resources so that any American can find out more about AIDS.
A broad sweeping program should include the following components:
Federal and private sector support for a national educational campaign on AIDS.
Implementation of local public information programs as an adjunct to National

campaigns.
Development of targeted educational programs.
Expansion of School Health Programs.
Expansion of programs Li. the development and training of AIDS educators.
The general public education campaign should include advertising spots that must

be creative, tasteful, attention getting, compelling provide accurate information and
shown during prime time.

Continued prime time coverage of AIDS issues will enhance the public's aware-
ness.

Utiliz.ition of sitcoms is another educational opportunity that should be accessed.
Print media efforts must parallel the electronic rncr_iip
Nations around the world have informed their citizens about AIDS in an effort to

control the AIDS epidemic. These countries have launched massive education cam-
paigns. The host successful include campaigns that provide a coordinated approach
with prime time televised messages, printed material, trained health professionals
prepared to answer to the publics response to the campaign, house to house infor-
mational mailing, and education campaigns in the schools

While Americans debate the appropriateness A' educational materialsEngland,
France, Australia, Uganda, Brazil, Switzerland and others have implemented pro-
grams.

The cases of AIDS reported in these countries are:

Switzerland 266

Australia 583

Great Britain 935

Canada 1,000

Uganda 1,138

Brazil 1,625

France 1,980

United States 41,735



161

As of September 17, 41,735 cases of AIDS were reported in the United States. Six,ec. later into the epidemic, no government sponsored national educational pro-c,ram has been launched.
Today, I have brought with me examples of educational TV spots which have beendeveloped for use in government sponsored national education programs in severalof the countries I have just mentioned.
I could discuss you at length the TV clips I am about to show you. Prepare

you for their impact; good points and bad points. However, think that the TV clipsspeak for themselves. The point I would make with you is that each of these Na-
tions have assumed the responsibility of educating its citizens.

The Australien, United Kingdom's campaig* nave been effective tools in raising
the publics awareness of AIDS. Some critic., complain that the commercials 'lave
unjustly scared the public. However, we can learn from their mistakes, ar, moveforward. A prime time television campaign creates an aware public. Public aware-
ness is the first step to educate the public.

Mr. Chairman, with your permission I would like to have the committee review
these clips now. None of them are sexually offensive or explicit, instead, they are

,ative and compelling and provide accurate information about AIDS to the view-ers.
In addition to a media program, other educational programs are necessary to

meet the challenges this epidemic poses. Targeted education programs represent amajor challenge to our efforts. Fortunately, we have some models 'hat have been
developed in the last few ..ars that are working. Targeted education differs from
general public education, by aiming at groups of people who are considered to be at
higher risk of contracting or transmitting the virus. Programs for these groups mustbe culturally sensitive, very clear, explicit and provided in environments that are
comfortable to the individuals who must receive the message.

The gay community has done an excellent job of educating their members. These
programs are based on understanding peoples behavior, the) provide clear informa-
tion, respond to concerns of people regarding disease transmission and worked to
develop a culture that decreases the risk of transmission. Programs have ranged
from 'clean and sober" ampaigns to safer sex education. While has been very diffi-
cult to quantify successes, a recent study in San Francisco '.as indicated about an 85percent drop in thn STD rate among gay men; this shows that programs can have asubstantial impact

Other groups that need specific, targeted programming include IV drug users,
prostitutes, sexual partners of other persons in high risk groups, minority groups,
school aged and college populations and health care workers.

We have recently heard of tragic accidents leading to infection of health care
workers. Training programs to ensure that appropriate body fluid precaution tech-
niques . re followed must be implemented. If health care workers rely on testi..: in-
formation for patient management they will have a false sense of security. Pro-
grams for rescue workers, such as those in Montgomery, AL, should be offered edu-cation and training under this segment.

Health care workers must also have accurate information to provide appropriate
guidance and education to their pati-its.

The expansion of school health grams is another area to be addressed. School
boards around the country are hebinning to develop core education programs, na-
tior1 organizations are beginning to address the issues, a massive program is ur-
gently needed. All school boards, PTA's and teachers associa ions should make a
commitment to assure quality, accurate AIDS education in their school systems
within the next year. A substantial investment will be needed for teacher training,
in order to accomplish this goal.

Our Nation's commitment to informing and educat. .g its citi -s is paramount incontrolling this epidemic It is the only "vaccine" we have. Eat day that we wait
before we implement the educational programs I have describedadditional people
are being infected with the virus. In 1992, they will be part of the tragic statistics of
AIDS. Mr. Chairman, people are dying of AIDS, one by one, every day. Our inaction
today means that right now we are signing the death certificates of people who willdie in the next decadewe must not allow this to corn nue

Thank you very much for the opportunity to disc °lir ws with you today. I
will be happy to answer any questions you may have

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much for your testimony.
I gather those films were made by those countries, by their gov-

ernments?
Ms. MCFARREN. les, they were.
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Mr. WAXMAN. To try to inform their people about AIDS and
ways to lessen the risk of the AIDS epiaemic.

Ms. MCFARREN. Yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. How many film strips have been made by the U.S.

Government?
Ms. MCFARREN. I am aware of one set of spots that Governor

Bowenexcuse me, I'm from IndianaSecretary Bowen has given
that simply states that AIDS is a concern and gives a hotline
number. None of this type of filming.

Mr. WAXMAN. And then there are announcements for television
being made by private organizations that are aired as public serv-
ice announcements.

Ms. MCFARREN. Yes, there are, although there is no campaign
that is an integrated campaign that provides information at all
levels and is targeted for prime time in key information slots, and
that is one of our major concerns. Frequently public service an-
nouncements are aired at 2 or 3 o'clock in the morning, and that is
not when many of us are listening to television.

Mr. WAXMAN. Are these spots being aired during the prime time
television viewing hours in the respective countries?

Ms. MCFARREN. A good share of them are. Some of them are not.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. Madigan.
Mr. MADIGAN. Ms. McFarren, with regard to the video announce-

ments you have just shown us, can you tell us what the impact of
those announcements has been in the countries in which they are
shown? For example, has there bean any community resistance to
these commercials, and has there been any attempt made to meas-
ure the effectiveness of the commercials?

Ms. MCFARREN. There have been studies done in England regard-
ing the response to the English campaign, which included not only
radio and television materials but a door-to-door mail campaign. It
did increase people's awareness and knowledge, and there is a
fairly extensive report on that entire program whic:i I would be
glad to submit to you.

Australia has also done a fairly extensive response, and I don't
happen to like that particular spot bee use I think it is very fright-
ening, but over 97 percent of the population in Australia indicated
that they had seen the spot and could describe it when they were
tested in market surveys afterwards. Seventy-five percent said that
it increased their knowledge, and 70 percent indicated thz-+ it did
change their behavior.

So it appears that there has been some effect from this type of

effort in other countries.
Mr. MADIGAN. In those countries the networks are government

owned, so I presume the networks had some say in determining at
what time the announcements would be seen by the public.

Ms. MCFARREN. Yes, and that, of course, is a difference here. In
our case I would hope there would be a public/private effort to
assure that information was shown during prime time, but it would
no doubt be much more expensive in this country than it would be
in a situation like that of England.
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Mr. MADIGAN. Do you know what years, for example, with regard
to France or Australia, what years these video presentations began
to be displayed publicly?

Ms. MCFARREN. I believe I have that data but I do not have it
with me, and I can get it for you.

Mr. MADIGAN. You use numbers. You said there are 2,000 cases
of AIDS in France.

Ms. MCFARREN. Almost 2,000.
Mr. MADIGAN. And 41,000 in the USA.
Ms. MCFARREN. Yes.
Mr. MADIGAN. The inference in your remarks would suggest that

you believe the difference between the levels of infections in the
two countries has been the educational programs. Is that the infer-
ence that you wanted me to draw?

Ms. MCFARREN. No, sir, it was not. My concern is that we know
we have many, many people who have already been diagnosed with
AIDS, and we are aware that there are many people who are in-
fected in this country, and in order to avoid further transmission,
it is imperative that we start a major education campaign.

When many of the people who are now ill were infected, we did
not even know enough about the disease to tell people what they
might do to prevent transmission.

Mr. MADIGAN. From your work and interest in this issue, do you
think these numbers for these other countries accurately reflect
the situation in those countries presently?

Ms. MCFARREN. My understanding isand this is verbal and I
don't have documentation on it- that the data basis for the coun-
tries I mentioned, with the possible exception of Uganda, are fairly
accurate. When we get to the emerging Nations, we have a differ-
ent problem, but generally health data in the other countries that I
mentioned is fairl accurate. Another problem may be Brazil.

Mr. MADIGAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Madigan.
Mr. Wyden, questions? Mr. Dannemeyer, any questions?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Tell me, r Is. McFarren, does any of the money

that finances the work of your foundation come from the Federal
Gov"rnment?

Ms. MCFARREN. No, sir, it does not.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And how long have you been in business?
Ms. MCFARREN. Three years.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I was interested in the films you showed, and

I have a comment with respect to two points. At one point, one of
the film narrators made the statement that the only means of
transferring the virus is by sex or drugs. Are you aware that of the
41,000-plus AIDS cases in this country, CDC has categorized be-
tween 3 and 4 percent as unknown as to source?

MS. MCFARREN. Yes, I am.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Your film doesn't say that, does it?
Ms. MCFARREN. Sir, I am aware that we don't know all the

sources of transmission. I believe that in some cases when the his-
tories were taken, people were ill and were Lnable to give appropri-
ate information. However, these particular films are an indication
of what another country elected to do. I am not suggesting that v.e
should use these films as they are in this country. I am suggesting

1 ,, 6.-4
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to you that these are models from which we could draw to develop
our own education program so that we could address this very seri-
ous problem.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. There was a statement in one of the films
with respect to the use of condoms. Did the film say the failu
rate for condoms with anal intercourse?

Ms. MCFARREN. No, it did not.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Do you know what that is?
Ms. MCFARRAN. I'm not sure that we have any good data on that.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Would you believe that the estimate of 30 to

40 percent of failure with the use of condoms for anal intercourse
is accurate?

Ms. MCFARREN. That would certainly be much higher than the
pregnancy rate with using condoms, and that is the only, I think,
relatively accurate data we have in terms of condom usage in this
country.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. The film also mentioned in the use of con-
domswell, it didn't mention anything about the v_..:-Jure rate of
condoms for vaginal intercourse, did it?

Ms. MCFARREN. No, it did not.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Do you know what that failure rate is?
Ms. MCFARREN. Yea. That is about 12 to 15 percent use efficacy

rate, which indicates not only those peoplethat takes a data of
100 couples having sexual intercourse for a year, and about 12 to
15 of them would become pregnant. A number of those would
become pregnant because they did not use condoms rather than be-
cause of the failure of the condom.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I only mention this point to point out that if
our message to the American people is that we can avoid getting
AIDS by use of a condom, we are deceiving ourselves and the
people of the country. There is no such thing as safe sex. There
may be safer sex-

Ms. MCFARREN. I would agree with you on that.
Mr. DANNEMEYER [continuing]. But it is kind of like taking a

pistol with one bullet in it when you use a condom and have inter-
course with a person with a fatal disease. You might make it five
times, but you might hit the unlucky time once. I think if we want
to be fair with the people of our country, we should be t.Illing them
that. Don't you agree?

Ms. MCFARREN. I certainly agree that condoms offer safer sex
rather than safe sex. I would, however, prefer to have someone use
condoms rather than nothing. The gun that you mentioned has one
bullet in it if someone is wing condoms. It would have six bullets
in it if they were using nothing.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Your foundation is in business for the purpose
of education; correct?

Ms. MCYARREN. That is true.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. May I suggest there is another agenda this

Nation can pursue in order to control the epidemic, and it relates
to the pursuit of normal, routine, customary responses that our
public health authorities have pursued traditionally to control com-
munic^11 disease, such as reportability, and since we haven't been
reporting those with the virus, now we are talking about testing
certain samples of our population. I would suggest those topics for

4 r,
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consideration by your board of directors as something we should be
doing and hope you will find your way clear to support them.

Thank you.
Mr. WAxmAN. Thank you, Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. Sikorski. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. McFarren, y ar Council and your statement has called for $1

billion for education by 1991. Is that $1 billion a year or is that the
tots! to be spent between now and 1991 would be $1 billion?

Ms. MCFARREN. Our goal and the recommendation of the Nation-
al Academy of Sciences is that funds be increased in education to
parallel the increase in research so that there would be, under
their recommendation, $1 billion spent in research by 1991 annual-
ly and $1 billion spent in education by 1991 on an annual basis.

Mr. BLILEY. I am sure that you and your Council are aware of
the budgetary constraints that we find ourselves, and it doesn't
appear that we are going to get out of them anytime soon.

Ms. MCFARREN. Yes, sir, I am.
Mr. BLILEY. Has your Council ever considered perhaps a tax on

condoms to pay for it? After all. somebody has got to pay for it.
Ms. MCFAkREN. Frankly, we have not. The concept has a kind of

nice ring to it. On the other hand, because we are talking about
death, I would prefer that we perhaps tax something else and give
away condoms so people will use them.

Mr. BLILEY. Well, perhaps if there is something else that is going
to be taxed, they may not feei the same way as you do.

Ms. MCFARREN. I am sure that we might disagree on that.
Mr. BLILEY. In my experience in government, most people would

like somebody else to bear that burden.
Ms. MCFARREN. I understand that. I am just concerned about the

public health implications on this one.
Mr. BLILEY. Tha lc you, Ms. McFarren.
Thank you, Mr. Chaim 1.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Coats.
Mr. COATS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Welcome to a fellow Hoosier.
Ms. MCFARREN. Thank you.
Mr. COATS. I appreciate yoar efforts in this regard. i am wonder-

ing if you would comment more or. the film clips that we saw.
Those appeared to be directed to the adult population. Would you
suggest that we might fashion a different message for different age
groups? Is this something that you have considered. and if so, what
would that different message be?

Ms. MCFARREN. Yes. I think that we do need to seriously think
about what messages are appropriate for what age groups and for
what Populations. However, we should have a broad program that
discusses education that is acceptable and done on neional televi-
sion and through national media and with sitcoms and every other
way that we can. Then with specific groups, we would provide spe-
cific education that would be more detailed and at a level of under-
standing that would be appropriate for that group.

Clearly, people in young grades need basic information and, more
important, I thi -., a feeling of self worth so that they can make
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their own independent decisions and feel strong as they grow up.
As they get older, they need more specific information.

There are now some very excellent education programs out that
make recommendations, K through 12, for AIDS education. I would
be glad to provide some of those for you if you would like.

Mr. COATS. Do any of these countries that are engaged in the na-
tional program have different spots for different age groups? Are
you just showing us an example of what is shown on national tele-
vision?

Ms. MCFARREN. Those are national television films with the ex-
ception of the last one, and there are other vehicles and education-
al materials for age groups and for specific populations in most of
those countries.

Mr. COATS. Who has done the best job of all? What country do
you look to in terms of educating and informing its citizens?

Ms. MCFARREN. Certainly Great Britain's program has had all of
the components that we think are so important, from the major tel-
evision programs to education, educational efforts on TV, mailings
to people's homes, and segmented education programs. So they de-
signed a nationwide program, and I think that is very successful. I
think we are still evaluating all of the programs, and each one of
us can improve on the last person's and last country's efforts.

Mr. COATS. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you.
Mr. Fields.
Mr. FIELDS. I really just have one question. I recently sent out a

general newsletter, one of what are called Postal Patrons to my
constituents, on the subject of AIDS which contained general infor-
mation. I represent what would be termed a Bible Belt district in
the South, in Texas. I was pleasantly surprised at the response I
got. The people were grateful that I had sent out that particular
type of information as a public service.

So my question is: Are there other things that you might suggest
that we as concerned members of Congress might be able to do to
help in that educational effort?

Ms. MCFARREN. I certainly think that information that is sent
out as pit of your communication with your constituency is very
helpful. Some members of Congress have sent out the Surgeon Gen-
eral's report to all members of their area, and that has been help-
ful.

I think what we are going to have to realize and one of the di-
lemmas we face on this is this has to be an ongoing process. First
of all, people forget. we need reinforcement, there is new informs
tion coming out. People hear things differently at different times in
their lives. If they are not involved in a relationship and they don't
care much about AIDS and they start to move into a relationship,
they need more information.

So we must think in terms of a long-term program with ongoirg
information to assure that all of our citizens have the information
that they need. All of those kinds of efforts are useful.

Mr. FIELDS. What is the best clearinghouse for that information?
Is it the Surgeon General's Office?

17o
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Ms. MCFARREN. At this point the Surgeon General certainly has
some excellent information. The National AIDS Network also has
information on materials that are available around the country,
and I believe, although I am sorry to say I do not believe it is yet
funded, that eventually the Centers for Disease Control will have a
major clearinghouse. It was originally my understanding that that
was to be funded this year. I have not heard that the contract has
yet been approved.

Mr. FIELDS. Do you know, or perhaps the chairman may know,
does the Surgeon General plan to update or amend his report?

Ms. MCFARREN. I am not aware that he is going to update it, but
I haven't checked lately, either.

Mr. FIELDS. Do you know, Mr. Chairman?
Mr. WAXMAN. I am not aware of the Surgeon General making

any changes or updating it, but I think the Public Health Service is
working on keeping it up to date.

Mr. FIELDS. Thank you very much.
I yield back.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much for your testimony to us

and sharing the film clips with us and talking about the education-
al efforts. We appreciate you being with us.

Ms. MCFARREN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Our next witness is well known to everyone, not

just to everyone here but maybe everyone in the world. Ms. Eliza-
beth Taylor has taken the opportunity of using her tremendous
popularity and renown to turn America's attention to the problems
of AIDS. She and the organization she chairs have begun a private
effort to create a compassion and urgency in our response to the
epidemic.

I want to welcome you here today and commend you for your
leadership and tell you how pleased we are tc hear from you at
this hearing this afternoon.

STATEMENT OF ELIZABETH TAYLOR, NATIONAL CHAIRMAN,
AMERICAN FOUNDATION FOR AIDS RESEARCH

Ms. TAYLOR. Thank you. It is very nice to be here. Thank you for
the introduction.

I am Elizabeth Taylor, the National Chairman of AMFAR. We
started about 2 years ago, and I am very pleaFNI to say that we
have already given away in 50,000 grants approximately $31/4 mil-
lion, and we are very proud of that for a young foundation.

Chairman Waxman, Mr. Madigan, I am very honored to be here
and thank you.

Let me begin by expressing my heartfelt gratitude and admira-
tion for the Congress' success at increasing the levels of AIDS
spending. Your remarkable achievements have not gone unnoticed.

I am here today to discuss the AIDS crisis. I emphasize the word
"crisis." We must keep in mind the fact that AIDS is a crisis, an
overwhelming crisis that grows with each new day, one that threat-
ens hundreds of millions of people worldwi4e, a crisis that is meas-
ured not only in human lives, tragic suffering and untold economic
costs, but also one that tests our capacity for reason anc: compas-
sion.
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Our most wished-for hope to stepping AIDS is obviously a cure
and a vaccine. This requires an intensive, expeditious, well-funded,
well-coordinated research effort. The battle to continue increased
funding will obviously be difficult. I beg you to persevere in provid-
ing the funds to find the answers that are so desperately needed. I.
the answers are not found quickly, all budgets will be totally over-
whelmed.

We must always keep in mind that we are facing an emergency.
Federal research programs must not be only funded; they must be
guarded against bureaucratic delays.

Scientists at the CDC and NIH have expressed their opinion that
they must also pursue long-range plans that don't necessarily fit
into the year-to-year plans. We have been told that even when re-
search projects are improved, oftentimes the researchers cannot get
staff or laboratory facilities. "For want of a nail, the war was lost."
Don't let it be that for want of a lab, the countless human lives are
lost.

In the absence of a cure or a vaccine, we have only one weapon
to combat the spread of AIDS. That weapon is education. In Brit-
ain, population 55 million, 750 ca.,. es of AIDS have been reported.
Government-sponsored AIDS education campaigns have totalled
$30 million. In the United States, population 234 million, 41,700
cases of AIDS have been reported. No public information or media
campaigns have been initiated. One million dollars has been appro-
priated to develop a national advertising campaign. In excess of $20
million is awaiting congressional action to support a mailing and
education program for AIDS information to all households in
America.

AIDS education must be forthright and understandable. We n. ist
be explicit without being vulgar, yet we must use words that every-
one will understand instead of euphemisms that are vague and un-
clear, and we must not spread fear o- panic in our education.

We must separate the facts of . IDS education from the lessons
of morality. We are not talking about a venereal disease for which
one can take a pill or a shot; we are talking about life and death.
The prevention of effective AIDS education due to claims of immo-
rality may lead to the deaths of many Americans to whom morali-
ty was emphasized over reality.

There are many things that must occur in order to put an end to
this epidemic that is just killing so many people. There are also
some things that must not occur. There is no place in the fight
against AIDS for business-as-usual complacency or politics. It has
nothing to do with Democrats and Republicans.

As election year approaches, AIDS is already becoming a politi-
cal issue. There are those who say that those of us who want to
educate and guaran+ee research to save lives are a special interest
group. Those who are sick are being blamed for being sick. We are
see growing numbers of examples of the most cruel and senseless
mistreatment of people with AIDS.

We are at war with a virus; we must not be at war with each
other.

I thank you for your hard work, and I urge you to continue to
fight for the day when AIDS will be othing but a painful memory.

1 74Th
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Ms. Taylor, for that excel-
'ant statement. Obviously, your organization has been trying to get
the research funds to develop a cure or a vaccine, but what we now
have as a way of stopping the spread of this disease is education
and only education. Unless people know the information about how
AIDS is spread and how it is not spread can they take the actions
that will be necessary to protect themselves and not take actions
that are based on irrational fears, which will be doing an injustice
not just to them but to everyone involved.

Ms. TAYLOR. Exactly.
Mr. WAXMAN. What do you believe would be the most effective

way of reaching American audiences with AIDS education?
Ms. TAYLOR. I think the media can and has been very helpful,

but I think they are also very misguided. Sometimes I am watching
the news and I go through the ceiling. You hear facts that aren't
substantiated, and I suppose they get their information from the
CDC, but the information seems to change daily. The facts seem to
change daily. We seem to be spreading panic and fear more than
education, more than ways of preventing the spreading of disease.

We do know that it is through sex, blood, drugs that it is spread,
but we must learn the practical ways of avoiding that. It is all fine
and well to say abstain from sex, but thpt is not a practical answer.
I don't think everyone in America that isn't married is all of a
sudden going to stop having sex. I think that is a totally unrealistic
approach.

It is a catastrophe that condoms aren't 100 percent foolproof, but
they do help. It does lessen the chance, but some people still be-
lieve that AIDS is a homosexual disease and that only homosexuals
should worry about it, that it is in their court. That is totally
untrue. It started out a heterosexual disease in Africa from eating
the green monkey. If you really want to get down to it, everybody
who isn't a vegetarian should be rounded up, I mean if you really
want to get silly about it.

It is a disease now that belongs to everyone, and it picks at
random. The only way of slowing it down is through education. I
don't believe myself in education in schools. I think it should be at
home through parents. But I think this is a case where, because
parents themselves know so little about it, it is going to have to be
taught in schools in a way that doesn't spread fear and discrimina-
tion.

Mr. WAXMAN. In other words, we have to be ho.iest about what
we know, what we don't know, but what we do know is a great deal
about this disease, and we have to be honest with people about how
the disease is spread and ways to lessen the risk.

I was troubled by some of those ads that I saw where they acted
as if condoms were a sure answer to stop the spread of

Ms. TAYLOR. And unfortunately, it is not.
Mr. WAXMAN. It is a way to lessen the risk. It is a way to protect

oneself if they are going to undertake this risk. I noted that the
educational efforts of your organization have pointed that out over
and over again, giving the information that we know to be factual
based on what the scientists have told us, not what people want to
fear or what they want to conjecture, but what information we
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have in being honest with people and trying to give some leader-
ship to try to stop this epidemic.

Ms. TAYLOR. It is the behavior of tomorrow that is going to have
to change, and I hope the behavior of today. I hope people start re-
acting with compassion toward the people that have AIDS and
start acting like human beings towards their human mankind and
not show what is happening now, man's inhumanity to man.

Mr. WAXMAN. I want to recognize other members of the subcom-
mittee for questions they might have of you.

Mr. Madigan.
Mr. MADIGAN. At the outset, Ms. Taylor, let me assure you that

to everybody over the age of 40, you are quite attractive with your
glasses on.

And I am going to leave mine on because I quickly want to read
you some numbers. In 1981 the total expenditures by the Federal
Government on AIDS-related programs was $200,000, and in 1988 it
is proposed to be $790 million. So in response to the initial part of
your statement as to whether or not the Congress is going to be
responsive to providing sufficient money for this, I think those
numbers should alleviate any concern that you have.

This is a bipartisan effort. No Republican and no Democrat has
spoken against this increase, and Republicans and Democrats have
cooperated in making those increases possible. If the Centers for
Disease Control and Dr. Koop and others want to come in and show
us other ways that we can effectively sp. rd more money, I am sure
this subcommittee and the committee ox which it is a part will be
as responsive to those requests as we have been to all of the other
requests that have been made since 1981.

But as you point out, as that money is being spent on various
kinds of research, including research in search of a vaccine, the ef-
fective thing that can be done by American society is to deal with
the education part of this effort. In your remarks you have suggest-
ed that the education effort needs to be forthright and explicit, and
it is in that regard that I would like to ask you if you would be
willing to be a principal in that education effort that you describe
as necessarily being forthright and explicit.

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes, I certainly would, and I have tried to be in the
past.

Mr. MADIGAN. Would you be willing to make television commer-
cials that say, for example, there are 41,000 people on the streets of
America who could kill you through sex; you better be careful?
Would you be willing to do that?

Ms. TAYLOR. Yes, I wor...1 certainly do that. I have done PSA's in
the past, and I have every intention of continuing to do them. I
will say anything I have to that will help AIDS.

Mr. MADIGAN. All right. Would you be willing to join with ivIr.
Waxman, myself and others in beating up on some of these net-
work people so that those announcements will be seen by the
public in large numbers?

Ms. TAYLOR. I would be more than happy to.
Mr. MADIGAN. Do you think you could enlist the assistance some

of your colleagues in the Hollywood establishment in that kind of
effort?

I "I --
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Ms. TAYLOR. People in show business really are quite extraordi-
nary. I don't consiier myself in show business, I have been out of it
so long. I am talking about the people that are working. We al-
ready have 38 PSA's, not just for AMFAR, not asking for money,
but informative PSA's, and we have 38 superstars that have volun-
teered and done them. So I think the entertainment world has
shown more than willingness; they have done something about it.
They have given cf their time and their energies and they are con-
tinuing to do so, and they can be counted on for their continued
support.

Mr. MADIGAN. I anpreciate very much what you and others have
been doing and what I know you will continue to do. We may be
calling on you to say some chosen things about some of the net-
work producers, or not producers but whoever these people are
that own these things. Thank you.

Ms. TAYLOR. I'm here.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Madigan.
Mr. Wyden.
Mr. WYDEN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Taylor, I to want to commend you for a superb job. My col-

league asked for your help with the entertainment industry and
the networks in particular. I would like to ask for your help with
the Executive Branch of the Governit...nt of the United States.
Ms. TAYLOR. I have been trying. I was here a couple of years ago,

and I must say the increase al the money has impressed me enor-
mously since I was first here. It is wonderfu'.

Mr. WYDEN. There is one thing in particular that I think you
could help us with tremendously. I noted that at the bottom of
page 2 of your testimony, you said that $20 million is awaiting con-
gressional action to support a mailing and education program of
AIDS information to all households in this country. This spring
Congress appropriated $30 million for an LIDS education mailing
to all the American households for this fiscal year.

Ms. TAYLOR. That is such an important way of getting the mes-
sage across to the American household. It starts with the parents.
The parents can teach the children. It has worked in Britain. I will
do anything I can to help you get that money. I will ring doorbells.

Mr. WYDEN. Well, I think perhaps one telephone call will do.
Ms. TAYLOR. That easy?
Mr. WYDEN. In fact, ringing the doorbell at 1600 Pennsylvania

might help.
Ms. TAYLOR. Oh, I know that address.
Mr. WYDEN. I just want to commend you for a superb job, and if

there is any way we could free up that money in the Executive
Branch it would be wonderful.

Ms. TAYLOR. Would that be the place to call?
Mr. WYDEN. That would be just gr-at.
Mr. WYDEN. I want to emphasize what my colleague from Illinois

said .ahout pursuing this on a bipartisan basis. The fact is that
there seems to be some kind of bottleneck in the Executive Branch
given that this money was appropriated for fiscal year 1987, and
our subcommittee counsel has learned that it is not going to be
spent in fiscal year 1987. In particular if there were efforts to make
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the money accessible, that money, I think that it would be a tre-
mendous boost to the educational effort.

Ms. TAYLOR. It certainly would. I will try.
Mr. WYDEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Taylor, I want to express my thanks to you in the work that

you are doing with the American Foundation for AIDS Research,
in the compassion you are exhibiting and the success I think you
are having in focusing on what may be some solutions to this prob-
lem in the country.

I would like to ask you a little bit about the American Founda-
tion for AIDS Research. Is a man by the name of Melwyn Silver-
man working for it?

Ms. TAYLOR. Melwyn Silverman?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Dr. Silverman?
Ms. TAYLOR. Dr. Silverman. Mery Silverman.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Mery Silverman? Yes. Is he working with the

association?
Ms. TAYLOR. Yes, he is spokesman.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. What is his capacity with the association?
Ms. TAYLOR. Spokesman.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Is that a full-time job for him?
Ms. TAYLOR. No.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I see. And where does Dr. Silverman office in

the capacity that he has. in California?
Ms. TAYLOR. He lives in California, I believe, in San Francisco.

He has another job. He is part-time with us.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I see. The reason I raised the question is be-

cause in this era in which we live, which is new to all of us,
namely, faced with an epidemic, it is important that we have lead-
ership in Congress, in the public health world and in work that you
are doing that reflects the sense of treating this epidemic as a
public health issue rather than a civil rights issue.

The reason I draw reference to Dr. Silverman is for you to take
up with the board of directors of your association Dr. Silverman's
status with your group. The reason I make that statement is that
during a period of approximately from May of 1983 through Octo-
ber of 1984, Dr. Silverman was serving as a health officer for the
City and County of San Francisco. In May of 1983, in June of 1983,
in March of 1983 and then agiin in March of that year, he was
asked by the political leadership of that city to shut down the bath-
houses of San Francisco as a means of controlling the transmissi-
bility of this fatal virus, and he refused. He declined to do it.

He was literally begged by the political leadership of that city to
perform that act, which was within his jurisdiction as the chief
health officer of the City and County of San Francisco. He finally
made that decision in October of 1984 and resigned 2 months later
because obviously there was some talk that he was on the verge of
being terminated.

I mention this because, as I said at the beginning of my com-
ments, we are going to be successful in this battle if the leader -
ship-

Ms. TAYLOR. If I may interject?
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Mr. DANNEMEYER. Go ahead, Ms. Taylor.
Ms. TAYLOR. That was before Dr. Silverman had anything to do

with AMFAR, and the dates which you talk about, one knew so
much less about the disease and how it was spread. What Dr. Sil-
verman did then is entirely his own business.

How he behaves as a member of our Foundation is my business,
and the board's business. He certainly has never given any indica-
tion that he would approve of those measures today.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, I mention it because--
Ms. TAYLOR. I think he realizes that the way the disease is being

spread that those particular things are not really a good idea.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I mention it today because I probably won't

have an opportunity of visiting with you again during our life-
times.

Ms. TAYLOR. Oh, I don't know.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. It's not that I don't want to, butyou know.

You have things to do and I have things to do.
Dr. Silverman is not only associated with your corporation, but

he is also a spokesman for the California Medical Association. I
think it is a mistake a judgment for we Californiansif I may
speak this wayto have a person of the philosophical persuasion of
Dr. Silverman in a sensitive position of attempting to lead-

Ms. TAYLOR. But I don't believe Dr. Silverman believes that
today. He has never expressed that opinion to AMFAR.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I only wish that were so. Ms. Taylor, I only
wish that were so. It has been nice to visit with you.

Mr. WAXMAN.The Chair will take this prerogative to--
Ms. TAYLOR. I think you are condemning a man for somethingI

mean, people do change their inind. Dr. Silverman shows no indica-
tion that he thinks bathhouses should be open toda.i.

Mr. W AXMAN. The Chair will address this point. i didn't do the
research because I didn't think Dr. Silverman was the topic for
today's hearing. But, as I recall the events, and I didn't have a
chance to check them, but I think as I recall reading the newspa-
per that Dr. Silverman took the exact opposite position that is
being attributed to him.

Furthermore, I do know that he is not a spokesman for the Cali-
fornia Medical Association, although I think he shares the same
opinion that they have given, that has been the same opinion that
Dr. Koop has expressed, and Secretary Bowen has expressed, with
which Mr. Dannemeyer disagrees.

I think what Mr. Dannemeyer is probably offended about is that
Mr. Sil erman doesn't agree with him on a lot of these issues. But
I would think we all ought to check that information carefully, andhear from him- -

Ms. TAYLOR. I wish you would, because-
Mr. WAXMAN. I don't think it is fair to attack a man's character

without having given him an opportunity to be heard.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Mr. Chairman, you misunderstood my re-

marks. I didn't talk about the character of Dr. Silverman. I alked
about his judgment in performance of a role as the chief health of-
ficer for the County of San Francisco. That's the only matter to
which I speak.

-- 4 i
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I wily mention it because I question whether or not a person who
has exhibited that judgment in the past should be associated with
an organization that, ostensibly, is designed to reduce the incidence
of this disease among the American people.

Ms. TAYLOR. I would like to know whetherexcuse mewhether
your facts are correct or not, because it is a reflection on the Fon-
dation. I do know that Dr. Silverman does not believe in I tat
today. And that's all I can speak of, as the Chairman of the Foun-
dation, of which he is spokesman.

I don't like to see his character maligned.
Mr. MADIGAN. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. WAXMAN. The Chair yields to Mr. Madigan.
Mr. MADIGAN. I would just observe, Ms. Taylor, that you hung in

there very well. Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. I think if you are going to question a man's judg-

ment, he ought to give his rationale for his judgment; and also to
know what his judgment was before we condemn him.

Mr. Sikorski.
Mr. Suormam. No more questions, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Whittaker. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. No questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Coats.
Mr. COATS. Just one question, Mr. Chairman, and one statement

to make. My colleague, Mr. Madigan, asked Ms. Taylor if she
would participate in a program which would send a message that
there are potentially 41,000- -

Ms. TAYLOR. Seven hundred.
Mr. COATS. Forty-one thousand people who currently have AIDS

and that, if you had sex with them, it could kill you. That particu-
lar message. I think it is important, and I know Congressman Mad-
igan knows this, but I think it is important that everyone under-
stand that the estimates are that, for every person currently infect-
ed with AIDS, there are 100 people carrying the AIDS virus who
don't know it.

Ms. TAYLOR. Exactly.
Mr. COATS. So we are talking about 4 million people, not 41,000

people.
Ms. TAYLOR. All the people that have ARC and are carriers, and

don't know it. The women, particularly there is a very high per-
centage of women carriers with ARC, that have no idea they are
carrying ARC, because they are not looking for the symptoms.

W1- reas a man may be more on the loot Jut for such things as
swollen lymph glands, and various other things. It may not occur
as readily to a female. I believe, in New York City, last week they
tested at random in a hospital 5 percent of the pregnant women
that had come to the hospital for treatment, and 5 percent of those
women tested that were pregnant had AIDS.

They couldn't inform the women, because they had not been told
they would be tested. That's an amazing percentage, just from one
hospital.

Mr. COATS. I think it is important to publicize the potential scope
of this epidemic and the crisis that we are facing. The word you
used was crisis, and I believe it is crisis, and we should act accord-
ingly.
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You have had chiEren of your own, and many of the members
on this panel heve teenagers. What message sh.ald we be sending
to our teens today about thiL isease, this virus that kills, and what
steps they should take to avoid it?

What would you tell yourI don't know the ages of your chil-
dren.

Ms. TAYLOR. Mine are all grown now, but I have grandchildren
who are growing up. I think the mores, the morality today simply
have to change. If it means taking a complete swing, as it usually
does, from 1- permissive age to a more Victorian titude. This is
with a reason, not just a fashion.

It is a life reason. People are going to have V- change their ways.
I think things like singles bars, massage parlors, are going to have
to be a thing of the past. Careful sex: you cannot say to teenagers,
people in their 20's, 30's, 40's, 50's, that sex is completely out of the
question.

That is unrealistic. There have got to be ways of careful sex. We
have to be more inventive, I guess, and have more fun in finding
them.

Mr. COATS. Don't we run the risk of not giving them the full
truth, if we talk in terms of safe sex, or careful sex?

Ms. TAYLOR. I think we have to tell them the complete truth.
Mr. COATS. The complete truth is that any relationship carries

the potential
Ms. TAYLOR. If you are talking about intercourse, yes.
Mr. COATS. Carries the potential of receiving the virus.
Ms. TAYLOR. Yes.
Mr. COATS. I am disturbed sometimes with the message that says,

all you have to & is have one partner. Just make sure you don't
have tultiple partners. 3m not sure I want to leave that message
with my teenager daughter, because that one person may be carry-
ing the virus

Ms. TAYLOR. Exactly. I am a single woman, and I think before
embarking on a new relationship I would have the AIDS test
myself. If I were serious about someone, in love with someone, I
would ask that they have the AIDS test before I embark on an inti-
mate relationship.

Mr. COATS. The r.4 ..on is because the consequence is death. No
cure.

Ms. TAYLOR. There sure isn't.
Mr. COATS. It is not a matter of going to the doctor and getting a

shot of penicillin. It's death.
Ms. TAYLOR. Unfortunately, at the moment, there is no reis-

sion.
Mr. COATS. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Cliairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Coats. Ms. Taylor, we have sent

you to talk to the President. We have asked you to speak to he
heads of the networks. Usually witnesses tell us what to 4o, and we
are telling you what to do.

I think the important thing i3 Cant we need to work together,
--..A your message to us is that we are the elected officials. The gov-
ernment people ought to be showing the leadership. I think, in
showing leade -ship, w, can follow your example.

Thank you very much for being with us.
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Ms. TAYLOR. Thank you. Thank you very much.
Mr. WAXMAN. For our next witnesses, I would like to call for-

ward Mr. Michael Zimmerman, Senior Associate Director, Human
Resources Division, General Accounting Office, Washington, DC.,
accompanied by Cynthia Bascetta; Dr. Lawrence Miike, Senior As-
sociate, Office of Technology Assessment.

We are pleased to welcome you to our hearing this afternoon.
Your prepared statements we are going to make part of the record
in lull, but we are going to ask you to summarize or give your es-
entation orally in no more than 5 minutes.

We will have to be quite strict about the 5 minute rule. We are
running late, and we want to give everybody the opportunity to be
heard.

Mr. Zimmerman, let's start with you.

STATEMENTS OF MICHAEL ZIMMERMAN, SFNIOR ASSOCIATE DI-
RECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION, GENERAL ACCOUNT-
ING OFFICE, ACCOMPANIED BY CYNTHIA BASCETTA; AND LAW-
RENCE MIME, SENIOR ASSOCIATE-HEALTH PROGRAMS,
OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY ASSESSMENT

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am pleased to be here today to discuss the report we issued last

month, presenting the views of experts on the adequacy of the ad-
ministration's proposed fiscal year 1988 budget for AIDS preven-
tion activities. I wiI: focus my comments today on their views, on
funding education efforts to combat AIDS.

Since development of a vaccine is at least 5 years away, and
probably longer, Federal, State and local health department offi-
cials and experts in the research community agree that education
and prevention activities are the most powefful tools available to
reduce the potential impact of the AIDS epidemic.

Overall, the experts we interviewed concurred with the priorities
reflected in the administration's budget, which are: limiting the
spread of AIDS among IV drug users: targeiing education at high-
risk groups and at the general population; and expanding volun-
tary counseling and testing.

The experts did not, however, agree with the proposed funding
levels, and, as I will discuss, suggested that the administration's
budget be substantially increased. I should ad, that the experts
made their funding suggestions without regard to competing health
priorities or Federal budgetary constraints.

The experts cited the sharing of contaminated needles by IV
drug users as a dangerous and alarming problem because it repre-
sents the primary means for spreading the AIDS virus among the
heterosexual population. Nationwide, 60 percent of heterosexual
cases, and 73 percent of cases in newborns, were transmitted as a
result of IV drug use.

The expertF I:eve that educating IV drug users about AIDS has
increased den_and for methadone treatment, and th t treatment
can reduce the spread of AIDS by reducing :,ae nun: .r of addicts
who inject 11,-,:-oin. Public health officials in New York suggested an
additional 00 to $150 million to expand methadone treatment in
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New York City, where about one third of the Nation's IV drug
users live.

Many barriers preclude expansion of drug treatment programs,
and rapid expansion mover the next few years will be expensive. In
the interim, less costly but also controversial methods of reducing
the spread of AIDSsuch as teaching drug users how to disinfect
needlescan be implemented.

The experts also told us that AIDS education of the high risk
groups and the general population should be pursued with a sense
of urgency, and a level of funding that is appropriate for a life-or-
death situation. Moreover, to limit the :spread of AIDS infection,
education must start or be expanded immediately in all geographic
areas, including those where there are still a few cases.

According to the experts, the administration's budget request of
$155 million does not provide sufficient funding for education of
the general public and targeted groups. Some experts suggested
that at least $100 million, in contrast to the $29 million in the ad-
ministration's budget request, is needed to launch a massive public
education campaign on how AIDS is spread.

They suggested using paid commercial advertising, instead of re-
lying on public service announcements, which are generally not
ail ed during prime viewing hours. I might add that AMA officials
suggested increasing funding for AID''. education 'iy at least $65
million more than the budget request.

Many experts expect the Federal Government t_ 'nderwrite a
major portion of funding for AIDS educational efforts. w-. believe,
however, that private sector organizations, such as health and life
insurance companies, have strong financial incentives to become
involved in AIDS educational efforts, because they will also incur
large expenses in the next few years if the AIDS epidemic goes un-
checked.

I understand the hearings yesterday focused on testing and coun-
seling. Let me add that the experts advised us that intensive educa-
tional campaigns may increase demand for testing in both high-
an d low-risk populations. The experts we contacted at CDC and
TOM were unable to predict, however, the potential demand for
testing. Thus, precise budgetary estimates are difficult to make.

Turning briefly to the cost of treating AIDS: despite widespread
concerns about the financial repercussions of AIDS, data on costs
of medical care, which may total $38 billion by 1991, are surpris-
ingly scarce.

A review of cost studies done between 1985 and 1987 shows that
meaningful cost comparisons are difficult to make because the
studies varied in their definitions of AIDS, the types of costs in-
cluded, the time periods analyzed, and the geographic areas. Esti-
mates of individual lifetime hospital costs varied from $24,500 to
$147,000, largely due to differences in lengths of hospital stays for
AIDS treatment.

In summary, we believe that investing in education and preven-
tion now can help contain the future costs of AIDS. In addition, al-
though it i9 difficult to predict how the costs of treating AIDS may
change over time, there is evidence that the c )sts per case can be
minimized by delivering care outside of the hospital setting.

This concludes my statement.
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[The prepared statement of Mr. Zimmerman follows:]

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL ZIMMERMAN

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:
I am pleased to be here today to discuss issues related to Federal efforts to limit

the spread of Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome, commonly known as AIDS. My
comments will primarily relate to the report' we issued last month on the adequa-
cy of the administration's proposed fiscal year 1988 fur lg levels for AIDS preven-
tion activities in the U.S. Public Health Service (PHS). 1 wai also disess the cost of
owing for AIDS patients and the possible implications of alternati _atments on
the costs.

My comments are based on our review of the literature and the views of our 20
experts from the research and health profession,11 communities, advocacy groups,
and State and local health departments in New York, California, Florida, Massachu-
setts, Illinois, and Washington, D.C. While the experts generally concurred with the
prevention priorities as reflected in the budget, they told us that additional funds
were needed for education, testing, ai.ci counseling services. These views are those of
the individuals we contacted and not necessarily these of their affiliated organiza-
tions.

As of September 1987, over 40,000 AIDS cases had been reported to the Centers
for Disease Control (CDC), up from about 300 in 1981. Most of the cases were clus-
tered in high-incidence areas, such as New York City, San Francisco, Los Angeles,
Miami, and Houston. The Public Health Service predicts that there will be a total of
270,000 cases by 1991. While San Francisco and New York currently account for
over half the cases, by 1991, 80 percent of the cases are predicted to be in other
areas.

The Public Health Service's budget for AIDS prevention and research has in-
creased from $200,000 in fiscal year 1981 to over $790 million proposed by the ad-
ministration for fiscal year 1988 Of this budget, about two-thirds ($519 million)
would be spent on biomedical research to find a vaccine and cure. The remaining
one-third ($247 million) would be used for prevention and education activities$155
million for education ($55 million targeted at IV drug users) and $92 million for
testing and counseling ($15 million targeted at IV drug users). The budget request
also includes $24 million for maintaining the safety of the blood supply and other
activities.

Since development of a vaccine is at least 5 years away and probably longer, Fed-
eral, State, and local health department officials and experts in the research com-
munity agree that education and prevention activities are the most powerful tools
available to reduce the potential impact of the AIDS epidemic.

Overall, the experts we interviewed concurred with the priorities reflected in the
administration's AIDS prevention budget for fiscal year 1988limiting the spread of
AIDS among intravenous drug users, targeting education at high-ri..x groups and at
the general population, and expanding voluntary counseling and testing The :x-
perts did not, however, agree with the proposed funding levels and, as I will discuss,
suggested that the administration's budge., be substantially increased

The experts made their funding suggestions without regard to competing kealth
priorities or Federal budgetary constraints. Although GAO did not develop its own
funding recommendations, we offer comments that may reduce the need for Federal
cost increases suggested by the experts.

The experts cited t sharing of contaminated hypodermic needles by intravenous
drug users as a dangerous and alarming problem because it represents the primary
means of spreading the AIDS virus among the heterosexual population. Nationwide,
60 percent of ht .erosexual cases and 73 percent of cases in newborns were transmit-
ted as a result of intravenous drug use.

Methadone treatment can, the experts believe, reduce the spread of AIDS by re-
ducing the number of addicts who inject heroin. Public health officials in New York
suggested an additional $50 to $150 million to expand methadone treatment in New
York City where about one-third of the Nation's IV drug users live. Officials in
Boston and San Francisco also indicated that thy neea additional Federal funds to
expand methadone treatment, but did not cit.:: a dollar amount.

Many social, political, and financial barriers preclude expansion of drug treat-
ment programs and other means aimed at intravenous drug users For example,
communities often resist expansion of methadone clinics in heir neighborhoods

' AIDS Prevention Views on the Administration's Fiscal Year 1988 Budget Proposals IGAO/
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While drug treatment may be the preferred option, rapid expansion over the next
few years will be expensive In the interim, less costly but also controversial meth-
ods of reducing the spread of AIDS that do not involve changing drug users' basic
behavior, such as teaching drug users how to disinfect needles, can be implemented.

The experts told us that AIDS education for high-risk groups and the general pop-
ulation should be pursued with a sense of urgency and a level of funding that is
appropriate for a life-or-death situation. Moreover, to limit the spread of AIDS infec-
tion, education must start or be expanded immediately in all geographic areas, in-
cluding those where there are as yet few cases. In particular, because the virus can
be spread through unprotected heterosexual intercourse, the experts believe that
clear and direct messages about safer sexual practices, such as using condoms, can
help prevent the spread of AIDS in the general public.

According to the experts we contacted, the administration's budget request of
$155 million does not provide sufficient funding for education of the general public
and targeted groups. Experts from the Institute of Medicine's (IOM) Committee on a
National Stritegy for AIDS estimated that at least $100 milionin contrast to the
$29 million in the budget requestis needed to launch a massive public education
campaign on how AIDS is spread. They suggested that the Centers for Disease Con-
trol use paid commercial advertising in prime viewing hours instead of relying on
public service announcements, which are generally not aired during prime viewing
hours. American Medical Association (AMA) experts suggested increasing funding
for AIDS education by 3 to 5 times over the fiscal year 1987 spending level-465 to
$215 million more than the fiscal year 1988 budget request.

Many experts expect the Federal Government to underwrite a major portion ;,f
funding for educational AIDS efforts. We believe, however, that private sector orga-
nizations, such as insurance companies, have strong financial incentives to become
involved in AIDS educational efforts because they will also have large outlays in the
next few years if the AIDS epidemic goes unchecked. Also, the costs of the mass
media campaign envisioned by the Institute of 141( dcine may be reduced if televi-
sion and radio stations were encouraged to broadcast public service announcements
during prime viewing hours as an alternative to paid advertising. Other relatively
ineN pensive measures, such as posting notices on public transportation, would pro-
vide a constant reminder of the th of AIDS.

The experts expressed concern t. ...L. individuals requesting testing and counseling
typically had to wait severe' eeks to be tested. Citing unacceptable waiting periods
at test sites in Chicago, fo. ...stance, the AMA recommended that testing capacity
be increased by three to five times.

The populations at high risk of contracting AIDS, such as homosexual/bisexual
men, IV drug users, and their sexual partners, number nearly 10 million persons,
according to recent CDC estimates. At an average cost of $45 per person, potential
resources needed if these individuals request testing would approach $450 million.
Assuming the States match the administration's budget of about $90 million, about
$250 million more in total funding would be needed to meet this demand.

Experts we contacted at CDC and IOM were unable to predict, however, the po-
tential demand for testing from either high-risk individuals or the general public.
Additional costs also would be incurred for heterosexuals who perceived themselves
to be at risk for whatever reason; persons who received multiple blood transfusions
in high-incidence areas before 1985; and prostitutes. Moreover, intensive educational
campaigns may increase demand for testing in relatively low-risk populations. Pre-
cise budgetary needs are, therefore, difficult to estimate

Investing in prevention now can help contain the future direct medical costs of
treating AIDS A study prepared for the Centers for Disease Control projected that

eating AIDS may cost $8.5 billion in 1991 (or 1 4 percent of total personal health
expenditures, up from 0.2 percent in 1985). Including the indirect costs of losses in
productivity associated with premature death, these researchers predicted the total
social costs of AIDS may reach $64 billion by 1991 2 A more recent estimate of the
total costs of treating AIDS predicted that cumulative medical treatment costs
might reach $38 billion by 1991 3 This study based its projections on recent research
indicating that the future caseload may be, greater than the Public Health ServicL
originally predicted.

2 Scitovsky, Anne and Dorothy Rice "Estimates of the Direct and Indirect Costs of Acquired
Immunodeficiency Syndrome in The United States, 1985, 1986, and 1991," Public Health Re-
ports, Vol 102, No 1, Jan -Feb 1987, pp 5-16

3 Pascal, Anthony The Costs of Treating AIDS U ler Medicaid, 1986-1.991 Rand Corporation,
Santa MonIca, Calif May 1987
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These studies probably understate the total costs of treatment because they ex-
clude the costs of services received outside the hospital, such as drugs, institutional
or home-based long-term care, hospice care, ambulatory physician and ancillary
services, and community support services In fact, despite widespread concern about
the financial repercussions of AIDS on the health care system, data on the costs for
medical care of persons with AIDS are surprisingly scarce. Furthermore, no esti-
mates are available of the costs associated with AIDS-related complexAIDS-virus
infections that do not meet the CDC definition of AIDS.

Other factors, however, may raise or lower total costs. First, the distribution of
cases of AIDS and AIDS-related complex by diagnosis may change over time. For
example, according to CDC, the proportion of AIDS patients with certain cancers,
such as Kaposi's sarcoma, may decrease while severe lung infections, such as pneu-
mocystis carinii pneumonia, may increase. Since the latter is more expensive to
treat, direct pe -onal medical costs would be expected to rise Other changes in case-
mix may also r..ise or lower total treatment costs.

Second, numerous drugs are being tested and are under development. Drugs like
AZT (azidothymidine) affect treatment costs in two waysby raising pharmaceuti-
cal costs and by changing the clinical course of the disease. Patients on this drug
may live longer but iequire different health care services, which may in turn raise
or lower costs. Moreover, drugs like AZT may improve the quality of 'ife and de-
crease productivity losses if AIDS patients can continue to work longer than would
have been possible without the drug. Obviously, development of a cure or vaccine
will change the cost situation

A review of cost studies done between 1985 and 1987 shows that the costs pee case
of treating AIDS vary significantly.* Meaningful cost comparisons are difficult, how-
ever, because the studies varied in their definitions of AIDS, the types of costs in-
cluded, the time periods analyzed, and the geographic areas The studies were con-
ducted using data from New Ycrk, California, Florida, Massachusetts, Maryland,
Minnesota, Alabama, and New Mexico.

Estimates of lifetime hospital costs ranged from $2',500 to $147,000 The variation
is due largely to differences in lengths of hospital stays for AIDS treatment, for
which there is no standard medical model There is also some evidence suggesting
that AIDS patients are now less likely to be admitted to intensive care units than
they were less was known about the disease.

According to two recent articles in the Journal of the American Medical Assocta-
tion,5 the use of inpatient hospital treatment for AIDS appears to have decreased
over time. As a result, lifetime treatment costs for AIDS patients seem to have
fallen. Specifically, days in the hospital from diagnosis to death fell from 168 for the
first 10,000 cases 8 to 35 days (based on San Francisco data) and to 62 days (based on
Massachusetts data) in 1984 and 1985

The average length of stay is also shorter in areas where alternatives to hospitali-
zation exist, such as outpatient diagnosis and therapy and home- and community-
based services. In San Francisco, the mean length of hospital stay for ail AIDS diag-
noses was 11.7 days in 1984. Voluntary organizations in San Francisco provide sup-
port services to AIDS patients that allaw t'iem to leave the hospital sooner or avoid
hospitalization completely Providers in Flonda also have been able to cut hospital
costs by setting up outpatient treatment services for AIDS patients

While it may be possible to increase home-based &A-vices in other communities
where the caseloads are comprised of mostly homosexual men, it is more problemat-
ic in areas where intravenous drug users account for a greater percent of cases For
example, he average length of stay for AIDS patients in New York City was 50
days in 1984 This may reflect, in addition to differences in severity of illness, a lack
01 outpatient or home-based care fix AIDS patients in New York City, of whom 30
percent are intravenous drug users.

In summary although it is difficult to predict how the co,,ts of treating AIDS may
change over time, there is evidence that the costs per case ran be minimized by de-

' Sisk, Jane The Costs of AIDS A Review of the Estimates' Health Affairs, Vol 6, No 2,
Summer .987, pp 5-2t

5 Scito% sky, Anne, Mary Cline, and Philip Lee "Medical Care Cost of Patients With AIDS in
San Frarvisco," Journal of The American Medical Association. Vol 256, No 22, Dec 12, 1986,
pp 3103-L106, and George Seage, et al. "Medical Care Costs of AIDS in Massachusetts," Journal
of The American Mediial Association. Vol 256, No 22, Dec 12, 1986, pp 3107-3109

6 Hardy, Ann et al "The Economic Impact of the First 10,000 Cases of Acquired Immunodefi-
ciency Syndrome in the United States " Journal of The American Medical Association, Vol 255,
No 2, 1986, pp 209-215
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livering care outside the hosr,ital setting This appears to be occurring in several
areas of the country.

This concludes my statement. I will be happy to answer any questions you may
have.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Zimmerman.
Dr. Miike.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE MIIKE
Mr. MAKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I war` to congratulate you on some creative scheduling, having

three Federal bureaucrats following Elizabeth Taylor. I consider
that sort of a cruel and unusual punishment.

Let me just summarize some of the points that I think should be
considered in a research and education bill that the Congress could
support.

Number one. Two and a half years ago, we reported to this zoTn-
mittee on the Public Health Service response, and I am glad to see
the progress that has been made since that time. We really do need
multi-year funding for research and education, rather than year-to-
year, for better planning purposes.

One can never talk about efficiency of our research dollars be-
cause of the very nature of research; although in this area we are
trying to do that with much more directed research. But it still is
the bottom line that, the more money you put into a research area,
the more researchers you will pull into that area. I leave that up to
you, in terms of where that cut-off should be.

I also say in my testimony that one might use some construction
funds creatively, as a method of bringing in new researchers, and
trying to establish other than the established centers of AIDS re-
search that exist at the present time.

Also, another one of my points is that, with this particular dis-
ease, when we develop the research agenda, we should not only pay
attention to what the s ientists tell us is important research, we
should also be addressing public concerns. For example, earlier this
month we distributed to all members of the Congress an analysis of
the issue of whether insects transmit AIDS, because that was on
the public consciousness. Even though scientists thought it was
such a minor question, we thought that it was an important issue
for the public.

Let me use an example of the kinds of areas that we need more
information on that are directed at public concerns, and that's basi-
cally how the AIDS virus gets transmitted.

Simply because it's found in blood raises the question of whether
mosquitoes could transmit it, and I hope our staff paper on that
issue addressed that question appropriately, so one can make their
own judgments on that; but my judgment is that if it ever occurs, it
is going to be a very rare and unusua! event, and not something
that is going to be a significant contribution to AIDS transmission.

Also, tz,a issue of saliva. We know that it can be found in small
amounts in saliva, but I think it's essentially the same question as
mosquito transmission. Simply because ene finds it 'n a particular
body fluid doesn't mean AIDS can be transmitted that way, the
conditions have to be right before transmission can occur in that
fashion.

1 r., --
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Another area that I think we need to get into and which touches
directly on the testing issue is that we need better tests for infec-
tion. Recently, actually this morning, I gave a little talk about the
accuracy of the AIDS antibody test, and everybody assumes that
with what everybody now hears about the ELISA and the Western
Blots, that everything is hunky-dory.

I want you to know that there is no standard for what is a posi-
tive Western Blot, and really the Department of Defense interpre-
tation of a positive Western Blot is quite different from the Red
Cf oss's interpretation of a Western Blot, and I am a little worried
that significant numbers of the , military people who nave been
identified through ELISA's and Western Blots as HIV positive
may, in fact, not be infected with the virus. So I think we need
better tests on who is infected or not.

And finally all of these kinds of information tie into he educa-
tional campaign area. We really need to find better ways of com-
municating what are really probability estimates from research
and translate tht.t into language that the public can understand
and can make their own judgments about risk.

One other area for educational strategies, I think, is that we
shouldit brings to mind in the early 1970's our attempts to make
physicians more compassionate and get them more into general
practice and family practice rather than into the specialties. I
think a similar effort is needed in our health profession schools to
educate students now, so that they can be compassionate toward
AIDS patients and don't turn away from them as they get into
practice.

I-The prepared statement of Mr. Miike follows:1

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE MIIKE

I am Dr Lawrence Miike, Senior Associate in the Health Prop-am of tilt Office of
Technology Assessment IOTA), and I am here today to comment on Federal support
for research and education on AIDS

Among the AIDS-related activities at OTA is a series of staff papers, initiated in
June of this year at the suggestion of OTA's Congressional Board and with the en-
couragement of the House Appropriations Committee The first staff paper, Do In-
set is Transmit AIDS?, was released earlier this month We expect to issue a second
staff paper, on the cost-effectiveness of prevei.cive education programs, in early
1988

OTA first reported to this subcommittee on the Public Health Service's (PHS) re-
sponse to AIDS in February 1985 At that time, our conclusions were as follows

OTA concludes that although PHS has indeed undertaken a massive effort and
made significant accomplishments, the statement that AIDS is DHHS's number one
health priority has not always been supported by financial and personnel resources
The responsibility for this situation, however, appears not to rest with the Office of
the Assistant Secretary in PHS, but instead reflects decisions made at higher levels
of the Federal Government. The administration has not pursued an appropriation
for the Public Health Emergency Act, choosing instead to rely on securing appro-
p nations for individual PHS age icies from Congress Although sufficient and uncer-
tain distribution of resources has not been the sole cause of delays or inadequacies
in PHS AIDS research, surveillance, and service provision, it has resulted in at least
inadequate plannir.g, increased competitiveness among Agencies, inadequate atten-
:Ion to certain areas which are perceived by many to be important (e g., public edu-
cation and prevention), and a diversion of attention from other critical health areas

Although significant advances have been made in understanding AIDS its pri-
mary cause, and associated factors, it will be some time befc... this 1,;omedical
knowledge can be expected to oe translated into effective preverhAve and therapeu-
tic interventions In the inteeim, and probably ei,en if biological rc.nedies become
availaW prevention through (ducatlon on ways of minimizing exposure to HTLV-
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III (the current name for the AIDS virus is HIV, for "human immunodeficiency
virus") has the greatest potential of limiting the spread of AIDS So far, efforts to
prevent AIDS through alucation have received minimal funding, especially efforts
targeted at the groups at highest risk.

In testimony before this subcommittee when OTA delivered its report, we empha-
sized the importance of preventive education

Up to this time, the major emphasis of the Federal Government's AIDS activities
has been to seek a technological solutionto find the biological cause of AIDS, to
develop effective drugs against the disease, and to develop a vaccine if possible,
These efforts are as important now as when they were first formulated, but it has
also become obvious that a quick technological solution is not at hand and that
progress against AIDS will come in increments. Thus, to minimize the spread of
AIDS, non-technological approaches also need more emphasis than they have re-
ceived so far, such as educating persons at risk on how they can avoid being exposed
to the AIDS virus

In the interval since we testified before this subcommittee in February 1985, tests
to identify persons with antibodies to the AIDS virus (and presumed to be carriers
of the AIDS virus) have become available and are widely used, and the first drug
against the AIDS virus itself (azidothymidine or AZT, now called zidovudine, trade
name Retrovir*) is now available However, the availability of the AIDS antibody
test has brought the issue of mandatory versus voluntary testir.i. to the fore, and
treatment with AZT has turned out to be unexpectedly costly (about $10,000 per pa-
tient per year). Moreover, there is still wrangling over how to implement preventive
strategies and how much to invest in these activities

Finally, we made the following observation in February 1985:
If we are in for a prolonged battle against AIDS, then we must begin to think of

strategies other than the one currently being followed. Currently, support for AIDS
a :tivit.es has been formulated on a year-to-year basis, and the Federal emphasis has
been on developing methods to diagnose, prevent, and treat the disease. The tension
among the individual PHS agencies, DHHS, and the Congress has stemmed largely
from differences over the source of funds for AIDS activities and on the amount of
funds that should be devoted to AIDS The Department prefers to reallocate PHS
agency funds from other activities to AIDS; and even when Congress has earmarked
specific amounts for AIDS, the D..partrnent has at times ended up obligating more
than these earmarked amounts to AIDS

Tt - question is whether or not such roallocation and year-to-year fundinl will be
suffiL.ont in the future. General budgetary ccr.straints mean that PHS agencies will
be even more pressed to decrease their overall funduk, and staffing levels at the
same time that the AIDS problem continues to increase. Should we begin to think of
funding AIDS activities on a long-term basis, with multi-year instead of year-to-year
budgeting? Is AIDS such a grave public health problem that it should be excepted
from the general budgetary constraints that are being imposed on the PHS and gov-
ernment programs in general? Should legislation be enacted with a special budget
for AIDS9

Such legislation is now under consideration in the House and Senate, and reports
by the Institute of Medicine and the General Accounting Office have emphasized
the importance of preventive education

Now, let me make some further suggestions for Federal support for research and
education First, enlarging the AIDS research budget will of itself bring in addition-
al researchers into the AIDS area In addition, efforts to bring in younger research-
ers traditionally take place through training grants or through new investigator"
awards However, these grants/contracts usually are awarded through centers al-
ready known for their excellence. Facilities construction funds could be used to de-
velop additional ways of infusing new blood into AIDS research For example, some
construction funds could be set aside tc build containment facilities (i.e , facilities
that :ire nece. ary for laboratory work with the AIDS virus) so that more research
centers could devote work to AIDS

Second, more research needs tc be conducted or. the ways in which infection with
the AIDS virus is transmitted It is not enough t, say, for example, that kissing and
spitting cannot transmit the virus, even thouga scientists have found small amounts
of the virus in saliva.

Third, it is obvious that AIDS is of great concern to the public at large, and not
only to the research and medical communities Thus, public ,:oncerns and fears
must somehow also be included in the criteria that funding Agencies develop when
planning their AIDS research agendas. The issue of how infections with the AIDS
virus can be transmitted is the foremost area of rt.4earch that would be affected
Recently, OTA decided to address the issue of whether insects are transmitting the

1
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AIDS virus. We were questioned by some in the research community as to why we
chose to address the issue, since in their opinion, it was a very minor question But
It is a major is >tie for the public, and we chose to attempt to provide objective infqr-
motion on the question instead of leaving it up to unsupported allegations as the
primary means of "informing" the public

Fourth, we need better means of communicating research findings to the public,
despite the difficulties of doing so when much of the public want absolute answers
and the media is eager to report on any new twist to the AIDS epidemic.

Fifth, we need to inform health care workers on AIDS before they are faced with
the actual care of AIDS patients, and we need to infuse compassion, understanding,
and a commitment to the care of AIDS patients in our future physicians and other
health workers. In the early 1970's, attempts were made to develop a commitment
toward primary care among medical students. Similar commitments are now needed
toward the care of AIDS patients.

Mr Chairman, that completes my prepared testimony, and I would be happy to
answer any quest;ons you or other members of the subcommittee might have.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Miike.
Mr. Zimmerman, the experts whom you contacted said that the

current budgets for information and education were inadequate.
The National Academy of Sciences, for instance, suggested that the
budget for public education should be more than tripled.

Did anyone argue that the education effort currently planned
will be adequate?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. No, sir, none of the experts that we contacted
took such a position.

Mr. WAXMAN. Did most of the experts agree that mess media
public education is necessary and appropriate?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. Yes, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Did you discuss with these experts the different ef-

forts that may be needed for different audiences, say school educa-
tion or drug addict education or education of gay men?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. They discussed with us that point rather em-
phatically. Just about every group we contacted had a view that
the media campaigns have to be tailored to the particular groups
and the types of persons that you're trying to reach.

Mr. WAXMAN. You have suggested that some of the mass media
work might be done by urging the networks to donate public serv-
ice announcements. Has this happened during prime time, and
isn't prime time usually reserved for paid advertising?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. That's correct, but I thought your conversation
earlier today would be a good start. It seems to me that some type
of pressure has to be put on the media to join in and help.

Mr. WAXMAN. You suggested that some of the education work on
AIDS might be done by insurance companies. You say, however,
that the experts you spoke to suggested multi-million-dollar budg-
ets. I know that the insurance industry has done some work. But
do you believe that they will donate the $30 million needed for a
house-to-house mailing or the $100 million needed for widespread
TV advertising?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. I don't think they'll donate that much, but they
are clearly concerned about it. And as the epidemic spreads, I
think their concern is going to heighten, and I think you're going
to see more participation, although I don't think it will be wide-
spread by the insurance industry.

Just last week, Metropolitan Insurance Company ran or spon-
sored a showI don't know what it cost them, but it clearly wasn't



for nothingit was an hour of prime time TV, and I think other
insurance companies, particularly life insurance companies that
are at high financial risk, I think they're going to take part.

I also think State and local governments have a responsibility,
too, though a lot of their money is Federal money. Nevertheless, I
think they ought to take the lead, particularly communities that
are nard hit now. I'm quite sure they are spending mone, and I
expect others to join in.

Mr. WAXMAN. One observation I would make as someone who
has been involved as a L,ongressman in this AIDS issue since 1981
is that all of these groups that stand to lose so much money finan-
ciallythe insurance industry, the health industry, and all its com-
ponentshave not come to us and insisted that we appropriate the
funds for research, appropriate the funds for education. They have
been standing on the sidelines until very recently, and it as been
small groups like the gay men's groups that have come in, seeing
their own dying from AIDS, plead'ng that we do what we're now
finally seeing everybody agree that we should have been doing for
some time.

Your point is well taken. They do have a clear financial incen-
tive to want to have educational efforts succeed. Now whether
some of these industry groups will back that up and take some
leadership is an open question in my mind.

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. To some degree, it is in mine, too, to be frank
with you.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Mr. Zimmerman, have either you or Dr. Miike

produced any estimates of the numbers cf people in America today
that have the virus?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. We haven't. At the GAO-
Mr. MIIKE. There are some attempts, and it's really more or less

on a theoretical basis on what kinds of models one might develop
in the absence of good, broad data. So that's still an open question.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. One rule of thumb that's been articulated is
that if you multiply the ',umber of people with fully developed
AIDS, currently 41,000 plus, by 100, we'd have a rough analysis of
he number of people in this country with the virus.

Do you believe that's a correct assessment?
Mr. MIIKE. In terms of ballpark figures, I would say that might

be a little bq overestimated, if you're talking about 100 to 1. But
I'm really not the person to answer that question, because if we're
talking about a conversion rate anywhere between 20 and 60 per-
cent, it doesn't seem to match. You talk about an AIDS case with
99 others.

But on the other hand, the numbers that we've heard, which is
about 1.5 to 2 million, have not changed over the past 2 years, and
we know that it has to change.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. What did you say? A conversion rate of what?
Mr. MIIKE. Well, the current estimates about people who go on

from infection to frank disease, AIDS. now range anywhere from
20 to 60 percent over a 5- to 10-year period.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, you're speaking about what we heard,
what we were told 6 months ago. The current estimates that I have
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seen is that it will be 70 to 80 perc-nt of the virus will go on to
develop frank AIDS.

Mr. MIIKE. One has to understand that those are based on very
small numbers of people followedyou know, we're talking about
maybe a few hundred people followed for a length of time, and so
estimates are made based on whatever evidence is available.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Also we've heard estimates that the quantity
of people that have ARC today, not yet fully developed AIDS, is
roughly a factor of 10 times the number who have fully developed
AIDS. Do you think that's a fair estimate?

Mr. MIIKE. No. I think that's an overestimate.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Pardon me?
Mr. MIIKE. I think that's an overestimate.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. An overestimate?
Mr. MIIKE. I think that's an overestimate. But it also again gets

into definitional questions about what is ARC.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Don't you think it would be good public policy

for our public health authorities at the Federal and State levels to
have a better knowledge of the people in the country that have the
virus?

Mr. MIIKE. Definitely. However, I think the basic issue, which
you are well familiar with, is how to get that information and who
to test.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, do you believe, therefore, that public
policy would require that we begin testing people in certain groups
in order to find out how many of the American people have t}
virus?

Mr. MIKE. It would depend on who we would test, and I think
that-

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, let me give you an example. Hospital ad-
mittees between the age of 14 and 49, persons :onvicted of drug
abuse or prostitution, persons visiting STD clinics, persons entering
the prison populatior., persons applying for marriage licenses.

Its been estimated that these groups would include roughly 50
million people. Do you believe it's sound public pc'icy to test people
in those groups in order that we have a better understanding of the
number of people with the virus?

Mr. MIIKE. Well, my personal opinion is taat I might agree with
testing some of those people, but in terms of blanket testing of cat-
egorical groups, I have some problems with that.

And, Congressman Dannemeyer, I'm not talking simply about
the civil rights aspects, but I'm talking about the rate of return
and the issue of the number of people who would be falsely identi-
fied, even after confirmatory testing. kad I can submit some info!'
mation to you later for Cle record that would outline why my con-
cerns are in that area, in testing low-incidence people.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, you're familiar, of course, with the fact
that the ELISA test if normally used and if positive, is then con-
firmed, and then a third test, the Western Blot. Are you familiar
with that?

Mr. MIIKE. Yes. But if you notice, when I gave my oral state-
ment, there is no standard for the Western Blot. The Defense De-
partment uses different criteria fro n the Red Cross, and I can give
you some examples. If we're talking about a populationsuppose

130
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we test 100,000 people. Suppose the prevalence of HIV infection is
0.01 percent. We have a test, the ELF:A test, that's now 100 per-
cent sensitive, meaning it would pick up everybody who would be
infected, and a specificity of 99 percent, meaning only 1 percent
false positives. Even after the Western Blot, which itself has a false
positive rate of 1 percent, one would f: nd in that 100,000 people 20
positives, 10 of which would be falsely accused of being HIV posi-
tive.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Well, I see my time has expired. I have some
other questions. Perhaps we'll have another round.

Mr. WAXMAN. Without objection, the gentleman might take an
additional minute, because I'd like to not go for another round.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Have you estimated what it costs for each of
these persons who have fully developed AIDS for health care costs?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. We have no estimates of what it costs. Studies
have been done of past cost experiences, and it ranges from $25,000
say, to $150,000.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Per patient?
Mr. ZIMMERMAN. Per patient.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. And based on your analysis, what do you esti-

mate the cost to the health carr system for caring for patients
persons with AIDS, not ARC, not the virus, just AIDS in the next 4
or 5 years?

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. Well, I think the most recent study was done
by the Rand Corporation. Let me say first that the GAO has not
done a study of the overall cost of AIDS, particularly one over a
period of 4 or 5 years. Maybe Ms. Bascetta can respond to the cost
data.

Ms. BASCEVFA. The most recent data that the CDC have esti-
mates that direct medical care costs will approach $8.5 billion in
1991, and that-

Mr. DANNEMEYER. In that year?
Ms. BASCEVFA. In 1991. And that including the indirect cost, the

productivity losses associated with those cases of AIDS in 1991,
total social costs will be approximately $64 billion.

Another study that the Rand Corporation did, which used a
slightly greater caseload projection for 1991, estimated medical
care costs of $38 billion in 1991.

Mr. MIIKE. Congressman Dan nemeyer, may I add to that?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Yes.
Mr. MIIKE. Secretary Bowen estimates that next year Medicare

costsMedicaid costs, I'm sorryfor treatment of AIDS patients
will be about $600 million with another $75 million for A23. And if
you figure that Medicaid costs are approximately about 40 percent
of the total cost, then were talking about $1.5 billion next year,
direct medical costs.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. Wyden.
Mr. WYDEN Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Dr. Miike, do I understand from your testimony that you believe

renovation and construction money are necessary new expenses for
AIDS research?

Mr. MIIKE. sorry. Would you rephrase that again?
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Mr. WYDEN. Is it your testimony that renovation and construc-
tion money are needed new expenses for AIDS research?

Mr. MIIKE. What I suggested is that in addition to grants and
contracts to individual researchers and research projects, that one
way of trying to build a cadre of AIDS researchers, in addition to
the traditional method of training grants and new investigator
grants, is, for example, one might build a modest amount of con-
tainment facilities, so that different centers can do AIDS research
who are not able to do it now.

Mr. WYDEN. I understand in your testimony, that you believe
that fellowship and training money for young investigators are
much needed investments in the AIDS research field.

Could you elaborate a little bit on why that is the case?
Mr. MIIKE. Well, I guess one of the issues in the AIDS area is

long-standingthe peer review process, who gets grants and con-
tracts, and one way to bring in new people who have no track
record in a particular area of research is traditionally to go
through the training grants to build up the cadre of people. And
anyone who has followed the training grant and fellowship pro-
grams as part of the research establishment, that's always been the
orphan in the research area. And I think that if we're looking long-
term, one has to build up both facilities and people in the AIDS
area. .

Mr. WIDEN. The theory is that you have to round up people into
the field and not incessantly overwork the people who are already
in the field.

Mr. ZIMMERMAN. Mr. Wyden, may I just comment on the ques-
tion of construct on of facilities?

In our contacts with the experts, particularly the ones that were
affiliated with the Institute of Medicine study and also at hearings
we've participated in in Florida last month, there was much discus-
sion of the need for expanded research facilities.

The amount of moneys that were presented, for example, by the
Institute experts didn't seem to be overwhelming, somewhere in
the neighi. orhood of $20 million, but they felt it was very essential
if the research activities are going to go forward like they should.
Without the right facilities, they felt they couldn't achieve the ob-
jectives that they want to achieve

Mr. WYDEN. Well, I commend all of you for a very excellent job
and an important contribution.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAxMAN. Thank you, Mr. Wyden.
Thank you both, all three of you, for your testimony and your

work on this issue. It's been very helpful to us.
[Testimony resumes on p. 208.)
[The following information was submitted for the record]

.1._
I Q '. 4
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HOW ACCURATE IS AIDS ANTISODT TESTING?

Lawrence HUM, Senior Associate
Office of Technology Assessment

U.S. Congress

Description of the Tests

Tests to detect antibodies to the AIDS virus (HIV, for "human

immunodeficiency virus") in blood consist of two types of tests applied in

sequential order to the same blood specimen. If the first test is positive,

it is repeated. If the repeat test is again positive, then the second test is

performed. Testing is not repeated on specimens that are negative on the

first test, nor is the second confirmatory test performed on initially

negative specimens

The first tests are enzyme immunoassays (EIAs), in which antibodies to

whole and partial virus are measured in the aggregate. The second, mcre

specific rest, called a "Western blot," identifies antibodies to the major

individual proteins which make up the AIDS virus.

Most of the EIAs are "ELISA" (enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay) assays.

Here, serum is placed in wells or on beads that contain HIV antigen (derived

from disrupted HIV that has been grown in cell cultures). If the specimen

contains antibodies, they will bind to the test kit's antigens. A:er an

incubation period, any unbound antibody is washed from the bead or well, and

ar enzyme-labeled antibody to human immunoglobulin (all antibodies are

immunoglobulins) is added The bead or well is aka.. washed to remove any

unbound antibody. A reagent is then added that will react with any bound,

enzyme-labeled antibodies, and the reaction produces a color change that is

measured by an instrument celled a "spectrophotometer. " The color intensity
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is quantifiable and the numerical value is called the "optical density.' The

result is interpreted by comparing it to positive and negative control samples

containing known quantities of antibodies.

There are also competitive EIAa, in which enzyme-linked antibodies to

HIV are added to the well containing HIV antigens at the same time as--instead

of after--the test specimen. If the specimen contains antibodies to HIV, they

will compete with the test kit antibodies in binding with the HIV antigens.

If there is a lot of antibodies to HIV in the specimen, there will be little

enzyme-linked antibodies found bound to the HIV antigens. If the specimen

contains no antibodies to HIV, all bound antibodies will be the enzyme-linked

antibodies from the test kit.

Western blot testing is based on identifying antibodies to the major

proteins of the AIDS virus. Purified HIV antigens are separated

electrophoretically on a gel, which resilts in their separation by their

molecular weights. They are then blotted onto special paper. A sample of

serum is applied to the oaper and if antibodies to HIV are present, they will

bind to the viral antlgem. A radioactive- or enzyme-labeled antibody to

immunoglobulln is then applied to the paper. If antibodies to HIV are present

in the sample aid have bound to the HIV antigens, they will appear as

distinctive bands on the blot. The locat4on of the band indicates reaction to

a specific viral protein (See bands depicting the "positive control' specimen

in figure 1).

HIV proteins are grouped into three cl , two structv-al and one

regulatory. The structural proteins consist of: 1) proteins that provide the

internal, or "core* (also known as "gag") structure of the virus, and 2)

proteins that pl.wlde the external or "enveiope* (also known as "env)

structure of the virus. The regulatory proteins (also known as 'pal')
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represent the regulatory enzymes (reverse transcriptase, endonuclease) of the

virus. Envelope proteins also have non-protein elements (glycogen)

incorporated into them. The core proteins include p17/18, p24/25, and p55,

which are shorthand designations for proteins with molecular weights in the

thousands (or "kilodaltons"). Thus, "p24/25" refers to a protein with a

molecular weight of 24 to 25 thousand. The envelope proteins are gp41,

gp110/120, .nd gp160, where "gp" refers to "glycoprotein" (the first vaccine

undergoing preliminary testing produces antibodies against gp120). The

regulatory proteins are p31/32, p51/53, and p65/66.

Accuracy of the Testa

When performed in the best laboratories, the tests are very accurate.

One estimate is that the false positive rate after both ELISA and Western blot

testing is only 1 in 20,000 specimens tested (0.005 percent false positive

rate).1 This is based on the assumptions: 1) that the EIA test is 100%

sensitive (i.e., that it will identify All antibody-positive blood specimens)'

and 99.6% specific (i.e., that of 1,000 antibody-pegativ, blood specimens,

only 4 will be identified as positive for antibodies to HIV), and 2) that when

EIA-positive blood specimens are tested by Western blot, the false-positive

rate for the Western blot test is 1.17%. Hul,iplying the false-positive rate

for the EIA test (0.4%) by tba false-positive rate for the Western blot

(1.17%) results in a joint false- positive rate of 0.005% (0.004 x 0.0117

0.0000468 0.005%).

One study of six commercially available EIA tests used to test blood

donors found a false positive rate of zero to 0.42 percent.' However, there

can be variations in the false positive rates for the EIA tests, even among

different batches of one manufacturer's test kit, and the false pc.. 'Ave rate
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of the EIA test can be as high as 6.8 pexcent among hospita,ixed patients.3

Thus, a false positive rate of 0.41 for the EIA test represents a best-case

scenario.

The 1.171 false positive rate for specimens that were repeatedly

positive on EIA testing and then subjected to Western blot testing comes from

a U.S. Army study. Only specimens that ere repeatedly positive on the EIA

test are subjected to Western blot testing, so labs perform the Western blot

test on specimens that they know are already plasumed to be positive. The

false positive rate might be higher if specimens that were negative were also

tested by Western blot; i.e., if laboratory personnel conducted the Western

blot test on specimens that the Ishii did not know wort positive or negative on

EIA testing. For example, as part of the U.S. Army's quality assurance

program for AIDS antibody testing, five large commercial laboratories that

offered Western blot testing on a fee-for-service basis were sent 15 samples

that were known to be negative for antibodies to the AIDS virus, and 5 samples

that were positive. There were six false-positive results reported, all on

different normal specimens, suggesting that the errors were due to technique.

The most common error was detection only of p24/25, and labeling that result

as a positive Western blot test. Four of the five laboratories reported at

least one false-positive test result. One laboratory did not detect one of

the positive specimens 7

False positive Western blot tests have resulted from reactivity to the

cultured human cells in which the AIDS virus that is used in Western blot

testing has been grown.' For example, the American Red Cross reports that

Western blot testing on specimens that are positive with Abbott's EA test

result in "indeterminate" readings 10 to 20 percent of the time, while Western

blot testing on specimens that are positive with Genetic Systems' or DuPont's
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NIA tests results in 'indeterminate' Western blot readings 40 to 50 percent of

the time.' Furthermore, subsequent blood specimens obtained from the same

patient can be Western blot negative after an initial specimen was Western

blot positive.10

The Centers for Di Control (CDC) has estimated that currently

licensed SI* tests have a sensitivity of 99 percent or greater and a

specificity of approximately 99 percent.II The CDC also states that the

sensitivity of the Western blot is comparable to that of the RIA. While no

specificity is given for the Western blot (described as "highly specific when

strict criteria are used for interpretation"). CDC does state that: "Under

ideal circumstances, the probability that a testing sequence will be falsely

positive in a population with 4 low rate of infection ranges from less than 1

in 100,000 (Minnesota Department of Health, unpublished data) to an estimated

5 in 100,000 (citing as references Meyer and Pauker and Burke it al., see

footnotes 1 and 6, supra)."

There is at present no standard for determining when a Western blot test

is positive. A Consensus Conference from the Office of Medical Applications

of Research, National Institutes of Health, stated that p24/25 together with

gp41 (a "gag" protein and an "env" protein) "is unequivocally positive.12

The Department of Defense (DoD), in its mandatory testing of active duty

personnel and civilian applicants for U.S. military service, classifies as

positive those Western blot tests in which, at the minimum, either gp41 (an

"env" protein) alone or p24/25 plus p55 (two "gag" proteins) ate detected."

The American Red Cross requires that at least one protein from each of the

three types of proteins ("gag," "pol," and "env")--for example, p24/25 plus

gp41 plus p51/53--be detected before the donor is notified that he/she has

been found to be positive for antibodies to the AIDS virus."
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The Red Cross standard applies only to whether the blood donor will be

notified that ee/she has had a positive antibody test to HIV. All repeatedly

positive ETA' are discarded, regardless of the moults of Western blot

testing. If some antibodies to HIV antigens are detected but not against at

least one protein from each of the three types of HIV antigens, the results

are reported to the blood bank as " indeterminate" (all of these specimens are

also discarded, because ali repeatedly positive !Us are discarded, and only

repeatedly positive Elks are subjected to Western blot testing). The

individcs1 blood banks determine whether to inform persons with indeterminate

Western blots of their test results. Indeterminate Western blots that contain

antibodies to p24/25 and gp160 9-egged as pro'ably representing the early

stages of conversion to posit...vs entilmdy status. Approximately 80 percent of

persons with this Western blot pattern have progressed to positive Western

blots as defined by the American Red Cross.

In reference to the WIN Consensus Conference definition that a positive

Western blot consists of p24/25 plus gr41, and the DoD definition of either

gp41 alone or p24/25 plus p55, there may not be that much difference in

results. The American Red Cross report.; that it is very unusual to find only

these minimal types of proteins on the Western blot test. Nevertheless,

American Red Cross and the Department of Defense have clearly different

criteria for when a person will be labeled as being infected with HIV and

being informed of the results, and research studies often use yet another

criterion, the NIH Consensus Conference definition, for a positive Western

blot (i.e., p24/25 plus gp41).15

Figure 1 depicts a hypothetical situation involving three persons, two

of which would be identified as having a positive Western blot by DoD and one

of which would be identified as positive by the American Red Cross. In this
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Pisan 1

Western Blot: Hypothetical Situation In Which American Red Crosa
And Department Of Defense Criteria For A Positive Test May Diffet1

I

11
gp160

gp110/120

11
p65/66

p55

P51/52

1 SF41

1
p31/32

p24/25

1 p17/18

American Red Cross DoD DoD Positive Control

1 See text for explanatory details
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hypothetical situation, note that: 1) neither of the DoD positives would be

identified as positive by the American Red Cross, 2) the Red Cross positive

would be negative by DoD criteria, and 3) neither the Red Cross nor DoD

positives would be identified as positive according to the NIH Consensus

Conference definition.

Test Accuracy Depends On The Population Undergoing Testing

Even when the tests are conducted under optimal laboratory conditions,

there will be antibody-positive persons who will be missile., and some persons

Who will be incorrectly identified and hence, assumed to be infected and

carriers of the AIDS virus. Furthermore, among persons identified as having

antibodies to the AIDS virus, the proportion of incorrectly identified persons

(i.e., the percent of false positives) will increase as the prevalence of

antibody-positive persons among the population undergoing testing decreases.

These unavoidable errors are illustrated in the accompanying figures.

In figure 2, the relationship between sensitivity, specificity, false

uegatives, and false positives are summarized. In figures 3 to 6, the false

positive rates after both EIA and Western blot testing are calculated for

populations where the prevalences of antibodies to the AIDS virus are 10

percent, 0.83 percent, 0.1 percent, and 0.01 percent, respectively. A

population with 10 percent prevalence of antibodies to HIV would represent a

high-risk population. The 0.83 percent prevalence represents the threshold

for mendatory marriage license applicant testing under a law passed in Texas

in 1987," and is the prevalence obtained if the 2 million persons estimated

to be infected with HIV in the United States is divided by 240 million, the

current estimated population of the U.S. The 0.1 percent represents the

20u
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Figure 2
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prevalence of HIV infection that CDC has suggested may justify premarital

testing (see footnote 11, supra). The 0.01 percent might represent the

prevalence rate in low-risk groups.

In these examples, CDC estimates (see above) of the sensitivity and

specificity of the EIA and Western blot tests have been used. For the EIA

test, sensitivity and specificity are both assumed to be 99 percent (1 percent

false negatives, 1 percent false positives) For the Western blot,

sensitivity is assumed to be 99 percent, and specificity, from 99.5 to 99.9

percent. The false negative rate after both EIA and Western blot testing is 2

percent and is derived by jigging the false negative rates for each test,

because Western blot testing is done only on specimens that test positive.

After EIA testing, 1 percent of positive specimens will be missed (0.01 x (f

of positive specimens)). Western blot testing of EIA-positive specimens will

miss 1 percent of these specimens, er approximately an additional 1 percent of

the total number of positive specimens (0.01 x 0.99 x (f of positive

specimens) 0.0099 x (f of positive specimens)).

The false positive rate after both EIA and Western blot testing is

derived by marinixing the false positive rates for EIA and Western blot

testing, because Western blot testing is conducted only on those negative

specimens that tested falsely positive on EIA. If the joint false positive

rate is 1 in 100,000 (0.00001) to 5 in 100,000 (0.00005) and the EIA false

pcsitive rate is 1 percent (0.01), the false positive rate for the Western

blot therefore ranges from 0.001 to 0.005, or 0.1 to 0.5 percent (0.01 x

(0.001 to 0.005) 0.00001 to 0.00005), or 1 in 100,000 to 5 in 100,000).

The examples all assume that 100,000 persons are being tested For th

group with 10 percent of its members having antibodies to HIV in their blood,

an EIA test sensitivity of 99 percent means that, of 10,000 antibody-positive
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persons, 9,900 will test positive (true positive), and 1CO will test negative

(false negative). Of the 90,000 persons without antibodies to HIV, an EIA

test with a specificity of 99 percent means that 89,100 will test negative

(true negative) and 900 will test positive (false positive). The predictive

value of a positive EIA test is thus 9,900 divided by 9,900 plur 700, or 92

percent; i.e., after only EIA testing, the probability that a positive r:-sult

is truly positive is 0.92.

The results aft.: Western blot testing are as follows. A test

sdnsitivity of 99 percent means that, of the 9,900 persons testing positive

after EIA testing and who actually have antibodies to HIV present, 9,900 x

0.99, or 9,801 persons will be correctly identified as positive, and 99

persons will be incorrectly identified as being antibody. negative. Therefore,

after both EIA and Western blot testing, a total of 100 plus 99 antibody-

positive persons, or 199 of 10,000, will be missed. Western blot specificity

of 99.5 to 99.9 percent means that of the 900 persons without antibodies that

were falsely positive in the EIA test, 0.1 to 0.5 percent will still be

falself positive after Western blot testing, or a total of 1 to 5 persons.

Therefore, of the 90,000 antibody-negative persons, 1 to 5 persons will be

falsely identified as positive, compared to 9,801 persons correctly identified

as antibody positive. The predictive value after both EIA and Western blot

testing ranges from 9,801/(9,801 + 5) to 9,801/(9,801 + 1), or from 99.95 to

99.99 percent, as compared to a predictive valve of 0.92 after only ETA

testing (see figure 3 for summary).

Similar zomputations have been made for popula-ions of 100,000 each,

with prevalence rates of antibodies to HIV of 0.83, 0.1, and 0.01 percent,

respectively
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Figure 3
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In the 0.83 percent prevalence group, the probability of a positive test

being correct after ZIA testing would be only 0.45, but would rise to 0.994 to

0.999 after Western blot testing (814/819 to 814/815). Sixteen of 830

antibody- positive specimens would be missed. As in the case of the 10 percent

antibody-positive prevalence population, 1 ty 5 persons would be incorrectly

ide**.:*tied as antibody owItive, compared to 814 persons correctly identified

as antibody positive (see figure 4 for summary).

In the 0.1 percent prevalence group, the probability of a positive test

being correct after ZIA testing would be only 0.09, but would rise to 0.951 to

0.990 after Western blot tasting (98/(98 + 5) to 98/(98 + 1). Two of 100

antibody-positive specimens would be missed. One to S persons would again be

incorrectly identified as antibody positive, but at a prevalence of 0.1

percent, only 98 persons will be correctly identified
as antibody positive

(see figure 5 for summary).

In the 0.01 percent prevalence
group, the probability of a positive test

being correct after !IA testing would be only 0.01, rising to 0.667 to 0.909

after Western blot testing 0/(10 + 5) to 10/(10 + 1). All 10 of the

antibody-positive persons would be identified. One to 5 persons would again

be incorrectly identified as antibody positive, but only 10 persons will be

correctly identified as antibody positive, even though no positives will be

missed (see figure 6 for summary).

In summary, the percent of false negatives and false positives will be

identical in populations with different prevalence* of antibody-positive

persons. ',lawyer, in ',.igher prevalence populations,
the absolute number of

antibody-positive persons who will be missed ( false negatives) after both SIA

and Western blot testing will be much higher than in lover prevalence

populations. For example, among 100,000 persons tested, 199 of 10,000
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Figure 4
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Figure 5

Predictive Value. 0.1 Percent Prevalence)

Positive

ESA

Negative

Positive

Western blot

Negative

gnglbodieg

Present Absent

99 999

1

Present

98,901

Absent

98 1-5

1 994-998

99 999 I

Predictive Value of EIA 99/(99 + 999) 0.09

Predictive Value of EIA plus Western blot

98/(98 + 5) to 98/(98 + 1) 0.951 to 0.990

I See text for assumptions

Number of False Negatives

1 + 1 2

Number of False Positives

999 x (0 001 to 0.005) 1 to 5

Number of True Positives

100 minus 2 98

n r,



204

Figure 6

Predictive Value. 4.01 Percent Prevalence
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antibody-positive persona will be missed if the prevalence were 10 percent,

compare° to 2 of 100 antibody-positive persona being missed if the prevalence

were 0.1 percent. Tuning to the false positives, the absolute number of

false positives will remain essentially the same with varying prevalence' of

antibody-positivity, but false positives as a percent of total positives will

increase as prevalence deer eeeee . For example, if prevalence were 10 percent,

only 1/9,802 to 5/9,806 positive results would be false positives, whereas if

prevalence were 0.1 percent, 1/99 to 5/103 positive results would be false

positives, and if prevalence were 0.01 percent, 1/11 to 5/15 positive results

would be false.

These are best-case estimates. In actual practice, laboratories can be

expected to perform at lower levels of accuracy, is6ing more positive

specimens and incorrectly identifying as positive more negative specimens.

Page 11



206

Footnotes

1 Meyer, K.B. and Pauker, S.C., "Screening for HIV: Can We Afford The False
Positive Rate?" Hew Ena1and Journal of Medicine 317:238-241 (1987).

2 The sensitivity of the tests--i.e., false negatives, or the percent of
antibody-containing specimens that would not be detected by the test--is not
at issue in this discussion of false positives. Moreover, while the MISS
tests are accepted as having a sensitivity of 100 percent, these tests cannot
identify all persons infected with the AIDS virus, nor those persons in the
early stages of antibody production. For example, HIV-infected persons may go
as long as 6 to 1.. months before they develop detectable levels of antibodies
te HIV (Rank!, A., Krohn, It Allain J.P., st al., "Long Latency Precedes
Overt Seroconversion in Sexually Transmitted Hunan - Immunodeficiency -Virus
Infection, Len= 1i:589-593 (1987)). Increased sensitivity results in
decreased specificity. This relationship is reflected in the following two
examples. First, the World Health Organization (WHO) developed a clinical
case-definition of AIDS, in which three major and six minor symptoms are used.
AIDS is diagnosed if at least two major and one minor symptoms are present.
Based on correlations with the presence of antibodies to the AIDS virus or
with antigens of the AIDS virus itself, the sensitivity of this clinical case-
definition is 54i, and its specificity, 92%. By adding a fourth major symptom
to the original three and continuing to use the requirement that at least two
major and one minor symptom need to be oresent in order to make the diagnosis
of AIDS, the sensitivity increased from 54% to 75%, but the specificity
decreased from 92i to 87S (Bygbjerg, I.C., Schiodt, N., Eakilana, P.B., et
al.. "Usefulness of a Clinical Case - Definition of AIDS in East Africa,' Langst
1i:569 (1987)). Second, the strength of a positive ELISA test is directly
related to whether a subsequent Western Blot test will be positive. For
example, in one study, highly reactive specimens in the ELISA test were
strongly associated with a positive Western Blot, while moderate to weakly
reactive ELISA tests were weakly associated with a positive Western Blot
(Ward, J.W., Crandon, A.J., Feorino, P.M., et al., "Laboratory and
Epidemiologic Evaluation of an Enzyme Immunoassay for Antibodies to HTLV-III,"

256:357-361 (1986)).

3 Reesink, H.W., Lillie, P.N., Huisman, J.C., et al., "Evaluation of Six
Enzyme Immunoassays for Antibody Against Human Immunodeficiency Virus,' LAnul
ii:483-486 (1986).

4 Fust, G., Ujhelyi, E., Hellas, M., and Hollan, S.R , "Traps of HIV
Serology: Independent Changes in Seusicivity and Specificity of ELBA Kits,"
Presented at the 3rd International Conference on AIDS, Washington, D.C., June
1-5, 1987:49.

5 Cockerill, F.R., Edson, R.S., Chase, R.C., Katzeann, J.A., and Terrell,
H.F., " 'False-Positive' Antibodies to Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
Detected by an Enzyme-Linked Iamunosorbent Assay (ELISA) in Patients at Low
Risk for Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS)," presented at the 3rd
International Conference on AIDS, Washington, D.C., June 1-5, 1987:34.

6 Burka, D.S., Brandt, B.L., Redfield, R.R., et al., "Diagnosis of Human

Page 12



20?

Immunodeficiency Virus Infection by Immunoassay Using a Moleculcrly Cloned and

amp d Virus Envelope Polypeptide: Comparison to Western Blot on 2,707

Consecutive Serum Samples, Amu of Internal Medicine 106:671-676 (1987).

7 Burke, D.S. and Redfield, R.R., False-Positive Western Blot Teets for
Antibodies to HT1V-III," jigagaldthidigaggoAgillgaLgaggglaragg 256:347

(1986).

8 Saag, M.S. and Brits, J., Asymptomatic Blood Donor with a False Positive
HTLV-III Western Blot," Maw England Journal of MOnanIne 314:118 (1986); Roy,
S., Portnoy, J., and Weinberg, M.A., "Need for Caution in Interpretation of
Western Blot Tests for HIV imanaudsktiwirlun...thisusaLAmasiathan
257:1047 (1987).

9 Chyang Fang, coordinato- of quality control laboratory, American Red Cross,
National Headquarters, personal communication with the Office of Technology
Assessmomt, September 25, 1987.

10 Sandstrom, B.C., Schooley, R.I., Ho, D.D., et al., Detection of Human
Anti -HTLV -III Antibodies by Indirect Immunofluorescence Using Fixed Cells,
jrendulion 25:308-312 (1985); Stonsburner, R.L., Chiasson, M.A., Solomon, K.,
and Rosenthal, S., "Risk Factors in Military Recruits Positive for HIV
Antibody, Mew England Journal of Medicine 315:1355 (1986).

11 Centers for Disease Control, "Public Health Service Guidelines for
Counseling and Antibody Testing to Prevent HIV Infection and AIDS, Morbidity
end Mortality Weekly Ramer... 36(#31):509-515 (1987).

12 Office of Medical Applications of Research, National Institutes of Health,
Bethesda, Maryland, The Impact of Routine HTLV-III Antibody Testing of Blood
and Plasma Donors on Public Health jlminaldthijoirjairakaral,
nesociatiqn 256:1778-1783 (1986).

13 Burks, D.S., Brundage, J.F., Hsrbold, J.R., et al., "Human
Immunodeficiency Virus Infections Among Civilian Applicants for United States
Military Service, October 1985 to March 1986 Neu England Journal of Medicine
317:131-136 (1987).

14 Chyang Fang, coordinator of quality control laboratory, American Red
Cross, National Headquarters, personal communication with the Office of
Technology Assessment, September 22 and 25, 1987.

15 Fleming, D.V., Cochi, S.L., Steece, R.S., and Hull, H.F., "Acquired
Immunodeficiency Syndrome in Low-Incidence Areas " journal of the American
Medical Association 258:785-787 (1987).

16 Texas House bill No. 1829, section 9.02, signed into law In 1987,
contained the following provision:

When the prevalence rate of confirmed positive HIV infection is .83
percent, as reported under the Communicable Di Prevention and
Control Act (Article 4419b-1, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes), the Texas
Board of Health shall promulgate emergency rules for mandatory testing
for HIV infection as a condition for obtaining a marriage license.

2 I



208

Mr. WAXMAN. Our next witness is Dr. Charles McKinney, Direc-
tor of Education, Gay Men's Health Crisis, who will be accompa-
nied by Mr. Tim Sweeney, Deputy Director of Government Rela-
tions.

We are pleased to welcome you to the subcommittee hearing this
afternoon. Your prepared statement will be made part of the
record in full. We would like to ask you, though, to summarize in
no more than 5 minutes.

Dr. McKinney.

STATEMENT OF CHARLES McKINNEY, DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION,
GAY MENS' HEALTH CRISIS, ACCOMPANIED BY TIM SWEENEY,
DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR GOVERNMENT RELATIOIS

Mr. McKINNEY. Mr. Chairman, members of Congress, my name
is Charles McKinney. I am Director of Education for the Gay
Mens' Health Crisis in New York.

I come to you from inside the epidemic. We have been dealing for
the past 6 years with the crisis on a very first-hand basis. I thank
you, on behalf of Gay Mens' Health Crisis and 300 community-
based organizations throughout the country who have been fighting
the fight against AIDS, for having us here today.

I would like to take the tack of offering you our assistance, as-
sistance that we feel is of particular value because of our experi-
ence in dealing with the crisis. In Gay Mens' Health Crisis alone
we have dealt with 5,282 clients, people with AIDS and ARC. This
number from this single Agency is greater than the combined total
number of cases diagnosed in all of Western Europe and the
United Kingdom.

We have had this experience from inside and offer you the value
of that experience.

We have developed over that period of time a level of expertise,
an expertise that is sought out by the Western European countries.
We have had visitations from the public health officers end public
health officials from all of the Western Europe and European coun-
tries, the United Kingdom, Japan, Australia, Canada, Mexico,
Brazil. We have been asked to be the guests of governments of
Norway, Canada and Australia and have presented our educational
programs there.

Our literature is reproduced around the world. The World
Health Organization has sought our counsel in developing guide-
lines in protocols for working with AIDS.

While this is a tribute to the quality of the work we do, it raises
a question as to what the role of government has been. We have
developed a service delivery model that can provide an immediate
response to the needs of individuals with AIDS and the needs of
the community with regard to education about AIDS. We have de-
veloped an education model that is immediately available to the
people where the people are and when they are there.

We do not maintain a program that is a program of service avail-
able from 9 in the morning until 5 in the evening and require that
people come to us for the information. Rather we go to where the
people are when they are there. If that is 4:30 in the morning, if it
is 12 midnight, if it is on Saturday, Sunday and holidays, and it is
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all of those, we go to where the people are to take the educational
programs to them.

We can provide and have provided educational service at thelowest cost available. When you channel your funds through the
bureaucracy of the Federal Government down to the State and the
city bureaucracies, there is not very much left that has not been
eaten by administrative costs when it is used to provide services,

We have developed a mndel in which only a few pennies of anyfunded dollars is used for administrative costs, and the rest of that
dollar goes for direct service. The way we have been able to do thisis by enlisting committee volunteerism, volunteerism as it has
never really existed before in this country. These are not volun-
teers who push wheel chairs and deliver flowers to patients' rooms.
These are volunteers who make presentations, who teach classes,
who facilitate programs, who work directly with clients and dohands-on work.

We are an agency of volunteers. The only way we are able to dothe amount of work that we do is through volunteers. We use 76
paid staff members actually to facilitate the work of our 1,700 vol-
unteers who do the work.

We have developed and utilized information systems that have
not been accessed by other agencies. Our materials are distributed
through the public libraries, in correctional facilities, through thegeneral post office locations throughout the City of New York.

Our programs are documented to be empirically effective. Our
literature, as I said, has been reproduced around the world. What
we offer, in short, Mr. Chairman, is the use of these 300 agencies in
promoting the education that must take place in our fight against
AIDS. We urge you to consider NAN, which is the umbrella organi-
zation located here in Washington that represents the 300 commu-
nity-based agencies that are available to you. We would like tohelp.

Thank you.
[The prepared statemen& of Mr. McKinney follows:)

STATEMENT OF CHARLES MCKINNEY

Mr. Chairman, Members of Congress:
I am Dr. Charles McKinney, Three:or of Education, for Gay Men's Health Crisishi New York. I want to thank y Ai on behalf of Gay Men's Health Crisis and over

300 community based organizations that are leading the fight against AIDS in this
country, for the opportunity of testifying before you. My purpose today is to offer tothe Congress our assistance in the fight against this dread disease.

We offer you the benefit of our experience. Gay Men's Health Crisis was the first,and is the oldest AIDS service agency in the world. In the 6 years our existence,we have provided direct care to 5,282 people with AIDS ana people with ARC. Infact, this one agency has provided services to a greater number of people with AIDS
than the combined cumulative total of diagnosed cases in all of Western Europe and
Great Britain. In addition, we provide educational services on an on-going basis, to a
greater New York community of over 14,000,000 people.

We offer you the benefit of our expertise. By arrangement of their embassies in
New York, public health officers from all of the Western European countries, the
United Kingdom, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Japan and Australia have visited the GayMen's Health Crisis in the past 18 months. Their purpose has been to draw from
our experience and expertise in the development of national policies by their respec-tive governments, for preventing the public health emergency that has occurred, byacquiescence, in the United States.

Health educators from Gay Men's Health Crisis have travelled to Norway,Canada, and Australia, at the request and expense of those governments, to present

213
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risk-reduction programs, on site, to leaders of State, and public health officers. The
World Health Organization tapped our experience and knowledge when it convened
a panel of experts in Geneva, Switzerland, last Spring, to develop guidelines on pre-
and post-test HIV counseling.

These citations are a tribute to the quality of the work we do. But they raise ques-
tions regarding the locus of leadership in the fight against HIV transmission in the
United States.

We offer you the benefit of a service delivery model that is of proven effectiveness
in providing education and services to the clients we serve. It is a model that has
wide application as part of a National program of AIDS education.

The Gay Men's Health Crisis model is one that is capable of immediate response
to the needs of clients as these needs are identified. It is a model thet makes serv-
ices available at the time, and at the place they are needed. It is not a model that
provides services between the hours of 9 and 5, Monday through Friday; rather, it is
a model that takes services to the people where they are, when those services are
needed. If educational intervention is most effective at 4:30 a.m., 12 midnight, holi-
days, '"eekends, in bars, or in bathhouses, our services are provided at the times and
places the populations we need to reach congregate.

Ours is a service delivery model that uses the money available to it for the deliv-
ery of servictz A dollar filtered through the Federal bureaucracy to the State, and
ultimately to the city, provides only a few pennies for services. In our model, only a
few pennies are used for administrative costs, and the major portion of the dollar is
used to provide services. This is achieved through a concept of volunteerism that is
exclusive with community based organizations. Gay Men's Health Crisis is a volun-
teer agency, in which 1,700 volunteers provide direct services to clients, under the
supervision of a small professional staff of paid employees.

W thin this model, GMHC has developed a system for disseminating educational
information by utilizing pre-existing networks that reach into every neighborhood
and ethnic community in our city. These include the public libraries, General Post
Offices, athletic clubs, gymnasiums and health clubs as well as correctional facili-
ties. In addition, we provide peer counseling at Community Information Tables that
are stationed in the streets in high traffic areas of New York City. Our Community
Support Netwcrk utilizes delis, beauty parlors, barber shops and boutiques for the
distribution of literature and dissemination of AIDS information.

The risk-reduction programs we have developed demonstrate empirically that
sexual behavior can be modified from high risk to low risk. These prwams have
been replicated world wide. The Ohio State Department of Health will begin using
our risk-reduction interventions this Fall in Cincinnati, Cleveland and Columbus.

GMHC literature, which is published in a variety of languages and literacy levels
is reproduced throughout the world. The September issue of the School Library
Journal, which goes to every school library in the country, features GMHC publica-
tions as a source of "solid" AIDS information for use in school libraries. The U.S.
Public Health Service has purchased copies of Medical Answers About AIDS for dis-
tribution to all health officers of that service.

I have with me a selection of these publications which I request be made a part of
the Congressional Record.

While these citations are a tribute to the quality of our work, they raise questions
again regarding the locus of leadership in the fight against AIDS in the United
States.

The Federal Government, by its inability and unwillingness to respond to a na-
tional health crisis, has lost its credibility. It has lost the confidence of the people.
The gap between what government says, and what it does, is blatantly illustrated in
the political pandering apparent in the selection of appointees to the Presidential
advisory commission in AIDS.

In the absence of a Federal initiative in the fight to contain the AIDS epidemic,
the leadership role has been placed on grass roots organizations such as the Gay
Men's Health Crisis, and other community based organizations of the National
AIDS Network that are located throughout the United States. These organizations,
over 300 in number, are eager to assist the Federal Government in meeting its re-
sponsibility; but, they cannot be a surrogate for governmental leadership in a na-
tional health emergency.

In short, the National AIDS Network of grass roots, community based organiza-
tions, offers you the benefit of its experience and expertise, its service delivery sys-
tems, and a model that is both cost effective and efficient. It is a model that has
credibility with its constituency, and the confidence of its constituency.

A mobilized grass roots effort, in combination with the resources and leadership
of the Federal Government, provide the strategic elements for success in a national
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campaign to contain and control the HlVirus. We Fisk the Congress of the United
States to act on behalf of its people. That is the conclusion of my testimony MrChairman. Thank you.

. Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. McKinney. We appreci-
ate your testimony.

The bells have rung indicating that we have a vote on the House
floor. Before we begin any questions, I would like to recess for us to. respond to that vote and then return as soon as possible to pursue
questions and answers.

[Brief recess.]
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you.
The meeting of the subcommittee will come back to order. Dr.

McKinney, let me ask you this: do you think that the same kind of
educational efforts that you have been involved with should beused for the general public?

Or do you think we ought to have tailored educational efforts to
reach different groups?

Mr. MCKINNEY. Mr. Waxman, the general public is made up of
many publics, and the materials that we have developed have been
specifically tailored to each of those populations. I think it would
be an error to think that the educational effort of Gay Men's
Health Crisis has been targeted exclusively to the Gay and bisex-
ual community.

It has not. The major effort has been to the general public, to
inform the general public. Our three missions, our three target au-
diences, are the general public; health care providers and mental
health workers; and, third, and specifically for Gay and bisexual
men, risk reduction education.

I would aay yes, that many of the methods that we have devel-
oped are quite applicable to th a general public in the development
of any educational program. However, the specific audience must
be considered in tailoring the program, so that what we have
learned will be useful.

Whether or not this is the most useful approach via television is
a question that would have to be deliberated. Whether it is for a
classroom setting, yes: we found that to be so.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Is the Gay Mens' Health Crisis in New York

the one that received a grant this fiscal year :- n. some $670,000
from the Federal Government?

Mr. MCKINNEY. No, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Have you received a grant at all, in any

amount?
Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How much was the amount?
Mr. MCKINNEY. We are in the second year of a research program

that is funded by the Centers for Disease Control, and for a 15-
month period. The continuation grant was $434,000.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I see. I have some material here. Do we have
staff person that can hand this to the witness, please?

Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes, sir. I recognize this material.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Is this material published by the Gay Men's

Health Crisis?
Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes, sir.

0
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Mr. DANNEMEYER. When was it published?
Mr. MCKINNEY. There are a couple of differentit has been over

the 1986-1987 fiscal year, and 198'7-1988; each of these has come
out, it has been timed about 2 to 3 months apart. It was not all
published at one time.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Was it published and disseminated by the Gay
Men's Health Crisis at a time when you were receiving this Feder-
al money?

Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How do you go about getting a copy of these

documents that I have handed to you?
Mr. MCKINNEY. You may call or write to Information Services of

the Gay Men's Health Crisis. On the basis of a telephone call, for
instance, you would be informed that there are three packets of
material that are already made up.

I have brought a selection of those materials, which I would like
to ask be entered into the record today. One is an Info Pack, which
is an information pack, which is targeted to the general public.

A second is a Gay Pack, which is targeted to the Gay and bisex-
ual community. It contains everything that would be targeted to
the general public, plus the safer sex comics, and a couple of other
pieces that are targeted exclusively to the Gay and bisexual com-
munity.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Did you mean to infer, sir, that the documents
that I handed you fit within the category of the safer sex comics? Is
that what you said?

Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes. That's what these- -
Mr. DANNEMEYER. That's what you would call that?
Mr. MCKINNEY. That's what is captioned on what you gave me,

yes.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. There is no doubt in the mind of this member

that the material that I handed you is pornographic.
Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes, sir.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. The fact that you would distribute itwe live

in a free country, we have a free press. If you can find somebody
that has an interest in that literature, althoughyou distribute
this literature by mail?

Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes. When requested specifically, we do.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I would submit, sir, that if you distribute that

pornographic material by mail, you are violating a Federal law
which prohibits the use of the U.S. Mails to mail pornographic ma-
terial.

I just don't think that Federal taxpayers' dollars should be di-
rectly, or indirectly, assisting an organization such as yours in dis-
seminating pornographic material of this type.

Mr. SWEENEY. Congressman, if I may? We do not use-
Mr. DANNEMEYER. You can answer this: why do you distribute

this type of material? What's the purpose?
Mr. MCKINNEY. I think that the answer was given to you yester-

day. We publish material at all literacy levels and in different lan-
guages that are targeted for different groups, and that are effective
and useful for different groups

The safer sex comics have been designed for specific groups. They
are the most effective way of communicating with those groups.
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You have used the term pornographic material; we call that educa-
tional literature.

Mr. SWEENEY. Congressman Dannemeyer, we want to make it
very clear. No Federal funds are used in the printing of these ma-
terials whatsoever. You will see in the record of the materials that
we submitted, an order form where you have to order this materi-
al, should you want to get it.

It is right here.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I think, in your analysis, that is probably a

correct statement. But from this Member of Congress' viewpoint, I
don't believe that the people of this country are comfortable with
Federal taxpayers' dollars going to an organization that distributes
a-is kind of material, with all due respect to the purpose you have
in mind.

Mr. SWEENEY. We believe it is our right and our responsibility to
educate, and to reach people with lifesaving information. We be-
lieve that the safer sex comics, in fact, do reach a certain person.
They will hear a message and, hopefully, act responsibly, and pro-
tect themselves and their sexual partners.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I guess we have a different point of view on
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WAXMAN. It is your position that Federal dollars are not
being used, directly or indirectly, for these publications?

Mr. SWEENEY. That is correct. The safer sex comics are not used
in till research program, which is Federally funded.

Mr. WAXMAN. You wanted to submit some information to us. We
will pleased to receive that.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Mr. Chairman, may I ask that this material
that I showed to the witness be placed in the record?

Mr. WAXMAN. We will be pleased to review that material.
[The material referred to may be found in subcommittee files.]
Mr. WAXMAN. I have asked that a transcript of the National

AIDS Hotline tape message be included for the record. Without
object?

I would also ask that their materials that are sent to callers of
that Hotline, if requested, be part of the record.

[Testimony resumes on p. 262.]
[The following materials were submitted for the record:]

1,

7,2-635 - 88 - 8



214

ASHA: National AIDS Hotline

Taped Message

4 Actors: 1 Male - "Announcer"

1 Male - "Character Male"
I Female - "Female Lead"
1 Female - "Black Female"

Announcer (A)

Ibis is the Public Health Service National AIDS Hotline...operated by the

American Social Health Association.

In this 4 mirute message, we'll give you basic information on the A quired

I mmuno D efficiency S yndrome - AIDS.

Female Lead

We'll tell what AIDS is and how to protect yourself against infection...

Character Male

We'll talk about the blood teat than, detects the AIDS infection and where

testing available...

Black Female

And we'll have a word for women planning on having a baby who are concerned

about AIDS.

Female Lead

Then, if you have any questions or want to be sent written information, we'll

give you the phone number to get answers from our live operators.

Announcer

AIDS is caused by a virus. It's known as the Human Immunodeficiency Virus:

II-I-V. Most people infected with the AIDS virus donTt feel sick or show any

signs of illness...

There are people who do get ver sick. The AIDS virus damages part of their

body's immune system and they gmL serious diseases which are rarely a threat

to human beings. So far, in America, most of these people have been gay and

bisexuzl men, intravenous drug users, people with the disease hemophillia...

and sexual partners of all these groups. Also, some -Aople did get the AIDS

thremoh hlmnri trinofmoinnot. AnA more nyld more r Ames-aAIDS are now
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being seen in heterosexuals.

page 2

Black Female

What's the link between all these groups? (1) sexual contact and (2) exposure
to blood. Because, that's how el AIDS virus is transmitted or spread.

You can Alt the AIDS virus by having Lnprotected sexual intercourse with an
infected person... or by exposure to their blood...mostly, that happens when
intravenous drug users share needles or syringes... and finally...an infected
mother can give her child the virus during pregnancy or at birth. Women who
might be infected should talk to their doctor or family planning service before
getting pregnant. Ber,os why:

Character Male

There is now a blood test that detects signs of the AIDS virus...it identifies
"antibodiii to the AIDS virus - that's what your body produces to try and defend
itself against the infection.

This blood test is insuring that America's blood supply in safe. Every unit of
donated blood is now tested and, if positive, it's not 414.

Female Lead

If you think you've been exposed to the AIDS virus and are interested in having
your blood tested, you should see your personal physician - or go to one of the
new special testing centers, where there is counseling available and test results
are confidential. We'll give you the number for more test information.

Announcer

.That's the basic story...The AIDS virus is not spread like the cold or
influenza or the measles...ices spread mainly by sexual intercourse and by
exposure to blood...

If you don't wart to get infected, there are only a few things to remember:

Black Female

One of the surest ways to avoid infection is not to have sexual intercourse
or other sexual relations: That's called abstinence. And there's this important
advise from the U.S. Surgeon General...Listen...



216

page 3

The best protection against the infection, right now, barring abstinence, is the

use of a condom. A condom should be used during sexual relations from start to

finish with anyone whom you are not absolutely sure is free of the AIDS virus.

Announcer

Remember even a condom is not a guarantee of safety; Today everyone needs to be

prudent" about sexual relations, because of AIDS and other sexually transmitted

di

Character Male

And finally do not abuse intravenous drugs; if you can't stop, please don't ever

share, or lend, or even reuse needles or syringes.

Lead Female

New, if you want more information by phone or by mail - take down this number

1-800-342-7314. There's a person ready to provide answers 24 hours a day. The

number (gain is 1-800-342-7314. Thank you.

n -
U
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Reannted by the
U S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

UKIC HEALTH SERVICE

from MMWR, May 22, 1987, Vol. 38, No. 19, pp. 285-289

Update: Human immunodeficiency Virus infections
. in Health-Care Workers Exposed to Blood of infected Patients

Ii

Six persons who provided health care to patients with human immunodeficiency virus
(HIV) infection end who denied other risk factors have previously been reported to have HIV
infection Four of these cases followed needle-stick exposures to blood from patients infected
with HIV (1 -4) The two additional cases involved persons who provided nursing care to per-
sons with HIV infection Although neither of these two persons sustained needle-stick injunes,
both had extensive contact with blood or body fluids of the Infected patient, and neither ob-
served routinely recommended barrier precautions (5,6)

CDC has received reports of HIV infection in three additional health-care workers following
non-needle-stick exposures to blood from infected patients The exposures occurred dunng
1986 in three different geographic areas Although these three cases represent rare events,
they reemphasize the need for health-care workers to adhere ngorously to existing infection
control recommendations for minimizing the nsk of exposure to blood and body fluids of all
patients (7-9)

Health-Care Worker 1: A female health-care worker assisting with an unsuccessful at-
tempt to insert an artenal catheter in a patient suffenng a cardiac arrest in an emergency room
applied pressure to the insertion site to stop the bleeding Dunng the procedure, she may
have had a small amount of blood on her index finger for about 20 minutes before washing
her hands Afterwards, she may also have assisted in cleaning the room but did not recall any
other exposures to the patient's blood or body %ids She had no open wounds, but her hands
we-c ',Nipped Although she often wore gloves when anticipating exposure to blood, she was
not weanng gloves durng this incident

The patient with the cardiac arrest died A postmortem examination identified Pneumocys-
tis canna pneumonia, and a blood sample was positive for HIV antibody by enzyme immuno-
assay (EIA) and Western blot methods Twenty days after the incident, the health-care
worker became ill with fever. myalgia, extreme fatigue, sore throat, nausea, vomiting, diarrhea,
a 14-pound weight loss, and generalized lymphadenopathy which her physician diagnosed as
a viral syndrome That illness lasted 3 weeks She felt much better 9 weeks after the incident,
and, when she was examined 6 months after the incident, all signs and symptoms had re-
solved She had donated blood 8 months before the incident and was negative for HIV anti-
body by EIA She donated again 16 weeks after the incident and was positive for HIV by EIA
and Western blot (bands p24 end gp41 I Serum samples obtained 20 and 23 weeks after the
incident were also positive for HIV antibody She stated that for over 8 years her only sexual
partner had been her husband, who denied risk factors for HIV and was seronegative for HIV
antibody She denied ever receiving a blood transfusion, ever using intravenous drugs, or
having any needle sticks or other significant exposures to blood or body fluids in the pest 8
years Her serologic test for syphilis . as negative Fifteen othe, employees who assisted in
the care of the patient were seronegative at least 4 months after the exposure

Health-Cars Worker 2: A female phlebotomist was filling a 10 ml vacuum blood collec-
tion tube with blood from an outpatient with a suspected HIV infection when the top of the
tube flew off and blood splattered around the room, on her face, and in her mouth She was
wearing gloves to protect her hands and was wearing eyeglasses so she did not think she got
any blood in her eyes She had facial acne but no open wounds She washed the blood off im-
mediately after the exposure The outpatient's blood sample was positive for HIV antibody by
EIA and Western blot, and a hepatitis 8 surface antigen test was negative The phlebotomist's
EIA was negative the day after the incident and again 8 weeks later When she donated blood
9 months after the exposure, she was positive for HIV antibody by EIA and Western blot
(bands p24 and gp41) She has had no symptoms She denied having any sexual contact
during the previous 2 years, ever using drugs intravenously, or ever receiving a transfusion

rl
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Two months after the incident she scratched the back of her hand with a needle used to
draw blood from an intravenous drug abuser of unknown HIV-antibody status She did not
bleed as a result is; the scratch and has not had any needle-stick injuries in over 2 years Her
serologic testa for syphilis and hepatitis B were negativ A coworker who was splattered
with blood on the face and in the mouth dunng the same incident remains serunegative 1 year
after the incident

Hecith-Care Worker 3: A female medical technologist was manipulating an apheresis ma-
chine (a device to separate blood components) to correct a problem that de 'eloped during an
outpatient procedure when blood spilled. covenng most of her hands and forearms She was
not wearing gloves She does not recall having any open wounds on her hands or any mucous-
membrane exposure However, she had dermatitis on one ear and may have touched it She
washed the blood orf herself and the machine several minutes after the spill The patient un-
dergoing the apheresis had denied nsk factors for HIV infection However, a blood sample
from the patient was positive for HIV antibody by EIA and Westem blot methods and negative
for hepatitis B surface antigen the next day The technologist's HIV-antibody tests were nega-
tive 5 days after the exposure and again 6 weeks later Eight weeks after the exposure. she
had an influenza-like illness with fever, myalgia, diarrhea, hives, and a pruntic red macular
rasn on her arms and legs The illness resolved after a few weeks, and her physician thought
the illness was probably a viral syndrome Three months after the incident, she was positive
for HIV antibody by EIA and Western blot methods (band p24 alone) Four months after the
incident. a Western blot was positive (bands p24 and gp41) She indicated that for more than
8 years her only sexual partner had been her husband, who denied nsk factors for HIV infec-
tion and was seronegative for HIV antibody She denied ever receiving a transfusion, ever
using intravenous drugs, or having any needle-stick injunes in over 2 years Her serologic tests
for syphilis and hepatitis B were negative She has an immunologic disorder which had been
treated with corticosteroids in the past. but she had not taken any immunosuppressive medi-
cation for the past year A coworker with a simile. exposure dunng the same procedure re-
mains seronegative after 3 months
Reported by Hospital Infections Program and AIDS Program. Canter for Infectious Diseases, CDC

Editorial Note: Three instances of health-care workers with HIV infections associated with
skin or muc-1.s-membrane exposure to blood from HIV-infected patients are reported above
Careful investigation of these three cases did not identify other nsk factors for HIV infection,
although un--cognized or forgotten needle-stick exposures to other infected patients cannot
t - totally excluded The exact route of transmission in these three cases is not known Health-

Care Worker 1 had chapped hands. and the duration of contact with the blood of the patient
experiencing a cardiac arrest may have been as long as 20 minutes Health-Care Worker 2 sus-
tained contamination of oral mucous membranes This individual also hed acne but did not
recall have j open lesions In addition, she had sustained a scratch from a needle used to draw
blood from .n intravenous drug abuser of unknown HIV-infection status Health-Care Worker 3
had a history of dermatitis involving an ear Hearth-Care Workers 1 and 3 were not wearing
gloves when direct contact with blood occurred Hea'th-Care Worker 2 was weanng gloves.
but blood contaminated her face and mouth

Three ongoing prospective studies provide data on the magnitude of the nsk of HIV infec-
tion incurred when health-care workers are exposed to blood of infected patients through
needle-stick wounds or contamination of an open wound or mucous membrane In a CDC
cooperative surveillance project (10). a total of 1,097 health-care workers with parenteral or
mucous-membrane exposure to the blood of patients with AIDS or other manifestations of
HIV infection had been enrolled as of March 31, 1987 Needle-stick injuries and cuts with
sharp objects accounted for 969 (89%) of the exp sures to blood. 298 of these had paired
serum samples tested for HIV antibody One (0 3%) seroconverted 12). indicating that the risk

°('2A./.
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of transmission dunng these exposures is very low In addition. 70 health-care workers hao
open wounds exposed to blood, and 58 had mucous membrane exposed to blood Postexpo-
sure serum samples from 82 of these 128 workers have been tested for antibody to HIV,
none was seropositive

In a study at the National Institutes of Health (11) through April 30, 1987, none of the
103 workers with percutaneous exposures and none of the 229 workers with mucous-
membrane exposures to blood or body fluids of patients with AIDS was seropositive At the
University of California 112), none of 63 workers with open wounds or mucous membranes
exposed to blood or body fluids of patients with AIDS was seroposittve Although the precise
nsk of transmission during exposures of open wounds or mucous membranes to contaminat-
ed blood cannot be defined, these studies indicate that It must be very low

The three cases reported here suggest that exposure of skin or mucous membranes to
contaminated blood may rarely result in transmission of HIV The magnitude of the nsk is not
kncwn since data on the frequency with which such exposures occur are not available Skin
and mucous-membrane exposures are thought to occur much more commonly than needle
sticks, and the nsk associated with skin or mucous-membrane exposures is likely to be far
lower than that associated with needle-stick 'Nunes Nonetheless, the increasing prevalence
of HIV infection increases the potential for such exposures, especially when routinely recom-
mended precautions are not followed

It is unlikely that routine serologic testing for HIV infection of all patients admitted to hospi-
tals would have prevented these exposures since two of the three exposures occurred in the
outpatient clinic setting, and one occurred during a resuscitation effort in an emergency room
shortly after the amval of the patient At the time of exposure, Health-Care Worker 2 suspect-
ed that the source patient was infected with HIV, but Health-Care Workers 1 and 3 did not
The hospital where Health-Care Worker 3 was exposed has a protocol for apheresis which
normally involves HIV-antibody testing of donors, however, such testing was not done in ad-
vance of the procedure Previous CDC recommendations have emphasized the value of HIV
serologic testing for patient diagnosis and management and for prevention and control of HIV
transmission (13) and have stated that some hospitals in certain geographic areas may deem
it appropnate to initiate serologic testing of patients (7) Such testing may also provide an op-
portunity to reduce the risk of HIV infection to health-care workers, but it has not been estab-
lished that knowledge of a patient's serologic status increases the compliance of health-care
workers with recommended precautions

These cases emphasize again the need to implement and strictly enforce previously pub-
lished recommendations for minimizing the nsk of exposure to blood and body fluids of all pa-
tients in order to prevent transmission of HIV infection in the workplace and dunng invasive
procedures (7-9)
1 As previously recommended, routes precautions must be followed when there is a possi-

bility of exposure to blood or other body fluids The anticipated exposure may require
gloves alone le g , when placing an intravascular catheter or handling items soiled with
blood or equipment contaminated with blood or other body fluids) Procedures involving
more extensive contact with blood or potentially infective body fluids le g , some dental or
endoscopic procedures or postmortem examinations) may require gloves, gowns, masks,
and eye-covenngs Hands and other contaminated skin surfaces should be washed thor-
oughly and immediately of accidentally contaminated with blood (7) These precautions
deserve particular emphasis on emergency care settings in which the nsk of blood expo-
sure is increased and the infectious status of the patient is usually unknown (14)
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2 Previous recommendations have emphasized management of parenteral and mucous-
membrane exposures of health-care workers' In addition, health-care workers who are
involved in incidents that result in cutaneous exposures involving large amounts of blood
or prolonged contact with bloodespecially when the exposed skin is chapped, abraded,

or afflicted with dermatitisshould follow these same recommendations Moreover,

serologic testing should be available to all health-care workers who are concerned that
they may have been infected with HIV
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'If a HCW (health,are worker) has a parenteral le g needlestick or cut) or mucous membrane (a g ,

splash to th ; eye or mouth) exposure to blood or other body fluids, the source patient should be as-
clinically and epidemiologically to determine the likelihood of HTLV - III /LAS' (sic) infection If the

assessment suggests that infection may exist, the patient should be informed of the incident and
requested to consent to serologic testing for evidence of HTLV -Hl /LAV Ism) infection If the source pa-

tient has AIDS or other evidence of HTLV-III/LAV Imo) infection, declines testing, or has a positive test.

the HCW should be evaluated clinically and serologically for evidence of HTLV-III/LAV fsicl infection as

soon as possible after the exposure, and, if seronegative.retested after 6 weeks and on a periodic basis

thereafter le g 3. G. and 12 months following exposure) to determine if transmission has occurred

During this follow-up period, especially the first 6-12 weeks, when most infected persons are expected

to seroconvert. exposed HCWs should receive counseling about the risk of infection and follow U S
Public Health Service IPHS) recommendations for preventing transmission of AIDS 115.161 If the

source patient is seronegetive and has no other evidence of HTLV 111/LAV (sic) infection, no further

follow-up of the HCW is necessary If the source patient cannot be identified, decisions regarding ap-

propriate follow-up should be individualized based on the type of exposure and the likelihood that the

Source patient was infected (7)
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The Prevention of Acquired
Immunodeficiency Syndrome in the
United States
An Objective Strategy for Medicine, Public Health,
Business, and the Community
Donald P Francis MD, DSc, James Chin MD MPH

Human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) is one of the most virulent infectious
agents ever encountered This virus, estimated to kill up to a half of those
infected, has spread to more than I million Americans There is no safe and
effective treatment Nor is there a vaccine From our understanding of HIV
transmission, further spread of the virus can be stopped by the use of various
tecknopes The combined use of educationmotivationslat building, serologic
screenriti, and contact traangrnalcakon could eliminate or substantially
reduce transmission To accomplish this reduction an immense concerted eF-
by physicians, public health practitioners, business, and community organiza-
tions is required to get across the simple prevention messages Those messages
are (1) My sexual intercourse (outside of mutually morv_vernous or HIV
antibody-negative selationshops) must be protected with a condcm (2) Do not
share unsterile needles or syringes (3) All women who may have ,ern exposed
should sun HIVanlibody testing before becoming pregnant a.d. If positive,
avoid pregnancy Only through a concerted, vigorous, and sustained prevention
program that deals (rankly with this problem will those individuals at nsk be
reached and motivated to take personal responsibility to protect themselves
Without such an effort, acquired immunodeficiency syndrome will continue to lull
everIncreaSing numbers of A nencans

AS OF early 1961, about 30000 cases of
acquired immunodeficiency syndrome
(AIDS) were reported in the United
States, and it is expected that another
250000 or more will be recorded by
1991i In some conununibes, such as San
Frinasco, where the toll of over 1000
deaths recorded ao of early 1986 had
already exceeded the number of deatns
of soldiers and sailors from this city for
World War I, World War II, the Korean
War, and the Vietnam conflict tom-
Wed, the pain and suffering of pa-
tients, their families, and their friends
hoe been immense. In addition, the
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social damagein terms of valuable and
productive persons lest and medial
penditures incurred hoe been enor-
mous' and is still increasing

Current evidence suggest, that the
etudocc agent of AIDS has been pres-
ent in localized areas of central Africa
for at least several decades,' and only

See Silo pp MT and 1376.

dung the past few years has It been
spreading extensively in Africa. the
United States, Haiti, and Western Eu-
rope' The large numbers of eases of
AIDS now being documented in the
United States, and throughout the
world, are prinunly a result of Wee-
tions that occurred m the 1970s and
early 19805, before the causative virus
was isolated and its pathogenesis and
transmission understood As such, the
current disaster was, to a large extent.
an un preen table one that now requires

Ci

an immediate and effective medical and
social response to minimize the pain,
suffering, and social upheavals caused
by these silent infections d years past

With our current understanding of
AIDS, it is clear that virtually all future
infections can, at taut theoretical!), be
presented Given the opportunity lie,
information, motivation, and sails), in
denduals should be able to modify their
behaviors to protect themselves from
infection. The coyer question us, can our
society unite to unpart effectively the
needed information, motivation, and
dolls to those at risk to stop this epi
dame The answer to this question
depends on, first, having a commitment
to intervene effectively; second, devel-
aping a seasonable, scientifically and
socially sound intervention plan, and
third, knplementing that plan as rapidly
se possible

Thu report will review the current
knowledge martins( the pathogenesis
and tranateissioc of the AIDS virus
the United States, outline a prevention
plan based on that !melodic, and de-
sasbe the major problems confronting
effective prevention and controL

THE VIRUS AND ITS PATHOGENESIS

Human inununode6aeney virus
(HIVY (also known as lymphadenopa-
thy-assocuted human T-tell lym-
photropm virus type and AIDS.
associated rettenrus"), the etiologic
agent for AIDS, is a retronnis capable
of repkcating in a limited number of cells
in the human WY, including lympho-
cytes!' macrophages,' and cells of the
central nervous system - Typical of
retroviruses, HIV integrates its ge-
nome into the 'gnome of the host cell,
after which progeny viruses are pro-
duced Soon after infection, antibody to
several proteins of HIV develop, but
these antibodies are not necessarily
protective Indeed, one of the most re-
markable 'sputa of HIV is is propen
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sit) for producing a persistent wremic
('eamer') state in a high proportion of
infected people despite the presence of
antibody (see 'The Significance of Seto-
positivity' section). The pathogenesis of
HIV is related to the destruction of the
'helper (re) subset of T lymphocytes,
which are critical in maintaining immu
nolopc competence In addition, neu-
rologic disease appears to be a direct
result of HIV-induced destruction of
brain cella

TRANSMISSION

Itansnusuon of any human virus re-
quires a portal of exit, survival through
the environment Into which it is re-
leased, and entrance into susceptible
host with establishment of infection, in a
cell capable of supporting replication
The HIV has been isolated from fluids
obtained from a vanety of body sites.
Including blood." semen, vaginal
fluid,'" tears, and saliva " Epidenuo-
lope studies have established that those
fluids that pond' suffice nt virus for
transmission seem to be limited to
blood."' semen,'" and vaginal secre-
tions'" Presumably, the presence of
lymphocytes In these thuds increases
the concentration of infectious virus and
may be important, or even essential, for
transnussion.

Those sites best suited for the estab-
lishment of mfection after exposure ap-
pear to be the vascular system (Includ-
ing open wounds of the skin), the pews
(presumably the urethra), the vagina'
and the rectum The oral mucou ap-
pears relatively inhospitable to the es-
tablishment of uifection," yet the In-
let-non of an ushuit, mut-ably through
brust-feeding,' leaves COOT for con-
cern regarding the placement of petite
Bally infectious Atria on upper
gutro(ntutinal tract mucous mem-
branes (at least of newborn infanta).

Sexual Transmission
The HIV is effeeUvely trarunutted by

sexual contact between men, from
men to women.." and from women
to men.".. The difference in trans-
mission efficiency, If any, between anal
Intercourse and vaginal intercourse is
not blown and continues to be disputed
What is Icnown is that many persons
have been infected by both types of
intercourse Between men, it appears
that receptive anal Intercourse is a more
effective means of transmission than is
=emu* anal Intercourse or any type of
oral- genital intercourse' With vaginal
Intercourse it appears that transmis-
sion rates from men to women or from
women to men may be similar' The
exact risk of infection for a susceptible
person having a single sexual encounter
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with an infected partner u unknown
There are individuals, both heterosex
ual and homosexual, who have had re
peated sexu.d relations with known in
fected persons without having been
infected Yet thenkare others who re
port having had only one sexual encoun
ter and have then developed AIDS In
addition, a report from Australia' that
four of eight women developed an infec-
tion after they were inseminated with
semen from an infected sperm donor,
and a report of infection of a female
chimpanzee by intravapnal inocula
tion," suggest that a single encounter
with HIV is sufficient in some situations
to infect

Blood-Borne Transmission
Inoculation of HIV intravenous!)

appears to be an efficient means of
transmission regardless of whether the
inoculum contains cell-free virus' or
cell-associated virus The Major deter-
minant of outcome of exposure appears
to be the amount of virus maculated
Large moods given In the form of trans-
fused blood almost universally result In
infection,* whereas small inocula of
blood on the end of a needle seldom
result in infection This appears to be a
function of the concentration of inlet-
uous virusin blood, which u relatively
low,' and the amount of blood on the end
of a needle, which s small The lack of
hospital- or laboratory-acquired HIV
infections indicates that unbroken akin
is probably a good barner to transnus
awn, however, reports of presumptive
Infection through inamed skin are of
potential concern

Perinatal Transmission
Transmiumn from infected mothers

to their infanta can apparently occur In
utero," during partuntion," or during
postpartum breast- feeding The rela-
tive efficiency of perinatal transmission
is probably qwte high but has not been
well established and may vary consider
ably between women

Other Routes of Transmission and
Potential for Mange

Despite detailed serologic studies of
close contacts of infected persons'. and
Investigations or Alps cases, no other
form of trans/num= has been docu-
mented A angle episode of possible
intrahousehold transmission between
two brothers has been reported The
few instances of trans mission to hospi-
tal workers can be attributed to contact
with or inoculation of blood INva out-
of-hospital instances of HIV transmis-
sion to individuals woo performed du-
nes similar to hospital nurses are
presumably similar to the rare in- hos pi

dal transmission episodes In to,al the
relative absence of HIV ti ansrruision In
hospitals, men to those oho have re
ceived accidental needle sticks from in
fected peuents, is striking and in direct
contrast to the high infection rate seen
with hepatitis B virus after such acct
dents

Regarding future projections of
transmission pattern changes, concern
has been ratted about the genetic
ability of li IV Could genetic changes of
HIV result in inereased transmissunht
or transmission by other than recog-
nized routes' Some hate sugge' ;ed that
a dramatic mutation of a preexisting
African strain allowed this virus to
change its epidenuolopc charactensncs
in Africa and mentualli spread
throughout the world But there are no
African isolates before 1976 to support
or disprove this hypothesis Moreover.
other equally plausible explansuons
have some support in fact. For example,
the apparent increased transmission re-
cently observed In urban Africa u Idreb
due to social rather than viral change
Over the past few decades there have
been major population shifts from rural
villages to urban centers in mans Af-
rican countries This urbanuanon, to-
gether with the proliferation of pros-
titution In sties, and possibly the use of
contanwuted needles and blood trans-
fusions In hospitals and clinics could be
the root causes of the amplificauon of
tranousuon In Africa of a sous that
may have changed little mer the years

Support for this hypothesis comes
from the fact that despite considerable
variation of the nucleotide sequences of
various HIV isolates, the transmission
patterns of the virus have remained
remarkably consistent. Indeed, since
the arnval of HIV in the United States,
the transmission patterns have been
mused more by consistency than Is;
change The proportional distribution c f
cases among the various risk groups has
remained essentially constant despite a
marked increase In the number of cases,
multiple generations of passage
through humans, and wide dupe -lion
through different racial groups

NATURAL HISTORY OF INFECTION

Infection with HIV carries a poor
prognosis Although follow-up of sero-
positive individuals m the Uruted States
has been limited by the relative) tece nt
introduction of the virus into this coun-
try, already it is clear that the mortabt).
from this virus la high Between 13%
and 34% of antibody-positive homosex-
ual men, intravenous (IV) drug users,
and hemophiliacs followed up for up to
six years'" have developed AIDS Such
dramatic proportions of severe due -e
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development among ink tcd individu
als arc frightening making HIV among
the most dangerous viruses affecting
hurnIns (Table 1) Firrthermore, when
these mortalin figures are joined vntn
the high prevalence (25% to en) of
other AIDS-related conditions, the pos-
sibility of eventual encephalopatluc con-
ditions," and the realization that the
current observation tunes for infected
persons represent only a fraction of the
potential time donne which diseases
may become apparent in the maul al
history of thus virus, concern regarding
the seventy of HIV grows even greater

Many have speculated that there may
be cofactors for the development of
AIDS Such cofactors could have a ma-
jor effect at two quite separate times-
one early en, affecting the acquisition of
infection, and one later, affecting the
progression toward disease once infec-
tion has occurred Some have hypoih-
mud that preexisting conditions, such
as immunosuppression or antigen expo-
sure, may increase the likelihood of
becomutt infected after exposure to
HIV This has not been confirmed in
laboratory expenments with chim-
panzees, where infection has been read-
ily established with IV or tntravaginal
ev posure to HIV in the absence of im-
munosuppression or stimulation with
other antigens ' Yet outside the labora-
tory, certain conditions, especially
those that facilitate transmitted virus
coming in contact with susceptible tar-
get cells (macrophages or lymphocytes),
may Improve the chance of successful
trimsnussion. Thus, one could hypoth-
esize that conditions that increase the
populations of macrophages or lympho-
cytes at potential sites of virus exit and
entry may well be cofactors for infet-
t1011.

Few cofactors for disease progression
have been found. Some have hypoth-
esized that reexposure to HIV may
increase onek chances for disease, yet
there are no other models in virology, at
least that we are familiar with, that
would support this FUrthermore, such
a hypothesis is difficult to reconcile with
the observation of AIDS following expo-
sure to I unit of infected blood Yet,
something must determine why some
Wetted persons Regress rapidly to
develop AIDS, while others either pro-
gress slowly to the irreversible bonne
state or do not develop AIDS One
major factor is time Those who have
been infected the longest have the high-
est risk of developing AIDS Indeed,
until cohorts of infected individuals are
followed up long enough to observe the
enure natural history of this infection
and the collected information used to
control for the time factor, it is ex-
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tremely difficult to sort out the impor
lance of other possible cofactors

Despite these limitauons, sonic other
factors leg, age) appear to be impor-
tant Evidence indicates that infants
may have extremely high rates of pro-
gressive disease 04 Rogers, MD, ant-
ten commumcat Ion, Centers for Disease
Control, Atlanta, rune 19861 At the
other extreme of the age spectrum,
older homosexual men appear to have
higher disease progression rates than
younger ones Since pregnancy may
also increase the rates of AIDS in in-
Meted women, hormonal levels mat
also influence outcome Repeated stim-
ulation with foreign antigens, another
possible cofactor, has often been hy-
pothesized as a potential enhancer of
veal replication since, in the laboratory,
lymphocytes stimulated with nutogens
replicate the vino more efficiently than
do nonsumulated lymphocytes

Other m-combination influences have
been studied in regard to Kaposib or-
coma, since It is so prevalent in homo-
sexual patients with AIDS as compared
with others Amyl and butyl rutnte
("poppers"), stimulants commonly tsed
by some homosexual men, were on'.
mally proposed as possible causes of
AIDS' They have subsequently been
suggested as cofactors in Kaposik sap
coma," but this latter issue remains
open as other factors (eg, coati-tiro
viruses) have not been thoroughly tn.
vestIgned

THE SIGNIFICANCE OF
SEROPOSITIVITY

The serologic testa for detecting HIV
antibodies have pruned to be extremely
sensitive and speak Individuals
whose serum tests strongly reactive by
enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay
(ELISA) or, if borderline reactive by
ELISA, are also positive by effitrePrI
stely done Western blot or immu-
nolluoremence &sassy may be consid-
ered to have been infected by the vuos
But, in some situations, misinformation
can be generated by ELISA testing
alone The ELISA test, when used in
groups with a high prevalence of Wee-
tion, like sexually active homosexual
men, has a high positive predictive
value. However, when it is used In
groups with low prevalence of infer-
non, most of the 'positive' results are
low-reactive ones and generally turn out
to he false-positive "Also, as with other
viral infection models, immediately
after mfection viral replication can oc-
cur in the absence of detectable sero-
logic response Fbr HIV this 'window
phase' appears to be a matter of few
weeks in most individuals... but It has
been known to last up to six months"
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(.1 Groopman, MD. verities corrusunica
uon. January 19871 Except during this
window phase, current data indicate
that a negative ELISA test result
means in virtually all instances that the
uusodual has not been infected with
HIV

Sun e HIV uitegrates in the host's
genes and, thus, can presumably s :.v
latent in an infected host, all antlooch -
positive persons must be consucerec
potentially infectious In actualin, only
about 6516 of antibody-pawn' persons
have had recoverable virus cuctuatmg
in their blood at any given time, based
on one isolation attempt Vi nether tee
antibody-positive but virus- negative
persons are truly free ofinfectious virus
or whether they represent onl) a tran-
sient virus-negative state, or whether
currently available laboratory tech-
niques are not sensitive enough to de-
tect infectious virus in them, will be
clarified only by additional studies

PREVENTION OF TRANSMISSION
At the present time, there are no

effective vaccines or chemoproph) lact:c
drugs for the prevention of HIV udec
bons Likewise, no effective treatment
exists for HIV infection once estop-
lashed Since there are no known animal
or insect vectors and the virus is not
transmitted by the respirator) or fecal
oral route, prevention of HIV bensrrus-
mon must be directed at person-to-per-
son spread via sexual, blood-borne, and
penriatal mutes (Table 25 U C Cher-
MOM. MD, in .1:ne 1986 presentation
at Colloque des 'Cent Garden Pans,
reported that he detected HIV-related
nucleic and in variety of insects in
Alms, but no evidence of viral infec-
tions of weer or transmission by in-
sects exists.)

The foi.ossing approaches for preven-
tion are presented according to the tin
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portant and documented routes of HIV
transmission in the United States They
represent the only available methods of
limning or prevenung HIV infections at
the present time and in the foreseeable
futiue.,These methods should be ac-
tively implemented The exact effec
tartness of some of the proposed mea-
sures has not been fully documented
Nevertheless, they should be imple-
mented, as soon as possible, together
with parallel efficacy evaluation studies

Sexual I ansmIsslon
Sexual tnuisnussion of HIV can be

avoided if infected persons do not have
vaginal or anal intercourse with suscep-
tible persons or si during intercourse,
erfective barrier techniques are used

There is no risk of sexual transmis-
sion of HIV for those who Wild"
sexual abstinence. Furthermore, there
is no risk of infection if neither partner
is Infected This would be the case for
couples who have been mutually monog-
amous since the introduction of HIV in
the United States (presumably in the
nud-1970s). It would also be true (to the
louts of current laboratory technology)
for couples who have been shown to be
free d infection by serologic testing (see
'Couple Counseling" section)

Outside of these situations, individu-
als who choose to have sexual relations
place themselves and/or their partners
at risk d infection However, the extent
of that risk an be decreased by, first,
binning the number of sexual partners
Statistically, the fewer different part-
ners one has, the less likely that one will
be exposed Second, exposure can be
further ',muted by selecting sexual part-
ners at low or no risk ofInfection, since
the prevalence of infection vanes
greatly by sex, geography, and sex
practices (Table 31 Third, the practice
of 'protective sex' should be able to
prevent transmission even if one part
ter is infected Epidenuolopc studies
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indicate that sexually acquired HIV in-
fection is due to vaginal or anal inter-
course where semen, vaginal thud, or
blood is shared between partners Yet
such studies are not capable of detecUng
Isolated transmission due to other types
of sexual activities The 'protective see
guidelines given here are based on data
available as of early 1987 Unfortu-
nately, true efficacy data evaluating
these guidelines are not evadable Thus,
these gwdebnes must be understood to
be interim ones, requiring periodic reel -
son as evaluation data become avail-
able

Protective Sex--Protective sex re-
fers to sexual activity where no semen,
vaginal fwd, or blood is exchanged be-
tween partners Since the elan and oral
mucosa appear to be relatively resistant
to virus passage. protective sex can
involve practices such as kissing (if no
oral lesions are present), hugging and
caressing, and genital manipulation (if
noel= lesions exist/ It also can involve
vaginal and rectal intercourse, provided
a condom is worn at all times Tice
recommendation for condom use is
made because condoms high qual-
ity') have been shown to be effective
barriers to viruses, including HIV!
and prebnunary data suggest that sex-
ual partners of infected people may be
protected by the use of condoms How-
ever, as with the use of condoms for
pregnancy prevention, failures can be
exPeeted, especially if the condoms are
not used consistently and continuously
with all sexual partners The use of
nonoxynol 9-containing jelly (sold
over-the-counter spermicide) may be a
useful protective adjunct to condoms
sue this substance has been shown to
inactivate HIV and kill lymphocytes

Specific Issues and Problems Ho-
mage:eta Men Transmission of HIV
among homosexual men appears to be
due almost exclusively to receptive anal

tercoose As of 1987, unprotected

receptive anal intercourse scull a horno
sexual or bisexual man carried a consid
ersble risk d infection The prevalence

wiectsc i in this group toda) is ex
tremely high in most urban areas Even
with profound decreases in the number
of sexual partners, the ask d infection
in this convnuruty remains high because
of the present high chance that any
single sexual partner is uslectesus "

Consuierible confusion has sur-
rounded the issue of what homosexual
sex practices are safe This confusion
has been due to several factors (I) the
'difficulty in obtaining and Interpreting
sex practice-sped& risk data, (2) dis-
comfort on the pert of the heterosexual
ougonty regarding discussions of homo-
sexual sex, and (9) the political vul-
nerabibty of government uttucucons,
including public health agencies, to
&urns of advocating homosexuality if
they promulgate safety guidelines for
homosexual sex- The result has been
either absent or confusing recommen-
dations from traditional public health
authonties n this vacuum, venous lo-
cal groups have made their own, awn
conflicting, gwdebnes

Controversy has surrounded the is-
sue el homosexual bathhouses. Any set-
ting that encourages unsafe sexual
practices between individuals will 111.
crease the transmission of HIV As
such, those bathhouses that eneOzrage
such practices adversely effect AIDS
;mention. Yet those bathhouses that
encourage protective sex practices can
serve as important contact poets for
educational rentals' and support for
protective sex.

The risk of oralgenital sex is sppar-
aaUy but, as semen can harbor
virus, this practice may carry some nth,
d intscisoa.

Redeem:Nal Men end Women
The frequency with which a person
chooses to practice unprotected MT de-
pends on the risk that he or she is
walling to take. The current risk of
infection cla given heterosexual contact
in the United States is low, but infec-
tions and AIDS cases are certainly °e-
mir acquired by heterosexual contact
Lope would dictate that those outside
of mutually monogamous relationships
who wish to minimise their risk should
limit their total number dimmers and
practice protective sex all of the time

The elbeency of heterosexual trans-
=salon, especially from women to men,
continues to be an issue At least In
Africa and in the limited studies in the
United States, such transmission cer-
tainly occurs Although the exact risk
for a given sexual encounter remains
%IMP:nov/1i, one must presume that in the
United States HIV is transmitted sex -
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ual'i in On( h directions Infection with
this sins has potentially dire conse
quences therefore, sexual partners
should earth. , meth the risks of on
protected sexual encounters outside of
mutualls monogamous relationships

Pros, itutes are a major source of in-
fection in central Afnca' and probably
in some European countries Some may
have moderate to high rates of infection
in the United States"especially those
who are users of IV drugs

As with homosexual men, the risk
associated with oral-genital sex is ap-
parently low, but, as semen and vaginal
secretions can harbor virus, this prac-
tice may carry some risk of infection

Blood and Blood Products
Infection from donated blood and

blood products could be prevented if
material from infected donors could be
identified and discarded before adminis-
tration The Food and Drug Adnunis-
tration has instituted regulations and
guidelines to protect blood and blood
products from HIV infection These in-
clude (1) self-deferral of donors belong.
mg to high-risk groups (instituted in
March 1963), (2) testing of all blood and
plasma for HIV antibodies and discard-
mg mute that test positive (instituted in
April 1965), and (3) heat inactivation of
products, hke factor VIII, that can tol-
erate heating (initiated in 1964 for factor
VIII/ These precautions should virtu-
ally eliminate the risk of HIV iniktion
from the use of these products Prod-
ucts derived from plasma that have
steps in their manufacture that phys-
ically remove and/or them e:ally inacti-
vate awns, bite immunoglobulm and
hepatitis B vaccine, have always been
considered safe,' and all d the labors-
tory and eptdenuolope data collected 4n
these products in recent pars have
confirmed their safety''

Needle and Syringe Sharing
t eedle- and synnge-assoasted HIV

infection could be avoided if unsterilized
uuection paraphernalia were not shared
among individuals The message for
AIDS prevention is obvious stop the
use of IV drugs, or, at a muumum,
eliminate sharing of unsterilised Alec-
uon paraphernalia. For some addicted
IV drug abusers, this is difficult or

. unpossible, and other options, such as
disinfection with readily available
agents (eg, bleach), should be advo-
cated Flarthermore, addicted persona
who desire to enter rehabilitation pro-
grams should be encouraged and al-
lowed to do so Outside the addicted
population, there is evidence that sub -
stantial numbers of persons experiment
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with drugs Educational progrur
directed toward teenagers, drug using
communities, and staffs of drug clinics
need to emphasize the potential din
gers of sharing drug paraphernalia

Specific Issues and Problems In-
travenous drug users often have tittle
foresighted healthluerest and, thus,
may prove to be the greatest challenge
for instilling behav or change

Intravenous drug use is illegal
throughout the United States How-
ever, systems have been designed to
deal with addicts in medical facilities
without threatened incarceration

Discussions of drug use and, more
speafically, of means by which to render
drug use safer have been interpreted by
some as an advocauon of drug use As a
result, many health educators have
avoided the subject

Intravenous drug abusers often do
not engender sympathy from those re-
sponsible for providing funding for In-
tervention programs or those responsi-
ble for public health

Slots for drug treatment clinics are
often not available, preventing those
who want to stop using IV drug from
doing so

Intravenous drug abusers, if HIV
transmission permits, will likely serve
as a major entree of the vim: into a
segment of the heterosexual commu-
nity, most prominently in the urban
poor communities. Indeed, an early,
aggressive prevention effort is required
to prevent further extension of this
virus into social/ethnic minority urban
commumtiea

Provision of sterile needles and sy.
rinses to drug users is a controversial,
yet possibly effective, control modality
that requires further evaluation.

Drug use, in a broad sense, affects
other AIDS prevention activities, espe-
aally protective sex. The use of drop in
association with sexual practices is
prevalent in many communities, includ-
ing the homosexual male community

Perinatal Transmission
Mother-to-infant HIV infection could

be avoided if infected women would not
become pregnant. Because of the po-
tential high risk of infant infection and
the preliminary daunt findings that
pregnancy itself may accelerate the de-
velopment of AIDS, it seems reasonable
at this time to recommend that infected
women postpone pregnancy until more
is known about the risks and prevention
of perinatal infection.' The question is
then, how can infected women be identi-
fied, With the low infection rates in
most female populations of cluldbeanng
age, general, routine screening is not
warranted at this time However, there

is genera) agreement that women w r,o
are in high risk groups (IV drug users,
prostitutes, women with multiple sex
ually transmitted infections so-nen
from HIV endemic meas, or sexual
contacts of high-risk-group men) should
be screened and counseled'

THE ROLE OF CONTACT
TRACING/NOTIFICATION
Purpose of Tracing

The purpose of tracing sexual or nee-
dle-sharing contacts of infected people
is to trace the chain of transmission to
its terminus At that point there ma, be
an infected person having risk-provok-
ing contact with another susceptible
person or persona With appropriate
education and motivation of the infected
and susceptible contacts, further trans-
mission can be prevented The speak
guidelines to be given to the interiaent
contacts would be the same risk-specific
ones presented above (Table 31

Specific Issues and Problems

Although contact tracinenouncation
could be useful for interrupting chains
of HIV transmission, the cost of finding,
testing, and counseling individual sex-
ual or needle-sharing contacts of in-
fected individuals ts considerable Even
under the best of circumstances, the
task is expensive, but often with indi-
viduals who have the largest nunoers of
contacts, the identifying information on
contacts may be knuted, and the task
becomes even greater. Thus, for these
last lane individuals, the assumption
must be made that all within the group
should come us for testing and counsel-
mg For persona and fewer contacts
(including homosexual men and IV drug
users in lower -risk settings and espe-
aally women in the childbearing age)
whose locating information may be
more readily available, more intensive
efforts, both by physicians and health
departments, is justifiable

There is concern, especially in the
homosexual community, reprding the
confidentiality of contact trnang/noch.
cation Few dispute the seed or the
potential beneficial effect of referring
contacts for testing and education The
concern rests with individuals who, be-
ing uncomfortable with notifying their
own contacts, ask the physician or
health department to do the tracing and
volunteer the names to these third par-
ties This is a delicate situation, but one
that has been successfully addressed for
decades in public health thrum For
those physicians not comfortable or
trained in contact treeing, referral to
highly experienced health department
staff should be available
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THE ROLE OF SEROLOGIC TESTING

The serologic test for HIV antibody is
potentially an important tool for pre-
vention There has been considerable
misunderstanding and controversy in
the put about the value of serologte
testing, the accuracy of the test, and the
fears of violation of confidentiality*
However, this controversy appears to be
declining as the value and accuracy of
the test are documented and u assur-
ances of confidentiality are maintained
and strengthened Indeed, encourage-
ment of serologic testing has been ree-
ommended' for several reasons, and
they are outlined below according to the
target groups involved

Infected Persons
If all infected (antibody-positive) indi-

viduals could be identified through vol-
untary and confidential testing pie-
/rants and if these individuals could be
counseled on ways to prevent exposure
to others. then a major step toward
decreasing AIDS could be achieved
Infected men and women could be ad-
vised of their nsk to sexual partners or
those exposed to their blood Infected
women could be advised to avoid preg-
nancy Along with this beneficial pre-
ventive effect, serolovcally identifying
infected persons could have significant
clinical benefit to individual patients
The knowledge by the patient and phy-
sician regarding infection by this virus
could lead to earlier recognition and
treatment of life-threatening oppor-
tunistic infections, especially PReumo-
eysfu canna pneumonia Infected pa-
tents who are tuberculin test positive
could receive early prophylams, and
parents of infected children could be
informed about the relative contram-
&cation of live esra' or bacterial vae-
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eine. Rirthermore, because tat least in
the laboratory) immunologic stimuli
non of lymphncnes accelerates viral
replication,' exposure to foreign anti
gins may accelerate disease progres
son in humans Thus, individuals who
rhseover that they have been infected
with HIV should be encouraged to de
crease their antigen exposure by de-
creasing their nun rier of sexual and IV
drug encounters

Susceptible Persona
If uninfected (antibody-negative) in-

dividuals at increased risk of infection
could be identified and counseled, their
nsk-taking behavior might decrease
substantially Thz value of one-on-one
counseling centered around knowledge
of onek serologic status can enhance the
effects of education programs on behav-
ior modification For example, serologic
testing, combined with counseling, can
have a profound effect on encouraging
low-nsk sexual practices among acme*
but not all** homosexual men

Couple Counseling
The serologic test also has a role for

couples of which one partner has been
possibly exposed If individuals desire
to have unprotected sex and one or both
have been at any risk of infection. it
reasonable to test the at-nslt individual
for HIV antibodies If be or she has a
negative result and has not been at ass
continued risk of expostue over the past
six months, then one can presume the
absence of infection If a seronegauve
individual has been possibly exposed in
the past six months, then a second test
six months after the last possible expo-
sure is required before Infection can be
confidently ruled out. Fbr greatest
safety, protective sex should be prac-
ticed during this interim period A
similar approach may be useful for
women who may have been exposed to
an infected person in the past and now
want to become pregnant Serologic
testing with follow-up testing ui six
months, where indicated, should be
helpful in giving advice to such persons

Evaluation
Serologic testing Is also an important

toll for evaluating the effect of any
prevention program For individuals,
physicians, and public health practi-
tioners, periodic repeated testing of
antibody-negative individuals is the
only accurate measurement of the suc-
cess of their prevention effora unin
fected persons, especially those with
presumed or known continuing expo-
sure, need periodic reassurance that
their efforts to :emain uninfected have
been successful Moreover, physicians

and public health practitioners prond
mg ads ice and guidelines to at-risk inth
victuals need assurance that the pro-
vided guidelines hue been effective

Testing F00111606

The facilities for free or low-cost and
confidential testing, together with nsk
reduction counseling hake been pro-
vided by the national alternate tes- site
program %tin' is also available
through many physicians' offices The
use adieu facilities by at-nsk isidntd
uals should be encouraged b' all In
ad....uon to patient - initiated serologic
testing, physicians should encourage
at -risk individuals who may benefit
from testing to be aerological!), tested
either in their offices or at public

Specific efforts should be directed
at the highest-nsk groups homosexual
or bisexual men, prostitutes. Atte:I:t-
actual men and women who have multi-
ple sexual partners, patients with see-
ually transmitted diseases, patients
known to use IV drugs. and patients
from HI V-endemic areas such as Haiti
and central Africa

In summary, serologic testing altos s
for knowledgeable clinical and prnen-
tive counseling of patients. including
medical evaluation and early interven-
uon, personal counseling remain'
decreasing transmission, contact use-
inginottfication, and counseling to pre-
vent pennatal transmission

Specific Issues and Problems
For most individuals the process of

testing is a stressful one TO maximize
the use and benefit of test-linked coun-
seling, the staff of these facilities must
be sensitive to the stresses of the mdi-
viduals and provide counseling and,
where appropriate, referral

DISEASE AND INFECTION
MONITORING (SURVEILLANCE)

Conditions related to HIV are of a
wide clinical speetnun, ranging from
asymptomatic infections, various
AIDS-related conditions, frank AIDS,
and primary peripheral and central neu-
rologic conditions Survedlance (the col-
lection. analysis, and dine:lunation of
data relevant for prevention or control)
for clinical AIDS has formed the founda-
tion for our current understanding of
this newly imported disease, and rho,
csans should always report cases accord-
ing to local rect.ibements But with the
long incubation period after infection
before AIDS develops. surveillance for
clinical AIDS Is a rather insensithe an d
delayed indicator of HIV infections
Thus, the future of public health surveil-
lance will have to rely more heavily on
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surveillance Ideally, theseroloMVC

serologic status of members of all of the
major risk groups wcold be knots n,
along with the annual seroconversion
rates and reasons for seroconsersion
Unfortunately, because of the expense
of collecting such information and
because of fears of confidentiality
breaches such data exist for only bin
ned populat ions studied in research net
tinges At a minimum, sj stems should be
des ised to monitor the rates of infection
in selected groups ranging from low-
nsk 'duals (eg, blood donors) to
high nsk individuals leg, homosexual
men patients at methadone clinics, sex-
ually transmitted disease chme pa-
tients, etc, If the Ideal situation of
absolute confidentiality cannot be as-
sured, penodic testing of serum un-
linked to personal ulenufiers is an al-
ternative Additional useful data are
potentially available from the military%
nationwide recruit testing program and
the proposed sentinel hospitalized-pa-
tient (Mthout personal Identifiers) test-
mg program of the Centers for Disease
Control, Atlanta

Specific issues and Problems
Some physicians, to protect the con

fidenualny of patients and families, re-
sist reporting cases or including AIDS
on death certificates The resulting re-
porting errors could markedly affect
future surveillance, especially in regard
to the occurrence in suburban and nasal
areas Sensitive situations can goner-
ally be worked out with local health
dt parunenta on an Individual basis

PHYSICIAN, PUBLIC HEALTH,
BUSINESS, AND COMMUNITY
ROLES IN AIDS PREVENTION
Physician

The physician% role in AIDS pre-
vention is cnucal. At a minimum, the
physician must understand the myriad
symptoms of HIV-related diseases and
provide effective medical treatment and
support for the individual and the fam-
ily In addition, the physician must take
a major lead position regarding preven-
tion Specifically. norgudgmental dis-
cussions of sexual onentation, sexual
activities, IV drug use, and ways to
prevent AIDS should become standard
parts of medical care These should
include (where appropnate) recommen-
dations for serologic testing, protective
sex guidelines, and contact tracing/non-
Ration of sexual and IV drug - sharing
contacts As part of this process, PhYsi-
cans should become well versed in HIV
transmission so that individual and
community questions regarding appro-
priate preventive practices can be
knowledgeably answered to maximise
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pretentue intervention and minimize
JI based and extremist oterreactioi

Public Health
The central role that federal, state

and city/county health departments and
laboratones vadutortally have held in
communicable disCase control will hate
to continue for AIDS The necessities of
infection and disease momtonng, *du
eating piu mans and the public about
AIDS, establishing appropnate guide-
lines for prevention, and providing the
needed personnel and resources for ed
ucation, counseling, testing, and con
tact tracing/notification will be large
tasks for public health agencies, espe-
cially in these times of constrained fund-
ing

Business
The impact of AIDS on the pnvate

sector is large and growing The direct
medical costs, the benefit support costs,
and the general social upheaval (due
primarily to unfounded concerns about
the possibility of casual-contact trans-
mission) will continue to take a major
toll within the business toren:Amu)
Much of this toll is presentable, includ-
ing that related to unfounded fears of
infection Indeed, the workplace could
serve as an important access point to
convey the essentials of AIDS preven-
tion After all, working adults base
been the mkor target of this virus
Education programs sponsored by busi-
nesses directed toward all sexually ac
uve employees, eegardless of sexual
preference, together with information
on the robs of needle sharing, could
have a major impact on HIV transnus-
mon flirthermore, suppor by the busi-
ness community for funding of public
AIDS prevention megrims could prove
invaluable in stimulating the tradi-
tionally slow government funding pro-
cess so that more extensive AIDS pre
vention programs could be started
without undue delay

Community
The need for rational community pro-

grams for AIDS prevention based on
facts rather than fears ia urgent Too
often schools, reboous organizations,
and other community groups have been
reticent to discuss, or even obstructed
from discussing, ways to prevent the
sexual or needle-borne transmission of
HIV for fear of seeming to support sex
and drug use Such issues are difficult.
but denial of real-life practices can serve
only to extend further this already
deadly epidemic Community groups
and public media are essential for

ending the rather simple words of
AIDS prevention In addition, together

with business their support in hex, n
department efforts, their aro to the
defense against extremist measures
and their support for additional re
source allocations for AIDS preint.on
are essential

In summary, the concerted /Item, of
physicians, businesses, raid cor.mur
groups and public media together with
provision of up-to-date educational ra
tenals and consistent presennon me-
sages issued by health departmen.n
are essential to interrupt transmission
of this extremely severe virus infection
effscusely

SOCIAL ISSUES AND
CONFIDENTIALITY
Quarantine/isolation

The purpose of AIDS present.on pro-
grams is to interrupt the trararnu., on
of HIV in a manner that will nurunuze
social disruption and maximize memo.
ual freedom The issue of quara-me
(this term sin/ be used interchangeash
with isolation or enforced isolation)
needs to be discussed openly because at
the concerns expressed at r..51,
groups. especially the homosexual ens
hemophiliac communities. and oecuse
some ill-informed political grouos }Ate
called for extreme measures (eg cum:-
anune) to control AIDS )lam or mere
overreacuse proposals base been ace to
unbalanced information that, anhot.gn
appropriately stressing the da-ges c.
HIV infection, has inapprogra:et
stressed r` e ease of acquisition. Iv :re
hospital setting. recommendations are
that blood and secretion pretoutions
form of medical isolation) be taken for
persons known or suspected to be in-
fected with blood-borne agents sues as
hepatitis B muscle HIV. But within the
general conununity, there has neser
'oven any official public health recori-
, endation or movement toward the:so-
lemn or quarantine of earners of these
difficult-to-transmit agents Quann-
tine has a touted role in the control of
some communicable diseases, but there
a little or no role fern in the prevention
of AIDS As mentioned above, except
for penrtatal infection and (in the past)
blood product associated utfect.on
HIV a transmitted almost exclus.selt
between consenting sdults, both of
whom have some choice regarding the
AIDS nibs t y are willing to take
Thus, transir.Asion of this virus in our
society la prevebtable by individual ac-
tion. not government-unposed isolanon
The threat of quarantine hurlers AIDS
prevention It turns a norussue into a
wedge between advocates of prevention
and the groups at nsk for AIDS

The issue of mass quarantine aside
what should be done eith the un, roper.
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sum infected person who continues to
expose individuals through sexual Inter-
course or needle sharing, Fbr example,

hat about the infected female or male
postitute who continues to ply the
street, for business, These are difficult
Issues State laws generally forbid one
from knowingly exposing others to in
fecuous diseases, and local or state
health officers generally have authority
(fallowing observance of due process) to
meircerate noncompliant individuals
In some situations, Incarceration may
be necessary, but in most situations
there are two persons involved in the
transmission of HIV Thus, a could bet
said for the example given above that
the client tithe prostitute is 'volunteer-
ing^ for infection The major task ahead
as to get accurate information out to the
public so that they can make informed
choices Considering the danger of this
virus, most persons will presumably
take the personal steps necessary to
avoid infection

Patient-Physlcian-Public
Health- Community Relations

For physicians and pubbe health
workers to effect rek-reducing be-
havior changes in individuals, consider-
able patient trust is necessary, both to
initiate contact and to seek advice and
follow guidance. After all, the behavior
changes sought to decrease AIDS risk
involve the most personal of behaviors
lb stimulate individuals to take moon-
sibibty for themselves and make the
necessary task- reducing changes ts

often &dark and requires good deal
of trust and understanding from both
the patient and the health worker. This
relationship can be seriously *pa
thud if the individual in need of guid-
ance is bightened away from profes-
sional services by hostile threats of
reprisals (eg, quarantine).

Confidentiality
Maintenance of confidentiality ts cen-

tral to and of paramount unportance for
the control of AIDS Information re-
garding infection with a deadly virus,
sexual activity, sexual contacts (both
within and without primary relation-
ships), and the illegal use of IV drugs
and diagnostic information regarding
AIDS-related diseases are sensitive Is-
sues that, if released by the patient or
by someone involved in Malt, care,
could adversely affect a patient% per-
sonal and professional life

Confidentiality has always been a
strictly observed principle in methane
and public health Sensitive topics have
always by necessity been a routine part
of interviews and records in these fields
Howes-.it, for AIDS, bemuse of the so-
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nil disdain toward the two highest risk
groups, and the illegal status of IV drug
use, and the numerous antisodom)
bus, even stricter assurances are
required In some states, like Califor-
nia, legislation has been passed to
strengthen these aufidentiality assur
antes In some situations such laws have
caused problems and have prevented
essential communications between phy-
sicians and practitioners of pubic
health But this is an evolving field and,
as such, there ts constant change and
adjustment The pubbek confidence in
the pubbe and private sectors' protec-
tion of their privacy depends nn re-
peated examples and publr stands
taken by all involved in AIDS VeaUnent
and prevention With positive examples
many of the difficulties centered around
serologic testing and contact traang'
notification will abate

Insurance
Insurance companies we considering

requiring serologic testing for selected
applicants for life and individual health
polices In areas where the use of HIV
testing for this purpose is not aimed,
surrogate testa such as lymphocyte sub-
sets are being considered This us a
sensitive issue in that Identification of
infection can be used to infer life- styles
unpopular with some employers and
coworkers Potable solutions, including
insurance pools that cover costa of HIV-
related conditions, need to be consid-
ered nationally or regionally

INSTITUTIONAL ISSUES
As repeatedly stressed in this renew,

HIV transnession has essential) oc-
curred only through sexual encounters,
blood/needie sharing, or from mothers
to their infected infanta race near birth
Despite these observations, there has
been much concern regarding 'Millar
trananuatuon in public places such as
offices, public buildings, and schools In
some situations, a combination of misin-
formation and a desire to structure 'no-
risk' settings has resulted in consider-
able social disruption, such as exclusion
of children with AIDS from school Pb-
tut approaches will have to take into
account existing information and move
away from these extreme views These
major issues will be addressed by uou-
tuUonal category

Public Buildings, Offices, Schools,
and Mental Institutions

No risk of transmission has been doc-
umented (either by circle:le studies or
investigation of AIDS cases) outside of
established modes Indeed, aside from
the possible spread from brother to
brrther," no transmission has occurred

(outside of sexual contact) in house
having infected indisiduaLs." and no
transmission has occurred horn pa
bents to their nurses (except by needle
or open wound exposure) in hospitals If
no transmission has occurred in these
settings, whseh have traditionally been
at risk settings for surular13 -sronu
ted agents like hepatitis B then
one can be confident that no H trans
mission oceum any more casual set-
tings like offices and public facilit es
The purveyors tf health intormaton
need to maintain a high level of public
knowledge regarding the latest findings
of HIV transmission so that unfounded
anxieties can be allayed and appropriate
actions can be taken

Schools are of special note because, in
the past. they have served as a bat-
tleground over the Issue of exoludin
pediatric patients with AIDS More in
formation is now available, specifically
regarding the lack of transmission from
children to thew household contacts.
Including those with whom they have
shared toothbrushes. towels, etc',
thus, schools, having far less intimate
contact than households, become even
more remote prospects for transrms
Mon With these data. the Centers for
Disease Control have promulgated
guidelines for the handling of ulfecteci
children in schools "

The only remaining area of co neer is
children ho, because of age or menu:
incompetence, do nc have control a
their bodily functions. Although these
children are very unlikely to be at risk of
HIV transmission, previous experience
with variety of infectious diseases in
facilities for the mentally retamed and
day care etntaa ,evivo cis some concern
for these areas. Before fins recommen-
dations can be made for these latter
facilities, further study is required

Prisons
Especially on the east coast of tne

United States," prisons have had a con
siderable number of AIDS cases The
acquisition of infection for these cases
has, by history, been due to high r.s
activity (primarily IV drug use) before
entenng prison Yet, sk- proolangeo
posures such as pereutaneon injections
and homosexual sex do take place
prisons, and, in some instances, these
exposures occur in involuntari set
tinge The provision of A IDS prevention
information and the motivation of all
prisoners to avoid infection are essen-
tial The question us, can education
alone prevent high-risk exposures. or
will screening of prisoners and the pro-
vision of separate housing facilities for
persons with positive and negative }Iry
antibody findings have to be consid

Prevenhon AtOS-Fanos C.,,n
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AIDS in children: a review of the clinical,
epidemiologic and public health aspects

MARTHA F. ROGERS, MD

BACKGROUND

In 1981 an epidemic of a severe form of acquired
immune deficiency, now known as acquired immuno-
deficiency syndrome (AIDS), began in homosexual
men and Intravenous drug abusers in New York City,
San Francisco and Los Angeles Since that tune over
7000 cases from 45 states and 32 foreign countries
have been reported to the Centers for Disease Control
(CDC) The disease effaces primarily the cellular im-
mune system and in its severe form results in repeated
opportunistic infections and malignancies

To data 107 cases of AIDS in children and adoles-
cents have been reported to CDC Children with AIDS
present a number of difficult problems to the pedia-
trician regarding diagnosis, management and psycho-
social issues This paper reviews the clinical, epide-
miologic and public health aspects of AIDS in the
pediatnc population

ETIOLOGY

Recent evidence strongly implicates a retrovirus as
the alum of AIDS No prototype viruses were ini-
tially identified independently by invesupton at the
Institut Pasteur in France' and at the National Cancer
Institute in the United States Evidence indicates
that these two viruses are the some

In 1963 investigators at the Institut Pasteur in Pans
isolated a retrovirus from a homosexual man with
lymphadenopathy syndrome. a syndrome thought to
be a mild form of or precursor to AIDS' This virus,
morphologically different from the known human re-
troviruen, was termed the lymphadenopathy-associ
aced view (LAV) This virus was subsequently isolated
from other AIDS patients, including one patient with
transfusion-associated AIDS and one of the donors of
the transfused blood' A seromudemiologn study

From the AIDS Branch, Division of Viral Dumas, Center for
Infectious Diseases Centers for Dome Control, Public Hatt,
&MM. Vaned States Department of Hulth end Human Serous,
Atlanta. GA 30333

Address for repnnu Mantis F Rows, MD, et the above
addrime
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showed that antibody to this virus was present in
more than 70% of patients with AIDS or with symp-
toms strongly suggestive of AIDS, in only 1% of
healthy blood donors and in none of their patients
with congenital unmunodeficiencies

In 1984 investigators at the National Institutes of
Health, United States, isolated a retrovirus, termed
the human TIymphotrophic mtrovuus, type III
(HTLV Ill), from a number of patients with AIDS,
from patients with symptoms strongly suggestive of
AIDS and from asymptomatic homosexual men i The
virus was not isolated from healthy heterosexual sub-
jects A seroepulemiologic study found antibody to the
retrovirus in similar populations."

Retroviruses are RNA viruses which contain an
enzyme, reverse transcriptem, that transcribes DNA
from RNA, proemse used in the replication of these
viruses Although retrovinmes infect many animal
species, only two other human retrovuuses In known
(I) human T cell leukemia/lymphoma virus (HTLV)
type I which has been isolated from patients with
malignancies of the thymus-derived lymphocytes' and
(2) HTLV type II which has been isolated from a
patient with a T cell variant of hairy cell leukemia

The AIDS retrovirus, like other human retrovirusss,
primarily infects the lymphocytes derived from the
thymus (T lymphocytes), which an responsible for
cellular immunity. The AIDS virus preferentially in-
fects the subset of T lymphocytes known as helper T
lymphocytes which augment the immune response
The subset of T lymphocytes which suppresses the
immune response. the suppressor T lymphocytes, is
relatively spared and outnumbers the helper T cells
The bone marrow -derived lymphocytes (B lympho-
cytes), which an responsible for antibody production,
are also relatively spared

CASE DEFINITION

The CDC case definition for AIDS, developed before
the discovery of the etiology of AIDS, is based on
clinical signs and symptoms A case is defined as a
child diagnosed as having an opportunistic infection
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TABLE 1
Assam., pled hi CDC as trithrotu under', tog rIlulor

ismusiodeStessnr,

Protozoal and helmtnthic infections
Crypumpondemn duration >I month
P111.111101,0.1 L4,0111 pneumonia
Stronploidosts
Tuaoplasmo
earl infect me.
Csitomegatot rut disyenonated itertion . oh ono, >6 months

of age
Helper simple. strut. chronic or disseminated infintion .ith

onset >1 month of age
Progressive monitors! leukoencephalopatht

Funpl infections
Conduit/Ls. esophoual
Crytoroceoais central nervous system or disseminated infection

Bartels] infections
Altroltorterium Otto., disseminated infect eat

t tower
haposi s satyr,.
Lymphoma h toted it. the brain

Pulmonary centre, 'tenons as stem or disseminated infection

or malignancy (Table 11 indicating an underlying cel-
lular immunodeficiency Other causes of immunode-
ficiency such as congenital immunodeficiencies, con-
genital infections, r. edications, lymphoreticular ma-
lignancy and starvation must be ruled out Because
this definition requires the presence of an opportun-
istic infection or malignancy, the cases of AIDS retro-
virus infection reported to CDC are the most severe
Less severe forms of the illness appear to occur Symp-
toms associated wan AIDS such a. generahted :ymph-
adenopethy, chronic diarrhea, weight loos or failure to
thrive, recurrent infections, persistent oral cinch&
ars, interstitial pneumonitu and hepatosplenomegaly
have ot.r.irred in patients nolonging to high risk
groups Thu; constellation of symptoms has been
called AIDS-related complex and has been used to
describe patients in high risk groups who have symp
tome that are associated with AIDS but who have not
developed an opportunistic infection or malignancy
Since development of the serologic teats for measuring
antibody to the AIDS ante, antibody to HTLV 111/
LAV bar been found in patients with AIDS-related
ample: and asymptomatic members of high risk
groups.' HTLV 111 /LAV has been isolated from they
asymptomatic seropositive persons 'nutting that
chronic carrier state can exist In potently reported
study virus was also isolated from four persons who
were seronegative to Ling term follow-up of these
individuals is needed to clarify the relationship be-
tween antigen and antibody provitict-vn ants clinical
symptoms

PEDIATRIC HIGH RISK GRCUPS AND
ROUTES OF TRANSMISSION

In adults and adolescents over 95% of cases r,
occurred in persons belonging to six high risk in 0.
Group 1, homosexual or bisexual men, Group 2. intr.
venous drug abusers. Group 3, Haitians, Group 4,

hemophiliac, Group 5, persons rue!. mg blood or
blond products and Group 6. the sexual partners of
infected persons This epidemiologic evilence Ind'
cues that, in adults and adolescents, AIDS is trans
nutted through sexual contact (both hetero and ho
mosexual contact) or through parenteral exposures
such as the sharing of needle* used for injecting illicit
drugs or through blood transfusions

In younger childrer two risk factors are primsnly
summed with infection (1) receiving blood or blood
products. and (2) birth to a mother who has AIDS, Iv
a member of a high risk group or is a sexual partner
of a member of a high risk group (Fig I) The route
of transmisstor in those children born to high risk
parents is unknown. but the retrovirus may be cr
quired in utero, from infective maternal blood at the
time of birth or postnatally Data from cases reported
to ('DC suggest that children born to high risk parents
may acquire intecoon to titers The median time in
terval between birth and onset of symptoms in 611
dren of high risk parents is 4 months This is shorter
than the median time interosl of transfusion-associ-
ated illness in which the time between transfusion
and onset of symptoms is 8 months

Postnatal trans!. mon, through infected breast
milk or close contact between the mother and baby.
could theoretically occur However, none of the 7408
cases reported to the CDC as of December 13 1984.
has occurred in individuals who were household con
acts (nonsexual) of other AIDS patients, suggesting
that transmission through casual person-to-person
contact, it It occurs, Is rare All the patients reported
to CDC with no identifiable risk of exposure deny
contact with* known AIDS patient Breast milk from
infected mothers has not beer, cultured

INCUBATION PERIOD

The incubation pencil fi.. this virue appears to be
relatively long Based on cases of transfuson assort
aced AIDS in adults reported to CDC. the period
between transfusion (Infection with the virus) and
onset of symptoms ranged from I month to 5 years
(median, 28 months) In the 12 children with true-
fusion-associated AIDS, this time period was some
what shorter, mime from 1 month to 2 years. 5
months (median, 8 months) The reason for the
shorter incubation period in children compered with
adults is not clear All 12 children were neonates who
may be at increased risk due to an immature immune
system

CLINICAL COURSE

Prodrome Before development of opportunistic
infections and malignancies adolescent and adult pa
tients usually experience a prudrome characterized by
an 'without onset of weight loss, fever, malaise, night
sweats chronic or recurrent unexplained diarrhea,
fatigue. generalized lymphadenopethy arthrelgise or
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LIDS IN CHILDREN

UNKNOWN

OrrsCre Rao IWTORS

.C1/0.8.Lic
TRANSFUSION - ASSOCIATED

III PARENT MTN RISK FACTOR

4

2

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 6 9 '10 11

AGE (YEARS)

.000/0Stx.".. sic CONTACT Or 1111501. o?. es,,
AR I PorLatnr patients with sewed uosurrodofinoncy syndrome,

and elootatorl not flown

riven'ss and oral "..andulasis The prodrome may last
from weeks to months

Infanta who are infected with HTLV 111/LAV in
the neonatal penod usually develop signs and symp-
toms before 1 year of age, typically failure to thnve,
recurrent or persistent thresh, chronic interstitial
pneumonito, hepatosplenomegaly, chronic or recur-
rent diarrhea, lymphedenopethy and recurrent severe
Notarial infections such as sepsis and meningitis A
relatively uncommon finding u recurrent enlargemen,
of the parotid glands These prodromal *RI and
symptoms. as in adult*, can last from weeks to months
before development of an opportunistic infection or
malignancy

Opportunistic diseases, The most common da-
wn seen in patients with AIDS are viral, fungal and
parasitic opportunistic infections and malignancies
Pneumocystis canon pneumonia is the most common
infection, occurring in 70% of pethatnc patients re-
ported to the CDC The most common malignancy
seen is an aggressive fo.m of Kaposis sarcoma occur-
ring primarily in homosexual men, but it has been
reported in children Non'Hodgkins lymphomas also
Occur

Laboratory findings. Laboratory abnormalities
characranstic of AIDS include lymphoma's, specifi-
cally a decrease in the T helper lymphocytes, resulting
in a reversal of the ratio of T helper cells 101(71+,
Loom- ) to T suppressor cells (OWN+, Leu2+) Lym.
phocyte function is also abnormal as measured by a

12 13 14 15 16 1i 16

FACTOR miUTAN 04,CoN, N DRUG 'ant.

by *V it use of diagnoro of 060orwantsc rahollos or Raltgooncy

May, 1995

markedly depressed response to mitogens such as phy.
tohemagglutinin and concanavabn A and to antigens
Most patients also react poorly to skin testa with recall
antigens Serum inummoglobulin level' are normal or
more commonly increased

DIAGNOSIS

AIDS must be differentiated from other causes of
immune dersuncy such as treatment with =mono-
suppressive drugs, congenital immunodeficiencies,
congenital infections and starvation. A careful history
and physical examination should nde out immunode-
ficiency secondary to recent oral or painters' use of
steroids or cytotoxic agents and starvation. Malignan-
cies that are associated with immunodeficiency. par-
ticularly lymphomas, must be considered. Congenital
infections and immunodefinencies may be more dif-
ficult to differentiate

Cellular immunodeficiency can be associated with
some congenital infections, such as cytomegalovirus"
infection or rubella" However, this immunodefi-
ciency as temporary and is usually less severe than
that associated with AIDS Unlike most congenital
infections, symptoms smonated with AIDS do not
usually occur in the neonatal period, and develop-
mental defects such as cardiac abnormalities have not
been reported in children with AIDS Infanta with
AIDS can acquire infections such as cytomegalovirut
end toxoplasmons as a result of AIDS, but acquisition
la usually not in the neonatal period, and these infer
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non, are oneralls much more sesere than acquired
infection in the immunocompetent child

Congenital immunodeficiencies to be considered in
dude sesere combined Immunodeficiency, Di George
ssndrume. IA 'ikon Aldrich syndrome, ataxia telan-
inectasia. graft L....sus host disease. neutropenia, nets
trophil function abnormality, agammaglobulinemia
and hypogammaglobulinemia with elevated IgM Un-
like patients with sesere combined immi nodefidency
and immunoglobs. i deficiencies, patients with AIDS
usualls hose markedly elevated immunoglobulins Un
like children with DiGeorge syndrome. children with
AIDS hase normal facies and do not have hopocal
cernic tetans Although thrombocytopenia may be
seen in children with AIDS, bleeding episodes do not
usualls occur as with kViskott Aldrich ssndrome
knit Aldrich sc ndrome. an X linked recessive disease.
occurs almost 'scions 'lc in boss, whereas about 40%
of children with AIDS are girls AIDS mas be differ
enlisted from neutrophil disorders by Its primary ef-
tett on Ismphocytes rather than on granulocytes
.Ataxia is not a common feature of AIDS

TREATMENT

A It hough some therapies hase resulted in temporary
improsemett and prolonged sun 'sal. to date no effec-
use therapy for AIDS exists In %%%%% nous gammaglub-
ulin as /il used an some centers with %amble success
an presenting recurrent episodes of sepsis and men
mantis " Bone marrow transplantation and lympho
cite transfusion have resulteu I partial immunologic
reconstitution an some cases. bal, without clinical am
prosemeni ' Recombinant alpha 2-interferon ther-
aps has been reported to reduce the size of the lesions
of Kaposi s sarcoma in some cases but did not produce
changes in immunologic characteristics Suramin, an
inhibitor of reserse transcnptase in vitro," and ribs
siren, a reported suppressor of replication of LAV in
culture.' are being assessed Early diagnosis and
treatment of opportunistic infections and malignan
cies associated with AIDS may prolong survival Care-
ful attention to the nutritional and the emotional
needs of patients and their families .s helpful

PROGNOSIS

Th. prognosis for HTLV 111/LAV-Infected patients
who develop opportunistic infections or malignancies
is poor Of the 7408 patients reported to the CDC
since the epidemic began, over 40% have died Of
those patients diagnosed prior to 1982, over 80% have
died Of the 103 children age In sears or younger with
outcome reported to the CDC. 65% have died Al-
though the long term prognosis of infection with
HTLV HULAV has not been determined, a few lon-
gitudinal studies of high risk patients with symptoms
of AIDS but without opportunistic infections have
revealed that as many as 20% develop AIDS within 3
years of onset of symptoms" and up to 50" of adult
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patients with oral candidiasis develop AIDS 'Similar
lonptudinai studies an children have not been re-
ported

OCCURRENCE

Of the 7408 cases of AIDS reported to CDC as of
December. 1984. 107 114%) were an children and
adolescents 18 years of age or younger The number
of cases of AIDS in the pediatric population has been
steadily increasing since diagnosis in 1979 of the ear
hest use reported to CDC (Fig 2) The apparent
decrease in cases reported in the latter half of 1984
probably reflects the lag time between diagnosis and
receipt of case reports

Of the 107 children. 71 (66%) had P cannu pneu
monis 5 (Mr I had Kaposi's sarcoma 2 12%) had bt.th
and 29 (27`y ) had some other opportunistic infection
There were 16 times as many cases in males 1661 as
in females 1411 A greater proportion of cases occurred
in blacks (Sec) and Hispanics (19%) than in whites
127,1 The 107 cases were reported from 18 states
and Puerto Rico with 79% residing in New York, New
Jersey, Florida or California

The majority of pediatric patients with AIDS were
preschool -aped children (Fig 1) Of the 107 children
and adolescents with AIDS, 84 (79%) were younger
than 6 years of age at the time of diagnosis of ;.IDS
All of these children, in whom investigations hese
been completed, acquinal AIDS either from a blood
transfusion (12 children) or because they were born
to a mother who had AIDS, was a member of a high
risk group or was a sexual partner of someone an a
high risk group (60 children)

PREVENTION

Since a large proportion children with AIDS
acquire the disease through exposure to their parents,
prevention of AIDS in adults would be expected to
prevent cases in children as well Behavior modifica-
tion in adults and adolescents such as reduction of the
number of sexual partners. especially those in high
risk groups, participation in drug rehabilitation pro
grams and avoiding the use of nonstenle needles may
help reduce cases

Pres ention of congenital cases through birth control
and abortion are also important, however, the risk of
AIDS in infants born to infected mothers a unknown
In 11 mothers who had already delivered one child
with AIDS 12 subsequent pregnancies produced 4
affected infants, suggesting that the risk of tritium's
'ion of the agent as a continuing one and that each
pregnancy mas be at high risk fcr infection Infected
mothers an- often ass niptomatic before and dieing
the pregnancy and at the tine of birth, making ens
intervention such as as °dance of pregnancy or abir
t ion iniposcible

Pres entio.. of through reduction of infected
blood and blood product' would also signifIcantls re
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1979 1980 1991 1982 1993 1984
FIG 2 Cams of acquired inimunodeficiency syndrome Ill children IA yews of acp w younger tn half year of dogmas 1071 to ISIM

May, 1985

duce cues m children Cases in hemophiliacs and
children receiving transfusions account for 21% of
eases m children reported to CDC The United States
Public Health Service currently recommends that per.
sons belonging to high risk groups refrain from don't.
in blood. Blood banks anticipate being able to screen
blood for antibody to HTLV III/LAV which is ex
petted to eliminate 96% of infected blood. However.
became of the long incubation period of the virus,
cases attributable to blood transfusions will continue
to occur

Heat treatment of Factor VIII concentrate has been
shown to be an effective method of eliminating HTLV
III/LAV from this product in laboratory studies " The
Medical and Scientific Advisory Council of the Na.
tional Hemophilia Foundation has recently issued re-
vised recommendation: (1) cryorscipitato (because
of the markedly fewer donors relative to Factor VIII
concentrate) should be used an Factor VIII-deficient
newborn infants and children younger than 4 years of
sr and in newly identified patients never treated with
Factor VIII co,scentrates, 12) fresh frozen plasma
should be mei: 1 Factor IX-deficient patients in the
same categories, (3, desmopressin should be used
whenever possible in patients with mild or moderate
hemophilia A, and (4) "because heattreated products
appear to have no increase in untoward effects attnb-
utable to the heat treatment. treaters using coagula-
tion factor concentrates should strongly consider
changing to heat-treated products with the under-
standing that protection against AIDS IS yet to be
proven ""

HEPATITIS II VACCINE

Because this vaccine is made from pooled sera of
persons who are at high risk for AIDS, many physi-
cians have avoided the us., of this vaccine for fear that
it may be contaminated with the AIDS agent Recent
studies show that the Inactivation process used in
preparing the vaccine will inactivate the AIDS vim,"
Other studies have shown that the vaccine contained
no detectable AIDS virusrelated nucleic acid se-
quences at a sensitaity of less than 1 pg of DNA per
20.0g dose of vaccine." No seroconversions to the
AIDS virus were detected in 19 individuals who had
received vaccine" To date 68 cues of AIDS have
occurred in persons who were vaccinated; 66 of these
cases occurred in persons with known risk factors for
AIDS, the remaining 3 are under investigation Thu
evidence should reassure physicians and those at high
risk for hepatitis B that the vaccine is safe

DAY CARE. SCHOOL AND MISTER ROME
ISSUES

Although there c no evidence that HTLV III/LAV
it transmitted by casual personto-person contact, the
theoretical possibility of transmission an the school,
day care and foster home setting creates difficult social
problems for infected children Conversely these set.
tints may increase the immunocompromised child's
exposure to infectious agents

Physicians and health departments confronted with
these problems hale often chosen to place children in
foster homes without other children younger than 6

ears of age De), are attendance is generally not

0 0 r^
A. .7 ;..-)
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recommended for AIDS children because the oral
behavior and incontinence of toddlers would be ex
sleeted to increase the risk of tranmusion of intec
tious diseases Some states have recommenced this
AIDS children be allowed to attend school if .1- child

continent, has no open or oozing lesions and behaves
acceptably re g does no: bite) and if certain precau
tons can be taken

PRECAUTIONS

G I. Precautions include 111 using a bleach
solution 1101 ratio of water to bleach) to clean all
spills of blood or other body fluids. (21 wearing gloves
while cleaning these spills and treating an, open le
stone and 131 placing any blood or body fluid soaked
items in leak-proof bag for washing or disposal The
child s physician shou .. consider removing the im
munocompromised child from school during epidemics
of infection such as measles or chickenpox

Health care personnel. In addition to the above
general precautions, health care personnel and others
caring for AIDS patients should avoid accidental
wounds from sharp instruments contaminated with
potentialb infectious material Based on reports to
the CDC, most accidental needlesucks occurred while
recapping needles This practice should be avoiaed
Other detailed recommendations for health are per-
sonnel have been published b5 the CDC "

Health care personnel can be reassured by evidence
suggesting that the risk of transmission from AIDS
patients is very small A recent study found that none
of 52 hospital personnel with documented accidental
blood or mucous membrane exposure to infectious
material from an AIDS patient developed AIDS or
signs and symptoms associated with AIDS Thirty-
three of these persons were seronegative for HTLV
III/LAV when tested for mean of 6 months (range.
0 5 tc 20 months) after the accident "Of the 232 cases
of AIDS in health care workers reported to the CDC,
all but 23 belonged to known risk groups, and epide-
miologic investigation of these 23 failed to document
AIDS transmission through occuptional exposure to a
patient suspected of having HTLV III/LAV infection
OnI5 one case of HTLV III/LAV infection in a hos
pital employee without other risks for AIDS and with
documented psrenteral exposure to an AIDS cue has
been reported " The employee,* nurse, developed an
acute Illness about 2 weeks following needlestick
injury involving an AIDS cue The acute illness,
characterized by fever, Wake symptoms, macular
rash. arthralgias and generalized lymphadenopathy,
resolved without specific therapy A serum sample
collected 27 da5s after the injury did not contain
antibody to HTLV III/LAV A second and third um
pie, collected at 49 and 57 days. container?. antibocb
The nurse remains a 5mptommic 3 months after the
injury

HEALTH BURDEN

The Kahn care needs .1 children with AIDS arc
enormous I by average daily cost of hospitatizatinn
for an AILS patient nas teen estimated at ;O
S10W per day Children with AIDS are hospitalixect
frequently fur de threatening illnesses which otten
requne admission to the intensive care unit for coils
therap) for re'purators tailore and septic shock Those
who are able to leas, the hospital require frequent
outpatient :Linos up

PSYCHOSOCIAL PROBLEMS

flit populate no of chilt:rei at high risk for AlDs
virus infection have ruins social problems in acktiti,
to the ones as.ociated with AIDS Children of wotocn
who are intravenous drug abuses . at high roils fin
premature delivery opiate additioi Jeglect and alien
donment Haitian families ma> be only recent arro el.
to the United c. te.-, and may have less uses- to
medical care Hi in parents and parents who ho abuse
drugs ma> them vies be seriouslly ill or die trim
AIDS. leasing their children without care
with hemophilia can have physical disabilities and
emotional problems related to their disease Tee tigers
who acquire AIDS through homosexual contact are
faced with basing to admit their homosexuality to
lamb and llama. Teenage drug abusers with AIDS
must also cope with their intravenous drug addiction

THE FUTURE
The recent discovery of the etiologic agent of AIDS

greatly improves the ability to study this disease The
clinical spectrum of infection with HTLV III 'LA \ is
being defined Studies are currentl> under was to
determine the transmission of HTLV III/LA \ within
families and among 5oung children Data from these
studies should allow for better decisions regarding the
need for isolation of the child with AIDS P. qnancy
outcome studies are needed to assess the risk of (ec

tion and disease in infants Further studies to a- iire
the safety of blood and blood products, to c elop
treatment strategies and to assess the 'wig term prof
noses of children with AIDS are needed Surveillance
for cases among health care workers and studies to
assess the risk of infection in these persons should
continue

SUMMARY

A high level of su on by ever) pros ider is .ens
Important to ensure wagnosis and complete reporting
Such active surveillance will enable effective national
monitoring of the occurrence of the disease the deft
ninon of new risk groups and the identification of
unusual cases for further study Physicians and health
care workers should report all cniloren and adult
suspected of having AID,". to their sate health de
part ments who, in turn repir, to the CDC
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AIDS IN

It is clear that the number of cases of AIDS in
children and adolescents is increasing because of
either increased occu'rence, increased diagnosis and/
or increased surveillance Pediatric I *filth care per-
sonnel, especially those in high pre% alence areas and
those caring for high risk populations. need to be
aware of AIDS and the problem encountered in caring
for these children
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Current Trends

Summary
Recommendations for Preventing Transmission of Infection

with Human TLyrnphotropie Virus Type Ill/
Lyrnphadenopathy-Associated Virus in the Workplace

The information and recommendations contained in the document heirs been developed
with particular emphasis on Merin -ire workers and others in related °Cowman:ins m which
exposure might occur to blood from persons infected with HTLV-WLAW the "AIDS win'
Became of public Concern about the purported risk of troranteson of HTLV-ItlIAM by per.
sons providing personal services and those PIPillnag and among food and beverages, this
document also addresses personet-mmi:e and foodsertnes workers Fatally it addresses
'other workers"Persons in wimps such as offices schools factories and construction
sites where them is no known nsk of AIDS virus Menernesson

Because AIDS is a bloodborne sexually henoletted cheeses that is not spread by
contact this doormen does not recommend MOM HTLV-01/1 a/ antibody screening for the
groups addressed 1141Caufla AIDS is not transmitted through preparation or 'anima of food
and beverages these recommendations state Met foodsermcs workers known to be Infected
with AIDS should not be restricted from work U11101111 they have another infection or illness for
which suCh restriction would be warranted

This document contains detailed tesornmendshons for precautions appropriate to prevent
trensmoson of all bloodbaths infeCtiOuS diseases to people exposed in the COWS* 01 thee
doss to blOOd from parsons who may be infected with HTLV-111/LAV They erlitthatize that
lieetthycam workers should take all possible precautions to prevent neeellestek merry TM
recommendations ere based on the well-documented modes of HTLV-WNW trenSmislon
and incorporate -worst case' 'Conan" Pie hepatitis B model of trenernission Because the
hersatres Or- AI d also Walborn" and is both hardier and more infection than HTLV-111/LAW,
recommendations that would prevent trensmasion of hepatitis B will also prevent Minima-
lien of AIDS

Formulabon of specific mom/renditions for health-care workers who perform invasive
procedures is Pt progress

Recommendations for Preventing Transmicsion of Infection
with Human T-Lyrnphotropie Virus Type 1111

Lymphadenopathy-Associated Virus In the Workplace

Persons at increased risk of ecoumng infection with human T-lyrnphotroPc ions type
Pl/tymptorditnopethy-associated ores PfTLV4U/LAVI, the vim that Causes 'Caused immuno-
deficiency syndrome LAWS) include homosexual and bisexual men Intrevenous OA drug
abusers persons transfused with contaminated blood Or blood Products. heterosexual con-
tacts of persons with HTLV-111/LAV infection and children born to infected mothers HTLV-1111
LAV is transmitted through mural contact poisnterel exposure to infected blood Or blood
components, and pinnatel transmission from mother to neonate HTLV-III/LAV has been
isolated from blood semen. saliva tears. breast milk and unite end is likely to be Isolated
from some Other body nods. secretions and excretions but epdenbolopc evidence her rm.
plicated Only Mod and semen in transmission Studies of nOnsexual household contacts of
AIDS patients indicate that casual contact with ashy' and tears does not reh.ult m transmission
of infection Spread of infection to household contacts of infected Persons has not been
detected when the household contacts have not been see sinners Or have not been intents
of Infected mothers The kind of nonsexual posontperson contact that generally occurs
among welkin and clients Or consumer, in the workplace does not pose risk fOr tranSetill
sion of 1ITLV-111,LAV

As m the development of any such recOrnmendeliOns the Paramount consideration is the
protection of the publics heelth The following recommendations have beer. ClavillOpecl for all

I
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worsen pamcmarly vrOmers in occultations on *Mon eaPaSwe might occur tc (hobo .rom ocr
vidums mfecied with lifTLV111 Lam These recommendations reinforce and subbrement the
specific recOmmeindatiOns that were pubalhed earl*. for clinical and laboratory stalls I and

for dental care personnel and PervenS 0140Mung necreaset and morticians Services 121
a I public concern spout the swooned tusk of tionamalaion of MT LV.si LAW by parsons
providing personal services and by food and beverages these recommendations contain now.
motion and recommenoshons tor pa rsonal.sernce end food.serwce workers Finally these
recorrunemilations address worst:4140S on general where there 4 no known Yak Of transmission

of riTI.V-Iti LAW le g offices schools factories COnstruction sties) Formulation of specific
recommenOstions for health-care vorraers PICWal who perform ,wyean. procedures le our.

goons penkstsl is m progress Separate racortimendabOnil are also being developed f o woken'
mTLy.w Law transmistion on bosons Other cOrreChtmal faciMOS and mallitutrons housing insp.
viduals who may 'IMAM WICOntrebable behayror le g CO1110040 allnutiOnS) and. the panne's!
Selling In addition summate recommendations have already been developed for children in
schools and day-care momenta I

MTLV easel inchwfuele include those with AIDE 14). those diagnosed by lbw
Onts4ranlill as hewing Other Onuses due to infeWson with liTI.V-14.AW. and those who neve
yacuppm or aarotocm ...pence of infection with MTLV-111FLAV but who are not

These recommendations are based on the valkdocurnented wades of PITLV-1111,Av trans.
mission identifi ed m eardernr01094 elusion and On cernpeneOn with the hepatnts M ekpenence
Other recommendations are Weed on the hepatitis S moCel of vansmoston
COMPAMSON WITH THE HEPATITIS g VIRUS EXPERIENCE

The epidemiology of MTLVIIPLAW infectan a similar to that of hepatitis 8 torsos (NEVI infec.
toe end much Met Ns been teamed over the test 15 yews related tk the nab of inspiring
heoststra II in Me workplace can be opted to understanding the nib of MTLI/-144.AV tranern4-
mon in the health-care and Other occupational settees Moth innises are transmitted through
sexual contact. parenteral immure to contaminated blood er blood products. and pennetal
transmission from infected mothers to thee offspring Thin. NMI of the same motor groups at
high risk for mgV infectan leg. homeeetual men. IV drug abutters. MUM with homophile tn.
fonts Dom to infected mothers) We also the groups at highest nib for IfTLV-11/LOW "kitchen
Neither MeV tip MTIN-IIVLAV has been shown to be tronenstled by towel Callao in the work-
place. contaminated food or svotozOt solmlIne of foCakonO 'Mee 15 I

mgV Infection re an occupational nob for MCWs. but MO risk as misled to degree of contact
with blood or contansksted needles MCWs who is not hove UMW with blood or needles
contaminated with blood are not it Mb for autumns HIV Intuition the workplace 153).

In the heidth-care setting. MIEV trenenuesuon has not beenekiewitentod between hosprtal-
pad patients. 'sewn whemodie(yse units where blood Centallieleb011 Of the enyirwiment his
Wen extensive Or when HIP INKAMVII bleed from one patient nos been transferred to another
patient through contamination of metnenents Evidence ef MIIV Wensmmison horn MCWs to
Patients has been rare and Wined to sitialsono m which the HCWO exhibited We concern..
eons of win m thee Mood let %est 100.000.000 infamous virus particles per int of serum).
and the HCWs sustained a puncture wound when terfonnino trateneec procedures on patents
Or had exudative or weeping lesions that allowed vine se centaMmate instruments or open
wounds of menu IS - /

Current evidence indicates that, despite opulemalegm Onderitee of RSV and 1411.V.I%
LAM infectiOn. the Mk for NOV MselntMMOn M health -Cie Illelorge far issue& that for
itTLy-W/LOW transmoston The ink of ecownng HIV Neaten followno s noodiesuck frOM
an mev tamer minces horn In to 30% 112.131. farm excess of the We of MYLV-111/1.0V mks-
lien following neettlestick involving a sown patent infected with KTI.V1/1.14/. which 4
less than 1% In addition all MCWs who have been shown to tronernit MEV infection m health-
care settings have belonged to the subset ol therm MV carriers who. when tested. have es-
littpted eytdence of ceptiOnely high eancontretions of yew let least 100.000.000 Infec-
tious VOUS renew par ml) in they blond Chronic cornws who have aubrantselly lower con-
contagions of views m their blood have not Men anpbcated in wenemoson in the healthtare
selling (3.11.141 The MeV model thus represents 'worst cese" COIXIMOn m regard to
transmission in health-can and Other related whinge Therefore. recommendations for the
control M HIV int ectwn should. t followed. also attache., proven* WIMP of MTI.V4WLAW
Whether additional measures are Indicated for those MCWs who pedant nvaswe procedures
um be addressed in the recommendations currently being developed

flouhne Screening Of ell patents or MCWs for eardence of MIN infection has never been
recommended Control of HET transmission m the health-care setting has PM:Mauled the
implementation of recommendations for the appropriate handling Of blood. Other body fluids.
and itto a soiled with blood or other body fluids

2
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MISSSON PROM PATIENT% TO MIALTICARI WORKERS
MCWS include but are not knided to nurses Ithraccons demon and other dents, workers

ciPlometrists. Pollbstults Chiropractors. laboretory end blood bank lectineiogists and tech.,
tons phlebettchesti slaloms personnel. periensdice emergency nulled technierens medical
'cowers morticians, heweelmerwre Immdry workers end others whose week myelin,' con.
UP wren patients ~Mood or other body Rods Or Mass,

Recommendations for MCWS emputoe prscsubons PPOOrtete for preventing transmit.
Non of blesoOborne infer:bow Owes's*. including NTLVIll/LAV and NOV infmtena Lees
these Poosulanit should be enforced mummify es should other standard intectaii-ceperol
precoulows. regardless of whether 14CWs or patents ars known to be infected with liToy-ini
LAM or ISV N eaddien to being informed of these precautions an MCWS. mcludmg students
end hoWestaff should be educated regerdmg the spa -moiler modes of traumas in end
PreventIon of OTLV-P1/1J4/ infection

Risk of 14CWe seweldng KTLV111/1.0/ Mt the we/liaises Uong the NOV model the Mph.
eat net for transmosion of 14TD//ULAN in the workplace would involve parsnips' espesure
to e needle er ether Mere Instrument coMarninend with blood of en infected patient 'rho net
to MCWS of acciumng NTLV-IIULOAr infection m the wortolsce has been evelueted Si several
cliches N five esperete etude,* . told of 1 116 KCWS hew been tested for entibOdy to
MTLV-11116// In then SLAWS 866 lad 5%) of the MCWS had direst perenterel Inee011tstok or
cutl or mucous membnone exposure to patents with AIDS or MTLV-1114.4/ infection Most of
then ItsOtleereS were to blood nether than to other body fluids None of the MCWS whose in,
Sill serologic PIES here nePelme POWII0Ped SubseCluent iltwdlInCi of 1411.v.IIIILAV mfe..bon
follow.% thee exposures Twenty-su MCWS in these five studies were mropesdive when
first tested all but Owe, of these persons belonged to groups recognued to be et moreased
risk for AIDS 1151 Soma OM woo tested monymousty eptilennologo nil ormatren wet ovenle
Me on only two of these these seropONtwe liCWs Although they, two ISCWS were reported
es Probable ocCupetionsly related riTt.vion.AV mfectron (15.161 norther Ned a preesOOSure
nor an *ply postexpoevre serum sernog evadable Sc help deformee the onset of infection
CM, cells reported frorn England describes nurse who eereconvertpl following an occident,'
opentersl alp0Oure l Ill Regale contaminated with blood from an AIDS patient 1171

N apt* of the extremely low net of tranenussIon of 14TLV-L/ L4V mfectron even when
needltsfick nouns' occur. more einPriellit must be Owen to Prsciallbons UMW' to prevent
heedlIttik SWISS In MCVle caring for any patient. woe such miunes contor, to occur even
&soothe care of patients who ere known to be infected with NTLV114.4)/

Phesoutiews to prevent immilehien of CITLVIWLOW infeCtien by 14CW In the work
*Me Them pecauficias impresent prudent Motion that apply to preventing trenomitsion
of NTLV-111/1.0*/ and other bloodborne infections and should be used routinely 1181

. I Shore news Needle* Kelps! blades. end Other ahem instruments) should be coneid
Bred es eotenbally mfectne end be handled with extmerdmery care to prevent secolen-
tal injures

2 Disposable syringes end needles, sestetl blades end other sharp newt should be
Pend into puncturemoment containers located es close es practicer to the area rri
which they were used To prevent needlilSkelt nkunes needles should not be recapped
purposefully bent. broken removed from Onposeble syringes or oth invite manipulated
by hand

3 When the possiblny of exposure to blood or other body hinds cost S routinely mccom
mended preceullors should be followed The antlemated e.Dosine may retium1 gloves
eltihe es m hendling ram, tailed with blood or equipment contaminated vwth blood or
other body fluids or 'nor else require gowns masks end eve-covenngs when perform.
mg Preceding's swolving more estensive control wIth blood or potentially rnlective
body fluid, ea in some dente! or endoecoPc procedures or postmortem exeminstions
viands should be frothed thoroughly end immediately if they se cotentacy become con
tarnmeted with blood

4 To minimae the need for emergency 1hOutht0-1hOuth resuscitation mouth Pieces
riSSOSCilltiOn baps or other ventilation devices should be Strategically located and
evadable for use mare,, where the need for resuscitation is predictable

5 Pregnant MCWS we not known to be et greater ruin of Centro cling ISTLV.III/LAV irdsc-
tionS thin MCWS whO ere not pregnant, however If MCW develops HTLvIli 'LAI/ en.
%Pam Chump pregnancy the infant is at Intvelited rusk of infection resulting Ire",
perinatal transmission Because of this rift pregnant MCWS Should be especially awl
Ise with primal/1.0r% for the Preventing WI Vllir-AV transmission 1 191

3
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Precautions for HCW, during home Cu. of persons inf acted with MTLV-III'LaW Per-
sons infected war HTL...111 LAy can be sateh, cared for ,n home environments Studies of
famih, members 01 Patients infected with liTLV-111 LA have found no 1 wdeirce of oflo, is
.A. trefOrnissiOn to &duns who were nor set WI contacts of the orfectad osirents or to t nridren
.^0 were o01 it nik fOr rennatel lrane.derOn I3 tICWs Orovidmg home care face the same
Irl4 or transmission of intectiOn as NC Ws . hal' 'els and other health-care settings 'species!
ir there are heeehestrcks Or other Oarenterai or mucous membrane erriMsures to woad or °they

000 fiur01
When providing health-Care Serve* rn the name to persons infected mth IrCYLV-M.LAV

measures sonar to those used in hosMals are afrcnormaie As in the host:mai needles snood
not be reca0Ped Purcosefully bent broken removed from disposable syringes or otherwise
manipufaied by hand Needles and Other Share dertlf should be ()faced into puncture-remittent
Continners and doCiosed of on accordance with fecal repulsions fOr solol west. Blood and
other body fluids can be flushed down the ID iet Other awns for 01100111 that art COhlefflorrated
write wood or other body fluids that comet be flushed down the Kull should be wrapped
securely in a Mom bag that is impervious and sturdy not essay Denetreietll It should be
pieced m a second bag before being discarded ma manner consistent with local reguletons for
solid waste 4,100101 Spills of blood or other boy, hind/ should be cleaned with 10.0 and
water or a household detergent Al m the hospital inchwfluals cleaning up SuCh spills should
wear disMsable gloves A disinfectant solution or a fresnly prepared solution of {Moan by
00 C Manta IhOuSehOldilliaCh see below) should be used to wipe the area after cleaning

Precautions far Providers M preherspital wnereency health coo Crowder& of crehosp
tai emergency health care include the following DIIIIMIldreS emergency Medreal technicians
few enforcement Derlonnel firefighters lifeguards and others whose JOb might Meluite toll.
to ?ravel* firstrespOnsa medical care The nsk of transmission cf infection including HTLV-
il LAV infection from mfected persons to PoviderS of prehoSINtal emergency health care
should be no redher than that for HCWs providing emergency care m the hosIDMIff "ppm On-
ate precsubons me taken to prevent Illa001yre to IM000 or other body fluids

Providers of PrehOSpitaf emergency health can IthOuld follow the Premutent outlined
above for Other HCWs No transrnosion of HISV infection dung mouth-to-mouth nuncio-
Iron PIN been documented However. Medusa of the thooretcat ask of salivary transrnrssion
of HILVHULAV during mouth -to -mouth nesuliCitation MOMf aftmtion should be fivers to
the use of thsposstie gummy equipment Or nOuSCitation begs and the weenng Of gloves when
in contlict with blood Or Other body fluids liesmenationdeluornent end deviCeS known or sus-
peeled to be contaminated with blood Or other body fluids should be used ones end deposed
of or be thoroughly cleaned and domfected after each use

Menecommt of oarsmen" end mucous mernbnine exposures If MCWI If a HCW has
8 commend le g resedlestok or cut) Or mucous Membrane le g. 11010Sh to the eye or mouth)
expositive to 01000 or other body fluids the source Nitwit ahOuld be 1111$11111ed Clinically and
spidtimulogically to deleffmhe the kkehhood of HILVIII'LAU infection If the assess ment
suggeSts that electron may exist. the patom shamus be ralaiThed of the incoleM si10 Oquest
ell to consent to serologic testing for eVelehM Of HILV111/LAV infeCtrOrt If the source patient
has AIDS of other evidence of NTLV-ipiLow afechon decimal testing or has a post.. test
the HCW should be evaluated sleet-Idly and aerclogicallt for evidence 01 1411.11-10/LAY infec-
non as men as posarble aft the esposure and. if seronegatrve oteSted after 6 voiks end
on 8 penOd,c bows thereafter le g . 3. 6 and 12 months following expotunill to dMermine if
Iran/mission has Occurred During this follow-up penod es -facially the first 6.12 weeks
when most infected Denims Ire expected to Ser0Conven entrcsed HCWs shOuld reCelvt
counseling about the Mk of infection and follow U S Public hlesItti Sim* IPHS) recommen-
dations for Preventing trensmrss.L.n of AIDS (20 2 7 I 11 the fOurell pattern of ter0Mgatrve and
hes no Other evidence of HTLV01.LAV infection no fume*, follow-up of the HCW is nests-
airy If the source patient cannot be identified decision, regarding speroknate follow-up
should be individualised based on the type of exposure an. the kkehhood that the source pa-
tent was mfected

Serologic testing of lenient' Routine SerOlOgre letting of 80 patients for entrOMY 10
MTLV111 LAV is not reCOmmended 10 prevent trensfritSPOn of HTLV-01/LAN infection on the
.vorkelace MOWN of such letting are unlikely to further reduce the risk of transmission
which even with documents. medlesticks. a already eytremely low Furthermore I " risk of
neediestick and other parenteral exeosures could be reduced by emphasising and more con-
sistently impiemarning routinely recommended infection-control precautions le g not rem)
amp wiedies1 MOreOver 'Mulls of routine serciogic testing would not be avpiabo 10'
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emergency Mat end IN Herds with shaft lengths Of stay end edetionel tests to Cleternsin
whethet a Fenutive tett wet t true Ot false positive would be recharge un popuishoris with s
low presigkeriCil Of snflICINM However this reCOmanendlltiOn a bated Only On considerations
of occupetionel mkt end Should not be construed st s retOmmendetion egernst Other wet of
the serologic test Ouch es for dieresis Sr to funning medical mansgement of ItatiaraS
Since the *entente with Infected tenants vines substantially onions hCePtals (75% oNeS
AIDS casts hew been reported by only 280 of the more then 6 000 acutecent hospitots on
the United Stettin, term halIC/11111 in consul geogrephic may deem it Percenstello
initiate teroiogic totting of patents
TRANSMISSION FROM HEALTH-CARE WORKERS TO PATIENTS

Risk of trenetnistron of PITLV111/Lati infection from FICWs to patients Annoys', there
no erdtnce that HCWs infected with HTLV.1114AV hire trensrnmed affection 10 patents

'ilk of trememesion of HT LV.111 LAV infection from FICWs to patients would goal in munitions
where there ts both II 1 s high degree of trauma to the Dement that would provide s pone' of
entry for the virus le g during atrium Procedvreal end (21 access of blood or corpus fluid
from the infected HCW to the aeon Mug of g ;mint es could occur if the HCW totems s
noedlestick Of scalpel *wry during in myssive procedure IICWs known to be infected with
HTLV1111AV who do not perform Inyesive Prozedures need not be ',IMMO from work
untelS they Nisie cadence of other infection or remiss for which any HCW shOold be reStriCt-
ad Whether additional rieStriCtionl are indiClited for FICWs who perform gushy' Procedures
is currently being considered

Precautions to prevent transmission of PITLV-111/LAV infection from FICWs to pa
trent' These precautions apply to ell HCWs rested's& of wiener they perform myesire
procedures It) All HCWs should weer glove& fa, direct Contact with mint:rot rnernbrenes or
notuntect shun of OF Patients and (21 FICINs who have tauChltiye lesions et weeping denretnit
should 'Oren from @S direct potent CON and from handling patimucare equipment until the
Condition rillSOINIS

Management of Patenterel end mutate membrane SIMPSON, of patients If s Patent
has s ferenteral or mucous memento* exposure to blood or Other body hods of @ HCW the
Patient ehbul0 be Informed of the incident end the Same Procedure outlined @Dove for gape-
sures of FICWI to Patents should be 'allowed for both tr., source HCW end the potentielly ex
posed potent Management of this type of exposure will is addressed m more doted on the
recorliMandettelt for FICWs who perform "Nevus Preceding&

&retort testing of FICW Fleutirit Serologic toting of PICWs who do not perform 'nye-
sire tnecedures (including providers of home end prilhallpital emergency Carel I not mom.
mended to prevent transmission of FITLVHoLeti infection The risk of trInSmrSliOn 111 as-
Namely low and con be farther minimised when ro.nmely recommended infectioncontrol
tautens ere followed However serologic tilting should be ausilsele to HCWs who mey wish
to know their HTL./.111,LAV infection stews Whether indications gust for ligrOlOgiC tilting of
NCWI who perlOrMsniallift ph0CgdantS b Currently being considered

Rik of octutnetteme) sceuteltion of Other infectious diseases by FICWs infected with
HTLVIlirLAV HCWs who erg known to be infected with HTLVIll LAV mud who have deflIC
ling Inman* SYMMS Ire at nicreased nsk of inquiring or experts/tang menu, complications
of other infectious di Of particular concern is the Ask of Sangre infeChOr fallowing
ORPOSsint to patent, with infectious di thin are seedy trInsmingd nf sppropriste precou
tens ere not token le g tuberculosis) MGM infected with HTLV(i1,LAV Should be counseled
about the patlIntill nsk essociated with taking Care Of Olitigntl with trintmesele infections
and should continue to follow evicting retornmenestions for infection Control to minima'
then nsk of mature to other infect.out agents 11b 19) The HCWs persons' phys,cenisl in
conjunction with their griStnifilanl. personnel hellth teryiCel or medial directors Should
detenhing on en mdrmeuel basis whether the infected HCIAts can @decimetre, ens isle, per-
form pietism-core duties end suggest thong's in we k gillignInents if molested In Melvin;
11111 determination neCamIngrldietiOns of the Irnrnonallinn Prectices Adnitory Committee inc
institutional policies Concerning riequirgrligntl for vaCCingling NCWI with liveviral sICCIPer
should slito be considered
STERILIZATION DISINFECTION. HOUSEKEEPING. AND WASTE DISPOSAL TO PRE
VENT TRANSMISSION OF HTLV111/LAV

Stink:sten end dim's:Aron procedures currently recornmenceo to, use 122 231 in nein!,
care end dente) 1 @tildes ere "debate IC literiliZe or dilinfeCt instwrnentS deyiCeS or OM.
nemS ContiNningled with Me 0100O Or other body Hinds frOrn indiviclua S infeCted with NTLV.11
Lk: Instruments or other nonChspoSsbie items Mil enter nOrmliiis sterile tisSur or Inc
&Olen, or throng which blOoC 1101.4 shaultt be Steno ten before reuse Surg

5

246



243

'AOC On ell Patients should be deconlamhoted eller use ratite, then Nit nnseC
Decontamination can be accorrilikshed by meeting or by hand crediting by traintC peniOnnel
wearing sCOrroPhits firotectira store 1241 and using appropriate chemical germicides Instru-
mente Or Other neindiePOSable dime that touch intact mucous menbrenes should ',Moe high.
mull disinfection

Several loud chemical germicides commonly used in Istioratonas heeltncere facilities
heel been shown to err NTLVIII LAW at concentretont much lower than are used in practice
1231 When OeCOntalhoneting instruments or medical Gavots chemical germicides that ore -
registered min and elefuoved by the US Environments: Protection Agency lIAI is 'stmt.
lent{ can be used ether for sterilization or for highlevet disinfection depending on contact_
time germicides that art approved far use as "haggle, disinfectonto" ann are moCebacter
Cidal when used it opproOnete dilutions can also ue wed for high-Oral thomfeCtion of
devices end Instruments Germicides that are mycobsctencoel are preferred because Innis.
bacteria represent One Of the melt resistant groups of microorganisms therefore germicides
that ere of1eCtive aglient mycobectene are Oleo effective opens' other become and viral
Perhogens When chemical gennicolits are used insimments or dame's to be sterilised or deg
infected should be thoroughly cleaned before cowman to the germoicie end the menu' 'olio.
e r s instructions fon we of the germicide should be followed

Laundry and dishwashing Cycles Commonly used in hospitals ere lideOuate to imcontarni
note linen& Millet glassware and tnensits When cleaning envvOrtmental surfaces hOuSe
keening procedures commonly used in hOSPitalf are adequate. surfaces exacted to blood
and body flumes Should be Cleaned with a sletergem followed by decontamination using on
EAepprorad homesl disinfectsnt that is myCeb 66666 4.0111 IndundullIS Cleaning up such
sons should wear ChSPOSable Wave& trit01,11111o0h on specific label claims of corwrorciet go,
rnicides can be obtained by tenting to the 011unfeCtantS Linen MC' Of Pesticides EftwdOn
mantel Protection Agency 401 St Street. S W . Weshington D C . 20460

In Irlition to hospital disinfectants. a freshly papered solution of tedium hypochlonte
fhOuSe ii.ld bNaehl is an W/WNW end very effective gerrniCide 1251 Concentrenons tang.
mg from 3 000 ow la 1 10 view', of noweenotd bleach) to SOO porn la 1 100 cleutan)
mourn nebocnionte ere effective depending On the Wows of ergeno metenei le g blood
mucus etc I present on the surfing to be Cleaned and disinfected

Sharp items should be convoyed es pOtentsaNy mteCtwe and should be handled and die
posed of with intreoramery care to prevent cidental memos Other WItiOntsliey Infective
waste should be Cont nod and transettertecl et t ty identifie rapenraws plastic begs If the
outside Cf the beg is cOnterrunated with mood or other body rk de, second outer sod should

be used Recommended prsiatscin for clOPOsel of infectrv.z - ne 1231 ere ilidefluete for do.
poser of west, contaminated by HTLV111/1A1: Stood mite udrar body fluids may be Carefully
poured downs drain Connected to it unary sewer
CONSIDERATIONS RILIVANT TO OTHER WORKERS

Perssiratenno wafters )P$we) PSWO ere defined is individuals whose osculations
involve erase personal Contact with clients leg. hairdressers barbers, estheticians cairn*.
1010(WIS ManiCunStS pedicurists massage thilirePflet PSWO whose serious hettoong ear
piercing 11CurninCtUre etc I require needles or other instruments that penetrate the skin
should follow precaution wolicorael for MCws Although there is no evidence Of transmission
of NTLV-111/L4e/ from clients to PSWO. from PSWs to chants in between skint, of PSWS
rill of transmission would Oust from PSWs to Chime and vice verge m whitlows where there
is both trauma to One of the inchindials that would Provide e portal of entry for the vino
and (2) access of blood or serous fluid from one infected person to the open tissue of the
Other es Could occur t either sustained a cut A net of trensmision from chant to Chefil inlets
when instruments contaminated wan blood ore not sterilized a ditinfeCted between clients
However NOV transmission hes been documented only merely m ac puncture ear piercing
e nd tattoo eittablishrmints end never in other personalservce settings. indiCating that any
rSli for NTLV111/LAV transfralliOn n PenSOnehierviCliiiettingS must be extremely low

All PSWO should be educated eboul transmission of bloo0born4 nifections including
NTLV111/LAS/ and NOV Such oduation should emphasise principles of good hygiene animal:.
MS and disinfection ThIS educetmon can be accomplished by notional or state professional
Oinainene with *Sentence frOm state end local health departments using lectures at meet
mg' or self-instructional mittens's Licensure requirements should include evidence of such
e ducation Instruments that are Intended 10 penetrate the skin leg tattooing and acupuncture
needles eon piercing deviCell should be used bru-n end disrosed of or be thoroughly cleaned
and stenlited after each use woo) procedures recommended for use in heelthCare
sons Instruments nol intended 10 penetrate the Olin but which may become columnated

6

0 A4



244

with blood le g MOM' Sh Ould be used for only on Chem and be dispOseC of or In orougnly
cleaned and poinfecied Her use using procedures recommended for use in hien,' Care Mt,
Whom Any PSW won einglative lesions or *toping dermatitis regardless of HTLV.lfl Lem in-
fection status mount it from direct COnticl von clients until the CCIIIChtiOn reSifiveS
PSINS known 10 be infeted with MTLV1111AV nod Oct be restricted from wort unless they
have evidence of Other onfoCt.ons or Anson for which any PSW Mould Oleo be restrocted

Own,* serologic testing of PSWs for antibody to HTLV111/LAV rl not recommence/ad to
prevent transmission from PSWs to cloths

Food service workers WSW"! FSWs ere defined as individuals +those occupation in-
volve the prePeration or serving of food or beverage' le g COCAS Miran WW1 Millen
bartenders lirhn, ottendonts1 All ethdemotogic an laboratory ewdenCe Indicates that blooct
borne and Ily transmitted infections are nOltrensmined Clueing the preparation Or serving
of food or novels' and no vidt3nCtS of MBv or IIILV10/LAV transmission hart been docu
monied m this setting

All FSWs snood follow recommended Blandon!' end practices of good personal hygiene
and food Sanitation (261 All F SW' should esercin care to Ovoid inothy to hands *fit', preps,
mg 1000 Should such an woury occur both aeltheliC and Slinillify considerations would dictate
IM: food contaminated with blood be discarded FSWs known to be Infected d with MTLV111
LAV need not be restricted from work unless they have ewdenCt of other infection Or illness tOr

whiCh any FSW ShOuld 0150 be restricted
Routine serologic testing of FSws for antibody to MTLV Ol LAV It not recommended to

prevent Onus, transmission from FSWs t' consumers
Other workers ahenni the non wort environment No known nsk of tratitsrnission to

COwOrkerS Client{ Or COnSurfterS emits from leTtNMtAVinfocted workers en Other settings

le g offices schools factories construction sites' This infection o Weed by I contact
wan infected persons infection of contaminated blood at blood prop LS and by Mental
trammissrtn Workers knOwn to be infected with HTLV1114.AV should I be restncted from
work solely based on this tending Moreover try should not be fOlfoctO0 f m using tele-
phones office eQuipment toilets thowors eating Wenn end wider fountains Equipment
contaminated with blood Or other body fleets of any wOrker SegatItleSS of MTLY-1111AVinfec
tion 'Mut should be cleaned with soap end water or a detergent. A Clibnfectant solution or
fresh solution of sodium hyloolliorrle thovithOld bleach, an Inert) Should be tilled to wipe
the area after clearimg
OTHER ISSUES IN THE WORKPLACE

Tne information and recOrnrnandationi canned m this document do trot address all thlt
potential slaves that May have to be considered when Molting 'Oscine employment decisions
for persons with MILW111/1.A)/ VifedtiOn The Clognoars of tilnyyltl/LAV Infection may evoke
unwarranted fear and suspicion in some coyworkios Other louts that may be considered in.
chide the need for centidentolity applicable fedfnl elan Or local laws governing ocCu0s-
lions! safety and health Civil rights of emPloyrts workers compensation laws pronsiOnS of
collective bargaining agreements Confonntohly of enediCA1 records informed dOnStrit ern.
Plertle and 011titnt privacy rights and employe nghtvicHknow statutes
OEVELOPIA ENT OF THESE RECOMMENDATIONS

Ins information and MCOMMWIllatiOril Centairod in these recommendation{ we I Cleve.
Opel and compiled by CDC and other Mb agencies no consultation with OVvidiali r Weight.
ing various organizations The following organizations were represented Assertions. 11 State
end Temtont i health Officials Conference of State art.! Territorial EPiciernionig,sts Associa
1.0n of Slate and Ternional Public health Laboratory Directors Nation' Association of
County Health Officials Amoncan hospital Association United States Conference 01 Local
Picea, Officers Association for Practitioner' in Infection Control Society of Hoopla EPiden-
ologists or Americo American Dental Association Arnencan Medical Association Amencan
Nurses Association ArneriCan Association of Medico! Colleges American Association of
Dents, Schools National Institutes of Health Food and Drug Administration Food Research
Institute Maw.: Restaurant Association National Man and COsmetOlOpills ASSOCia
1,0n National Gar Task Force National Funeral Directors and Morticians Association Amer..
car Association of Physicians for KM.", Rights and Hammy Association of Emergency
Metl41 Tocnr,tons The COnsoliona also in,liolOC a labor uniOn represerustivi an atIpmet
a Corporate medical director and a pathologist HOWeVer these reCornithenOltiOnS may oot re-
flect the voy.s d1 incl.viqual Cons A lianas or thil OrplinilatiGns they represented
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Update: Human Immunodeficiency Vino Infections
In Health-Care Workers Exposed to mood of Infected Patients

Six persons who provided health can to patients with human immunodeficiency virus
NM infection and who denied Other risk factors have Onsvioueff been reported to have HIV
Infection Four of these cases followed needle-stick exposures to blood from patientsinfected

with HIV 1141 The two additional cues Involved persons who provided nursing care to per-

sons with HIV infection Although neither of these two persons susteined needle-stock unmet
both had extensive contact with blood or body fluids of the Infected patient, and neither ob-

served routinely recommended berm precautions (5,8)
CDC hes received reports of HIV infection in three additionelhulth-care worker' folltormg

non-needle-stick exposures to blood from infected patients TM exposures occurred during
t955 in three different geographic areas Although them three cases represent rem meats.
they reemphasize the need for health -cars workers to adhere rigorously to existing infection
control recommendations for minimizing the risk of exposure to blood and body fluids of ale

patients (24)
bfitelit-Cere Worker 1: A female health-care worker insisting with an mauccessM at-

tempt to insert an armsl catheter in a patient suffering a cardiac arrest in an emergency room
avow pressure to the insertion site to stop the bk.-Ming During the procedure. she may
have had a smell amount of blood on her Index finger for about 20 minutes before washing

her hands Afterwards. she may also have assisted in cleaning the room but did not recall any
other exposures to the patent's blood or body fluids She had no open wounds, but her hands

were chapped Although she often wore gloves when anticipating exposure to blood, she was

not wearing gloves during this incident
The patient with the card= arrest died A postmortem examination identified Pneursocys-

hs canny pneumonia, and a blood sample was positive for 14IV antibody by enzyme immun0-
assay (EIA) and Western blot methods Twenty days after the indent, the health -cars
worker became off with fever, mysigia, extreme Mem. sore throat. muses, vomiting, diarrhea.

a *4-pound weight loss. and generalized lYmPhedsnoPlith`r which her physician diagnosed SS
a viral syndrome That illness lasted 3 weeks She felt much better 9 weeks after the incident.

and, when she was examined 5 months after the incident. all Sighs and symptoms hod M-
EM* She had donated blood 8 months before the incident and was negative for (IV anti-
bodily El' She donated again *8 weeks after the incident and was positive for HIV by EIA
and Wes.sm blot (bands p24 and gp4 tl Serum samples obtained 20 and 23 weeks after the
incident were also positive for (IV antibody She stated that for over 5 years her only sexual
Wm had been her husband who denied risk factors for WV and was Whonegetwe for HIV

antibody She denied ever receiving a blood transfusion. ever using intravenous drugs. or
having any needle sticks or other significant exposures to blood or body fluids in the past 8
years Her serologic test for syphons was negative Fifteen otfler employees who assisted In
the are of the patient were seronagative at east 4 months after the exposure

Health-Care Worker 2: A female phlebotomist was filling a t0 ml vacuum blood collec-

tion tube with blood from an outpatient with suspected (IV infection when the top of the
tube flew oft and blood splattered around the room, on her face, end in her mouth She was
rearing gloves to protect her hands end was wearing weglasees so she did not think she got
any blood in her eyes She hod facial acne but no open wounds She washed the blood off im-
mediately after the exposure The outpatient's blood sample was positive for HIV antibody by
EIA and Western blot. end a hepatitis 5 surface antigen test was negative The phlebotomist's
EIA was negative the day after the incident and again I weeks later When she donated blood
9 months after the exposure, she was positive for HIV antibody by EIA and Western blot
(bands p24 and gp4 t) She has had no symptoms She denied having any sexual contact
dump the previous 2 years, ever using drugs intravenously, or ever receiving a transfusion
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Two months after the incident she scratched the back of her hand with a needle used to
draw t.'iod from an intravenous drug abuser of unknown WV- antibody status She did not
Need as a result of the scratch and has not had any needle-stick mines in over 2 years Her
serologic tests for syphols and hepatitis II were spasm A coworker who was splattered
with blood on the face and in the mouth during the same modem remains seroneostm 1 year
after the incident

Health -Care Wolter 3: A female medical technoioget was manipulating an apheresis ma-
chine la device to separate blood components) to correct a problem that developed during an
outpatient procedure when blood sculled. covenng most of Mr hands end forearms She was
not weanng gloves She does not recall having any Poen wounds on Mr hands or any mucous -
mambrane espouse However. she had demists* Orion. ear and may have touched It She
wash.' the blood off hereoff and the numbing several minutes after the spill The patient un-
demand the spheres i had dented nab Actors for NV infection However. a blood sample
from the pedant was positive for Ii1V antibody by EIA and Windom blot methods and negative
for hepatitis 8 surface anbgen the next day TM technologist's WV-antitiouy tests were nevi-
tse 5 days after the exposure and again 6 weeks later Eight weeks after the xposure, she
had an influenza-Ns "Mess with fever. myelgia. duffles, I've', and a pruritic red macular
rash on her VMS and legs The mess resolved after a few weeks, and her physics , thought
the illness was probably a veal syndrome Three months after the incident the was positive
for HIV antibody by BA end Western blot methods bend p24 alone) Four months after the
incident a Western blot was positive (bands p24 and gpit 1 She indicated that for more than
8 year{ her only sexual partner had been her husbend. who denied risk factors for NV infec-
tion and was seronegebve for NV antibody She denied aver receiving a Profusion. ever
using intravenous drugs, or having any needle-clock munze in over 2 years Her serologic tests
for syphilis and hepatitis 11 were negative She has an immunologic disorder which had been
treated with constatecoods in the past, but She had not taken any err unosuMmirr* meth-
cation for the past year A coworker with smiler exposure during the same piocedure re-
mains IlefOneglieye after 3 months
Repottee es Messes! erfechans Proerem a/4MM harem. :enter he Mier:how Douses CDC
Editorial Note' Three instances of health-care wakes with NV mfacbons eSSOciated with
stun or mucous-membrane exposure to blood from HIV-infected patients are reported above
Careful investigation of these three cases did not identify other risk factors for HIV infects"
although unrecognized or forgotten needle-sbck exposures to other infected patients cannot
be totaly excluded The exact route of transmission in these then COSH s not known Health-
Cm Worker 1 had chapped hands, and the duration of contact with the blood of the patient
expenencmg a cardiac arrest may Mve been as long as 20 minutes Health-Care Worker 2 sus-
tained contamination of oral mucous membranes This individual also hed acne but did not
recall having open lesions In addition, she hed sustained a scratch from a needle used to mew
blood from an intravenous drug risme of unknown MNinfection status Health-Care Worker 3
hed a history of dermatitis invoning an ear Health -Can Workers 1 ano 3 were not weanng
gloves when direct contact with blood occurred Health-Care Worker 2 was weanng gloves,
but blood contaminated her face and mouth

Three wrong prospective studies provide date on the magnitude of the risk ohs 11,1 infec-
tion incurred when health-care workers are exposed to blood of infected patients through
needle-suck wound, or contamination of an open wound or mucous membrane In a CDC
coocantrve surveillance project 1701, a total of 1.097 health-care workers with par 000000 1 or
mucous-membrane exposure to the blood of patients with AIDS or other mane ions of
HIV infection had been enrolled as of March 31, 1987 Needle-stick iniunes and cuts with
sharp objects accounted for 969 (89%) of the exposures to blood. 298 ul these had paired
serum samples tested tor 141V antibody One 10 seroconvsned 121. indicating that the risk
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01 transInareon during these exd011utos is vary low In ad& on, 70 health-care workers had
open wounds expand to blood. end 59 had mucous membrane exposed to blood ')ostexPo-
sure serum samples from 92 of thin.; 129 worker, have been usted for antibody to HIV.
none was saropositive

Ina study at the National Institutes of H e a l t h ( I I ) through Apnl 30. 1997. none of the
103 workers with percutaneous exposures and none of the 229 workers with mucous-
membrane exposures to blood or body Surds of patients with AIDS was seroposibve At the
University of California I 12). none of 133 workers with open wounds or mucous membranes
exposed to bind or body finds of patients with AIDS was seropesdere Although the precise
risk of transmission during exposures of men wounds or mucous membranes to contaminat-
ed blood cannot be defined, those studies indicate that it must be very low

The throe cans reported here suggest that exposure of skin or mi.cous membranes to
contaminated blood may rarely result in transmission of WV The magnitude of the nsk a not
known sew data on the frequency with which such exposures occur are not evadable Skin
and mucous-membrge exposures ars thought to occur much more commonly than needle
sticks, and the risk associated with skin or mucous-membrane exposures is hkely to be far
lower than that associsted with needle-nick injuries Nonetheless, the increasing prevalence
of HIV infection mcrasses the potential for such exposures. especially w' an routinely recom-
mended precaubore are not followed

It is unlikely that r outing serologic testing for HIV Infection of all patients admitted to hosPl-
Ms would have prevented these exposures since two of the throe exposures occurred In the
outpatient clinic setting, and one occurred during s resuscitation effort in an emergency room
shorty after the arrival of the potent At the brne of exposure. Health-Cm Worker 2 suspect-
ed that thi, source patient was infected with HIV. but Hearth-Can Workers 1 and 3 did not
The hospital when Health-Care Worker 3 was exposed asMss protocol for aphorists which
normally involves MN-antibody testing of donors. ioavaver. such testing was not done on ad-
vance of the procedure Previous CDC recommendations have smphasarrd the value of HIV
ssrologic testing for patient diagnosis and management and for prevention and control of HIV
transmission (13) sad have nand that some hospitals in crmam geographic area* may nun
it mondani to initiate serologic testing of patients 17) Such testing may also provide an op-
portunity to reduce the risk of HIV infection to health-care workers. but It has not bean estab-
lished that knowledge of s patent's serologic status increases the compliance of health -can
workers with recommended precautions

Those cans emphasise again the need to Implement and strictly enforce previously pub-
lished recommendations for minimizing the risk of exposure to blood and body fluids of NI pa-
tients in order to prevent transmission of HIV infection in the workplace and during invades
procedures 17-91

1 As previously recommended. routine precautions must be followed when there is a possi-
bility of exposure to blood or other body thuds The miticipand exposure may require
gloves alone eg, when plump an intravescular catheter or handling items soiled with
blood or equipment contaminated with blood or other body fluids) Procedures Involving
mon extensive contact with blood or potentially efeetive body ;lode la g . some dental or
andosenn procedures or postmortem aminatiorts) may require gloves, gowns, masks.
and eyecovenngs Hands and other contaminated skin surfaces should be waned thor-
oughly and immediately it accidentally contaminated with blood 171 These precautions
deserve particular emphasis In emergency cars sittings in which the nsk of blood expo-
sure is increased and the infectious status of the patient is usually unknown (141

or --,
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2 Previous recOmmendarotut have emphasised mantieement of perenterel and mucous
membrane exposures Of health-care workers' In addition. health -care waken who are
involved in incidents that math in Cu SIMMS eiCPOSSAMI invdivinglerge amount, of blood
or prolonged contact with bloodNV*08y when the exposed skin in chapped. abraded.
or afflicted with dermatitis should f 0110w theta Same recoMMenoa bons Moreover.
serologic tasting should be available to d health-care waken who are Concerned that
they may have been infected with HIV

Rairvenees
1 Anonymous Needleatick trenerniesion of FITLV1 Nome patient infected at Af nee Lancet 1984.

2 1375.7
2 Stncof M.. Mons CIL HTLVIIVLAV seroconversion following a deep intramuscular needlestick

miulY (WWI N Engl J Med 1900.314 1116
3 Okserhendler E. Herne M. Le Roux OA. Rabin C. Clausal JP HIV infection with serocomersoon

after a taperfical needlestick injury to the finger N Engl J Med 1960,316 552
4 Neesallanad C. Ash S. Mathes D. Leibovntch J. Monplavw N Needlatick HIV seroc,,nyeresOn

ism Lance11111118.2 914
6 Gan P McEvoy kl Two assiieted cases of the aquwed Immune deficiency syndrome 141051

P HLS Commun Dis Rap 19116.42 4
0 CDC Apparent transmission of human Tlympliotropic vino tyPe1115yrnehalenoliethy-eseocisted

was from e ChM lo e mother providing health care MINA 1988.35 70-9
7 CDC Summary recommaidsmons for preventing traremation of infection with human T.

lanphotrowc was type Ittlympliedenopethressocusted Ann at the workplace fiatWit 1956.
34 501.6.091 -6

5 CDC Recornmealehons for preventing transmission of Infection with Manua T-Iymphotropie virus
lvOillIVIymphedenopethases.nisted olive during invasive procedures MMWR 1980.35 221-3

9 CDC Recommended info tan - control practices for dentieby MMWR 1988,35 237-42
10 WC*, E. The Cooperative Needlestak Surveillance Group Occupational risk of the anima rin-

rnurodefniency syndrome among lieelilacare waken N ENO J Med 1989.311 1127.32
11 Henderson DK, Saah AJ. 2ek IIU. et el Risk of nssocornier srifiction wM hurnan T-ices Symphotropu

was type NPlymphedenointliy-essocisted virus Ins forge cohort of intensively exposed hesith-care
waken Ann Intern Med 1988.104 944.7

12 Gaberdine JL 5 yen* Ulna CE, Nelson K. et at Peek of benenwhen the human inununodeficieney
ores hPrObe 5 mos and cytornegalovirus to heath-care workers espose7 to parents with AIDS
and AOSrelated Gonna:ins J WWI Die 1911 1.160 1-5 On Press)

13 CDC ReconarenSed additional wedelns' for 18V malady counseling and teeing in the prevention
of HP: 'Matron and Al Monte. Georgia US Deportment of Health and Hamm Services. Public
Health Service. 1987

14 Baker JL. Mien GO. Swenson KT. Gunn TC Unsuspected haw immunodeficiency virus in entr-
eaty A entereernY patients JAMA 1957.267 2800.11

15 CDC Pnwention of acovind immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS) report of Inter-egency recom
~damns MINA 1993.32 101-3

10 CDC Provisional Public Health Service interagency recommeNdetions for screening donated blood
and plasma for antibody to the virus causing scoured sonwnodelocieney syndrome MMWR
1955.34 1.6

If a NCW (health-care worker) has I auenteral leg. neediestick or cut) or mucous membrane lag.
splash to the eye or mouth) enemas to blood or other body fluids the source parent should be as-
teased clinically and epulemiologiceey to determine the likelihood of HTLV-IIVLAV lad refection H the

sment suggests that infection may soot. he patent should be informed of the incident and
requested to consent to wologa twang for andence of 1411.b alrLAV lac) infection if the source pa-
hat has AIDS or other evidence of HTLV111/LAV 114 onfachOn, declines testing. or hens positive tat.
the SICW should be evaluated clinically and serolOgirally for evidence of SITLV111/LAV lad infection as
soon as possible after the exposure. and. if seronegstIva retested after 0 weeks and on a panda ban
thereafter leg. 3. 0 and 12 months following exposure) to entennine if transmission hes occurred
Owing this follow-up paned. especially the fast 0-12 weeks. when most infected poisons are expected
to anoconvert. exposed SICWs should receive counseling about the resit o infection and follow 1.
Public Heath Service (PSIS) recommendations for prevenhng transmission of AIDS 115.161 if the
mace patient is SOrertglitive and has no other evidence of SITIN111/1Ail Iacl infabon no further
follow-up of the HCW us necessary If the source patient cannot be identified. demeans regarding ap-
propnste follow-up should be individualized based on the type of exposure and the likelihood that the
source patient was infe,ted 17)





251

19 2 2
lagE 8 hi qqa

.11 Oi it
§151111 gig

Pawl
§§!ith 2

111ht
. . J

"M! b
"El k

1141 of ti



252



253

§,K; n-1 i2t15

litM015$1 0%z-et '12

IPZIgl-11 IR it ;11iiii=
kst-L20A.1,1

;-pr
'221.2.gPti= 3114

144.64g:-.01L1- c= .;

4f1,2tPt62
;

3',431=11;li.!

L.
cs4



eg *wawa
ABOUT AIDE



255



A MOALTOY
WAWA.. SYMAI

includes special kind of some
010101 Ceft celled 8 cells and
T cells and depends on a balance
01 callain kinds of T cans

Helper T cells assist anti
bOdyproducinp 8 cells In
lIghlInp diseases

Suppressor T cells call oIl
the attack when Me
hnvadinp disease

as been
Slopped

keeleekrei
In.a nolnad and
ids.lsal 1Fa ow.
-- s vier eallml WV
(14urnen
wiernaorkherenny
Wu&

1111

seems In ailed Me balance 01
helper and suppressor cells

HIV apparently deeltn helper
cells without atIecling swims
sot cells propottionlely

When ,pptessor
cells outnumber
helper cells 14
Immune system
OCes nol work

iffia. ale TM

*wrap* cv,,!410.0
P1'1"481.^.14,

People Inhaled nay
Arlie 117, 114/111115116

" MAY IOWA
slmenrw ereplorra such se . Pope Nodal WM MN who

r mew Woe Pend. In the r go on lo develop ND3 are
peak. mantle a pole use . ermine lo flote on Amer at

WHOM Owes One common
Men ot Oft Iwo le euglitt

IrerleeL-21==t174'
lunge, wpm* at which Si.

recurrent tenet Including
OA swam tqe

reekl weight lose keno
wean* now
conslarO *We
returnee ale cenenleheO
WOO.
Mete wrote et UnulArel

", blemishes In the mouth

Smentilic research shows !hal HIV may &SO attack the nee.
as system catmints damage 10 the bra. and SPInal cord
Spns of damage may Include memory loss Intalletenc In
ablitly to make decisions Partial Wain,e lc. of cootOne
lion and bahal pleblems In connolbrob the body

Puma... le. &vole* I toot to Jose entlicia. to RV It
*a blood Y1n teat, .4.1. r May tand to aanan damn/ Weed,
0,0W* If I parades lea ern kw whored by Sr no. It dome Bedeaft If. person lea NOY ce nowsonly davelop MS

e mu Him r,. re mew Hons. ro 000 cm.on Our 0,1xwn er your
sr. or 0[V ream meermwm m ememb mel

rm 0,0 ro waled



110,14,
vrus .\\

tkat causes- AIDS

ilIAMPIPAIrr
one person

to another

110 can be speed by
scrod contoct, eke oe3
ir,Atcled hots dodt,c tote*,
of, less °He, dwouel, Wad
of taktf-4 procbrls itiwt, an
ir.fecied motive may nan-wod
tee ,a fo Fee baby pelota,
Awing, of afro 1+4+ (posse4y
through btess, -.reeding)

6

tie

, sev* Alpo
ao`ses who new connecting 11108 bwough mewl
1111011101aWM AMP Kielty Sowed,/ al l we those Ott '

(

fls API
esTPAVIII
ISM MA API

etto may now been exposed to the
free by Monne conlarelnoted needles.

AM 00014110WAL end rye contracted AIDS detteelt
Aee eellattlAL end chug un
We Meet Iv MOM

% s."..
AT& -AlielOALli

*to hove been wed poem's of
/JD% patents of otter moons at Pee
of getttne /J08

3% AAt
011.40eteireee

.0d ,Ifnete Ad. may he. connected /108
through the Jae of doneted Wad end blood
prtducd

A small number of WO and *WM
cent CAMPS dun I Id Into Ines troupe
Ober coon neve motored among
children who neve Ono 91.11 Wood ee
MOO oroduchl Of who may hre con.
trotted AIDS Iran an Infected ntoinof
doe p 8)

0A1V
A low twee floe warners 0df0 1,0
merebod n1 hop, telt 910005 Of wee
laded 101f No reel" Imencled Sale.y
preeedurro /711eVIN I contact Mt,
infected blood or body Buds have
developed arthbodoes to the ofos Ill
causes AIDS



fldidatot36 FollalmialieppCind:gm pesk,:totior
TA OCKIti 1040110.14ovol* We/ to ponterve4q#4.1.1,4,4 - 14t.

rrarto, iifl," I.

OMPT MAPS
AMPRIPTDOPS

about who o In
Ceded Tette nem
soy precautIone
With the body fluid.
d 514 patients

NI par. red steuld fade/
41114 #.d guidelines,

AMP MAIM
&WAS/ Of
TOPA *PM

and muCOus mem-
blIrel M. the
blood flood Pro-
ducts sometime,
wastes and tissues
ot alt patients

STAY
STIFONAOST

.0007 KV heed,
me Wilily e pot
ides Foam all
moan...Todd pro
cedures exactly
New decoveOn
about AIDS nay
..rot-8460f In

deceptions nec
eddy lot your job

Tr;

11A

Also, fellow specaf nroorrevondsitono
born +a Contus for C810111GO Control

for your prowl. job.

11St
OMITMIAMS
141AMOT

Money. OttssIble
To reduce the Me of
egeed.p AIDS I/

sower wise to use
needle doom
and other equipment
d es/gned 10 be ds
e ttfled 4881 888
LAO

"TWIT
WeSOPS

mwo T188-
monis and modes
To lucid MO.
P1808,8 ,r181801
8.01 bend recap

8,118 Med,.
by 8.4 0111 use

ec used Treadles
01 puncture rewSIS
containers

PAsTter
oral WouVpS
men coming A cod
tact with 88e.r18,4,
Added Madrid,
Bosuns to 0109.119
CO.. any laden

uttece

B



-a

WM
hat

OS !or kelth-esra Ind l waken

Pol/1.
PPOTS611V11

0.411111104

1, you, lob rroold es
pose YOU 10 Panent
blood secretion,
wastes etc Gloves
and downs may to
needed Arktliontd
protective apparel
um, IS masks end
goggles may be
needed 101 some
Procsdutes

WA.044
DAMP!

TOOPOVIIIILY
wnenewe you
lemove gated's'',
clothing and be
tween avely pabent
contact
It your hands touch
potentially con.
tsnanstoid blood
wash 'nem an
mech.'s,/

MOIL ALL
NSeMar
PPOPUUY,

prcoding In Me
olic.ee at you
healthcare lac.11y
II orce.Sa,y use a
hOspilal appro1e0
CIPSTIfectInl to clean
the OutIqle of the

placeThen

place Ole Spec men
a leak-prop,

second coma nee,

SAKE
PAPS OF

COAIAPIIPASSIF
APTIUAS

cording to hospital
00110101 la 100100
sssIng or drapotang

such Items Use
speclalh/ designated
INsslIc bags labeling
them in the same
manner used 101
labeling Messner's

MAP VP
ALL 111.001)

APRs!.
PPOMPILY,

using an approved
ddlnIsstar4 Also
Clean you work Sul
face goyim. It s
contaminated by po-
lenfistly Inlechous
materials and stkr
you 0$ completed
,Our work

Paaernmondrions

NW"
P111411411001111

Person Poloonln0
dotal mesas. or
alai osdarr Should

Weer ply. a
mask and promo.
eyeweal

Peat all Inelny.
cowls wee In the
mouth as pcsenParly
conlamIneled *este

lY11-4APIL
PRAC11111001110

he odd possible ex
demure lo IN AIDS
virus through an In
tested swoons leers

Wash hands Oter
each procedure and
beton. peeves
your apnea.
910,... II YOU Aare
cull 11CfalCTIN
Inane on your hand*



Protective measures for
Posirpop-u44-esge

Pitovivesta
lie roatelity rite for people 1.4,o Moe A105 is
ingS. medical conveys, .ntletilbets, erobaboets,
end ',Noose** skovIce

WSW* THAT UM Mile...MI.30
el the deceased as an AIDS or
vuvnerted AIDS of Om formates ml
Moo Oterly sett. orsimertorn so, ro

PIMP All. Mg :WOW Y
mart ants ArPAPIA-,,eR a,on man', (moles

9frffsm f hue Cf,enng etc
to aye, Slon or more°, frnm

brArle cnniact won < mfamnated

alApIWOPI' SOPFAVEA,
Ilsor and reslt omen's a,rofOrnq

rocoremended gooCOMrr, lor
oe,Ittlt,B t at s

WAS1 MOOS IMMSDIATUY
brand treelart er Csm and
*marl a phyyri.ln 0, TrIvrce

Otien OF AU. Alltt.,
ot r, rag" TOW IS et, imerl

t.arp to
I (I,Yr mine,

NOTE r 0110 nano at

from mn oar r nt dn,u, In ovnrm

n

4
1

Protective measure& for
critiER PIL0F65610,01.5

Contset .4114, people th,o bode AIDS C.
we infected with MIV s poteabity
for people who rosy be celled opal to provide
emergent,/ eat thew wake.* include

12 POUGII 0111F11111/1 ¢ 1111.1100 11400141.

141411411/111111111 O 11141411111EY ~MAL
11041,164,110

K you belong to one of these gcups, 560Ad.

MEep she #4,00
Mel based on current rematch HIV is not
'plead by loin confect so that you can
react calmly and rationally when helping
someone who may have AIDS

1AP4 optenolioo4
when m contact wnh brood giber pop,
fluids Weer gloves and keep disposable

enwoment Of fOSUSCPIOrrOO bags
wadable for emergency use En)

IYACO!e 0000

Mcluding washing
your Olinda ftequent
ly (while on the lob)
and changing and
washing uniform,
daily - or whenever
they become Soiled

L

tr,



HOW 1.006
w.11 these preen,,,,.,.. I.

fige.69614P-V

11,*1 queincn ran'. be Inst./end yet Sur, many
organ4tenene are waging in all-out we, on IMPS
For example, tfe u S. Pa4e Neslrl, Se,vice
wort:leveeing sfe effmis

ro.t errettPa FOP- gnsanse enMIAnL
wh.rh dont.1.1.1, rneesc

dr,Crt,K1 pats of occvnenCe
and .q ..png

.rn'late
and ,o,a1

hatlf, agencroS to cOnlro, AIDS

IPA PA IN'APM.
114.111U1/5 Or HEALTH

1,,,aatc aIf a Of^a,^,,F'

rooP AMP
POUG APVHIPSIPA1101,

4,

,e ar, 01,^rxlawf
11,1i.rti

rIP,Ilhnn)

nien1.01., 0PuG
ARUM Ar't?
MINIM. MALIN
nOr MISTPAIIOM

hAall, a Al I All,

for Ad. inforr..snon
abort MPS, WI de
toll-Ste U S. Pubie
Neal* Senora bet
Ins numkr,
1110030-Alpf.

Eft

So.--
PPOOP-EGO AGAINST

AIR* IS
BEING MPS!



262

Mr. WAXMAN. Yesterday, it was mistakenly stated that the Hot-
line tape refers callers automatically to Gay groups, including the
one before us. The record will show that the Hotline is operated by
the American Social Health Association, and that the materials
given by that group are not the same those that were discussed
yesterday.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Mr. Chairman, may I comment on that?
Mr. WAXMAN. The gentleman is recognized.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. The persons who brought this information to

my office told me that the counselor at the American Social Health
Association gave the phone number for the Gay Men's Health
Center. I may have misspoken with respect to that phone number
for the Gay Men's Health Center being on the tape itself.

But the counselor working at the American Social Health Asso-
ciation is the one who gave the telephone number for the Gay
Men's Health Center; and, candidly, I don't think we should toler-
ate that.

Mr. WAXMAN. Was that given on request to the individual call-
ing?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I don't know how else it would be given out.
Mr. MCKINNEY. Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Yes, Dr. McKinney?
Mr. MCKINNEY. I think that it is very likely that that could be, if

the caller were looking for an agency that provides direct client
services. It is well known that Gay Men's Health Crisis is the only
such agency in the city of New York.

It would be a very responsible reply to refer.
Mr. WAXMAN. You're not called the Gay Men's Health Center?
Mr. MCKINNEY. The Gay Men's Health Crisis.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer has referred to the Gay Men's

Health Center. Do you know whether that is the same organiza-
tion?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. We believe it is the same organization.
Mr. WAXMAN. You believe that it is the same organization.

Where did you get this information?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. A man named Duane Crumb, who identified

himself as a Christian minister, was given the number for the Gay
Men's Health Crisis Center. That organization sent him the litera-
tore that I have introduced for the record.

The counselor for the American Social Health Association was
the one who gave Duane Crumb the telephone number that I have
described.

Mr. WAXMAN. First of all, the question came up yesterday about
the transcript for the recording. Whatever transcript you have is
not the transcript from the recording. It is a transcript that indi-
vidual made of the conversation. Is that correct?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. We have another witness, unsolicited, who
brought this information to my office, that we have a recording of
the conversation that took place.

Mr. WAXMAN. It's a recording of the conversation, but not. a re-
cording of the tape?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. The recording that we have is not of the tape.
It is of the conversation that took piace.

Mr. WAXMAN. ThP National Gay--
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Mr. DANN. MEYER. This is a transcript of the National Gay and
Lesbian Crisis Line.

Mr. WAXMAN. Are you familiar with that organization?
Mr. MCKINNEY. Yes.
Mr. SWEENEY. Yes, we are.
Mr. WAXMAN. Who are they?
Mr. SWEENEY. They are an agency in New York City that runs a

national 800 number to respond to questions about Gay and Lesbi-
an issues, as well as different AIDS issues.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you know whether they are Federally funded?
Mr. SWEENEY. I do not believe they are Federally funded.
Mr. WAXMAN. Would someone be referred to them if they called

the original hotline number, and asked for services for a Gay indi-
vidual?

Mr. SWEENEY. It is quite likely that if an individual called and
said I am a Gay person, I would like to get services or educational
iniormation because I am Gay, that they would be referred to that
number. I think that is an appropriate referral, if asked for.

Mr. WAXMAN. Let me see if I can understand. We have the
American Social Health Association that has received some Gov-
ernment funds to have a hotline. That organization, if they are re-
quested for a referral for purposes of a Gay individual to talk to
someone, do you know whether they would give out your phone
number, or this other organization's phone number?

Mr. SWEENEY. Sir, I would hope that they would give out our
phone number if a Gay person asks for it. We receive between
5,000 and 7,000 on our hotline every month.

Mr. WAXMAN. As I understand what Mr. Dannemeyer has is,
someone made a transcript of a conversation with a Gay organiza-
tion, and that is the transcript you want to put in the record?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. No. I don't want to put this transcript in the
record, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WAXMAN. You don't want to put that in the record?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. What I I: ave asked to be placed in the record

was the literature that-
Mr. WAXMAN. I understand. But yesterday, you seemed to indi-

cate that what you found offensive was being said by the American
Social Health Association.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. That is still my position. It think it is offen-
sive for the An.,-Tican Social Health Association, using taxpayers'
money, to be giving out the telephor number of the Gay Men's
Health Center. I --

Mr. WAXMAN. Even when asked for information for a Gay person
to contact an organization?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. That's where the stories differ. The person
who brought this information to my attention identified himself as
a Christian minister, not as a Gay person. The person working at
the American Social Health Association gave the telephone
number to this person who identified himself rs a Christian minis-
ter of the Gay Men's Health Center.

Mr. WAXMAN. I don't know where they would refer Christian
ministers to, but that was no tt appropriate p!qc%-: to refer him. I
just wanted all this on the record so peupie understood what tran-
scripts, where, and whatever, belong to what organization.

OrN P.m4,01
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I am going to take a short recess. Thank you very much for your
testimony. We are going to take a short recess now before calling
our concluding panel. We hope to reconvene in the next 5 minutes.

[Brief recess.]
Mr. WALGREN [[presiding.] Let me call us back to order nd wake

everybody up from that short hiatus.
The last panel today in this hearing is made up of Dr. Irving

Weissman, a professor of pathology at Stanford University and a
member of the Steering Committee on AIDS of the National Acade-
my of Sciences, and Dr. Lawrence Corey, the Director of the AIDS
Treatment Unit and a professor of medicine at the University of
Washington, and Michael Callen, Community Research Initiative
and a founding member of the People With AIDS Coalition of New
York.

We want to welcome you to the committee and apologize for the
interruptive nature of our process here, but that is the way it is
and it is an imperfect process that we have. Your contribution to
the record is very important to all of us.

With that let's go through the panel in the order in which I in-
troduced you, and I am sure you picked up the ground rules from
the previous witnesses If you would limit yourself to something in
the range of 5 minutes and summarize however you feel comforta-
ble, focusing on the points that you really believe deserve to be un-
lerscored, we would be happy to have your testimony.

Dr. Weissman.

S TATEMENTS OF IRVING L. WEISSMAN, PROFESSOR OF PATHOL-
,1GY, STANFORD UNIVERSITY, MEMBER OF STEERING COMMIT-
TEE ON AIDS, NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES; LAWRENCE
COREY, DIRECTOR, AIDS TREATMENT EVALUATION PROGRAM
AND PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE, UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON;
AND MICHAEL CALLEN, COMMUNITY RESEARCH INITIATIVE,
PEOPLE WITH AIDS COALITION, INC.

Mr. WEISSMAN. I am Dr. Iry Weissman. I have been on the facul-
ty at Stanford University for nearly 10 years, and I have been an
immunologist for 20 years. I was on the Steering Panel and wrote
the background paper on the pathogenesis of AIDS for that com-
mittee which produced the document that I think all of you have
called "Confronting AIDS."

What I really want to say as briefly as I can is that despite some
very major advances in understanding the isolation and the nature
of the virus and the genetics of the virus that causes the disease
and some very striking clinical advances in at least describing
what happens to AIDS patients, that we still have some very major
problems that are not being addressed appropriately.

The first point I want to make is that we do not yet have a suffi-
cient knowledge base to develop an understanding which could lead
to the development of vaccines, therapy for those people who have
the disease already, effective therapy, prevention and other kinds
of treatment, and we are not acting, I believe, appropriately to
obtain that knowledge base.

The second point is that we have not yet even begun to recruit
the best minds and laborator;es in fields that are certainly directly

r
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related to AIDS, and there are very good reasons why we haven't
done so. Most of the reasons, I think, are funding reasons, and
some of them are structural: that is, how the structure of the fund-
ing agencies works.

Now, before I go too far into this, I would like to say that the
second point I made, that is, the lack of the very best minds, is not
just an invention of my own. A number of scientists, myself includ-
ed, went back over the 20 best names, the 20 finest scientists in T
cell biology alone, which is, of course, an area directly related to
AIDS, and asked how many of those people who were so prominent
in 1982 are now doing AIDS or AIDS-related research or research
funded under the AIDS rubric? Very few of them are doing so.

So there is a problem that we have not developed a structure, a
funding strategy that attracts and recruits the very best minds we
have. It would be like setting up a Manhattan Project with two or
three really good people, fantastic pe.)ple, but without tapping the
resources the country has to offer.

So let me move to my recommendations before I ramble much
further, and then I will get back to the reasons why I think these
are so. My first recommendation is that all AIDS research funding
should be incremental to already established NIH funding levels
plus inflationary increases backdated to 1982. I will show you docu-
mentation a little bit later that in fact there has been a recommit-
ment of funds to research which has greatly damaged our ability to
develop the sufficient knowledge base.

Second is that fundings for AIDS research should be broadly de-
fined and certainly should include those areas of fundamental im-
munobiology, virology, lymphocyte biology, developmental biology
and neurobiology which could provide the knowledge base for
future advances in AIDS research. Most of this broadened funding,
I believe, should be by independent investigator-initiated grants,
not through the contract route.

Third, that construction and renovation costs should be added
into the AIDS research budget, and the goal of such construction is
first to provide safe containment areas for investigations with HIV,
with HIV variants and with animals infected with HIV and HIV
variants; second, to provide structural centers using high cost, high
tech equipment to study the structures of the HIV molecules, also
of those molecules on T lymphocytes which are utilized for infec-
tion by the AIDS virus, and of those molecules that T cells recog-
nize on infected cells so that they can wipe out the seat of infec-
tion.

Third, to upgrade and extend the breeding, genetic definition and
high containment facilities for ar.imals involved in animal models
of AIDS, particularly simian and rodent species. The fourth point is
to establish research fellowships and research training programs at
the undergraduate, the graduate, the M.D.-Ph.D., the post-doctoral
and the post-clinical training levels with sufficient slots and com-
petitive ,salaries to attract the best young minds in America into
AIDS and AIDS-related research.

Already?
Mr. WALGREN. That is all right. We have time to be flexible.
Mr. WEISSMAN. So now 1 will just try to go briefly through a

couple of the arguments before my 5 minutes is up.
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Why do we have this paradox that we have this incredible epi-
demic, we have funds coming in for research, and yet we are not
attracting the very best labs and the very best minds into this
field? The first barrier, I guess, is containment facilities. That is, a
number of scientists, myself included, would very much like to do
AIDS research. We would like to do it the way that we can do it.
That is, we would like to do it by developing animal models or
working in the closest animal models available, or working even in
tissue culture with the AIDS virus, but you have to have a safe
containment facility.

At Stanford University and, I am sure, at many other institu-
tions, those facilities simply are not available. When I approached
our dean about developing such a facility, he said: Fine, you find
the space, the building, and then the money to build it, and I will
agree we should have that facility as a general use facility.

As you know, the NIH does not have funds for construction or
renovation. If we are going to work with this virus, we have to
work under safe conditions. If we are going to make an animal
model of it, we have to have high containment facilities for ani-
mals. This is an incredible barrier for people to move into this area
of research. We can't work with it safely.

The second point is to develop an animal model is going to be
expensive and it requires really high class animal facilities. You
could get an animal model that is close to relevant, that is, either a
simian model, where you have genetically-defined strains of mon-
keys so that you could tranek cells from one animal to another to
see what the course of the disease is, to ask, for example, what is
the mechanism for infection when the semen contains the virus, is
it in the seminal fluid, is it free virus, is it an infected cell, is it a
sperm? We don't know those answers yet.

Once it gets into the animal, how does the virus spread from one
cell or one tissue to another? How does it get rid of all those T lym-
phocytes that normally protect against infection? We don't know,
and we cannot invade the human body to find it out. We have to
have an animal model for that, and that takes money and takes
time and takes people. So on and so on. We don't know yet how b
identify those cells which could usually eliminate the virus infee
tion but in this case they don't.

So there are tremendous needs to develop these kinds of models,
and the brightest people would follow if the models were developed.

Now, in the funding for AIDS research from 1982 to 1986, you
have a document that was cited in this AIDS thing that was writ-
ten by Richard Krause, who was the former head of National Insti-
tutes of Allergy and Infectious Disease, which shows that the fund-
ing for AIDS at the NIH has largely been recommitted out of the
already existing NIH budget, and very little add-on funds came
about.

AIDS is an add-on disease, quite clearly. It was not around, at
least that we could see, as a clinical entity probably before 1978. It
is an add-on research burden, yet there is very little add-on re-
search money. Now, when NIAID or NCI, the inbtitutes that
mainly fund for AIDS research, had to develop these funds, they
took it away from something else. What did ti.i.ey take it away
from? Basic immunobiology, T cell biology, virology, neurobiology,
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just exactly the areas that we must learn more about in order to
develop the knowledge base, in order to develop the diagnostics, the
therapeutics, transplantation, whatever we are going to need to be
able to take care of those people who already have the disease, and,
of course, to prevent the disease from spreading.

In addition, there are some areas of research which deal with
solving structures at a very, very microscopic level that require
very high cost facilities, called x ray crystallographic facilities.
There are a few tiny laboratories around the country and very
little training money for people to go into this area; yet, it has
proved crucial for our understanding how particular viruses can
cause infection, how particular viruses can get rid of T cells, and in
fact, how T cells can recognize an infected cell and tell it apart
from a free virus or from a normal cell.

Solving that question isn't trivial. Solving that question is cen-
tral to try to develop rational vaccines a id rational therapies. So
we have to have some way of developing both training grants and
facilities for x ray crystallcgraphy at a number of places.

I can see my time must be getting short, so I think I will just
close there and take any questions.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Weissman follows:]

STATEMENT '"''? IRVING L. WEISSMAN, M.D.

AIDS and ARC are hurnen diseases caused by a retrovirus called HIV. A remar-
kedly intense and effeCive collection of research efforts at both the basic science
and the clinical science levels have led to the isolation of the virus, the definition of
its genetic structure, the demonstration that it is associated vith each of the disease
complexes occurring in AIDS patients, and especially that the virus appears t:
attack and cause the elimination of a critical subset of protective cells in the body
the CD4 T lymphocytes. The result of this depletion of most CD4 T lymphocytes is
an unusual susceptibility to infection by foreign invaders that are usually easily
eliminated. Because co much has been learned about the virus and the diseases it
causes it is tempting to believe that we have sufficient knowledge to combat this
epidemic at a scientific level; and that as a result of that focused combat we have an
excellent chance to develop drugs to treat patients with the disease, to develop other
drugs designed to restore the immune system in such patients, and to develop vac-
cines that will prevent populations from being infected by HIV. The major thesis of
this document is that these assumptions are not true, and that we do not have a
sufficient knowledge base yet to guarantee an expeditious and appropriate set of re-
sponses leading to the development ef necessary vaccines, drugs, diagnostic, and
therapeutic agents. Furthermore, one, might assume that the great need to combat
this epidemic would have resulted in the recru''ment of the very best minds in im-
munology, virology, clinical infectious disease, developmental biology, and neurobio-
logy to work on AIDS and the diseases it engenders. That is not so. While the re-
search carried out to date includes much which has been of the highest quality, no-
where near the enormous talent pool available to work on this disease has in fact
been effectively recruited Thus there are very major barriers to completion of re-
search adequate to stem the AIDS epidemic, both at the level of developing an ap-
propriate knowledge base, and recruiting the talent necessary to develop that
knowledge base In this document I shall try to explain what those barriers are and
how I think they can be breached.

AIDS appears to be a new human disease, and as such it is an "add-on" to the
Nation's health research agenda. We now have a strong national mandate to in-
crease funding in all areas which might lead to an understanding of the AIDS virus
infection, and the systems which it attacks, yet the current AIDSresearch funding
is not add-on. In fact, funds have largely been recommitted away from areas of re-
search in basic immunobiology, developmental biology, virology, cancer biology, and
'I lymphocyte biology, and instead these funds have been committed to the urgent
research on the AIDS viruses and the patients who have the disease Thus we are in
a funding mode which paradoxically must slow down the development of a funds-
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mental understanding necessary to develop a knowledge base sufficient to respond
to the challenge of the disease.

How did this paradox come about? To illustrate the problem I shall use one exam-
ple, although it is not limited to the Agency I cite. The National Institute of Allergy
and Infectious Disease (NIAID) has had a major responsibility in developing and
carrying-out AIDS related research. Tnat responsibility came from mandated fund-
ing from both the legislative and executive branch = of the U.S. Government. The
amount mandated was not fully incremental to the dget of NIAID, and therefore
funds had to be taken away from other portions of the NIAID budget. Just prior to
this mandate the majority of research funds distributed by NIAID went to investiga-
tor-initiated grants (ROl and P01 grants) in laboratories mainly in academic set-
tings and research institutes that are primarily staffed with graduate students,
medical students, and postdoctoral fellows. In fact, historically, the development of
new and useful fundamental knowledge in the areas of Ilasic medical sciences has
traditionally come primarily from these investigator-initiated grants. The investiga-
tor-initiated grants represent the most important "cottage industries" for science,
where each scientist develops his or her own hypotheses about what might be going
on in the field, develops experimental models for testing these hypotheses, and sub-
mits a grant which, if funded, should approach the experimental questions over a 3-
7 year period of research. These ROl grants are reviewed by panels of independent
scientists, almost all of whom are not employees of the government, who rank them
for originality and scientific merit; ranked grants are then funded pretty much ac-
cording to their order of merit.

Each of the NIH institutes also funds intramural programs, mainly on the Bethes-
da campus, as well as having the power to grant contracts on specific research or
development areas which they deem most important. The intramural NIH programs
are very much like the ROl programs, althougl they do not face the same type of
independent review as the RO1 grants. In contrast to the investigator-initiated
grants the contract programs are initiated without a requirements for broad-based
review. The contract programs therefore depend for their success on the bisdom and
breadth of the NIH administrators to develop the project areas, to publicize their
availability, and to select the successful contracts. during the past 5 years the
NIAID intramural and contract programs have risen to be the major recipients of
funding, at the expense of till ROl grants.

Even for those ROl grants which are funded, for the past several years grants not
classified by NIAID officers to be relaters directly to AIDS research have been under
severe funding cutbacks, averaging 5-15 percent per year rather than the actual 10-
20 percent inflation for personnel and materials. The types of research not classific ii
under the AIDS rubric, to name a few, include many fundamental studies in animal
models of virus infections; molecular genetic research of several related virus types;
the fundamental aspects of T cell development, including the origin and history
of CD4 T lymphocytes, and the kinds of T cells which carry out anti-viral immunity
in ways which wall off or eliminate virus-infected cells; research involving isolating
and crystallizing the envelope proteins from m ,mbers of the retrovirus family to un-
derstand their structures, a prerequisite to defining how these viruses attach to and
destroy CD4 T cells; the isolation and crystallography of the CD4 proteins; and the
basic studies of the footprints viruses leave on the surface of infected target cells
which allow immune T cells and other killer cells to recognize and destroy those
virus infected cells.

Although one might think that shifting these funds from ROl grants to contracts
might lead the best of th,. independent external investigators to respond to requests
for funding under NIAID contracts, in fact this is usually not the case. Most highly
intelligent and accomplished investigators do not wish to surrogate their own ideas
and projects to those dictated and administered by other scientists (most of whom
may not be as bright or as accomplished as the external investigator). Thus on the
basis of funding alone, most NIH institutes ha"e not been successful in attracting
outstanding and accomplished investigators to commit themselves to a long-term re-
search program related to AIDS, or to developing the fundamental knowledge base
important for AIDS research

The best people working in external research labs are bright young students who
are beginning 1) undergraduate research expenences, 2) graduate studies in the bio-
medical sciences, and 3) postdoctoral research training prior to obtaining a research
or academic appointment. Unfortunately, the trend in Public Health Service and
National Science Foundation funding for the past several years, and acutely in the
past year, is to limit or decrease numbers of fellowships for undergraduates, gradu-
ate students, M.D.-Ph.D. students, and postdoctoral fellows.
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To summarize, while the increased funding for NIH intramural programs has
paid off spectacularly in AIDS molecular virological and immunological research,
these precious few laboratories cannot develop the required knowledge ease on their
own. The net affect of an AIDS funding mandate has therefore been a very signifi-
cant shift in PHS funding away from external investigator-initiated grants and to
NIH intramural and Nlii directed contracts, neither of which involve broad-based
peer review. As a result the payline for external investigator-initiated grants in
some of these crucial areas has become even more stringent, resulting in a dampen-
ing rather than an expansion of first-rate investigation and training. While it is
clear to most members of the NAS/IOM panel that our commitment to fight the
AIDS epidemic will require prolonged and intense research, these actions will deny
creation of a long-lasting infrastructure necessary to develop the understanding of
the normal physiology of those parts of the body attacked by the AIDS virus, and
for understanding how AIDS and AIDS-related viruses are involved in the patho-
genesis of AIDS.

AIDS so far is a human disease, and much of what we know about the events that
occur from the moment of contact with the virus to the time the patient reaches
terminal stages of his or her illness in the hospital is fragmentary at best. Hospital
care and autopsy analyses have taught us much about terminal stages of the dis-
ease, yet we do not yet know 1) the mechanism(s) by which the AIDS virus trans-
mitted from one person's cells to another person's cells; 2) the events that occur that
spread the infection from one part of the body to the next; 3) the events that lead to
a successful antibody response to certain parts of the virus, but an unsuccessful T
cell-mediated elimination of the virus-infected cells; and 4) whether the virus elimi-
nates the CD4 T cells during their development in the bone marrow and the thymus
directly, or by some indirect means. In fact, published research shows that although
over 99 percent of the CD4 T cells are eliminated during the course of HIV infection
leading to AIDS, at no time can the virus be found to be produced by more than a
rare subset of CD4 T cells (the highest estimates I have seen are still less than 1 in
10,000 of these cells). Because there are appropriately very important medical and
ethical safeguards against unwarranted invasion of the human body to find answers
to some of these questions it is likely that we shall continue to be largely ignorant
about the full extent of the introduction, spread, and pathogenic consequences of
HIV infection throughout the course of human disease Even if it was possible to
obtain rapid, complete, and sterile autopsies on HIV-Infected individuals who die of
other causes (for example, accident, suicide, myocardial infraction), the limitations
on such research will not lead to the answers we need to have.

Naturally occurring retroviral Infections leading to significant acquired immuno-
deficiencies have been found in several vertebrate species. Although only a few po-
tentially produce a syndrome quite similar to human AIDS, none has been studied
sufficiently to elucidate the mechanisms of pathogenesis, so that one could know
whether the different types of the immune deficiency result from similar or differ-
ent basic mechanisms. Simian AIDS and simian retroviruses are perhaps the most
relevant potential examples It is conceivable that a large scale effort on simian
AIDS could be developed which would allow one to develop genetically defined mon-
keys which would allow the transfer of immune rejection of virus-infected cells from
one individual to the other, therefore allowing scientists to work out questions of
the spread of the infection and the host Immune response to it. Despite the emer-
gency of knowledge of these important models, actual NIH funding for examples
such as simian AIDS decreased for the several years leading up to 1986.

A completely analogous animal model of HIV-induced human AIDS has not yet
been found. Most of what has been learned about fundamental aspect of animal
virology, immunology, lymphocyte biology, and to a lesser extent neurobiology has
come from extensive investigations with genetically defined Inbred strains of ro-
dents. In these times of recombinant DNA manipulations of retroviruses and tissue
culture cells and of transgellic mouse strains, it is possible that a completely analo-
gous animal model of HIV-induced human diseases might be developed The result
of such a development would be the rapid entry of a large number of first-rate scien-
tists at a number of levels into the AIDS field.

HIV is a human pathogen, and its study requires high-containment facilities. The
lack of such facilities is a barrier for many first-class scientists to enter the field In
the future, if HIV-infected animal models are developed, high-containment animal
facilities will be required to guarantee safety and the full participation of the wider
scientific community in AIDS research

For example, at Stanford University and Stanford Medical School (and proba..ly
elsewhere) there is no HIV containment facility mailable to qualified investigators
who wish to follow their own lines of Inquiry; and no fully developed high contain-
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ment animal facility to house mice or other animals of an important animal model;
and no funds to build such facilities for common use by qualified investigators. Fur-
thermore, due to the repeated funding restrictions from NIH on purchase of new
and high cost equipment many laboratories are still working with instruments such
as ultracentrifuges which are 10-20 years old. Finally, there is no NIH funding
available for construction of new or renovation of old laboratories. Thus many out-
standing laboratory groups continue to work in overcrowded and underequipped fa-
cilities. High cost special new facilities such as those require(' to do modern struc-
ture analysis by x ray crystallography and related technologic; do not exist at many
academic and research campuses, and NIH moneys required to develop these facili-
ties are not easily obtainable.

Recommendations:
1. All AIDS research funding should be incremental to already established NIH

funding levels plus inflationary increases back-dated to 1982.
2. Funding for AIDS research should be broadly defined, and certainly should in-

clude those areas of fundamental immunobiology, virology, lymphocyte biology, de-
velopmental biology, -yid neurobiology which could provide the knowledge base for
future advances in AIDS research. Most of this broadened funding should be via in-
dependent investigator-initiated RO1 or P01 grants.

3. Construction and renovation costs should be added into the AIDS research
budget, and the goal of such construction is first to provide safe containment areas
for investigations with hIV, will, HIV variants, and with animals infected with
HIV and HIV variants; second, to provide multiple structural centers using high
cost, high tech equipment to study the structures of HIV molecules, of molecules on
T lymphocytes utilized for infection, and of molecules used for targets of immune
attack against HIV infected cells; third, to upgrade and extend breeding, genetic
definition, and high containment facilities for animals involved in animals models of
AIDS, particularly simian and rodent species.

4. Establish research fellowships and research training programs at the under-
graduate, the graduate, the M.D.-Ph.D., and the postdoctoral and postclinical train-
ing levels with sufficient slots and competitive salaries to attract the best young
minds in America into AIDS and AIDS related research.

[Note: This document is derived from a background paper by the author written
for the National Academy of Sciences/National Institute of Medicine panel on AIDS
which carried out a study in 1986, culminating in a report released in October of
1986. The author of this document wrote the background paper entitled Pathogene-
sis of AIDS for the Committee, on which he served as both a member of the steering
committee and a member of the panel. Because the research for the report was com-
pleted by May, 1986, this document could be inaccurate on some non-scientific issues
relating to funding subsequent to October, 1986.]

Mr. WALGREN. We appreciate that testimony and we are pleased
to give you the flexibility to add to it, either as we close or even in
after-thought by writing.

There are some more bells that are ringing. Why don't I jast go
over there and vote and come right back, and this will take us
about 5 minutes, and then we will be able to turn to the balance of
the witnesses. I apologize for that, but we have no control over it.
Be right back.

[Brief recess.]
Mr. WALGREN. Let's go back un the record and turn to Dr. Corey.
Dr. Corey.

STATEMENT OF LAWRENCE COREY

Dr. COREY. Thank you, Mr. Walgren.
It gives me pleasure to address you today concerning my and

many of my colleagues' perception of some of our country's imme-
diate research needs.

I come to you in my role as Director of the University of Wash-
ington's AIDS treatment program, as a physician who has been a
researcher, medical educator and patient care advocate of persons
with viral sexually transmitted disease for over 12 years, as a pro-
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fessor of medi(Ine who leads a research group in the AIDS treat-
ment, is a'sociated sexually Pcquired cofi...+ors, and as the director
of one of he few tra: programs in viral sexually transmitted
diseases in the United Statss.

The charge of your committee concerning our country's needs for
solving this problem are extensive and many qualified persons
have already addressed you. I am not going to minimize any of the
importance of others' perceptions and concerns but will limit
myself to a rather focused area, the necessity of providing facilities
to peg urm clinical research for what we tern secondary preven-
Lon of AIDS: that is, stopping the development of AIDS in those
who have infection with the human immunodeficiency virus.

By way of background, I think everyone realizes, and Dr. Silver-
man has gone through this, that the agent that causes AIDS is a
formidable opponent in that the AIDS epidemic or what should
more appropriately be called the epidemic of HIV infection in viral
sexually transmitted infections that we are expenenci..g in the
United States will not be amenable to a quick fix. To develop the
biological know-how on how this virus persists in the human host
for an extended period of time and what are the host immune re-
sponses that provide protection will, to adapt a phrase, take our
best and brightest.

These pieces of information are necessary if we are to develop a
vaccine. To develop better therapies t slow down what appears to
be a nearly inevitable progression of this infection will also take a
concerted research effort involving scientists in nearly every ,3-1-
ceivable discipline. The data that indicates that after 7 years,
nearly 30 percent of those infected with HIV develop AIDS, an ad-
ditional 25 percent of symptomatic illness spurs those of us Vac
ire involved in r c.arch toward the development of new therapies
with an almost nig.Amarish urgency.

However, despite our resoluteness concerning this task and our
willingness to devote 80- to 100-hour workweeks to achieve this
goal, we also are frustrated by the lack of facilities to accomplish
this charge. I applaud the committee's insight in authorizing re-
gional AIDS research centers; however, the nature and amount of
money available to these centers is .neequate.

Capitl con., .action for specialized laboratories and clinical fa-
cilities for AIDS patients and researchers is needed similar to the
cancer research centers so successfully implemented about 15 years
ago. It is not unusualin fact, I find it commono have many of
the brightest of our g, aduate students or melical students come to
us and ask to work in the area of AIDS research. They and t are
willir' to compete through the peer review system to obtain fund-
ing Lv conduct the experiments. money and sometimes even
the equipment to perform their experiments are often available.

What is not available, however, is the space to do the o: k. I am
not talking about spaced used between 9 o'clock and 5 o'clock but
space that is already occupied at night and on weekends. In the
last year I have personally had five doctoral and post-doctoral per-
sons with superb research training ask to partic;pate in our treat-
ment and vaccine-related research. All had to be referred else-
where Secause of the lack of space. All are now working in other
areas, lost to the AIDS research effort for yel .s, if not forever.
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In fact, recently I recalled one of these particularly excellent stu-
dents who had previously approached me because we now
some money to fund her. She, however, was involved in another
project with another organism and could not be persuaded to leave
the bench for her work.

When we talk about space, as you have heard earlier, we are
talking about P-3 or high containment laboratory space, the kind
of laboratory space that is expensive to build and, frankly, is more
space per person. You can not afford to have accide' is in the labo-
ratory when working with this virus, and we need 'iese kinds of
faelities. They are costly facilities. They are facilitieL that must be
well staffed and cannot be crowded.

As a scienti't, I am trained as more of an observer than a predic-
tor; however, it is apparent to those of us working in the field that
in the next 5 years we will be faced with the administration of an-
tiviral drugs to a large spectrum of persons infected with the aids
virus. The monitoring of these patients will require sophisticated
virology and immunology laboratories. We will be faced with train-
ing primary care physicians in technologies of health care and ex-
perimental therapy that are new to them.

If we are to offer the latest available modalit.es of therapy to
these persons, we must establish regional centers of excellence that
possess the persons, the core laboratories and scientists to conduct
these studies, to train health care personnel in the care of these
patients and conduct the pioneering studies to extend the duration
and qualLy of survival. Parenthetically, I would say having an ef-
fective drug that can be given to the asymptomatic seropositive
persona will, I think, go a long way towards solving the "dilemma"
of resistance to testing for HIV.

While there have been moneys appropriated for the conduct of
these studies and even the establishment of regional centers, there
has been none for the construction of the facilities in which to do
the studies. The current problem is a longstanding one in which
space for biomedical research has been inadequate for years. Ren-
ovation moneys will not solve th:z, problem.

Frankly, it is not possible to proceed with the efficiency and -,ace
which this problem deserve:, without the bricks and mortar to
tackle the problem.

The model of the cancer center is, in my opinion, an excellent
one and one which has been successfu: in bringing the latest avail-
able modalities of therapy to patients. I would envision at least 5 to
10 to even more regional clinical basic and research centers that
would contain outpatient facilities for the conduct of clinical re-
search, :,ore virology and immunology laboratories needed for the
support of these studies, and basic and clinical science laboratories
to bring the bench scientists, the clinicians and patients. This ap-
proach will speed research and optimize care.

Specifically, f would even suspect that at least any facility would
need :proximately 40,000 square feet to house the appropriate fa-
cili, 4, and approximations are made in the testimony i have sub-
mitted. Without these types of a ters, time line to conduct
clinical studies and to provide the latest available modalities of
tii....apy to patients with this infection will not proceed v,ith the
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pace and the expectations of the American public and its elected
representatives.

I know there is at times resistance to the construction of build-
ings. However, the cancer research centers, such as the Dana
Farber and fir,, various other ones, Hutchinson Center in our city,
are successful models of the bricks and mortar that save lives in
cancer therapy. A similar approach is needed eor HIV infections,
centers that mold a cohesive group of basic clinical scientists, phy-
sicians, epidemiologists, educators and health care personnel
trained in the prevention, and control and educaticn of sexually
transmitted diseases, persons inter'sted and dedicated to as expedi-
tious a solution to this disease as is humanly possible.

Thank you.
Mr. WALGREN. Thank you very much, Dr. Corey.
Mr. Callen.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL CALLEN

Mr. CALLEN. Four years ago I was one of three people with AIDS
to testify before Representative Ted Weiss' Subcommittee on Gov-
ernment Operations on the subject of the Federal response to
AIDS. Anthony Ferrara and Roger Lyon have since died. I carry on
their fight because they cannot.

Sometimes I feel like the Elie Wiesel of AIDS. I feel compelled to
testify to the world about an almost unspeakable horror. With
AIDS the task is not merely to remember those who have died; it is
to prevent more death. Not everyone dies from AIDS and A1DS-re-
lated conditions, just mostly everyone.

When asked to speculate on why I am still standing, I usually
joke: "Luck, Coca-Cola Classic and the love of a good man." One
thing is for sure. My survival has nothing whatsoever to do with
Federal treatment research efforts, and it is this problem of treat-
ment research that I am here today to address.

I am sure you will understand why those of us with AIDS are
impatient. We do not have time to wait for the research systems
already in place to move at the glacial pace for which bureaucra-
cies are famous. While I do not doubt the personal commitment of
many NIH scientists, it is clear that the U.S. Government's track
record in terms of treatments for AIDS is nothing short of scandal-
ous.

More than 6 years into tLe AIDS crisis, we have fewer than 1,000
people enrolled in treatment trials in the AIDS treatment evalua-
tion units. More di tressing still is the paucity of compounds tested.

I would like to discuss an exciting development which might dra-
matically speed up finding treatments for this insidious disease.
One of my main criticisms of Federal efforts derives from the fact
that treatment research priorities are set almost entirely by aca-
demic, bureaucratic research scientists. The valuable insights of
general practitioners who are dealing with the day-to-day patient
management are undervalued or ignored. This is a waste of knowl-
edge which we can ill afford.

In an attempt to mine this largely untapped resource, the People
With AIDS Coalition in New York has :ormed the Community Re-
search Initiati-,e. CRI has been set up to permit community physi-
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cians to conduct treatment research in their own offices using their
own patients. This should dramatically expand the number of
people involved in treatment trials, which in turn will provide
better answers faster.

Briefly, here is how CRI works. In the United States, all research
involving human subjects must meet certain appropriately rigorous
standards. A protocol must be written outlining precisely what is
to be tested, how and why. This , ...ntocol must then be reviewed by
a scientific advisory body. In addition, institutional review
board made up of community represents , must ensure that re-
search subjects will not be exposed to unnecessary risk. Someone
must also coordinate the enormous logistic details of recordkeeping,
subject solicitation, coordination of appointments and procedures
and the analysis of findings.

All of these functions nece: sary to conduct FDA-approved re-
search are normally present wily in medical centers or at Federal
research institutions, but the one things medical centers lack is the
subjects themselves. They are forced to advertise for subjects or to
rely on referrals.

CRI proposes to bring the mountain to Mohammed, so to speak.
Local physicians already have the patients. What they lack is the
administrative structure to conduct trials in their own offices. The
Commu lity Research Initiative provides such a structure. Ther
are several immediate advantages to this approach. One, while the
ATEUs have some trouble filling trials, community physicians
have large and willing patient populations from which to draw.

Two, since community physicians would be responsible for coordi-
nating day-to-day care, they would be more likely than a medical
center researcher to know all the medication:. that a patient is on.
Many patients who participate in the AZT trials concealed the fact
that they were on other medications during that trial. This may
have hopelessly undercut the value of those trials. This problem
would be reduced or eliminated if general practitioners could con-
duct research on their own patients. Thic would be an enormous
advantage.

Three, the major asset boils down to this. Community physicians
have the trust of their patients, a major advantage given the gener-
al level of suspicion which has surrounded Federal treatment ef-
forts to date.

The final advantages are these. CRI can conduct FDA-approved
resea.2h faster and cheaper and perhaps better than more tradi-
tional avenues, faster because the will to move quickly is there,
c eaper because there is less overhead since doctors use their own
offices to conduct the research, and perhaps better because a com-
munity with its back against the wall of AIDS will not per,..iit any-
thing but the highest quality of science to occur in its name. We
can avoid the bureaucratic eatrenchment and silly turf battles
which I believe have plagued AIDS research treatment to date.

A founding principle of the People With AIDS self-empowerment
movement is that people with AIDS ought to have a say in process-
es where decisions are being made whim directly affect our lives. If
treatment priorities must be set, they ought to reflect input from
those of us most directly affected, people with AIDS.
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Lest anyone fear that people with AIDS are unable to objectively
and effectively participate in the design and execution of clinical
trials, I hasten to point out that the scientific advisory body which
currently reviews CRI protocols contains individuals of the highest
scientific caliber, many of whom also review protocols for the
ATEU's.

We have sought out and gained the support of many of the lead-
ing AIDS experts in this country. We are committed to conducting
top notch research. Our lives deserve no less. CRI would comple-
ment, not compete with parallel Federal efforts.

It can be done. Creative solutions are necessary for these crisis
times. American history is replete with examples of what this
country can accomplish if it puts its mind to something.

I seek your support and welcome your questions. Thank you.
Mr. WALGREN. Let me just ask for some short answers because

these are second bells and it gives us just a couple of minutes and
then I am going to have to go back over tl- ere. It only makes sense,
I think, at that point to end.

Mr. Callen, one of the concerns in AIDS drug eval'iations is the
prntection of human subjects from harm. Can you describe the pre-
cautions that your organization might take in protecting people
from research risks? Is there anything you would like to add in
that area that would be helpful for the recor3?

Mr. CALLEN. I am a member of the Institutional Review Board
for the CRI, and I can tell you t sat we go over these issues in ex-
cruciating ethical detail. One example is we were approached to be
involved in a trial of DDC, and a group from our Scientific Adviso-
ry Committee went , to the company and looked at the data and
has rejected pu-suil.,, chose trials further.

There are r le in the lesbian and gay community, and particu-
larly the AJDb community who ale arguing that we should deregu-
late and that anybody should be a'ole to take any substance they
want. I am riot of that view, nor is the Community Research Initia-
tive. We believe that the regulatory system can work, that there
need to be safeguards, and we would be committed to _lot pursuing
any trial where the risks outweighed the potential benefits.

Mr. WALGREN. Dr. Weissman, you indicate, and Dr. Corey as
well, that we need these facilities, that these facilities will be sub-
stantial. Obviously, there can be only several of them. How would
you place them at that point? Do you have any shorthand for the
guidance of those who argue that these facilities should be placed
by picking a city or picking an institution? How do you pick among
the institutions if we don t have enough to go around? Is that a
problem that you feel deserves to be addressed?

Mr. WEISSMAN. I think that for high containment, P-3 facilities,
they are expensive but not so expensive that each medical center
cannot afford having one or more. I would suggest that they be
funded through investigator-initiated grants, going before the usual
kind of review body justifying their need to have that kind of facili-
ty at that school, and then take their chances with the peer review
process.

For something that might be very special and very expensive,
that is, developing high-containment primate facilities and very
large breeding facilities for vhat we would call hist ompatible or
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genetically defined monkey lines so that one could really do that
important kind of research, obviously you can't do that every-
where.

Again, there ara very fine primate centers at several places
around the country that could carry this out if they had sufficient
support.

Mr. WALGREN. Let me on behalf of the committee thank you all
for being a resource to us, and particularly Mr. Callen for being a P

very special resource to us. We appreciate very much your reach-
ing out, to us in this process, and we appreciate each of you being a
resource that we can reach back to.

I apologize for and I know Mr. Waxman would want me to ex-
press his apologies for the interruptions and the fact that he had to
meet another commitment at the time your panel came up, but
that doesn't mean that we appreciate you any less.

Thank you very much, and we will look forward to where we go
from here.

[Whereupon, at 5:43 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.]
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ABSTRACT: Parental verbal and nonverbal responses are often cited as contributing factors in the
development of stuttering in young children. Parents are counseled, for example, to reduce the
number of questions they ask their stuttering children despite the lack of evidence indicating that
they ask their children too many questions. On purpose of the present study was to examine
whether the mothers of young stuttering children differ from the mothers of young normally
disfluent children in their verbal interaction patterns during free play with their children. A second
purpose of the study was to investigate whether disfluency in young children is related
systematically to the type of speech act expressed. Four preschoolers and their mothers
participated in the study. Forty-five minute conversational speech samples which were audio- and
video- recorded were analyzed. Resn1:., indicated that the speech act categories used most
frequently by the two groups of mothers did not vary in percentage of occurrence. The mothers
did differ, however, in the number of utterances they produced when compared to the number of
utterances produced by their children. The mothers of the stuttering children talked more
frequently. With regard to the pasterns of disfluency displayed by the children, there was a trend
for the normally disflyznt children to produce more disfluencies on statements while the young
stuttering children were more disfluent on descriptions. Both groups of children exhibited more
whole- and part- word repetitions than any other types of disfluency.

RESEARCH QUESTIONS

1) Do the intentions expressed most typically by the mothers of nonstuttering children during play
differ from those expressed most typically by the mothers of beginning stuttering children during
play?

2) Is the frequency of disfluency in young nonstuttering children's speech related to the type of
intention expressed in messages?

3) Is the frequency of disfluency in young beginning stuttering children related to the types of
intentions expressed in messages?

4) Do nonstuttering children and nonstuttering children differ with regard to the nature of the
relation between intentions in messages and the frequency of disfluency in speech?

METHODOLOGY

Su b jeeti
The subjects in this study were four sets of mothers and their preschool children. Each of

these children was referred to the experimenter at the Northwestern University Speech and
Language Clinic because either or both of the parents were concerned about their child's
disfluency. The experimenter evaluated the disfluency of each of the children over several
sessions. Results of the evaluation suggested that two of the children were incipient stutterers and
two were normally disfluent speakers. Therefore, at the time of the session reported in this paper,
all of the mothers believed their children to be beginning stutterers. All subjects came from
Caucasian, monolingual, middle-class home. They were all free of physical and sensory
abnormalities. See TABLE 1 for subject testing information.
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Data Collection Procedures
Data collection took place in the homes of the subjects. The mothers were instructed to

play with their child using toys provided by the examiner. Each parent-child interaction v, as
videotaped for 45-minutes. The interaction was recorded with a Panasonic color video camera and
a Quasar videorecorder and tuner both of which were in view of the mother and child. A time
generator on the camera was used to record actual times of occurring events in the sample for later
analysis. In addition to the videorecording, an audiotape recording was collected using a Sony
stereo cassette recorder. This recording was made to insure clarity of the audio portion of the
interaction.

Coding Rules and Procedures (abridged)
Initially, the videotaped/audiotaped samples were transcribed into orthographic records.

General activities and other nonverbal information relevant to the situation were noted. After this,
these transcripts were transferred to coding sheets where seven types of analyses were completed.
Disfluency measures were derived first. Then the number of conversational turns and utterances
was tallied. Next, all utterances of the mother and the child were coded for the various intentions
expressed. Fourth, the total number of tokens of each intention expressed was tallied for the
parent and for the child. Then the total number of disfluencies per speech act was derived. The
mean length of utterance for the three speech acts where that greatest percentages of disfluencies
occurred was calculated next. Finally, the types of disfluencies noted most often per speech act
were recorded.

Conversations were separated into conversational turns and all turns into utterances.
Utterances were bound together by a pause, a rise or a fall in intonation contour, or grammatical
completion. Sometimes, two utterances were bound together in one breath. Here the coder
listened to intonational cues and decided whether or not the speaker intended the utterance to be one
continuous or two separate utterances (Golinkoff & Ames, 1979). TABLE 2 provides examples
of coded utterances. Conversations were displayed on a written page. The person who was
talking, the interaction number, and the exact interaction were identified on the written transcript.

Throughout the conversational context, a "narrative" or glossing was supplied (Miller,
1979). This was used for combining the context and utterance in order to specify the meaning and
structure of each utteracne so that someone reading the transcript would beable to understand what
was going on without returning to the original tape or -lying entirely on the verbal context.

When an utterance or part of an utterance was unintelligible, a series of "x" marks
indicating the general length of the unintelligible word or words was supplied. That meant that an
unintelligible utterance was heard and was excluded typically from the coded corpus. Double
brackets ([[ ]]) indicated that twe utterances or parts of the utterances were said simultaneously.
Such an overlap was considered an interruption.

Analysis of the Data
The following analyses were completed for each parent-child dyad:

1. Frequency of stuttering and normally disfluent speech behaviors.
2. Total number of turns.
3. Total number of utterances.
4. Frequency of the ten different speech act (intention) categories. See

APPENDIX C for the list of speech acts and their definitions).
5. Total number of disfluencies per speech act (intention) category.
6. Mean length of utterance in syllables for the three speech acts containing the

greatest percentages of disfluency.
7. Frequency of the different types of disfluencies per speech act type.



RESULTS

A total of 3034 utterances were coded and evaluated from the conversation of the four
dyads. Of these, the mothers produced 1394 utterances and the children, 1640.

Child Measures

1. Disfluencv Measures. Tne two nonstuttering children exhibited primarily "word
repetitions" with the next most frequently occurring category of disfluency being "part-word
repetititions". The stuttering children produced mostly "part-word repetitions" and "word
repetitions" in that order of frequency. See FIGURE 6.

2. Conversational Turns. Two general findings can be observed. First, the total number
of turns per child varied across the group of fo r children with the youngest nonstuttering child
(NS1) exhibiting the fewest turns and the youngest stuttering child (Si) exhibiting the greatest
number of turns. Second, in all cases, the number of mother turns was similar, if not the same, as
her child's. This finding would suggest that there was a regular interaction pattern in each mother-
child dyad. See FIGURE 7.

3. Utterances, The youngest nonstuttering child (NS1) produced the fewest number of
coded utterances while the oldest nonstuttering child (NS2) produced the greatest number of
utterances.

4. Speech Act Measures, The most frequently occurring speech acts for all four subjects
included Descriptions, Statements, and Requests. The overall :iercentage of use of the
different speech act (intention) types did not seem to differentiate be men the two groups of
children - nonstutterers and beginning stutterers. Rather, the age of the subjects seemed to be of
greater importance in identifying the differences among the children.

5. speech Act Categories and Disfluencies. The two nonstuttering subjects wcre most
disfluent on Statements. A different pattern of disfluency emerged for the two stuttering
children. For these two children, Descriptions incurred the greatest percentage of disfluencies.

6. Mean Length of Utterance. This procedure was completed to examine the influence
length of utterance might have on the occurrence of disfloency. See FIGURE 13. An assessment
of the relation between MLU and disfluency revealed two patterns. First, the presence of
disfluency in the speech of the nonstutterers did not appear to be influenced by utterance length.
Nonstuttering Subject 1, for instance, exhibited the fewest disfluencies on Descriptions; the
longest utterances on the average that he produced were Descriptions. A similar pattern was
seen for Nonstuttering Subject 2. He produced the fewest disfluencies on Requests; Requests
were his longest utterances on the average.

The stuttering subjects demonstrated a different pattern. Here, length of utterance did seem
to be influential. Stuttering Subject 1 exhibited the greatest number of disfluencies on
Descriptions; Descriptions were on the average the longest utterances she produced. The
second stuttering subject demonstrated a similar pattern. Descriptions contained the greatest
percentage of the total number of disfluencies and were also the longest utterances produced.
Length of utterance seemed more influential with Stuttering Subject 1 than it did with the second
stuttering subject. This youngster, tilt: oldest of all four child subjects, exhibited a more confirmed
stuttering problem as his disfluencies were more equally distributed across all speech acts.

7. Disfluencies per Speech Act. The relation between types of disfluencies and speech acts
expressed was examined. All four children produced primarily "word repetitions" on Statements
and Descriptions and primarily "part-word repetitions" on Requests.

4



Mot her Measures

1. Intentions. All four mothers produced similar patterns in their use of speech acts. The
three most frequently expressed speech acts included Descriptions, Statements, and
Requests. See FIGURE 15.

2. Utterances. Three findings can be seen in the data displayed in FIGURE 14. First,
the number of mother utterances for each mother varied across the group. Second, the mother of
the youngest, nonstuttering child produced the fewest utterances; the mother of the youngest
stuttering child, the most. Third, the mothers of the two stuttering children produced more
utterances than the mothers of the two nonstuttering children.

3. Comparison of Child and Mother Utterances. A comparison of child and mothers
utterances can be viewed in FIGURE 14. Observation of the data indicates that the mote' of
the stuttering subjects produced more utterances overall than did their childien while the mothers of
the nonstuttering children produced fewer utterances than did their children. The ratio of child
utterances to mother utterances for both nonstuttering children was 1.4 to 1. The ratio of child
utterances to mother utterances for the stuttering children was .91 and .96 to 1.

DISCUSSION

The present study addressed two basic issues. First, it tested the bases of the claim
proposed by Johnson. One question asked was whether mothers of stuttering children interact
differently with their children than do mothers of nonstuttering children. The present study
allowed a valid comparison between two groups of mothers and their children to be made. Both
groups of child subjects displayed disfluencies. Both groups were referred to the investigator
because their mothers had already diagnosed them as stutterers. Only two of the four children,
however, had a defined stuttering problem. Thus, all mothers were faced with the same situation -
a disfluent child who might have a long-term problem - but only two of the mothers were
interacting with a diagnosed stutterer. Any observable differences between the mothers' interaction
patterns would be less likely attributed to differences in experience or perception and more likely
attributed to some inherent characteristics in their personal interaction style. So, if there is
something consistently different about the interactions of the two mothers of the stuttering children
compared to those of the mothers of the normally disfluent children then there would appear to be
evidence for a maternal interaction style related to stuttering. (Remember, at the time of the initial
taping, none of the mothers knew whether or not their child was a beginning stutterer.)
Preliminary analyses of the data would suggest that indeed this is the case. Findings, though not
supportive of qualitative differences in the verbal behaviors of mothers of stutterers, do support the
idea that there is a maternal interaction style for stuttering. Conrad (1985) found similar results
during one of her prescribed activities. In her study and the present study, mothers of stuttering
children talked more often than did their children. This increased talking by mothers of stuttering
children may be a result of two factors. The first is the need of the mothers to control the situation
while the second might be the children's lack of spontaneous speech. While in this latter case,
mothers might talk more because their children talk less, the former suggests that the lack of talking
on the children's part may be attributed to the directive or more responsive style of the mothers.
Caution must be exercised in assigning cause to one or another reason because it is likely that the
effects noted are bi- directional.

Second, this study addressed whether disfluency in young children is systematically related
to the type of speec act expressed. This question arose out of an interest in (a) how the content of
a child's utterance ;lit contribute to the occurrence of disfluency and (b) whether differences in
the frequency of dis uency across speech act categories would serve to differentiate stuttering
children from normally disfluent children. Such information could prove diagnostically and
therapeutically pertinent. Findings from this study suggest that while the four children exhibited
similarities in their use of speech acts, the location of disfluencies across these speech acts



differentiated the groups. Again, results revealed that these four children most frequently produced
Descriptions, Statements, and Requests. And whie the non stuttering children produced
most of their disfluencies on Statements, the young stuttering children produced most of their
disfluencies on Descriptions. The incipient stutterers produced a majority of their disfluencies
when expressing in detail various aspects of the environment. These children performed similarly
to the young subject in the study by Pollack et al. (1986).

The finding that the stuttering children produced more disfluencies on Descriptions may
account for the observed difference in maternal dominance by itself. The stuttering children in this
study produced long descriptions. The length of these Descriptions appeared to influence the
presence of disfluency. Meyers & Freeman (1985) found that all mothers interrupt children's
disfluent speech significantly more often than they interrupt children's fluent speech. Given that to
be the case, it seems likely t1-act mothers would not only be more likely to interrupt but also attempt
to exercise control over rile conversation by taking longer turns as well. Meyers & Freeman
examined interruptions in their study . Interruptions are one aspect of turn-taking behavior. Turn-
taking appears to be orderly in average conversations (Jaffe & Feldstein, 1970). The system of
signals and rules that underlie orderly turn-taking is, however, apparently complex. It is possible
that when a speaker exhibits disfluency, this disfluency is perceived as a turn-yielding signal.
Another possibility might be mat disfluency is iterpreted as a signal that the speaker is
experiencing difficulty finding a word or expressing a thought. In this case, the mother may be
interrupting or taking longer turns believing that she is providing assistance to her child.

In this preliminary descriptive study, some new insights have been provided about the
factors that may contribute to the development and maintenance of stuttering. There are, however,
a number of limitations to this study (e.g., the small sample size). These four children plus two
others were followed once monthly over the period of a year. Further analyses will be pursued
with this additional data. Until that time, it is hoped that other researchers might investigate similar
issues. If the observations made in this study can be substantiated, the future of fluency therapy
for young, incipient stutterers will involve much more specific evaluation of difficult speech
contexts and increased understanding of the importance of parental verbal behavior in the
persistence of early stuttering.
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TABLE 1. The performance of subjects on tests of speech, language, and hearing.

SUBJECT AGE PPVT ARTIC HEARING DSS OP DIS

NS 1 2;9 107 pass pass* 50th%ile pass 5%

NS 2 4;1 100 pass pass 40th%ile pass '3%

S 1 3;8 108 pass pass* 90th%ile pass 15%

S 2 4;11 92 pass pass 40th%ile Pass 19%

All subjects are from middle class homes.
NS = Nonstutterer; S = Stutterer.
AGE = age in years; months.
PPVT = standard score from the PEABODY PICTURE VOCABULARY TEST.
ARTIC = results from the articulation screening section of the PRESCHOOL LANGUAGE SCALE.
HEARING = results from the hearing screening.
DSS = percentile score from the DEVELOPMENTAL SENTENCE SCORING.
0-P = results from the oral-peripheral examination.
DIS = percentage of disfluency in spontaneous speech.

All children passed the hearing screening at 2(k9 except those marked. Due to noise in
the home, these children had the 500 Hz frequemy presented at 30dB which they then passed.
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TABLE 2. A list of examples of utterances from the transcripts of the subjects
explaining how utterances were analyzed.

The decision as to what was an utterance was made based on a combination of the
definitions of pragmatic structure and syntactic propositional structure of
utte.-ances.

EXAMPLES:

A. You hold this and tell me what you want - 2 utterances.
1. You hold this - REQUEST FOR ACTION.
2. and tell me what you want REQUEST FOR INFORMATION.

B. Those are pretty big shoes, aren't they? - 2 utterances.
1. Those are pretty big shoes - DESCRIPTION.
2. aren't they? - REQUEST FOR INFORMATION.

C. Yes, it looks like that - 2 utterances.
1. Yes - STATEMENT.
2. it looks !ike that - DESCRIPTION.

D. Wow, that's really great! - 2 utterances.
1. Wow - CONVERSATIONAL DEVICE.
2. that's really great - STATEMENT.

E. Hello, Daddy? - 2 utterances.
1. Hello - CONVERSATIONAL DEVICE.
2. Daddy? - REQUEST FOR INFORMATION.
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APPENDIX C

SPEECH ACT CATEGORIES

The following are descriptions of the ten speech act categories used. Examples are provided. These are based on categones proposed by
Folger and Chapman (1978).

(1) DESCRIPTION: Represent observable or verifiable aspects of the environment. Included in this category ar-:

IDENTIFICATIONS: That's a barn; John's a boy; There's a big choo-choo.
EVENTS: I'm drawing a ilOUSC.
PROPERTIES: That's a bear with a wheel.
LOCATION: I put the dollar in the purse; Here's the neclace.

(2) STATEMENT: Express facts, beliefs, attitudes, or emotions. Included here are:

EVALUATIONS: That's right; Good.
INTERNAL REPCATS: I'm tired.
ATTRIBUTIONS (about other's internal states): Hewants to go.
RULES: You can't ride the rocket; No.
RESPONSES: Yes.

(3) REQUEST FOR INFORMATION: Utterance seeks an informational response from the child.

What's that? Where is the bear going' Is he playing with it2

(4) REQUEST FOR PERMISSION: Speaker seeks the right to do or accept som ,ning

Can 1 tie your shoe?

(5) REQUEST FOR ACTION: Utterance seeks a behaviors response from the addressee. Such requests can occur ul any of
four forms:

QUESTION FORM: Why don't you feed him ar apple?
COMMAND FORM: Get a blue block; Sit in your high chair, Look here, Come on
EMBEDDED COMMAND FORM (use of 1st person plural): Let's look at this: Let's do your puzzle.
STATEMENT FORM (indirect request): It sure would be nice if you used your spoon

(6) CONVERSATIONAL DEVICES: Utterance functions primarily to extablish or maintain interpersonal contact. Included
are:

BOUNDARY MARKERS: Hello; Hi; Thank you: Good night.
CALLS: John (when not commanding action).
ACCOMPANIMENTS TO ACTION: There; There you go, OK (if not indicating "I will"): Oh, Oh wow

(7) PERFORMATIVE PLAY: Any riddle, nursery rhyme, or reading from a book.

(8) ELICITED IMITATION: Utterance explicitly asks for an imiution from the addressee.

Say "night-night"; Can you say "shoe"?

(9) REPETITION: Utterance is an exact repetition of a remark including prosodic characteristics.

(10) OTHER: Any utterance which are not words but sounds. Although many are communicative, their function is frequently
difficult to discern and than were placed in this remaining category.

Mmm; Ahemm: Ahoh.


